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Fifty years ago, our Founder set forth on a pioneering mission to 
add a dimension of convenience to Sri Lankan households. Creating 
a wave of modernity, the Abans brand has revolutionized our retail 

landscape with world-class appliances. 

Expanding our business across six strategic spheres of retail, 
services, finance, manufacturing, real estate and hospitality we have 
demonstrated our consistent track record of being ahead of time. 
Venturing forth by creating an iconic presence with Sri Lanka’s first 
international mall, we introduced a multi-dimensional modern mixed 

life style centre inspiring world-class living standards. 

Our story of success is spurred by our committed Abans Team who 
share the core values of determination and indomitable spirit of our 
Founder who forge ahead with a vision to create sustainable value.  

Our milestones and landmarks achieved over the years permeate 
every layer of the dynamic fabric of Sri Lankan society. Our history is 
intertwined with the progression of the standard of living Sri Lankans 

have experienced. 

That’s what makes Abans truly ahead of time. 
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To attract and 
retain our customers 
for life...

Vision Mission
Adding value to our most precious 
asset, our customers, by bestowing a 
novel range of world-class products 
and services that reflect comfort, 
convenience and quality.

"Three years ago,we took the strategic direction to introduce 
professional management possessing specialist expertise 
to lead and manage at the group level, considering the rapid 
expansion of our business across six business verticals.  
With our new team supporting us the entire "Abans family" 
the Company and Group will undoubtedly move ahead from 
strength to strength bringing in more growth prospects."

"Despite the competitive market conditions, we were able to 
improve the GP margin to 30% from 27% last year. Further due 
to stringent cost saving initiatives, the group Profit before tax 
increased by 119% to Rs.1.21 Billion"

MESSAGE FROM THE 
CHAIRPERSON

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S 
REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE24

20
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COLOMBO CITY CENTRE:  
RESHAPING THE CITY SKYLINE

A highly anticipated addition to the 
capital’s fast developing skyline, Colombo 
City Centre is Sri Lanka’s first BOI 
approved mixed development project. 
The USD 184 million joint venture 
between Abans and Singapore-based 
Next Story Group is one of Sri Lanka’s 
largest foreign direct investments in the 
past decade. Rising 47 storeys to watch 
over the heart of the city, Colombo 
City Centre takes a major leap forward 
towards redefining urban living in Sri 
Lanka. The development encompasses 
the following: 192 luxury residences, Sri 
Lanka’s first international mall, and an 
upscale business hotel.

Residences

Influenced by Scandinavian architecture, 
the Colombo City Centre residences 
focus on providing an aesthetically 
pleasing, neo classical environment 
that meets the diverse needs of the 
21st century lifestyle. Spanning from 2 
bedroom and 3 bedroom apartments 
to palatial 5 bedroom penthouse suites, 
each residence features a spacious open 
plan living, kitchen, and entertainment 
area that utilizes high white ceilings, 
engineered timber wood flooring, and 
sophisticated colour palettes to increase 
the flow of natural light. The piece 
de résistance of these apartments is 
exquisite Dual Kitchen, which includes 
an entertainer’s kitchen with a show 
stopping kitchen island. 

Plus, residents will be with an expansive 
array of exclusive amenities including 
private access to the infinity swimming 
pool, state-of-the-art gym, sauna, and a 
Sky Lounge on the 43rd floor for private 
viewing of the city.

Mall

Opened on 19 September 2018, the 
Mall at Colombo City Centre offers a 
world-class combination of culinary, 
entertainment, and retail experiences 
from 10 am to 10 pm every day. From 
popular international brands to iconic 
local favourites, shopping at the Mall 
marks a new era of retail for Sri Lanka 
with dedicated upscale stores for brands 
including Apple, Abans, ALDO, Spa 
Ceylon, and more. 

Along with premium retail, the Mall 
features Sri Lanka’s first food atrium 
that includes the country’s most 
popular restaurant names, international 
newcomers, and a dessert bar 
conceptualized by a three-time Michelin 
Star Chef. Scope Cinemas, Sri Lanka’s 
first Dolby Atmos multiplex, provides 
750 seats across 6 screens with 
approximately 30 shows being displayed 
per day.

Next Hotel Colombo

Featuring 164 rooms over 8 floors with 
panoramic views of the Colombo city 
skyline, Beira Lake, and the Indian 
Ocean, Next Hotel Colombo offers an 
experience that truly redefines modern 
travel, with dynamic style, sophistication, 
and true attention to detail. Guests will 
also enjoy contemporary dining at the 
Hotel’s Marquise restaurant or outdoor 
terrace restaurant overlooking the Beira 
Lake. The Hotel will further offer exclusive 
amenities including a fitness facility and 
infinity swimming pool.

Awards

• “Best Mixed Used Development 
2018” at Asia Property Awards 2018.

• “Best Luxury Condo Development 
2018” at Asia Property Awards 2018.

• The ‘Best Innovative and Sustainable 
Design of the Year’ at Golden Globe 
Tigers Awards held in Kuala Lumpur 
in April 2018.

• “ASIA’S Greatest Brands 2017” 
award in Retail, Real Estate and 
Hospitality sector at ASIA ONE.

• ‘Upcoming Mall of the Year 2018’ at 
Golden Globe Tigers Awards held in 
Kuala Lumpur in April 2018.

• “Most Admired Marketing Campaign 
of the Year” at the Golden Globe 
Tigers 2018 which was held at Taj 
Samudra on 19th July 2018.

• “Best Social Media Campaign of the 
Year” at the Golden Globe Tigers 
2018 which was held at Taj Samudra 
on 19th July 2018.

Overview | 
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‘Best Mixed Used
Development

2018’ 
Asia Property Awards 2018

‘Best Luxury Condo 
Development 2018’
Asia Property Awards 2018

 ‘Best Innovative and 
Sustainable Design  

of the Year’
Golden Globe Tigers Award

‘Upcoming Mall

of the Year 2018’

Golden Globe Tigers Award

‘ASIA’S Greatest 
Brands 2017’

ASIA ONE
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Introduction to our

1st Integrated
Annual Report

There have been no changes in the scope of reporting, 
accounting policies and boundaries from the previous year. Non-
financial information in this report pertaining to the previous year 
has not been restated, unless otherwise stated.

Materiality Determination 

We apply the principles of materiality in assessing the information 
that is to be included in the integrated report. Matters which 
are identified as material are those that affect the value creation 
capacity. Pages 64 to 72 of this report covers the material 
aspects relevant to the Company. 

Standards and principles of preparation 

The financial statements presented on pages 138 to 241 of this 
Report have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (SLFRS / LKAS) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the 
requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The narrative 
on Corporate Governance (pages 40 to 52) complies with the 
Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka and CA 
Sri Lanka and the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange

We have followed the Integrated Reporting Framework adopted 
by the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) and the 
Global Reporting initiative (GRI) 'in accordance' - 'core'. The 
external assurance is given by Independent Auditors Messrs. 
Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants.

Feedback 
We welcome your 
comments on the 
Annual Report. 
Please contact our 
Group Chief Financial 
Officer as follows:

Group Chief Financial Officer 

Abans PLC
No 498 Galle Road,
Colombo 03, Sri Lanka.

Contact Number
+94 11 577 5000

www.abansgroup.com

About this Report 

This year we present our first Integrated Annual Report 
through which we provide a holistic view of our strategy 
and performance of Abans PLC.  This report provides a 
comprehensive yet concise review on how Abans PLC (the 
‘Company’) created value to its stakeholders through its 
financial, social and environmental performance for the year 
ended 31 March 2019. 

Report Structure 

The Annual Report of the Company covers the period of 
twelve months from 1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019 which 
represents the annual reporting cycle. The Company creates 
value through the Business Model, which takes inputs from 
the six capitals and transforms through business activities to 
produce outputs and outcomes that create value over time for 
its diverse stakeholders. This Report represents a balanced 
review of our financial, environmental and social performance, 
our governance framework and how we manage risks. 

Scope and Report Boundary 

This Report considers the financial performance of the 
subsidiaries which is disclosed in Note no 13 to the financial 
statements which are collectively referred to as the ‘Group’ in 
the Annual Report. The key financial aspects are discussed in 
the context of the Company as well as the Group. The non-
financial aspects are discussed from the perspective of the 
Company only. 

Overview | 
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Available Forms
Abans PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

Print
Available on
Request

CD-Rom
Posted to all 
Shareholders

Online
Available as 
PDF

www.abansgroup.com

About Us

About the Company 

About this Report

Our Journey 

Our Focus 

Engaging with our Stakeholders

Materiality Matters 

External Environment 

How We Create Value 

Performance Highlights

Message by Chairperson

Message by Managing Director 

Message by Chief Executive Officer 

Value Creation 

How We Govern 

Corporate Governance 

Risk Management 

What We Delivered 

Capital Reports 
Financial Statements

Navigating our report

Overview | 
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CREATING AN ENTREPRENEURIAL LEGACY 

What does it mean to be a true 
pioneer? 

Pioneers throughout history have been 
either those who explore uncharted 
frontiers, like Neil Armstrong walking 
on the Moon, or develop life-changing 
technologies, activities, or markets, like 
Tim Berners-Lee and his invention of 
the World Wide Web. But it takes a rare, 
special individual to be both. 

Way back in the 1960’s when Sri Lanka 
was a closed economy Aban Pestonjee, 
a young wife and mother of three looked 
beyond with insight to a solution faced 
by many home makers. She wanted to 
introduce a solution to the long hours 
spent by homemakers in household 
chores without the help of household 
appliances. 

This sparked the simple idea of finding 
and reselling appliances that will not 
only make her life easier, but also those 
of the homemakers around her.  She 
began reconditioning gently used home 
appliances retrieved from embassy 
auctions and reselling them for a 
reasonable price with a guarantee at a 
modest corner store in Bambalapitiya. 
She also opened a service workshop in 

her garage to repair the appliances sold 
by her. Little did Pestonjee know that this 
simple idea would have a transformative 
impact on the lives of Sri Lankan citizens 
overall.

With the liberalisation of the economy 
she forayed to bring in world -renowned 
brands such as Electrolux, Hoover, and 
Russell Hobs to the Sri Lankan market. 
She was also a pioneer in introducing 
Korean and Japanese brands of 
household appliances by taking the lead 
in introducing Lucky Gold Star, now 
known as LG Electronics and Mitsubishi 
in the Sri Lankan market. Today LG is 
one of the country’s most popular home 
appliances and electronics brands. 

The business moved into the next sphere 
of progress in the 80’s and 90’ when 
her family members joined her. This 
era was marked by introducing a host 
of pioneering ventures to Sri Lanka by 
Abans. Abans becoming the franchisee 
of McDonald’s restaurants and the 
expansion of the conglomerate’s reach 
into six strategic business segments – 
retail, services, finance, manufacturing, 
real estate and hospitality. 

In the post war era of Sri Lanka Abans 
propelled by the dream to have a place 
where Sri Lankan families can spend 
quality-time together, launched the 
Colombo City Centre, Sri Lanka’s first 
international mall, on September 19, 
2018.

Pestonjee’s life journey is synonymous 
with that of Abans, her unique business 
model hard work, perseverance, and 
persistence - reverberating through every 
single step of Abans’ history. Her simple 
desire to help housewives like herself has 
resulted in a permanent redefinition of 
the retail industry, and revolutionised how 
local citizens live and work in Sri Lanka. 
That’s what makes Aban Pestonjee, 
Chairperson and Founder of Abans 
Group, a true pioneer.

Abans’ innumerable milestones and 
landmarks permeate every layer within 
the dynamic fabric of Sri Lankan society. 
Our history is intertwined with the 
progression of the standard of living in Sri 
Lanka.

That’s what makes Abans truly  
ahead of time.

Pioneer
A person… that originates or helps 
open up a new line of thought or 
activity…to open or prepare for 
others to follow…

--- Merriam-Webster Dictionary

Overview | 
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Ms Aban Pestonjee is an entrepreneur who has been recognized in the local and global arena for 
entrepreneurial success. 

On responsible selling 

“I always feel that if I took money from a 

customer, he should have the comfort of 

knowing that if anything went wrong, he could 

come to me within a year and I would repair 

it for him. That is what made me want to give 

customers a guarantee.” 

Promoting your products and advertising  

“Put yourself in the customer's place and 

see what the customer would like and what 

would you like as a customer.” 

Persistence 

“I still kept on writing and invited representatives 

from world famous brands over to see what sort of 

business I was carrying on. The first brand that came 

in was Electrolux. The representative came over, and 

I showed him my workshop in the garage and how 

I was marketing in my little shop. He saw that I was 

interested in not only marketing their goods, but also 

looking after the appliances. So that was how I got 

my first agency.”

Business advice for an emerging 
entrepreneur 

“If somebody wants to start a business, I think 
they need to abide by the codes of honesty, 
hard work, perseverance and do the business 
you are interested in, not just to make money 
but do the business you are interested in.”

Quotes from Mrs Aban Pestonjee

Extracted from the interview with Mrs Aban Pestonjee, interviewed by Geoffrey Jones, Mumbai, India, July 13, 2017, 

Creating Emerging Markets Oral History Collection, Baker Library Special Collections, Harvard Business School.

• The Award of Excellence for 
Women Achievers for Outstanding 
Achievement from the SAARC 
Women's association in Year 
2000. 

• In 2006, she received 

International Recognition 

for winning the Leading 

Women Entrepreneur of 

the World award. 

• She also received the 

LG award for the Best 

Importer on South-East 

Asia on behalf of Abans 

Limited.

•  Sri Lanka’s Entrepreneur 

of the Year Award 2017 at 

the Derana Sri Lankan of 

the Year Awards. 

•  Woman Entrepreneur of 

the Year at the Women’s 

Chamber of Industry 

and Commerce (WCIC) 

“Unstoppable – The Future 

Belongs to Her” Woman 

Entrepreneur of the Year 

2017 awards.

• “The Bronze Award” for the 
Large Business Category by the 
Women's Chamber of Industry 
& Commerce at the Year 2000 
Women Entrepreneurs of the 
Year Awards. 

• “KOTRA Plaque of Appreciation 
2005” for forging strategic foreign 
economic ties between South 
Korea & Sri Lanka presented by 
Mr. Young Kyo, President and 
CEO of the KOTRA (Korea Trade 
Investment Promotion Agency). 

Overview | 
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ABANS MILESTONES

1968
Mrs. Aban Pestonjee 
opens her corner store 
in Bambalapitiya

1978
Abans ties up with 
'Electrolux'

1981
Incorporation of Abans Electricals 
(Pvt) Ltd & Abans (Pvt) Ltd

1998
Abans Restaurants Systems (Pvt) Ltd*, the first 
Sri Lankan retailer to franchise a international 
fastfood restaurant chain, McDonalds

1999
First flagship showroom opens at 498, 
Galle Road, Colombo-03

1995
Goldstar rebrands as LG, which 
Abans successfully introduces 
to the SL market

1987
Abans ties up with 'Gold Star'

* These companies are not subsidiaries of Abans PLC

Overview | 
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2004
Milestone of first 100 showrooms

2005
Incorporation of Abans Finance PLC

2011
Incorporation of Abans Auto (Pvt) Ltd*

2013
Incorporation of Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd*

2014
Lists on the Colombo Stock Exchange 
changing the name to Abans PLC

2015
Abans Group collaborates with Next Story 
Group to begin construction on BOI mixed-
development project, Colombo City Centre

2018
Abans 50th Anniversary and opening of 
Colombo City Centre, Sri Lanka's first 
international mall 

2017
Abans PLC introduces Hugo Boss, a world-renowned 
luxury menswear brand and moves in to fashion 
retailing

Abans becomes National Distributor for Apple Products 
in Sri Lanka

Abans enters the Furniture Business with 
'Abans Homes In Style'

Overview | 



GROUP STRUCTURE

AB Suncity (Pvt) Ltd

Colombo City Centre 
Partners (Pvt) Ltd

Next Story Group

Abans Finance PLC

Abans
Electricals PLC

100%

49.67%

42.95%

Abans International (Pvt) Ltd 100% 100%Abans Retail Holdings (Pvt) Ltd
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50%

50%

Overview | 



Abans Retail
(Pvt) Ltd

Abans Lanka
(Pvt) Ltd

AB Technologies
(Pvt) Ltd

100%

56.87%

100%

PLC
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GLANCE
YEAR AT A

April 2018 Starting the year with new aspirations 

after the Group Restructure

May 2018 Appointment of Independent  

Non-executive Director to the Board

June 2018 Opening of 'Injection Mould Facility' - 

at Abans Electrical PLC  

July 2018 Appointment of Group Head of HR

August 2018 Appointment of Group CEO

September 2018 Opening of Colombo City Centre Mall

October 2018 Introduction of 'Performance 

Management System' for Abans 

employees  

November 2018 Received the 'Hewlett-Packard Direct 

Retailer' and 'Best Service Partner' 

awards  

December 2018 Won the Silver Award (Trade Category) 

at the 54th Annual Report Awards  

Ceremony conducted by CA Sri Lanka  

January 2019 Became the National Distributor and 

Retailer for VIVO mobile

February 2019 Received the 'Order of Merit' from 

Republic of Korea 

March 2019 Introduction of Sri Lanka first Green  

Air-conditioner 

Appointments to the Board and Management

Awards received during the year

Overview | 



Introduction of Sri Lanka first Green Air-conditioner

Became the National Distributor and Retailer for VIVO mobile

Overview | 
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HIGHLIGHTS

Earnings Highlights 2018/19 2017/18 Change %

Revenue LKR '000 35,260,656 40,215,826  (12.32)

Gross Profit LKR '000 10,596,964 10,888,533  (2.68)

Results from Operating Activities LKR '000 2,671,470 2,193,854  21.77 

Profit after Tax - Continuing Operations LKR '000 923,239 335,892  174.86 

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent LKR '000 893,930 137,774  548.84 

Dividends LKR '000 (350,037) -  (100.00)

Gross Profit Margin %  30.05  27.08  10.97 

Operating Profit Margin %  7.58  5.46  38.83 

Net Profit Margin %  2.62  0.84  211.90 

Earnings per Share LKR  409.63  63.05  548.88 

Return on Assets (ROA) %  2.77  0.94  194.68 

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) %  12.39  10.10  22.63 

Interest Cover No. of times  2.55  1.99  28.14 

Financial Position Highlights

Total Assets LKR '000 33,273,263 35,598,636  (6.53)

Total Debt LKR '000 12,684,580 13,342,486  (4.93)

Current Assets LKR '000 24,828,442 28,104,003  (11.66)

Current Liability LKR '000 20,121,663 21,496,689  (6.40)

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent LKR '000 8,036,345 7,493,377  7.25 

Gearing %  58.81  61.44  (10.36)

Equity Asset Ratio %  26.69  23.52  13.48 

Net Assets per Share LKR  3,678  3,429  7.25

Current Ratio No. of times  1.23  1.31  6.11 

Quick Asset Ratio No. of times  0.81  0.86  5.81 

No. of Shares in Issue No  '000 2,185 2,185  -   

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - GROUP

Overview | 
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OUR INFLUENCE - COMPANY

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

Economic value generated

Economic value distributed

LKR '000

2018/19 2017/18

33,329,840
33,655,087

37,630,865
38,172,456

MANUFACTURED CAPITAL 

Capital expenditure

Property, plant and equipment

LKR '000

335,115
1,232,285

145,970
1,028,268

HUMAN CAPITAL

Employees on payroll (Nos)

Female representation (Nos)

Training man hours

1,786
346

219,409

2,082
486

110,906

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

Total number of suppliers (Nos) 

Payments to suppliers 
(LKR '000)  

Proportion of spending on local 
suppliers (%)

>320
22,056,026

16%

>312
24,130,390

14%

NATURAL CAPITAL

Energy consumption (GJ) 

Water usage (m3)

Carbon footprint (t-CO2)

31,464.74
246,153
1,717.95

32,338.97
265,139
1,802.78

Overview | 
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AHEAD
OF TIME
Abans PLC has 
been at the forefront 
of introducing 
international premium 
brands. Creating a
platform of
choice, quality
and service
has been the 
hallmark of our
success. 

bEyOnD 
bOrDErs
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MESSAGE FROM 
THE CHAIRPERSON

Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to present the Annual 
Report and Audited Financial 
Statements for Abans PLC for the year 
2018/2019. This report is also our first 
Integrated Annual Report which enables 
us to provide a more holistic view of 
our strategy and performance to all our 
stakeholders.  

As Abans PLC moves past its 50-
year milestone it is with much pride 
that reminisce the Company’s humble 
beginnings which was sparked by 
a passion to offer the convenience 
of modern appliances to Sri Lankan 
homes. Propelled by this vision we have 
over the years spread our wings across 
many business sectors creating unique 
and ‘first of its kind’ experiences to 

Sri Lankans. The theme of our Annual 
Report ‘ahead of time’ aptly signifies this 
journey and our entrepreneurial pursuits 
which have been ‘ahead of time’ and 
progressive across our corporate 
journey. 

Operating Environment 

Sri Lanka’s economic growth rate 
reduced to 3.2% in 2018 compared to 
3.4% in the previous year. Main sectors 
of the economy performed at a very 
slow pace amidst overall economic 
slowdown and a backdrop of political 
instability during the latter part of the 
year. The year 2018 saw weakening 
consumer sentiments resulting in private 
consumption expenditure slowing down 
to 7.5% in 2018 compared to 10.2% 
in the preceding year. The Sri Lankan 
Rupee declined sharply against the US 

Dollar by almost 16% in the last quarter 
of 2018 which affected our cost of 
sales and margins as our products are 
predominantly imported. During the year 
the government removed the CESS of 
15% applicable on imported refrigerators 
which was a positive move to create an 
open and globally competitive platform 
for our products. 

Strategy and Performance 

The Group recorded a turnover of 
Rs.35Bn for the year ended 31st 
March 2019. Despite a decrease in our 
total turnover the Group recorded an 
increased profit before tax of Rs.1.2Bn 
compared to Rs.0.5Bn in the previous 
year. The Group recorded a Profit After 
Tax of Rs.905Mn for the financial year 
under review compared to Rs.175Mn 
Last Year.

"THrEE yEArs AgO,wE TOOk THE sTrATEgIc 
DIrEcTIOn TO InTrODucE prOFEssIOnAl 
MAnAgEMEnT pOssEssIng spEcIAlIsT ExpErTIsE TO 
lEAD AnD MAnAgE AT THE grOup lEvEl, cOnsIDErIng 
THE rApID ExpAnsIOn OF Our busInEss AcrOss 
sIx busInEss vErTIcAls.  wITH Our nEw TEAM 
suppOrTIng us THE EnTIrE "AbAns FAMIly" THE 
cOMpAny AnD grOup wIll unDOubTEDly MOvE 
AHEAD FrOM sTrEngTH TO sTrEngTH brIngIng In 
MOrE grOwTH prOspEcTs."

Our Leadership |
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We, as a Group also generated 
Rs. 35Bn in terms of economic value 
during 2018/19. During the year under 
review we contributed Rs.300Mn by 
way of taxes to the state, distributed 
Rs.1.6Bn to our employees as employee 
remuneration and Rs.32Bn by way of 
payments to our suppliers and business 
partners. Earnings per share of the Group 
stood at Rs.409 compared to Rs.63 last 
year. Net Assets per share at the end of 
2018/19 was Rs.3,678 compared to 
Rs.3,429 at the beginning of the year.

The Abans PLC credit rating has been 
reaffirmed as BBB+ by Fitch Ratings 
Lanka. 

The year 2018 was a milestone as we 
inaugurated Sri Lanka’s first mixed city 
development ‘Colombo City Centre’. 
This is yet another new venture which 
was conceptualized many years ago 
to introduce such a mall in par with 
international standards the first of its kind 
to Sri Lanka to facilitate people to spend 
time and enjoy. The Colombo City Centrer 
(CCC) project is going ahead on schedule 
with the hotel and apartments to be 
launched in the near future. This would 
undoubtedly be an iconic landmark in the 
City of Colombo. 

During the year we have added new 
brands and products to serve the 
growing demand of the discerning and 
evolving lifestyles of Sri Lankans. Despite 
tariff issues driving the costs of our goods 
up, we see a lot of growth prospects for 
Abans in the horizon with the addition of 
appliances driven by a market preference 
towards high end technology. 

Corporate Governance 

Honesty, hard work and perseverance 
are the core values that brought us 
to where we are today. Over the past 
five decades, we have grown beyond 

from a family business to a diversified 
business. The scope of our business 
has grown from selling second hand 
household appliances to a wider scope 
encompassing a range of world class 
brands and products and services to 
serve a wide range of consumer needs.  

Three years ago,we took the strategic 
direction to introduce professional 
management possessing specialist 
expertise to lead and manage at the 
group level considering the rapid 
expansion of our business across 
six business verticals.  With our new 
team supporting us the entire "Abans 
family"-the Company and Group—will 
undoubtedly move ahead from strength 
to strength bringing in more growth 
prospects.

I take this opportunity to welcome 
Mr. Rajaratnam Selvaskandan who joined 
the Board as a Independent  
Non-Executive Director in May 2018.  

As always at Abans, we are committed 
to be a responsible corporate citizen and 
fulfill our obligations in a timely basis. This 
year we decided to take our corporate 
reporting one step further by voluntarily 
adopting the integrated reporting in 
addition to good governance best 
practices.  

Awards

It is with much pride that I announce that 
as we celebrated our Golden Anniversary, 
the Abans Annual Report for the financial 
period 2017/2018 received the Silver 
Award in the Trading category at the 54th 
Annual Report Awards organized by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants, 
Sri Lanka. 

Sustainable Value Creation 

We have always tried to work in a spirit 
of collaboration and mutual benefit with 
all communities that we work with. We 
continued this work to improve quality 
of education, enhance decent work 
and economic growth prospects in the 
communities we work with and promoting 
responsible consumption throughout the 
financial year under review as well. 

Having initiated a cohesive group wide 
Human Resources function we hope 
to introduce the best HR practices. 
Further we hope to instill the values of 
the Abans into our team of employees.  
We are making many positive changes, 
into making Abans a more enjoyable 
and engaging place to work in. We are 
revamping our performance evaluations 
and looking at talent developing talent 
by enhancing training and career 
development activities. We've identified 
key positions within Abans for which 
we're creating succession plans and also 
providing career development support. 
With all these HR initiatives we hope to 
enhance the employee brand of Abans 
and be a preferred employer in the 
industry. 

This year, we took on a special corporate 
service responsibility project of global 
and national significance. ‘Green Isle’ is a 
multi-year project for Habitat restoration 
for species conservation in Bellanwila – 
Aththidiya Sanctuary. Objectives of this 
project would be to establish a 3.5 km 
nature trail, habitat enrichment, gradual 
replacement of the invasive species & 
water weeds and de-siltation and clearing 
of small canals. We decided to take on 
this project as part of our contribution 
to society and our commitment to 
the sustainable development goal of 
enhancing Life on Land, to "Protect, 
restore and promote sustainable use 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRPERSON
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of terrestrial ecosystems, sustainably 
manage forests, combat desertification, 
and halt and reverse land degradation 
and halt biodiversity loss. I look forward 
to sharing with you our progress on this 
project in the future. 

Outlook

Sri Lanka is on a growth path. Despite 
slow growth in some years, like the year 
under review, and perhaps challenging 
conditions due to disruptions in economic 
activity, we can expect growth prospects 
over the medium to long term. Mobile 
usage and internet usage are on the 
rise among Sri Lankans. The youth are 
driving this trend. We hope to leverage 
on this trend to capture this tech-savy 
customer segment with our products. 
The Sri Lankan retail industry outlook is 
very encouraging as well, and this augurs 
a positive outlook for Abans.

At this turning point of Abans PLC 
I envision a future where the Abans 
brand would move forward with growth, 
capitalizing on market opportunities and 
inner strengths more robust, efficient 
and cost effective internal systems. Our 
continuing efforts to strengthen our 
human capital will certainly contribute 
to our future growth by way of a more 
committed, inspired and engaged 
workforce. 

We’ve been ahead of time in every stage 
of our corporate journey over the past 
50 years. That is a legacy we must not 
forget. Let us resolve to be ahead of time 
going forward into the future. 

Acknowledgements 

We could not have come this far without 
our employees. They are the backbone of 
the Company. We like to treat employees 
as members of the Abans Family and 
aim to make a strong connection with all 
employees. 

I take this opportunity to appreciate the 
loyal customer base of Abans who have 
been with us throughout. We strive every 
day to deliver reliable quality products, 
a wide range of choices and of course, 
value for money. I wish to thank all of 
our principals, including LG for their 
commitment and being our partners in 
progress over the long term. 

I also welcome the new brands that 
came on board with us during the year 
including Vivo, and hope that we have 
long, mutually beneficial relationships with 
them, as we have had with all of our other 
principals. 

At this point I wish to place on record 
my deep appreciation for the invaluable 
contribution of the Managing Director 
Tito Pestonjee, Directors Saroshi Dubash 
and Rusi Pestonjee towards the Group. 
Further, I thank the Group Chief Executive 
Officer Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne, 

Group Chief Financial Officer Chandrika 
Perera and the senior leadership team 
of Abans as well.  I truly appreciate your 
commitment to make Abans go from 
strength to strength and look forward to 
working with you in the future.

I thank the members of the board for their 
valued advice, guidance and strategic 
counseling taking Abans to the next level 
of growth, 

Last but not least, I thank our capital 
providers for their continuous trust placed 
on us and we would keep reaching 
greater heights every year proving them 
right. 

Sincerely  

Aban Pestonjee
Chairperson 

30th May 2019
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S 
REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

I am pleased to present the Integrated 
Annual Report and the Financial 
Statements for the financial year ended 
31 March 2019. This is the first Annual 
Report prepared in conformance with 
the Integrated Reporting Framework of 
the International Integrated Reporting 
Council. I trust our Report will provide 
you with an in-depth understanding of 
the Group’s value creation process and 
the strategies in place to manage the 
diverse portfolio of businesses towards 
driving sustainable growth.

Our long term goal is to become the 
leader in retailing household consumer 
durables; to be the largest provider 
of consumer credit; to manufacture 

consumer durables where feasible and 
pursue new opportunities in related 
sectors. In order to compete with the 
challenging environment, our plan would 
be to streamline operations, implement 
cost effective measures, have a lean 
structure and an aggressive growth 
strategy going forward.

The business conditions in the period 
under review were challenging. The 
continuous drought in the dry zone, 
floods in the wet zone and the political 
instability impacted the purchasing 
power of a large market segment. In 
addition, exchange rate devaluation also 
impacted the Retail Channel which was 
susceptible to the market conditions. 

Due to the reduction in customer 
disposable income, Abans PLC Group's 
revenue decreased to Rs.35.2 billion; 
a decrease of 12%. However, despite 
the competitive market conditions, we 
were able to improve the GP margin to 
30% from 27% last year. Further due 
to stringent cost saving initiatives, the 
group Profit before tax increased by 
119% to Rs.1.21 Billion for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2019. 

The group Earnings per share for the 
year amounted to Rs.409 from Rs.63 
of the preceding year. The company 
Earnings per share for the year 
amounted to Rs.400 from Rs.193 of the 
preceding year.

"DEspITE THE cOMpETITIvE MArkET 
cOnDITIOns, wE wErE AblE TO 
IMprOvE THE gp MArgIn TO 30% 
FrOM 27% lAsT yEAr. FurTHEr 
DuE TO sTrIngEnT cOsT sAvIng 
InITIATIvEs, THE grOup prOFIT 
bEFOrE TAx IncrEAsED by 119% TO 
rs.1.21 bIllIOn"
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Medium Term Prospects

Due to the tragedy during Easter, the 
economy is seemingly facing a setback. 
While the economic consequences of 
the incident is yet to be measured, the 
insecurity in general public appears to 
discourage the consumer spending. 
However, as the economy has endured 
similar conditions in the past, we are 
confident of a gradual economic recovery 
in the medium term. This recovery is 
expected to be backed by the election 
oriented spending of the Government 
which is likely to increase the consumer 
disposable income. In order to counter 
the sluggish pace of growth in the 
economy, the company is focusing on 
various strategic measures such as 
expanding the E-Commerce space 
by increasing the product offerings, 
extended credit card payment plans, 
faster and efficient deliveries / convenient 
and secure payment gateways. Our 
marketing strategies will be more focused 
towards digital campaigns, instead of 
traditional offline campaigns. 

Strategic Focus & Outlook 

The company’s success has been the 
persistent focus on customer proposition 
through innovation and new product 
introductions despite the challenges 
presented by the operating environment. 
During the year under review, we 
introduced to the Sri Lankan market 
many new technologies, such as  Sri 
Lanka’s First Green LG Air Conditioner 
with Wi-Fi Technology, LG WIFI Washing 
Machines , LG Styler dry cleaner, LG 
Thinq Q TV’s with AI Technology. LG 
Wifi inverter washing machine & LG 
Styler technologies coming with many 
more upgraded, customized & user 
friendly features in order to cater for busy 
lifestyles of Sri Lankans. 

Many types of commercial TV’s have 
been introduced to the market, in order 
to cater to the growing demand in 
digital signage and interactive solutions 
needed for hotels, restaurants / financial 
institutions, malls, apartments and telco’s. 

We improved our market position with 
regard to major ICT brands with the 
appointment as Value Added Distributor 
for Apple in 2017, our Apple iPhone 
sales continued to grow exponentially, 
especially with Apple’s strategy to launch 
New Products in the market. We are 
also authorized re-seller for the Chinese 
mobile phone brand –Oppo, which is 
highly competitive and packed with 
features.  Vivo brand appointed Abans as 
the exclusive distributor in Sri Lanka for 
retail and open market. Vivo brand which 
is a sister brand of Oppo, has now moved 
up to 6th position worldwide. Market 
development / Promoter placement and 
after sales support is completely handled 
by Vivo corporate office in Sri Lanka. Vivo 
brand is expected to grow strongly in the 
future. 

Abans introduced “Smart Education 
Solution” to the Sri Lankan Education 
system in 2018 through “Haier” China’s 
leading consumer durable brand. This 
can now adapt by private as well as 
government institutions.    

These exclusive retailing rights have 
positioned Abans as the strongest ICT 
& mobile products retailer in the country 
and have dramatically increased our 
future revenue potential, while linking us 
directly to global cutting edge technology 
evolutions.

Further Abans has enhanced its potential 
in fashion, footwear & Cosmetic range by 
introducing world renowned brands to 
the Sri Lankans. We nurtured Hugo Boss, 
Skechers & TFS brands throughout the 
year after merging our Abstract operation 
with Abans PLC in the last financial year.
We will further enhance our share of 
fashion retailing in the coming year. 

"THE cOMpAny’s succEss HAs 
bEEn THE pErsIsTEnT FOcus 
On cusTOMEr prOpOsITIOn 
THrOugH InnOvATIOn AnD 
nEw prODucT InTrODucTIOns 
DEspITE THE cHAllEngEs 
prEsEnTED by THE OpErATIng 
EnvIrOnMEnT."

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE
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We took our next step in Furniture 
operation during the last year by opening 
Abans Homes In Style which launched 
in September 2018 at Colombo City 
Centre designed to give a unique brand 
experience, projecting interplay between 
style, comfort and convenience infused 
with premium quality craftsmanship of 
furniture that makes house a home.

Number of new technological 
developments under each and every 
product category is now available in 
Abans Showrooms island wide, ensuring 
customers the most trusted electronic & 
electrical appliance brand in the country.    

Sustainability

As a responsible corporate citizen, 
we continue to drive efforts towards 
enhancing the energy efficiency of 
our operations minimizing waste and 
reducing our overall carbon footprint. Our 
portfolio of energy efficient appliances 
has continued to grow during the year 
with broader pricing options to give 
consumers a better choice. In addition, 
we introduced solar panels manufactured 
by our primary brand principal LG of 
Korea, to the local market.

Acknowledgements 

I thank the management and staff 
of Abans PLC and our subsidiaries, 
for their commitment and dedication 
which ensured a successful year for the 
Group. Furthermore, I wish to express 
my sincere gratitude to my colleagues 
on the board for their valued counsel 
and strategic direction.  I also wish to 
express my heartfelt appreciation to our 
valued customers, other stakeholders 
including our brand principals and our 
dealers who have been an integral part 
of the company’s remarkable journey 
throughout these 50+ years.

Sincerely

Behman Pestonjee (Tito)

Managing Director

30th May 2019
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Dear Stakeholders,

It is indeed exciting and my pleasure to 

become part of the Abans family and be 

engaged in continuing and transforming 

a rich amazing fifty year old heritage and 

operation, into a modern professional 

powerhouse capable of embracing the 

challenges and changes of this tech 

centric decades. 

The year under review was challenging 

for the retail industry, with the tough 

policy for Letters of Credit, and 

significant currency depreciation taking 

place. This resulted in increased cost of 

Finance and debt, and reduced margins. 

The team had to work hard to protect 

margins and focused diligently on cost 

control and on product mix to ensure 

that profits grew despite Sales and Cost 

challenges. We are encouraged by the 

results and good profit growth and will 

continue to fine-tune our strategy.

Our Future Direction 

Being ahead of the curve is nothing 

new to Abans. As we look to the future, 

continuing this becomes a strategic 

imperative to remain relevant and 

competitive locally and globally.

Digital transformation and 

technology play a key role globally, 

and we hope to accelerate adoption. 

This will enable us to harmonize cost 

structures, improve overall performance 

and pave the way to derive better 

synergies across the Group. During 

the past year we were automating our 

field tasks and enhancing mobility, and 

the apps for sales force, showroom 

and service automation have already 

improved quality, speed and efficiencies 

in their respective areas. We also want 

to deploy technology and enhance our 

analytical capabilities to understand our 

consumers, products and trends at a 

deeper level. We can use these insights 

to serve our customers better, for cross 

selling across our portfolio, to improve 

our offerings to better fit customer needs 

and serve latent demand

"DurIng THE pAsT yEAr wE wErE 
AuTOMATIng Our FIElD TAsks AnD 
EnHAncIng MObIlITy, AnD THE 
Apps FOr sAlEs FOrcE, sHOwrOOM 
AnD sErvIcE AuTOMATIOn HAvE 
AlrEADy IMprOvED quAlITy, 
spEED AnD EFFIcIEncIEs In THEIr 
rEspEcTIvE ArEAs."

MESSAGE FROM  
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
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Improving Customer interaction 

is essential and we have heard 

our customer feedback about their 

desire to have faster, better and more 

sophisticated interactions and service 

from us to them, and we want to invest 

to deliver this reality. This entails speeding 

up turnaround time and deploying 

technology at the front end—at customer 

touch points across our channels to 

enable us to respond better to various 

customer scenarios. 

As companies grow, they end up 

with legacy systems and islands of 

information. We too have grown up in 

similar fashion and will now integrate our 

systems in order to mobilize the power 

of data across the company. Projects 

have kicked off but for optimal results, 

integration and digital transformation will 

need to become an ongoing effort. In the 

future, we should be embracing IoT over 

time into our operations. 

Online – an opportunity and challenge

BuyAbans is a strong, emerging 

e-commerce site but as a channel it only 

accounts for a small part of our total sales 

revenue. But it has tremendous potential 

for growth. Online retailers are a challenge 

to traditional brick and mortar retailers 

worldwide. We do not expect Sri Lanka 

or Abans to be an exception. But online 

provides unseen opportunities as well. As 

such we are committed to investing in the 

business of Online, as a way to improve 

access to our customers. Finding that 

right harmony and balancing the bricks 

and mortar retail vs online retail is going 

to be a challenge, and we need to dig 

deep to find the right answers which work 

for us.

New business and growth prospects

Abans is still bullish, despite the sad 

events which unfolded in April in Sri 

Lanka. We also understand that over 

reliance on retail revenues can make 

us vulnerable. Our strategic stance is 

to seek opportunities that can help us 

move speedily towards a more solid and 

sustainable foundation for future growth. 

We will continue to pursue business 

opportunities that we can exploit to 

sustain our growth momentum and 

profitability. Initiatives like the Colombo 

City Centre project puts us on a strong 

foundation for going beyond retailing 

and creating new streams of revenue for 

the future. In addition to seeking ways 

to deepen our market share within the 

traditional segments of white goods and 

home appliances, we are seeking to 

expand into related and complementary 

market segments, as we did this past 

year.

We can expect 2019 to be another 

year in which the Sri Lankan economy 

performs at less than its true potential. 

This is an inevitable reality in the wake 

of the April 2019 bombings and the 

subsequent disruptions. The other 

consequences stemming from the bomb 

related uncertainties are likely to mask 

any improvements to the economy 

stemming from other fronts, like inflows of 

FDI, and the boost to the economy from 

the IMF’s resumption of the $1.5 billion 

Extended Fund Facility (EFF) enabling Sri 

Lanka receive USD 164.1 million. The 

local retail sector has weathered bigger 

storms in the past, and we believe it 

still offers great prospects. Outside of 

Sri Lanka, the IMF predicts that global 

growth will pick up momentum in 2021. 

It is yet uncertain how these global forces 

may affect the performance of the Sri 

Lankan economy. 

"InITIATIvEs lIkE THE cOlOMbO 
cITy cEnTrE prOjEcT puTs 
us On A sTrOng FOunDATIOn 
FOr gOIng bEyOnD rETAIlIng 
AnD crEATIng nEw sTrEAMs OF 
rEvEnuE FOr THE FuTurE."

MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Global Warming and its Impacts

The year 2018 was one of unprecedented 

rises in temperature, wild fires, rainfall, 

droughts, disease epidemics, melting 

glaciers, rising sea waves and floods 

across the globe. Sri Lanka did not 

escape from the effects of natural 

disasters attributed to global warming, 

and this trend may continue. On our part, 

as a retail company we are conscious of 

how humans effect global warming and 

we encourage responsible consumer 

behaviour. We  plan to continually 

introduce green products that are 

environmentally friendly and are made to 

optimize on materials and to save energy. 

Our Solar footprint is also slated to grow.

In Conclusion

Historically, Abans has been ahead of 

the curve in promoting the next wave of 

technology through our products, and we 

will continue to do so.  I want to thank 

our Customers, Partners and our Staff 

for their respective roles in our progress 

last year. We will tap into existing skills 

coupled with new talent, and move 

forward with technology and business 

initiatives, to help us deliver a good mix of 

products and services to better serve our 

customer needs in Sri Lanka. The past 

fifty years have been extraordinary, and 

we hope to make our future story even 

better.  

Sincerely

Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne

Group Chief Executive Officer  

30th May 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Aban Pestonjee
Chairperson 

A resourceful and self-taught 
entrepreneur, Mrs. Aban Pestonjee 
exemplifies the Abans creed of “finding 
a need and fulfilling it”. Her passion, 
drive and courage, especially as a South 
Asian woman in a male dominated 
business world, have inspired successive 
generations of Sri Lankan business 
women. She has received local 
and international recognition for her 
achievements. These include the Award 
of Excellence for Women Achievers for 
Outstanding Achievements, presented 
by the SAARC Women’s Association, Sri 
Lanka Chapter and the bronze award, 
under the large business category at the 
Women Entrepreneur of the Year awards 
by the Women’s Chamber of Industry 
and Commerce, both in the year 2000. 
She was awarded the KOTRA Plaque of 
Appreciation in 2005 for forging strategic 
foreign economic ties between Korea 
and Sri Lanka. In 2006, Mrs. Pestonjee 
received international recognition as the 
Leading Woman Entrepreneur of the 
World award, presented by the Princess 
of Thailand.

Mrs. Pestonjee has been interviewed 
by The Harvard Business School on the 
subject of “Creating Emerging Markets”. 
The transcript of the interview is retained 
at the Harvard Business School’s Baker 
Library, among their historical collections, 
and available to students for research and 
case studies.

Mrs. Pestonjee also holds directorships 
at Abans Electricals PLC, Abans 
Environmental Services (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Construction and Engineering (Pvt) Ltd, 
Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Tours 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Tourist Hotel (Pvt) Ltd, 
ABS Gardner Dixon Hall International 

(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Investments (Pvt) Ltd, 
Add Outdoor (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Graphics 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Marketing (Pvt) Ltd, 
Abans Consolidated (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Warehousing (Pvt) Ltd, Crown City 
Developers (Pvt) Ltd, AB Technologies 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Development (Pvt) 
Ltd, Abans Auto (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Office 
Automation (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Engineering 
(Pvt) Ltd and Colombo City Centre 
Partners (Pvt) Ltd.

Behman Pestonjee (Tito)
Managing Director

Qualified as a Marine Engineer, Class 1 
(D.O.T. London), Mr Behman Pestonjee 
has been involved with Abans PLC since 
its inception and has been instrumental 
in building the business. His dynamic 
leadership of the operations division 
has been a key driver of success. He 
oversees most of the critical functions 
of the organisation including sourcing, 
marketing and sales and manages 
important business partnerships. Under 
his able supervision, the Abans retail 
network has expanded from a single store 
to over 400 stores. He is an inspiring 
leader with a unique management style 
based on pragmatism and execution.

Mr. Behman Pestonjee holds 
directorships at Abans Electricals PLC, 
Abans Environmental Services (Pvt) Ltd, 
Abans Construction and Engineering (Pvt) 
Ltd, Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, ABS Gardner 
Dixon Hall International (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Investments (Pvt) Ltd, Add Outdoor (Pvt) 
Ltd, Abans Restaurant Systems (Pvt) 
Ltd, Absgro (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Graphics 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Marketing (Pvt) Ltd, AB 
Leisure (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Consolidated 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd, Colombo 
City Centre Partners (Pvt) Ltd, Crown City 
Developers (Pvt) Ltd, Sirius Technologies 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Exports (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 

Development (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Auto (Pvt) 
Ltd, Abans Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd 
and Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd.

Saroshi Dubash
Director

Dr. Dubash holds a PhD in Philosophy, 
an MBA (USA) and an honours degree in 
chemistry (London).

Within the Abans Group, Dr. Dubash 
is mainly involved in administering 
the supply chain functions of import 
purchasing, wharf clearance, 
warehousing, inventory control, 
distribution, and information systems. 
Retail accounts, human resource and hire 
purchase departments also come under 
her purview. She oversees the Training 
Department to ensure the continuous 
training and development of Abans 
employees.

Dr. Dubash is the Managing Director of 
Abans Logistics (Pvt) Ltd, a fully fledged 
logistics company that deals with freight, 
transport, warehousing, distribution, 
container yards and other logistic 
operations. She is the alternative Director 
to Mr. Behman Pestonjee in the Colombo 
City Centre operations. 

Dr. Dubash was the chairperson of the 
Women’s Chamber of Industry and 
Commerce and representative on the 
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce Board. 
She is a member of Women in Logistics 
and Transport (WILAT) and the committee 
member of the Australian New Zealand 
Business Committee and the Canadian 
Business Committee.
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Rusi Pestonjee
Director

Mr. Rusi Pestonjee is an alumnus of the 
Executive Management programmes at 
the Indian School of Business, focusing 
on strategy and managing family 
businesses. He supports relationship 
building of the Abans Group with key 
international partners and has been 
instrumental in implementing several 
new strategic growth initiatives within the 
Group.

Mr. Rusi Pestonjee also holds various 
directorships within the Abans Group of 
Companies and is the Chairman of Abans 
Finance PLC.

Hiran Embuldeniya
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Embuldeniya has an MBA from the 
Harvard Business School and a MEng 
(Hons) in Engineering, Economics and 
Management, from the University of 
Oxford. He is currently the Managing 
Partner of Ironwood Capital Partners, Sri 
Lanka’s first private equity fund. He is 
also a Director of York Street Partners, 
an investment banking firm based in Sri 
Lanka. He has previously worked for 10 
years with Goldman Sachs and McKinsey 
& Company where he helped develop 
and execute the corporate strategies 
and mergers and acquisitions (M&A) 
transactions for some of the leading 
banks and industrial companies in 
Europe, Middle East and South Asia.

Rajaratnam Selvaskandan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. R. Selvaskandan is an Attorney-at-
Law (SL) and Solicitor (England & Wales 
and Hong Kong). He was a senior partner 
of a leading law firm in Hong Kong prior 
to joining the property sector of the 
CT Holdings Group. He is the Chairman 
of CT Land Development PLC, Deputy 
Chairman of C T Properties Limited and 
a Partner of Varners, a Law firm based 
in Sri Lanka. He has more than thirty 
years’ experience in legal practice and 
management in Sri Lanka, UK, and Hong 
Kong. 
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With a mission 
to create good 
governance we 
have created the 
right structure and 
the platform to 
drive sustainable 
value to all our 
stakeholders. 
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Capital Inputs                                                   Transformation Process

Financial Capital Vision

Human Capital

Intellectual Capital

Natural Capital

Social and Relationship Capital

Manufactured Capital

Funds available for operations and 
business growth

 Page

Shareholders fund 209

Borrowings 211

Our team of experienced and 
professional employees
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No of Employees 97

Total Training hours 100

Intangible elements, brands, 
organisational knowledge, skills 
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Brands 105

New Products 109

The natural resources that are 
utilised in our operations  
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Our 
Business 
Activities 
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Outputs                                                  Transformation Process

Mission Shareholders

Dividend Rs. 350 Mn

PAT Rs. 874 Mn

ROCE 13.20%

Sustainable returns 
through dividend and 
wealth appreciation

Employees

Staff Cost Rs. 1,314 Mn

Gratuity payable Rs. 230 Mn

Attractive remuneration 
and opportunities 
for career 
development  

Customers

Total Revenue Rs. 33 Bn

No of New products > 14

Providing the convenience 
and experience of 
world class brands to 
customers 

Suppliers

No of Suppliers > 320

Cost of purchases Rs. 23 Bn

Providing mutually 
rewarding relationships 
to international and local 
supplers 

Community

Donations Rs. 10 Mn

Beneficiaries Many

Contribution to society 
and communities that we 
interact with

Environment Impacts

Fuel usage  449,414 L

Carbon footprint t-CO2 1,718 

Introducing environmentally 
friendly products and  
embedding sustainability to  
the operations of the  
Company

Corporate and Social Responsibilities 
Wharf Procedures and Import Regulations 
Transportation and Warehousing Management 

Investment and Acquisition Decisions 
Customer Accessibility
Financial Management
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• 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance 
across all activities of the Company. The purpose of governance is to create long-
term sustainable shareholder value through effective and prudent management. The 
principal duties of the Board include formulating business strategies and overseeing their 
implementation by the management with proper controls to manage risks. The Board is 
focused on ensuring that the Company operates in conformity with applicable laws and 
regulations and that all material operations are subject to effective internal controls and 
significant risks managed properly. 

Board Highlights 2018/19

Appointment of Group CEO

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive director

Appointment of Group Head of HR

Disposal of Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd

Interim Dividend distribution

• Code of Best Practice on 

Corporate Governance 

issued jointly by SEC and CA 

Sri Lanka

• Corporate Governance rules 

published by the CSE

• Companies Act No. 7 of 

2007

• Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards (LKAS and 

SLFRS) 

• GRI Guidelines on 

Sustainability

• Independent Audit

External Regulations Internal Governance Structure Internal Regulations

Abans PLC

Shareholders

Board of Directors

Board Committees Executive Functions

• Audit Committee

• Remuneration 

Committee

• Finance

• Information Technology

• Inventory

• Import & Costing

• Human Resources

• Internal Audit

• Wharf 

• Brand & Marketing

• Internal Audit

• Articles of Association

• Internal Control 

System

• Enterprise Risk 

Management 

Framework

• HR Policies

Role of the Chairperson and Managing Director

The role of the Chairperson is separate from that of the Managing Director which is in 
line with best practices in Corporate Governance ensuring that no one Director has 
unfettered power and authority.

Mr Sriyan de Silva 
Wijeyeratne was 
appointed as Group 
CEO during the period 
under review and 
Mr R Selvaskandan 
was appointed as 
Independent 
Non-Executive 
director
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Responsibilities of the Board  Chairperson’s Responsibilities Managing Director’s Responsibilities

•  Formulation, implementation and 

monitoring of business strategy

•   Ensure that the new Board members are 

given appropriate induction

•  Formulate, obtain approvals and implement 

the Company’s strategies and manage the 

day-to-day operations of the Company

•  Place effective systems to secure 

the integrity of information, internal 

controls, business continuity and 

risk management

•  Lead the Board and manage the 

business of the Board 

•  Develop and recommend budgets to the 

Board

•  Compliance with laws, regulations 

and ethical standards

•  Approve the agenda for each Board 

meeting

•  Continuously monitor and report to the Board 

on the performance of the Company

•  Consider the interests of all 

stakeholders in corporate 

decisions

•  Ensure that the Board members receive 

accurate, timely information to enable 

them to take clear and sound decisions

•  Establish an optimum organizational structure 

which is appropriate for the execution of the 

Company’s strategy

•  Ensure regular meetings, the minutes 

of which are accurately recorded and 

where appropriate include the individual 

and collective views of the Directors

•  Ensure compliance with all applicable legal 

and regulatory obligations

•  Facilitate and encourage discussions 

among all Directors in decision making

•  Manage the financial and business risks of 

the company’s operations and identify the 

potential risks of the company 

•  Represent the views of the Board to the 

public

The Board has appointed two sub-committees to assist it in the performance of its duties. These committees, which include the Audit 
Committee and Remuneration Committee, function within the mandates approved by the Board. The committees have an appropriate 
balance of skills, expertise, and independence to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The structure and operations of these 
committees are illustrated in this report.

Board Committee Composition of Directors Areas of Oversight

Audit Committee Hiran Embuldeniya Integrity of Financial Statements 

  Rajaratnam Selvaskandan Risk management

    Business Ethics

    Internal Controls 

    Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

    External Audit & Internal Audit

     

Remuneration Committee Rajaratnam Selvaskandan

The Company’s remuneration philosophy and the principles of its 

remuneration policy 

  Hiran Embuldeniya Company’s framework of executive remuneration

    The level and structure of remuneration for Senior Management
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Attendance at Board Meetings 

The Board of Directors performs the role 
of leading the Company primarily through 
participation in Board meetings and 
Board Sub-Committee meetings. The 
Board and the Committees constructively 

use the time and agenda of these 
meetings to perform their roles effectively. 

The attendance of the directors at 
meetings of the Board and the Sub-
committees during the year is detailed 
below

Name of the Director

Main Board

Meetings

Audit 

Committee  

Meetings

Remuneration  

Committee 

Meetings 

       

1.  Aban Pestonjee 4/4  -  - 

2.  Saroshi Dubash 4/4 -  - 

3.  Rusi Pestonjee 4/4  -  - 

4.  Behman Pestonjee 3/4  -  - 

5.  Hiran Chaminda Embuldeniya 3/4 3/4 3/4

6.  Rajaratnam Selwaskandan (Appointed on 23 May 2018) 3/3 2/2 2/2

7.  Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne (Resigned on 16 August 2018) 2/2 1/2 2/2

Governance Practices Adopted by 
Abans

The Board is headed by the Chairperson 
who is responsible for overseeing the 
Board and ensuring its effectiveness 
on all aspects of its role. The Board is 
collectively responsible for the long-term 
success of Abans.

The Board consists of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors who contribute 
different perspectives to its decision-
making process. The composition of the 
Board complies with the Colombo Stock 
Exchange continuing listing rules.

There is a clear division of responsibilities 
between the Board and the Corporate 
Management. The Board is responsible 
for setting the strategic direction and 
ensuring that the underlying objectives 

are achieved by the management as per 
the Board approved policies and plans.

Code of Best practice on Corporate 
Governance

We set out below, the corporate 
governance practices adopted and 
practiced by the Company, the extent 
of adoption of the code of Best Practice 
on Corporate Governance issued in year 
2017 jointly by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and Securities 
of Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

A. Directors

A.1   An effective Board should direct, 

lead and control the Company

The profile of the Board is provided on pages 32 to 35.

A.1.1    Frequency of Board Meetings The Board meets on a quarterly basis and attendance at meetings is 

given on page 42.

A.1.2     Role & Responsibilities of the Board Please refer “Responsibilities of the Board” on page 41.

A.1.3  Compliance with laws and access to 

independent professional advice

A statement to applicable laws and regulations is given in page 40 by the 

Board of Directors.

A.1.5  Independent judgement Each Director brings independent judgment to bear on issues that are 

discussed at the Board and by having meetings of the Board equal 

opportunity is available for Directors to express their views independently.

A.1.6  Dedicate adequate time and effort During financial year 2018/19 a total of four Board meetings were being 

held by Abans PLC.

  All Non-Executive Directors have attended majority of the meetings and 

have devoted their time adequately.

  Information pertaining to Director participation levels at Board meeting 

and Board subcommittee meeting are given on page 42.

A.1.7  Calls for resolutions Any Director can call for a resolution to be presented to the Board if 

deemed necessary.

A.1.8  Board induction and Training The Directors are given opportunity to having sufficient exposure, 

expertise in their relevant areas to fulfil their duties and responsibilities 

owing to the Board.

A.2  Chairperson & Managing 

Director
The roles of the Chairperson and Managing Director are segregated 

at Abans. The Chairperson's main responsibility is to lead, direct 

and manage the Board to ensure that it operates effectively and fully 

discharges its legal and regulatory responsibilities. The MD is responsible 

for the day-to-day operations of the Company and the Group.

A.3.   Chairperson's role in preserving 

good Corporate Governance 

Please refer “Responsibilities of the board” on page 41.
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

A.4  Availability of financial acumen The Board is equipped with qualified Directors in the field of Finance and 

accountancy and possesses the necessary financial wisdom.

  Board has the privilege of having Directors who possesses qualifications 

in the field of finance and accountancy to obtain advice and guidance.

  Finance Division is also well equipped in financial capabilities having 

qualified Chartered Accountants and experienced personnel to support 

the Board of Directors.

A.5  Board Balance There are only two Non-Executive Directors and hence, Executive 

Directors form the majority of the Board.  The Board is reviewing this new 

requirement at present with a view to compliance with the same

Under review 

as it is a new 

requirement
A.5.1   Majority of Non-Executive Directors

A.5.2  If only 3 NEDs, they should be 

independent

The Board is reviewing this new requirement at present with a view to 

compliance with the same

Under review 

as it is a new 

requirement

A.5.3  Independence of Directors Both Non – Executive Directors are independent in terms of the criteria 

defined by CSE rule 7.10.4 on corporate governance, fulfils the minimum 

guidelines prescribed by the code.

A.5.4  Signed declarations of independence 

by the Non- Executive Directors

Each Non-Executive Director of the company has made written 

submissions as to their independence as per schedule J of the code.

A.5.5  Determination of independence of 

the Directors by the Board

Based on the written submissions made by the following Non-

Executive Directors as per code, the Board deems the said Directors 

“Independent” as at 31st March 2019.

  1.     Mr. H. C. Embuldeniya

  2.     Mr.  R. Selvaskandan

A.5.6  Alternate Directors Not applicable as no Alternate Director was appointed during  

2018/2019

A.5.7  Senior Independent Director Chairperson’s and Managing Director’s roles have been separated 

w.e.f. 08.07.2014 and therefore no requirement to appoint a Senior 

Independent Director.

A.5.8  Confidential discussion with the 

Senior Independent Director

Please see Code – A.5.7 above.

A.5.9  Meeting of Non-Executive Directors No meeting of Non-Executive Directors was held during the period.

A.5.10  Recording of concerns in Board 

minutes

Company Secretary records any concerns raised by the Directors during 

the year in Board minutes with sufficient details.

A.6  Supply of Information Agenda together with high quality information is circulated seven days 

prior to the Board meeting to discharge the Board obligations effectively 

as a practice.

A.6.1  Management’s obligation to provide 

appropriate and timely information

Board receives adequate information by the Management on a timely 

manner. The Board receives regular reports and presentations on 

strategies and developments in relation to its business lines and 

performance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

A.6.2  Adequate time for effective Board 

meetings

Executive Directors constantly briefed the Board on the functional areas 

of Revenue, Finance and Recoveries that they oversee. The Board on 

other functional matters deals with the Managing Director or the heads of 

those respective departments when necessary.

A.7.  Appointments to the Board & Re-

election

Although the formal Nomination committee is not formed by the Board, 

new appointments are decided based on consent of the chairperson and 

all Board of Directors and the final decision is made by the Board.

A.7.1  Appointments to the Board All new appointments to the Board are considered and recommended by 

the Board as a whole in an objective and transparent manner

A.7.2  Assessment of Board composition Board as a whole carried out an annual assessment of Abans 

PLC Board’s Composition to assess the level of skills, experience, 

qualifications, and knowledge of the Board members’ address the 

growing strategic needs of the Company.

A.7.3  Disclosure of details of new Directors 

to shareholders

All new Board appointments as it happens are communicated to 

shareholders via the Colombo Stock Exchange. A brief summary of 

the new Director appointed including the qualifications, experiences, 

names of the companies in which the Director holds directorships, and 

memberships in Board Sub Committees is usually given in the Annual 

Report. During the year appointment of Mr. R. Selvaskandan was 

properly disclosed in the CSE on 23rd May 2018.

A.8  Directors Re-election In terms of the Article 5.4 of the Articles of Association of the Company, 

Executive Directors are not whilst holding that office be subject to 

retirement by rotation or  taken into account for determining the rotation 

of retirement of directors.  Therefore there are two Non-Executive 

Directors of the Board who will be eligible for rotation of whom one of 

them will be re-elected at the next Annual General Meeting. 

A.8.1  Appointment of Non-Executive 

Directors

As explained in A.8 above

A.8.2  Election of Directors by the 

shareholders

As explained in A.8 above

A.9.  Appraisal of Board & Committee 

Performance

The performance of the Board and sub- committee is reviewed and 

evaluated by the Board and Chairperson based on self- appraisal basis

A.9.1,9. 2,9.3 Appraisal of Board 

Performance

As explained in principle A.9 above.

A.10   Annual Report to disclose specified 

information regarding directors

Information pertaining to all Abans PLC Directors is made available to the 

shareholders through the Annual report.

A.10.1  Disclosure of information in respect 

of Directors

Information pertaining to Directors are provided on pages 32 to 35
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

A.11  Appraisal of the CEO The Board of Directors should at least annually assess the performance 

of the Chief Executive Officer

A.11.1  Target/Goals for the CEO CEO is entrusted by the Board to conduct day to day operations 

effectively to attain broad strategic targets/ goals.

A.11.2  Evaluation of the performance of the 

CEO

The performance of the CEO is evaluated in relation to achievement of 

business targets.

B. Director’s Remuneration

B.1  Remuneration Procedure No Director is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration package.  

B.1.1  Remuneration Committee The Board has established a Remuneration Committee authorized to 

evaluate, assess, decide and recommend, to the Board, Executive 

Directors remuneration as per the Terms and Reference of the 

Remuneration Committee.

 

B.1.2,  1.3 Composition of the Remuneration  

 Committee

Remuneration Committee comprises of all Non-Executive Directors and 

the Chairman of the Committee is Mr. R Selvaskandan. 

 

The report of the Remuneration Committee is given on Page 131 in the 

annual report. The Remuneration Committee composition and details of 

meetings held and participation status is given on page 131.

 

B.1.4  Remuneration of the Non-Executive 

Directors

The Board has the authority on deciding the Non-Executive Directors’ 

remuneration packages which is made as a collective decision. The 

Non- Executive Directors are paid a fee for attending Board or other 

Committee meetings or carrying out other Non- executive duties based 

on their responsibilities assigned.

 

B.1.5  Consultation of the Chairperson and 

access to professional advice

When deciding on remuneration of Executive Directors, the Committee 

also obtains advice from the Managing Director as necessary.
 

B.2  Level and make-up of Remuneration The Board together with the Remuneration Committee aims to attract 

retain and motivate high calibre individuals for top executive positions. 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

B.2.1  Level and make-up of the 

remuneration of the Managing 

Director

The Remuneration Committee makes assessment on the sufficiency of 

remuneration of Executive Directors to ensure a strategy of retention.  

Executive Director including performance of Managing Director is 

evaluated annually and suitable remuneration levels are decided by the 

Committee. 

 

B.2.2  Comparison of remuneration with 

other companies

When positioning remuneration levels relative to other companies in the 

industry, Remuneration Committee reviews the information related to the 

Executive Directors pay level against the industry. 
 

B.2.3  Comparison of remuneration with 

other companies in the Group

Executive Directors represent other companies within the group.
 

B.2.4  Performance related payments to 

the Managing Director

Please refer principle B.2 and Code B.2.1 above.
 

B.2.5  Executive share options There was no executive share options scheme offered to any Director 

during 2018/19 period.  

B.2.6  Deciding the Executive Directors’ 

Remuneration

Please see comments given in Principle B.2 for details on Executive 

Director Remuneration.
 

B.2.7  Early termination of Directors Not applicable to the Board.  

B.2.8  Early termination not included in the 

initial contract

In an event of early termination of a director, the remuneration will be 

concluded based on the scenario occurred.
 

B.2.9  Remuneration of Non-Executive 

Directors

The Non- Executive Directors are paid a fee for their services as 

mentioned in Code B.1.4.
 

B.3  Disclosure of Remuneration The Remuneration Committee operates within agreed terms of reference 

and is committed to the principles of accountability and transparency
 

B.3.1  Disclosure of Remuneration Details of Remuneration Committee composition with meetings held and 

participation status of members is provided on page 131.  

 

Related Party Disclosure Note” on page 240 is in the notes to financial 

statements provides information on remuneration paid to Executive and 

Non-Executive Directors in aggregate.
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

C. Relation with Shareholders

C.1  Constructive use of the Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) and 

Conduct of General Meetings

AGM will be held on 27th June 2019 and all shareholders are 

encouraged to participate at the AGM  

C.1.1  Use of proxy votes Proxy forms are made available in the Annual report that is released with 

adequate prior notice to all shareholders in accordance with Companies 

Act.
 

C.1.2  Separate resolution for all separate 

issues

Company passed separate resolutions for the adoption of the “Report of 

the Directors” and “Statement of Financial report and the Report of the 

Auditors” included in the Annual Report.
 

C.1.3  Availability of all Board Sub-

Committee Chairmen at the Annual 

General meeting

All Board members which include Chairpersons of all the Board Sub 

committees, namely, Audit Committee, and Remuneration Committee 

are presented at the AGM to answer any questions coming under the 

purview of their Committee.

 

C.1.4  Adequate notice of the Annual 

General Meeting

For the previous financial period, the Annual report of FY 2017/18 was 

submitted to the Colombo Stock Exchange on 28 June 2018 and was 

delivered to all shareholders on same day. Abans PLC’s AGM was held 

on 25 July 2018.

 

C.1.5  Procedures of voting at General 

Meetings

Voting procedures at the General Meetings are circulated to the 

shareholders.
 

C.2  Communication with shareholders Extensive financial and non-financial information of company’s activities 

are provided to shareholders through the Annual report and the Interim 

Reports published on a quarterly basis.
 

C.2.1  Channel to reach all shareholders of 

the Company

Formal communications with the shareholders are conducted through 

Notices to shareholders, Annual Report and Quarterly Financial 

Statements, and general meetings of shareholders. All the financial 

information such as Annual Reports, Interim reports are made available 

to shareholders via CSE website.

 

C.2.2  Policy and methodology for 

communication with shareholders

The Communication Policy is implemented through exchange Memos, 

Electronic Mails, Board Papers and Presentations.
 

C.2.3  Implementation of the policy and 

methodology for communication 

with shareholders

Please see Code – C.2.2 above.

 

C.2.4, C.2.6 Contact person in relation to 

shareholders’ matters

As per the general practice of the company, main point of contact for the 

shareholders for their concerns and clarification is the board of directors.
 

C.2.5  Process to make all Directors aware 

of major issues and concerns of 

shareholders

Material issues and concerns of the shareholders are communicated 

to the Board by management of the company and family directors hold 

weekly meetings to discuss business matters.

 

C.2.7  The process of responding to 

shareholder matters

According to Abans PLC’s “Communication Policy”, all shareholders 

related material matters are handled promptly and attentively by the 

Board upon being informed

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

C.3  Major and Material Transactions Abans PLC Board has established a process to capture and  disclose 

any material transactions proposed that would alter or vary the net asset 

position of Company either through its audited financial statements or in 

interim publication or by making announcement to the Colombo Stock 

Exchange.

 

C.3.1  Major transactions Material related party transaction or corporate transactions involving 

acquisitions, mergers or disposal, which materially affect Abans PLC net 

assets position, are disclosed on page 239.
 

D. Accountability and Audit

D.1  Financial Reporting The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment 

of the Company’s financial position, performance and prospects.
 

D.1.1  Statutory and Regulatory Reporting Abans PLC has reported a true and fair view of its financial position and 

performance for the year ended 31st March 2019 and at the end of each 

quarter of 2018/19 financial year. 

 

The Board ensures that the quarterly and annual Financial Statements 

of the Company and Group are prepared and published in compliance 

with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, Sri Lanka 

Accounting Standards (LKASs and SLFRSs) and the Rules of the 

Colombo Stock Exchange.

D.1.2  Directors’ Report in the Annual  

Report

The Annual Report of the Board of Directors (Directors’ Report) provided 

on pages 126 to 128 gives an affirmation on Company’s compliance to 

laws and regulations, confirms the going concern assumption and the 

effectiveness of Internal Control System that is in place.

D.1.3  Statement of Directors’ and 

Auditors’ responsibility for the 

Financial Statements

Statement of Directors’ responsibility for Financial Reporting given on 

page 129 provides a statement setting out the responsibilities of the 

Board for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements. 

D.1.4  Management Discussions and 

Analysis

As per Code –D.1.4 management commentary covering all requirements 

is given on pages 86 to 123 in the “Capital Reports”, which comprises of 

the sustainability section as well.

D.1.5  Declaration by the Board that the 

business as a Going Concern

The Annual Report of the Board of Directors provides disclosure affirming 

the going concern of the company, after drawing attention to aspects 

mentioned in the schedule G of the Code.

D.1.6  Summoning an Extra Ordinary 

General Meeting (EGM) to notify 

serious loss of capital

A situation of a serious loss of capital is unlikely to arise.

D.1.7  Related party transactions An adequate and accurate disclosure of related party transactions is 

given in Note 32 to the Financial Statements on pages 236 to 240.
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

D.2  Internal Control The Board has established an effective system of internal controls to 

safeguard the assets of the company.  
 

D.2.1  Annual evaluation of the risks facing 

the Company and the effectiveness 

of the system of internal controls

Internal Auditors have been entrusted to periodically review the adequacy 

and effectiveness of internal controls of the company a feedback of 

which is given to the higher level Audit Committee. Statement on Internal 

Controls provided on page 130 complies with content of Annexure K of 

the code.

D.2.2 Internal audit function Abans PLC’s Internal Audit division which is centrally located provides 

independent and objective assurance in respect of the adequacy of the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal controls and governance 

process across the company.

D.2.3  Review of the process and 

effectiveness of risk management 

and internal controls by the Audit 

Committee

Audit Committee continuously reviewed the effectiveness of risk 

management process and internal controls and ensured the soundness 

of the risk management process and internal controls and managed to 

report any deficiencies and matters to Board with recommendations.

D.2.4  Responsibilities of Directors in 

maintaining a sound system of 

internal control

The Board Statement on Internal Controls given on page 130 complies 

with the contents in Annexure K of the code.

D.3  Audit  Committee The Board of Abans PLC has established an Audit Committee that 

operates independently under specified terms of reference covering 

review of financial reporting aspects, internal controls and maintaining 

relationship with company auditors internal and external in accordance 

with the provisions of this Code and other regulatory requirements

D.3.1  Composition of the Audit Committee The Committee met 04 times during the year. The names of members 

forming the Audit Committee, their participation level, secretary, and 

invitees of the Committee are disclosed on page 130.

D.3.2  Review of Objectivity of the External 

Auditor

As disclosed in Audit Committee Report, the Audit Committee in keeping 

to it terms of reference monitors the objectivity, effectiveness and 

independence of the External Auditor of the company

D.3.3  Terms of Reference of the Audit 

Committee

The Board approved written terms of reference governs all activities of 

Audit Committee. The Terms of Reference have been drawn after giving 

due reference the “Code of Best Practices on Audit Committee”

D.3.4  Disclosures of the Audit Committee Please refer page 130 for the Audit Committee Report.  

 

The External Auditor has provided a Confirmation of Independence in 

compliance with the “Guidelines for Appointment of Auditors of Listed 

Companies” issued by SEC.

D.4  Code of  Business Conduct and 

Ethics

High standards in business conduct and ethics is an integral part of 

Abans PLC’s culture. In keeping to Abans PLC’s practiced value system, 

an organization wide human resource policy document is in place which 

defines clear HR policies and procedures to employee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

D.4.1  Code of Business Conduct and 

Ethics

The HR division has devised a formal document incorporating human 

resources procedures including aspects on employee conduct.
  

D.4.2  Affirmation by the Chairman that 

there is no violation of the Code of 

Conduct and Ethics

The Chairperson’s affirmation that she is not aware of any violations to 

requirements of the company on specified business conduct and ethics 

is given in the “Chairperson’s review” on pages 20 to 23.

D.5  Corporate Governance Disclosures Abans PLC Board of Directors upholds adopting sound corporate 

governance practices, while improving the overall governance year on 

year.

D.5.1  Disclosure of Corporate Governance Abans PLC’s Corporate Governance report of FY 2018/19 provides 

a comprehensive disclosure on the company’s corporate governance 

framework and practices indicating Code of best practices on corporate 

governance issued in 2017.

E. Institutional Investors

E.1  Shareholders voting Institutional shareholders are required to make considered use of their 

votes and encouraged to ensure their voting intentions are translated into 

practice.

E.1.1  Institutional shareholders The Company obtained Debt listing status in Colombo Stock Exchange, 

Main Board since 2013.
 

E.2  Evaluation of Corporate 

Governance initiatives

Matters relating to governance are communicated effectively to all 

shareholders via the Annual Report and through AGM. Views and other 

material matters of shareholders are subsequently taken up at Board 

meetings as necessary.

 

F. Other Matters

F.1  Investing/ Divesting decision    

F.1  Individual shareholders Individual shareholders are encouraged to carry out adequate analysis 

and seek the independent advice prior to make investing or divesting 

directly in shares of the Company.
 

F.2  Individual shareholders voting Individual shareholders are encouraged to participate at the Annual 

General Meeting and to exercise their voting rights.
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Code Ref Compliance and Implementations Compliance

G. Sustainability Reporting

G.1  Principles of Sustainability 

Reporting

Please refer Capitals Reports on pages 86 to 123 and GRI Index on 

page 249.

G.1.1  Economic sustainability Please refer “Financial Capital” on page 86  

G.1.2  The Environment Please refer “Natural Capital” on page 118  

G.1.3  Labour practice Please refer “Human Capital” on page 97  

G.1.4  Society Please refer “Social and Relationship Capital” on page 111  

G.1.5  Product and Service responsibility Please refer “GRI Index” on page 249  

G.1.6  Stakeholder identification, 

engagement and effective 

communication

Please refer “Stakeholder Engagement” on page 60

 

G.1.7 Sustainable reporting and disclosure Please refer “GRI Index” on page 249  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Compliance with Colombo Stock Exchange Continuing  

Listing Rules

CSE Rule Reference Corporate Governance Principles  Compliance Status 

7.10.1(a) Non-Executive Directors  (NED) Two NED out of total of 

six directors

7.10.2(a) Independent Directors (ID) All NED are Independent

7.10.2(b) Independent Directors NEDs have submitted 

the declaration in the 

prescribed format

7.10.3(a) Disclosure relating to Directors  

7.10.3(b) Disclosure relating to Directors   

The Board has 

determined that criteria 

for independence is met 

for IDs

7.10.3(c) Disclosure relating to Directors   

7.10.3(d) Disclosure relating to Directors   

7.10.5 (a) Composition of Remuneration Committee   

7.10.5(b) Functions of Remuneration Committee   

7.10.5(c) Disclosure in the Annual Report relating to Remuneration 

Committee 
  

7.10.6(a) Composition of Audit Committee   

7.10.6(b) Audit Committee Functions   

7.10.6 (c) Disclosure in the Annual Report relating to Audit Committee   
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks can impact any organisation in the 
short, medium and long term. These risks 
are related to operations, tactics and 
strategy, respectively. Strategy sets out 
the long-term aims of the organisation, 
and the strategic planning horizon for 
an organisation will typically be 3 to 5 or 
more years.

Risk management is a central part of the 
strategic management of Abans PLC. 
It is the process whereby organisation 
methodically addresses the risks 
attached to their activities. Proper risk 
management and internal controls assist 
an organisation in making informed 
decisions while taking into account 
the risks relating to the organisation’s 
governance management and finally the 
business operation.

Risk management is a subjective area 
where the Company deals with assuring 
achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives while reaching operational 

effectiveness and efficiency, reliable 
financial reporting and compliance with 
laws, regulations and policies with real 
time, premeditated and ad-hoc decision 
making.

Risk Management at Abans

Enterprise risk management framework 
was established at Abans PLC with 
reference to ERM best practices (ISO 
31000). We at Abans have identified 
risk management as an iterative 
process that with each cycle can 
contribute progressively to organisational 
improvement by providing management 
with a greater insight into risks and their 
impact by taking the risk appetite of the 
Company into consideration.

Risk management is applied to all levels 
of the organisation, in both the strategic 
and operational contexts, to specific 
projects, decisions or recognised risk 
areas through risk management process 
identified and set beforehand. 

Internal controls designed and 
implemented focus on operations 
provides the foundation for risk 
management process while the outcome 
of internal, external and corporate audits 
provide comfort & assurance for the risk 
management process at Abans.

The reports submitted by the audit 
teams with significant audit findings 
encompass the gaps then analyzed and 
brainstormed, to find sustainable risk 
mitigation strategies.

This process continuously improves 
and strengthens our internal controls 
and management reporting results in a 
well-defined risk management culture. 
Regular meeting with internal and 
external auditors and audit committee are 
conducted to identify potential risks with 
in-depth analyzing and interpretation of 
the same. 

Risk Management Process

Three Lines of Defense

Communication & Consultation

1st Line - Action Originators & Risk Bearers

2nd Line - Compliance, Finance & Internal Controllers

3rd Line - Board Audit Committee

Monitoring & Review 

Risk Identification Risk Analysis Risk Evaluation Risk Treatment

Risk Identification, 
Acceptance & Mitigation

Risk Monitoring & 
Management

Assurance & Policy 
Formulation
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Risk Management Structure

The Board retains overall accountability for the governance of risk and effective 
risk management. Risk management duties are exercised by way of clearly 
defined governance frameworks and policy frameworks

Risk assessments are prepared and reviewed by the Audit Committee at 
least on a quarterly basis. In addition, statements of compliance are 
provided to the Audit Committee by the CFO/CEO on a quarterly basis.

The Heads of divisions are responsible and accountable 
for management of risks in their respective segments.

Risk identification is the responsibility of all employees 
who form the first lineof defense. Heads of Strategic 
Business Units also assist in overall risk assessment 
and mitigation through their respective functions
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Deploy Strategies for Risk M
anagem

ent

BOD

Board Audit 
Committee

Management

Heads of Strategic Business Units

Employees

Internally Driven Risks

Externally Driven Risks

• Fast Changing Technology & 
Customer Preferences

• Competition

• Reputation Risk

• National Policy Instability

• Tax & Duty Changes

• Foreign Exchange Rate

• Inflation

• Supply Chain Interruption

• Investment Risk

• Liquidity Risk

• Interest Rate Risk

• Credit Default Risk

• People Risk

• Frauds

• Information Technology 
& System Risk

Below summaries critical risks driven both internally & externally with a brief description 
of each risk and the strategies deployed for mitigation during the financial year 
2018/2019 at Abans.

Risk Drivers of Abans PLC

Risk 
Assessment

Monitoring

Information & 
Communication

Control 
Environment

Control 
Activities

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Risk Risk Statement Risk Rating Strategies for Risk Mitigation

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Economic & Business Risk 

National 

Policy 

Instability

Lack of clarity and consistency in 

national policies made financial 

planning and resource allocation 

difficult and delayed decision making, 

which translated into reduced 

operational efficiency and lower 

bottom line growth. More damagingly 

such unpredictability inhibits the 

Company’s ability to invest in future 

value creation.

H M M • Carefully evaluate the long term vision 

of the Government and develop 

business strategies on long term value 

creation.

• Rationalise product portfolio based on 

macro trends.

• Invest in productivity and cost cutting 

technologies.

• Following Pause/Proceed with Caution 

Strategy in business expansion.

Increase

in Cost of

Consumption

Price changes in consumer durables 

will depend on the national policies 

(ex: VAT changes) and it affects the 

demand for electronic items

H H M • Invest in productivity and cost cutting 

technologies

• Negotiation with suppliers on prices

• Enter into cooperative purchase 

agreements to gain buying muscle

• Direct purchases

Market Place  Risk

Competition Competition reduces the market share 

of the company and margins are 

getting thinner.

H M H • Ensure our prices offer value for 

money.

• Shared resources among channels 

and upgraded showroom outlook with 

supplier participation.

• Expand and improve after-sales 

service network.

• Developing strong international 

brands.

• Building stronger relationships with 

suppliers.

Seasonality A substantial quantum of revenue and 

operating profit is generated during 

Christmas and new year season. 

Adverse trading in this relatively short 

period is likely to impact significantly 

the full year results.

M M M • Proper Financial & operational 

planning to ensure business is not 

impacted.

• Internal promotions and offers to 

maintain regular stream of income 

over the course of the year.
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Risk Risk Statement Risk Rating Strategies for Risk Mitigation

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Fast 

Changing

Technology

& Customer

Preferences

Risk that we fail to capitalise on new 

technology or emerging trends to 

maximize revenues and fail to meet 

the expectations of customers.

M M M • Strong supplier relationships.

• Delivery of Customer Plan to respond 

to identified changes in technology.

• Showroom renovation to take into 

account emerging trends in showroom 

layouts.

• Exciting product launches to make 

our showrooms the destination for the 

latest technology.

• Continued focus on ensuring an 

excellent range across all price points.

• Customer service training for sales 

staff and product workshops to 

improve product knowledge.

• A loyalty programme that encourages 

customers to stay with the LG brand 

and its products.

• Clearance sales and other promotions 

to minimize slow moving stocks

Operational Risk

Inventory

Management

Adhering to major supplier demands 

affects the inventory management.

M H H • Focuses on developing a mutually 

beneficial relationship with main 

suppliers while capitalising on quantity 

demands.

• Regular evaluation of customer 

expectations and reduce the gap of 

suppliers’ expectations.

People Risk Ensure adequate human resources 

to meet the strategic goals and 

operational plans of the Group by 

recruiting the right people with the 

right skills, at the appropriate time.

M H H • Initiating a wide-ranging programme 

to commence grooming the next 

generation of managers to lead Abans 

into the next decade.

• Improved orientation programmes, 

employee awareness sessions, 

internship programmes etc.

• Introduction of new Recruitment 

Policies

• Conducting many employee social 

events and welfare events to build 

a supportive and cooperative work 

environment

• More on employee training and 

education

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Risk Risk Statement Risk Rating Strategies for Risk Mitigation

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Frauds The potential for fraudulent and 

dishonest activities by customers & 

employees have shown an increasing 

trend due to current business 

environment.

M M M • Providing guidance to employees 

through operational manuals.

• Appropriate internal controls and 

procedures established across the 

business to mitigate frauds.

• Internal Audit & External Audit carry 

out periodical reviews of the internal 

controls and undertake detailed 

investigations into sensitive business 

processes and report their findings to 

the Audit Committee.

• Introduction of Whistle-blower policy.

Financial Risk

Interest Rate 

Risk

Rising interest rates lead to increase 

in cost of fund. It will impact the profit 

available for shareholders and impede 

re-investment in profitable ventures.

H H M • Locking the interest rate by borrowing 

from fixed interest rate funding 

sources.

• Maintain right mix of borrowing to 

reduce maturity mismatch

• Strong business relationships with 

lenders and brand strength help to 

ensure better negotiation on terms of 

credit

• Fixed rate debentures are issued to 

capitalise on existing interest rates

Foreign 

Exchange 

Rate Risk

Abans PLC has transaction risk of 

unanticipated changes in exchange 

rates due to supplier contracts being 

denominated in foreign currency.

M M H • Forward booking and supplier 

credit arrangements to reduce time 

difference in settlements.

Credit Risk The clientele of Abans consists of 

corporate clients, Government and 

general public. While corporate and 

government institutions are given 

credits, the general public mostly uses 

hire purchase schemes.

Therefore, credit risk for Abans arises 

from multiple sources of revenue.

H M M • An effective credit policy is 

implemented across all sector clients 

and credit worthiness is reviewed 

regularly.

• Contractual agreements are drawn up 

with clients and material payments are 

backed by guarantees.

• Debtor age analysis is regularly 

reviewed and continuously monitored.

• Credit supervision team is available to 

monitor risks on a regular basis.
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Risk Risk Statement Risk Rating Strategies for Risk Mitigation

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Liquidity Risk Liquidity risk is when the Group does 

not have sufficient financial resources 

to meet obligations as and when they 

fall due, or will have to do so at an 

excessive cost.

H M M • Maintain unutilised bank facility as 

a safety cushion to meet immediate 

commitments.

• Group treasury division is entrusted 

with monitoring borrowings, payments 

and maintaining good relationships 

with Banks.

• Liquidity position of the company is 

regularly reviewed

Investment 

Risk 

Risk in new products and projects 

including expansion.

Intensified competition, market 

stagnation, mergers and acquisition 

have increased potential risks to 

companies in trading and this risk 

has been further enhanced via factors 

such as digitalisation, IT innovations.

M M M • Extensive appraisals are carried out

 by the management before any 

investment

• A due diligence study also ensures the 

expectations are met.

• Post investment analysis and 

performance tracking are in place

Strategic Risk

Reputation 

Risk

Abans has secured a positive image 

in the trading industry as well as 

expanding it across the country 

in various industries. Any form of 

damage to the reputation can cause 

loss in earnings.

M M M • Board of Directors and the senior 

management continuously review 

strategic moves for a competitive 

edge.

• In order to protect the group 

reputation, measures have been taken 

to ensure compliance with laws and 

regulations

Information 

Technology & 

System Risk

Failure of the ERP system, IT 

infrastructure or IT security may 

disrupt business. Also the loss of 

sensitive information may lead to loss 

of competitive advantage.

H H H • Communicate and monitor the IT 

strategy across the Group.

• Disaster recovery process is in 

progress

• IT system was upgraded by 

professionally qualified internal IT 

Division.

• Invested in training and skill 

development of IT professionals.

• Regular backups of all databases.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Risk Risk Statement Risk Rating Strategies for Risk Mitigation

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Caveat Although the key sources of risk and 

the measures taken by the company 

to mitigate have been discussed in this 

document, no assurance can be given 

that the Company is fully-protected 

against all possible risks.

Further, the best the company can 

ensure is the reasonable management 

of risks through a sound operational 

framework which identifies, evaluates 

and mitigates the impact of mentioned 

risks in a timely manner across the 

company.

N/A N/A N/A • The Company is confident that 

all identified risk areas have been 

adequately assessed and managed to 

ensure the uninterrupted and efficient 

continuance of the business.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder Engagement 

Abans PLC takes a stakeholder 
centric approach to enhance business 
operations.  Stakeholder engagement is a 
vital element to ensure that our business 
remains sustainable in the long term. We 
believe that ongoing engagement with 
our stakeholders contributes toward 
improving the overall performance of 
our business, increases institutional 
knowledge and builds social and 
relationship capital, thereby enhancing 
our reputation and strengthening our 
strategic positioning.

Our stakeholder engagement model is 
based on the following principles:

• Engaging with our stakeholder 
groups to develop and maintain 
positive, productive relationships 

• Ensuring key stakeholders are 
well informed and have access to 
information about our business and 
our activities

• Involving our stakeholders in 
identifying issues which are material 
to our business

• Collaborating with stakeholders to 
identify emerging trends and develop 
solutions to future challenges

• Implementing initiatives and 
programmes that contribute to 
sustainable development and 
generate shared value

• Monitoring our success in meeting 
stakeholder deliverables continuously 
identifying areas for improvement

Identification of key stakeholders 

Our stakeholders can be identified as individuals, groups or entities that have a 
significant effect on the organization’s business decisions and those actions can be 
reasonably be expected to affect the operations of the organization. We strive to take 
several direct and indirect communication routes to engage with stakeholders at different 
levels and on different topics. 

Stakeholder mapping and prioritising our stakeholders 

It is imperative that we map and prioritise our internal and external stakeholders to 
develop the extent of our engagement and strategic response with different groups. This 
mapping process enables us to prioritise stakeholder categories and efficiently allocate 
resources and managerial time. Abans uses the Mendelow’s stakeholder prioritization 
approach to identify the stakeholders which have the highest power, influence and 
impact on the business. Therefore, Abans strategic approach would be to continuously 
address their concerns and ensure meeting their expectations from business operations. 
Stakeholders who have a high interest but less power are kept well informed of business 
decisions and engaged on a more frequent basis. 

Low High
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Media

Keep Informed 
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Environment and community 
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Keep Satisfied

Government 

Regulatory bodies

Key Players
Shareholders 

Investors 

Business Partners 

Suppliers

Financiers 

Customers 

Level of Interest
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Creating Value for Stakeholders

The Company uses a range of communication mechanisms to reach out to stakeholders and engage with them on topics of their 
interest and to obtain feedback on business activities. This is based on the stakeholder groups and the level of engagement is 
customised to suit different stakeholder groups and provide them with the quality and relevant information needed to build trust and 
long-term relationships. 

During the year Abans endeavoured to satisfy the needs and objectives of the Company’s key stakeholder groups by engaging with 
them as illustrated in the table below. 

A. Stakeholder 

Group

B. Method of Engagement C. Level of 

Engagement

D. Frequency

of Engagement

E. Concerns Raised F. Our Response

Shareholders Annual Report Inform Annually • Sustainable returns

• Growth in profits

• Dividend growth

• Ethical corporate 

conduct and Good 

Governance

• Robust risk 

management 

practices

• Ability to adapt to 

macroeconomic 

changes 

• Abans commits to 

sustaining robust 

business growth over the 

long term

• A sustainable robust 

dividend policy

• Implement strategic and 

operational plans that 

would support growth 

targets

• Maintaining transparency 

and good governance 

including sound risk 

management and 

mitigation strategies

• Ensure to communicate 

material information 

timely and accurately to 

shareholders

Annual General Meeting Consult Annually

Quarterly Financial results 

released to the CSE

Inform Quarterly

Quarterly reports and 

correspondence

Inform Quarterly

The corporate website Inform Ongoing

Press releases through 

CSE and Media

Inform As necessary

Employees • Management and 

divisional meetings

Engage Quarterly • Positive and 

enjoyable work 

environment

• Attractive 

remuneration 

schemes

• Job satisfaction 

and motivation

• Training 

• Career 

development

• Health and Safety 

at work

• Employee Welfare

• Enhance corporate 

culture to highlight 

care and concern for 

employees

• Provide extensive 

financial and non-financial 

benefits

• Substantial training 

exposure, talent 

management and 

retention programs

• Offer special promotions 

for staff and reward 

schemes   

• Annual Performance 

Appraisals

Assess Annual

Event calendar including 

• Sports Days

• Health camps

• Competitions (specify)

• Social & cultural 

activities

Engage Annual

• Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) 

programs

Involve Ongoing
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A. Stakeholder 

Group

B. Method of Engagement C. Level of 

Engagement

D. Frequency

of Engagement

E. Concerns Raised F. Our Response

Customers • At all points of sale Involve Ongoing • Innovative products 

with reliable quality

• A range of choices 

in each product 

category 

• Environmentally 

friendly products

• Island-wide 

accessibility

• Value for money

• Product knowledge 

and attitudes of 

employees

• Speedy customer 

care support 

• Efficient after sales 

service

• A variety of 

financing options

• Effective 

management of 

complaints and 

offering satisfactory 

solutions

• Protecting 

customer privacy 

with responsible 

business practices

• Abans is committed 

to offer a range of 

innovative, high quality 

products offering value for 

money.

• Enhance customer access 

convenience through an 

island-wide distribution 

network including 

shopping malls.

• Digital transformation of 

the sales network and 

operations to speed up 

customer service and add 

value

• Well trained service 

team assistance via 

the call centers and a 

commitment to efficient 

after sales services.  

• Flexible payment plans 

including hire purchase, 

attractive credit terms and 

credit card options.

• Conduct employee 

training programs 

focusing on product 

knowledge and customer 

service aspects.  

• Call centers Involve Ongoing 

working hours  

and when 

customers call 

• One-to-one meetings Consult As necessary

• Print and Electronic 

media

Inform As necessary

• Corporate website Inform 

passive

Ongoing, as 

necessary

• Social media and live 

chats via website

Inform 

engage 

consult

Ongoing

• SMS and Email Inform 

consult

Ongoing

• Customer care service 

centers

Involve working hours

• Customer surveys 

and direct customer 

feedback (from all 

sources)

Consult As necessary

Suppliers • Supplier visits and 

meetings

Involve Ongoing • On time settlements

• Fair price and 

transparent 

transaction

• Long-lasting 

relationship

• Timely settlement 

via online payment 

processing systems

• Maintaining effective 

relationship

• Supplier review and 

assessment

Involve Annually

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
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A. Stakeholder 

Group

B. Method of Engagement C. Level of 

Engagement

D. Frequency

of Engagement

E. Concerns Raised F. Our Response

Government 

and regulatory 

bodies 

• Regulatory reporting Inform When required • Compliance with all 

relevant laws, rules 

regulations and 

guidelines

• Paying duties, 

taxes and levies 

promptly 

• Transparency 

and regular 

communication

• Contribution 

to society as 

a responsible 

corporate citizen 

• Create employment 

opportunities and 

enhance economic 

prospects

• Abans adheres to 

Government rules and 

regulations and pays 

taxes and duties in a 

timely manner.

• Cater direct and indirect 

job opportunities

• Conduct CSR programs

• Environmental 

preservation

• Annual Report and 

the Annual General 

Meeting

Inform Annually

• Quarterly Financial 

results released to 

the Colombo Stock 

Exchange (CSE) 

Inform Quarterly

• Quarterly reports and 

correspondence 

Inform Quarterly

• Consultations and 

meetings 

Consult When required

• Taxes, rates, duties 

and other payments 

including EPF & ETF

Consult Monthly, 

quarterly, 

annually or as 

required

Community • CSR Programs Involve, 

consult, 

inform

Ongoing • Employment 

creation and 

economic growth

• Socially responsible 

corporate 

citizenship 

• Good community 

relations in all areas 

of operation

• CSR initiatives

• Environmental 

responsibility

• Abans creates direct and 

indirect job opportunities 

and economic growth 

prospects in all areas 

where the sales network 

operates

• Some CSR initiatives are 

undertaken to serve the 

communities we operate 

in.

• Abans is committed 

to protecting the 

natural environment 

and has made 

substantial investments 

in environmental 

conservation 

projects working with 

governmental and non 

governmental agencies.  

• Press releases 

targeting print and 

electronic media 

Inform As necessary

• Social media channels Inform, 

engage

Ongoing
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ASSESSMENT OF MATERIAL TOPICS

GRI 103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary

GRI 103-2 The management approach and its components

Identifying material topics

At Abans we select material topics based on a systematic analysis of numerous 
issues and concerns that have been highlighted by our internal and external 
stakeholders. Many of the material concerns listed in Pages 65 to 72 have been 
identified through the stakeholder engagement process outlined in pages 60 to 63 
to this report. Other topics have arisen out of our risk management processes, our 
continuing evaluation of the operating environment and staff performance reviews.

Evaluating 
operating 

environment

Eval
ope

enviro

Risk 
management 

process
manage

pr

Stakeholder 
engagement

Performance 
reviews

Prioritizing stakeholder concerns

Once all stakeholder concerns are captured as listed in pages 60 to 63 we classify 
them according to the level of impact they have on the Company and internal 
stakeholders such as major shareholders and employees and the level of impact 
on external stakeholders, and on the society at large. 

Assess level of 
impact on Company 

and internal 
stakeholders

Assess level of 
impact on external 

stakeholders

Selecting 
high-impact topics

Addressing material topics

We give the highest priority to addressing material concerns with high levels of 
impact both inside and outside of the Company. We set strategic priorities and 
goals to address these high-impact concerns within the context of our corporate 
risk management processes. Plans to address the concerns and to realize the 
strategic goals are executed and their progress are continuously monitored to 
ensure key material topics are resolved in a satisfactory manner. 

Continuing with our stakeholder engagement processes will help us determine 
whether our chosen strategies and plans have achieved the intended goals and 
whether we need to change course and find alternative means of addressing these 
concerns. In the end, we are successful in this process only if we treat material 
topics effectively on a continuing basis. 

Ongoing 
stakeholder 

engagement

Take 
corrective 

action

Ongoing risk 
management 

processes

Review  
whether 
material 

issues are 
resolved 

satisfactorily

Address material 
issues and 

concerns raised 
by stakeholders

Prioritizing stakeholder concerns by 
level of impact
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT OF KEY ISSUES RAISED BY ABANS STAKEHOLDERS

Material Topic

Impact on 

Abans and  

internal 

Stakeholders

Impact on 

External 

Stakeholders

Why it is  

Material to us 

Our Approach Strategic Response

SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS - GRI 201,203 

1. Profitability 

and financial 

performance

High High Critical to business 

continuity, financial 

stability and for 

sustainable value creation 

for our shareholders in 

the intensely competitive 

retail trading environment 

that we operate in

We continue to 

explore and exploit 

areas growth 

opportunities that will 

help strengthen our 

financial performance 

and profitability.

Investing in real estate 

infrastructure development 

of CCC, the first mixed 

development project of its 

kind in Sri Lanka, with a 

Mall, Hotel and Apartments.

Continually adding value 

to the Abans brand. by 

widening our prestigious 

brand and product portfolio 

and improving quality of 

service. 

Extending customer 

reach by growing the 

retail network, with 2 Elite 

Branches opened as well 

as the BuyAbans web 

operations.

Enhancing operational 

efficiencies and optimizing 

operational costs with digital 

transformation initiatives. 

2. Sustainable value 

creation

High HIgh This is the foundation 

upon which to deliver 

continuing value and 

returns to shareholders 

and other stakeholders.

We deploy the six 

capitals of Abans in 

such a way to ensure 

we derive the best 

synergies from them.

3. Financial stability High High An unvoiced 

expectation of our 

major shareholders, and 

ensures ability to pass 

on wealth to the next 

generation.  

We evaluate business 

opportunities and 

risks of current 

operations and new 

areas of investment, 

taking only calculated 

risks.  opportunities 

and risks

We have adopted 

principles of good 

corporate governance 

and used appropriate risk 

assessment processes to 

ensure that the Company 

stays within defined risk 

parameters on a number 

of fronts, including capital 

investments, financial 

management and in 

business operations. 
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT OF KEY ISSUES RAISED BY ABANS STAKEHOLDERS

Material Topic

Impact on 

Abans and  

internal 

Stakeholders

Impact on 

External 

Stakeholders

Why it is  

Material to us 

Our Approach Strategic Response

4. Abans Brand High Medium Grown over 50 years, 

the valued Abans brand 

is a crucial factor in our 

ability to create value in a 

sustainable manner. 

We are committed to 

enhancing the value 

of the Abans Brand

We continually search for 

and add prestigious new 

brands and products to the 

Abans range.

Digital transformation efforts 

have helped us improve 

quality of service.

We have taken on a 

multi-year CSR project 

Green Isle to demonstrate 

our commitment to 

sustainability.

5. Good governance Medium Medium Effective corporate 

governance ensures that 

Abans remains profitable, 

financially stable and 

well placed to deliver 

continuing value to our 

stakeholders. 

We believe in the 

value of good 

governance and 

have put in place 

a robust system 

to ensure Abans 

adheres to best 

practice in corporate 

governance. 

We have adopted the 

Code of Best Practice on 

Corporate Governance 

issued jointly by SEC and 

CA Sri Lanka.

With this annual report we 

are also voluntarily adopting 

the GRI Guidelines on 

Sustainability.

6. Worthy Corporate 

Social Responsibility 

(CSR) projects

Medium High Worthy CSR projects 

are part and parcel of 

being a good corporate 

citizen who generated 

improved value to all its 

stakeholders.  

In addition to 

enhancing our brand 

CSR projects also  

and enhances our 

reputation as a good 

neighbor, employer 

and business  partner.  

In addition to continuing 

our usual CSR work, this 

year we took on Green 

Isle, which falls within the 

“Life on Land” sustainable 

development goal 15.  See 

details under the Natural 

Capital section.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT OF KEY ISSUES RAISED BY ABANS STAKEHOLDERS

Material Topic

Impact on 

Abans and  

internal 

Stakeholders

Impact on 

External 

Stakeholders

Why it is  

Material to us 

Our Approach Strategic Response

7. Leadership and 

business succession

High Medium Strong, committed 

leadership capable 

of recognizing the 

growth needs of Abans, 

setting strategies and 

implementing them 

are key to sustainable 

success over the long 

term. 

As Abans turned 

50, we recognised 

the need to further 

strengthen our 

senior leadership 

and management 

team by bringing 

in professional 

expertise.

During the last two years 

we created new positions 

of Group CEO, Group Chief 

Finance Officer and Group 

Chief Human Resources 

Officer and recruited 

professionals for the same. 

These and all others in 

leadership and senior 

management were provided 

with high level training 

opportunities to enhance 

personal productivity and 

growth.

We created a succession 

plan for identified key 

positions within the 

Company.  

8. Professional 

management

High Medium

CUSTOMERS - GRI 417, 418 

9. Reliability High High In the highly competitive 

retail environment in 

which we operate there 

is a premium value 

placed on our ability to 

deliver reliable quality 

products and services 

and deliver value for 

money to our customers 

while complying with all 

the applicable rules and 

regulations established to

Abans continues 

to provide goods 

from reputed brands 

that deliver quality, 

reliability and value 

for money to our 

customers.

We bring in internationally 

recognized brands and 

their products into our 

portfolio and ensure we 

deliver on our customers’ 

expectations. 

10. Quality High High

11. Value for money High High
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT OF KEY ISSUES RAISED BY ABANS STAKEHOLDERS

Material Topic

Impact on 

Abans and  

internal 

Stakeholders

Impact on 

External 

Stakeholders

Why it is  

Material to us 

Our Approach Strategic Response

12. Energy saving 

features/green 

products

Medium High More and more 

customers are seeking 

energy and power saving 

green products that 

cause little harm to the 

environment. 

We are committed to 

delivering a variety 

of green products 

from our innovative 

and sustainability 

conscious suppliers.

We added a number of 

new products this year to 

our range that save energy, 

money and cause little harm 

to the environment. 

We continually strive to 

upgrade our current product 

portfolio with more energy 

saving, environmentally 

friendly products. 

The fact that we work 

with global brands who 

are continually innovating 

to provide more green 

products helps us reach this 

goal easily. 

13. Access - Ease and 

convenience in 

purchase

High High Convenience and ease of 

access to branches and 

physical outlets is still a 

critical success factor in 

the highly competitive Sri 

Lankan retail industry.  

We are committed 

to enhancing our 

retail footprint to 

extend access and 

convenience to 

our customers and 

potential customers.

We opened two Elite 

branches during the year, 

including one at the CCC 

Mall.

For those customers 

seeking the convenience 

of online purchases we are 

extending our product range 

and accessibility through 

BuyAbans.com ecommerce 

site. 

14. Excellent after sales 

service

High High After sales service is a 

determinant of customer 

loyalty through which we 

would be able to retain 

our customers for life.

Abans has always 

been known for its 

excellent customer 

service and we strive 

to do even better, 

year after year.

Adopting digital platforms 

helps us deliver services 

even faster. 

We automated a number of 

field tasks during the year. 

One was an app for Service 

Field Task Automation 

which enables us improve 

our speed of response. 

ASSESSMENT OF MATERIAL TOPICS
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Impact on 

Abans and  

internal 

Stakeholders

Impact on 

External 

Stakeholders

Why it is  

Material to us 

Our Approach Strategic Response

15. Easy payment 

schemes and 

special offers 

Medium Medium These enhance our 

competitiveness in this 

dynamic retail industry 

we operate in.

In the competitive 

field in which we 

operate, we are 

always striving to 

remain competitive

Our customers have a 

choice in payment methods 

and schemes.

We make available special 

offers on a regular basis, 

especially during holiday 

seasons.

16. Delays in delivery High High Today’s customers want 

and expect things as and 

when they wish to have 

them. Delays erode trust 

and brand value.

We strive to minimize 

delays in delivery. 

During the year we created 

Apps for Sales Force 

Automation and Showroom 

Field Task Automation 

which enable us speed up 

service and troubleshoot 

delays.  

CUSTOMERS: Dealers, Distributors, Government and Corporate Customers

17. Quick and easy 

transactions

High High Our Dealers and 

Distributors are an 

essential part of our 

nation wide sales 

network. 

The corporate and 

government agencies 

that work with us are 

a special and growing 

segment among our 

valued customer base. 

We are sensitive to 

the concerns and 

issues raised by our 

dealers, distributors, 

corporate and 

government agency 

customers. 

The many ways in which 

we engage with these 

segments are reported 

under the Stakeholder 

Engagement section of this 

report. 

The way we cultivate better 

relationships and strive 

to develop our dealership 

network is explained under 

the Social and Relationship 

section to this report. 

18. Ethical business 

practices

Medium Medium

19. Retail sales support High High

20. Training and 

development

High Medium

21. Special deals and 

offers

Medium High

22. Easy to use systems 

and processes

Medium Low

23. Automation/speed High Medium
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Material Topic

Impact on 

Abans and  

internal 

Stakeholders

Impact on 

External 

Stakeholders

Why it is  

Material to us 

Our Approach Strategic Response

SUPPLIERS - FOREIGN  

24. Business reputation High High Overseas suppliers 

who own global brands 

consider all of these 

criteria when appointing 

exclusive and non- 

exclusive agencies and  

distributors.

This is why Abans makes 

it a priority to excel all 

these aspects.  

We are committed 

to being a partner in 

progress to all of our 

valued brands we are 

marketing. 

Our efforts during the year 

to enhance brand value are 

discussed under the section 

on Intellectual Capital.

During the year we 

improved our after sales 

service operations by 

creating an App dedicated 

to Service Field Task 

Automation which enables 

us improve our speed of 

response.

Our efforts during the year 

to promote the various 

brands we market are 

discussed under the 

Manufactured Capital, 

Social and Relationship 

Capital and the Intellectual 

Capital sections. 

25. Ethical business 

practices

Medium High

26. Brand recognition High High

27. Brand management 

and professionalism

High High

28. Quality of after sales 

service

High High

29. Attention to growth Medium High

30. Open to innovation 

and improvements

High Medium

SUPPLIERS - LOCAL - GRI 204, 301 

31. Prompt payments Medium High Our local suppliers are 

our partners in progress 

who have helped us 

throughout our 50+ year 

journey.

We believe in working 

with our suppliers 

and developing them 

to be true partners 

in progress. We are 

committed to sharing 

the fruits of our 

growth with them.

The Social and Relationship 

Capital section of this 

report describes what we 

have done during the year 

to improve our continuing 

relationships and to support 

our local suppliers. 

32. Ethical business 

practices

Medium Medium

33. Ease and speed of 

transactions

Medium Medium

34. Speedy delivery Low Medium

35. Quality of the goods High High
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Stakeholders

Impact on 

External 

Stakeholders

Why it is  

Material to us 

Our Approach Strategic Response

EMPLOYEES - GRI 401, 403, 404, 408, 409 

36. Good remuneration 

package

High Low Our employees are 

a critical asset of our 

business, contributing 

immensely as teams and 

individuals to the success 

of our business. So we 

always make it a priority 

to develop and retain 

our staff while facilitating 

them with a appropriate 

and enjoyable work 

place.

Our human resource 

management 

philosophy centers 

around the three 

aspects of building 

talent, driving 

performance and 

creating an enjoyable 

and engaging 

workplace.

The many things we have 

done during the year 

to develop talent, drive 

performance and to create 

an enjoyable and engaging 

workplace are discussed 

under the Human Capital 

section to this report. 

37. Skill development High Medium

38. Career development 

prospects

High Low

39. Great working 

environment

High Medium

40. Engaging workplace High Medium

41. Long term prospects Medium Medium

GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORY BODIES  - GRI 205, 419 

42. Compliance High High Assuring compliance 

in all aspects is part of 

responsible corporate 

citizenship.  

At Abans we 

believe  the need 

for compliance with 

all laws, rules and 

regulations a key 

priority and obligation.

We have put in place 

systems and procedures 

in place to guarantee that 

the Company complies 

with all relevant laws, rules 

and regulations on a timely 

basis. 

Officers of the Company 

who deal with regulatory 

bodies are required to 

respond with speed and 

cooperation. 

To enhance HR compliance, 

we created a new position 

of Industrial Relations and 

Compliance Manager for 

conducting human resource 

audits and perform spot 

checks to ensure that 

all HR policies are being 

implemented.

43. Cooperation Medium Low Cooperation with 

regulatory bodies is part 

of responsible corporate 

citizenship.  

Abans extends the 

fullest cooperation to 

all regulatory entities 

seeking our support 

or information.

44. Good corporate 

citizenship; filing 

timely returns, 

prompt payments

Medium Low Filing compliance 

documentation, tax and 

other statutory returns 

and making payments as 

they fall due is an integral 

part of good governance 

and good corporate 

citizenship.  

At Abans, we are 

committed to good 

corporate citizenship. 

We believe in fulfilling 

all obligations, 

including fining of 

statutory returns 

and making timely 

payments.  
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COMMUNITY/SOCIETY AT LARGE - GRI 302, 303, 304, 305, 307, 413 

45. Good governance High Medium As a company that 

operates throughout the 

nation, our commitment 

and goodwill with the 

local communities 

becomes part of our 

brand identity. 

At Abans, we believe 

in enriching lives of 

people and sustaining 

the environment for 

future generations. 

Also in preserving 

fauna and flora for the 

life they contain. We 

build our brand by 

being a responsible 

corporate citizen and 

a good neighbor who 

abides by all laws & 

regulations.

What we have done 

during the financial year to 

enhance our community 

relationships is described in 

detail under the Social and 

Relationship capital. 

46. Good corporate 

citizenship – social 

and environmentally 

responsible

High High

47. Gives back to 

community

Medium High

48. Great neighbor – 

positive community 

engagement

Medium High
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EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

GLOBAL ECONOMY
Economic Activity

GROWTH PROJECTIONS

WORLD ECONOMIC OUTLOOK • APRIL 9, 2019

INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND • WWW.IMF.ORG • #WEO

Global Growth is Set to Moderate in the Near Term, 
Then Pick Up Modestly

2019

3.6 3.3 3.6

2.2 1.8 1.7

4.5 4.8

2020
Global

Economy
Advanced

Economies
Emerging Markets &

Developing Economies

2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 20202018

4.4

The global economy grew by 3.3 per cent in 2018. Advanced economies grew by 1.8 
per cent while emerging markets and developing economies achieved a 4.4 per cent 
growth rate for 2018. 

The global economic expansion that began in 2016 continued on to 2018. That initial 
exuberance in growth momentum, however, slowed down notably halfway through 
the year reflecting a confluence of factors affecting larger economies across the globe. 
China’s growth slowed due to the increase in trade tentions and associated uncertainties 
of an impending trade war spurred on by the United States. Implementation of regulatory 
tightening by China to control its shadow banking sector also contributed to muted 
growth. 

The euro area economy lost more momentum than expected as consumer and business 
confidence weakened on a number of factors, led by the uncertainties associated with 
the prospect of a no-deal Brexit, as UK exited the European Union. Disruptions to car 
production in Germany following the introduction of new emission standards, a drop in 
investment in Italy from sovereign spreads widening contributed. External demand from 
emerging Asia softened. Natural disasters affected Japan.  

Overall trade tensions increasingly battered business confidence and worsened global 
financial market sentiment. This resulted in a tightening of financial conditions, first in the 
vulnerable emerging markets in mid 2018, and later in the year, in advanced economies, 
both weighing heavily on global demand. 

Commodities 

Crude oil prices have become volatile 
since the third quarter reflecting both 
supply influences and sentiments of 
softening global demand. Global energy 
prices declined by 22 percent between 
October 2018 and March 2019 as oil 
prices dropped from a four-year peak of 
$76 a barrel in October to $59 in March. 
Weakening global growth together with 
supply influences such the record-high 
levels of US crude oil production and 
the temporary waiver in US sanctions on 
Iranian oil exports to certain countries 
exerted downward pressure on prices. 
Responding to falling prices, oil exporters 
cut production. 

Slowing down of growth in China and 
trade tensions exerted downward 
pressure on metal prices in 2018. 
However, metal prices subsequently 
recovered boosted by a number of 
factors including fiscal stimulus in China, 
improved global market sentiment, and 
some metal market supply disruptions. 

Prices of agricultural goods increased 
somewhat as the combined effect 
of excess demand for animal protein 
sources, recovery of world sugar prices; 
and offsetting the effects of weaker 
global income growth and excess supply 
conditions in some grain markets.
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Key global indicators

Key global activity indicators--including world 
trade, industrial production and Manufacturing 
Purchasing Managers Index--all softened since 
the second half of 2018 and continued their 
decline past February 2019. 

Global trade growth slowed down sharply from 
the peak in late 2017, with steep declines in US 
imports from China subject to new US tariffs 
toward the end of the year after adjusting for 
front-loading ahead of tariff hikes. 

Industrial production

Amid uncertainty and trade tensions, and the 
prospects of weakening of global demand, 
industrial production decelerated during 2018, 
particularly for capital goods. The slow down 
applied across advanced economies, with the 
exception of the United States. 

Purchasing Managers Index

Purchasing managers’ indexes reflected weak 
expectations in future activity and pointed to an 
ongoing slow momentum into 2019.

Despite global economic setbacks, consumer 
confidence was on an upward trend throughout 
2018. From late 2018, and into March, there 
was a decline in consumer confidence, first 
in emerging market economies and then in 
advanced economies. 

Investor confidence, as reflected in financial 
markets however, reflected the market 
uncertainties more closely than the Consumer 
Confidence indices. 

Key Global Activity Indicators

Industrial Production Across Key Economies

Source: IMF

Source: IMF

Source: IMF

Consumer Confidence
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Consumer price inflation

Consumer price inflation remained muted across advanced economies throughout 2018, 
given the drop in commodity prices. It inched up in the United States which saw above-
trend levels of growth. In emerging market economies are seeing an easing of inflationary 
pressure in line with the declining oil prices. In some markets, the inflationary easing was 
somewhat offset by the passthrough of currency depreciations to their domestic prices. 
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Capital flows and exchange rates

There were net capital outflows from emerging market economies during the third quarter 
of 2018, as a result of investors lowering their exposure levels to riskier assets. By 
January, the US dollar remained relatively unchanged in real effective terms compared to 
September. The euro weakened amid slower growth, including concerns about Italy and 
the British pound depreciated with the heightening of Brexit-related uncertainties which 
appeared to show no satisfactory resolution. 

Global economic outlook

The International Monetary Fund predicts 
that the growth of the global economy 
will slow down to 3.3 in 2019 and then 
pick up momentum to reach 3.6 per 
cent growth in 2020. The World Bank 
Group projections indicate that the global 
economy is expected to grow by 2.9 
percent in 2019 and 2.8 per cent in 2020.  

IMF projections show that advanced 
economies and emerging markets and 
developing economies are expected to 
grow by 1.8 percent and 4.4 per cent 
respectively in 2019, again achieving 
slower growth compared to 2018. 
Advanced economies are expected 
to grow even more sluggishly in 2020 
reaching 1.7 percent while emerging and 
developing economies are expected to 
pick up performance, surpassing 2018 
results, achieving an overall 4.8 per cent 
growth rate in 2020.

These figures have factored in the 
negative effects of tariff increases by 
the United States and China as well as 
the softening global growth momentum 
observed during the second half of 2018. 
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Risks to global growth are appearing 
to outweigh the positive factors, so 
much so that the World Bank tagged 
the January 2019 issue of the Global 
Economic Prospects with the tagline of 
"Darkening Skies". A further escalation of 
trade tensions between US and China, 
the prospect of a "no-deal" Brexit as UK 
exits from the European Union and a 
slowdown in economic activity in China 
may tilt the risks of global economic 
growth prospects downwards. 

Despite more recent improvements, there 
are still signs that the global economy 
may not be as healthy as it seems. Brexit 
mechanisms are still in limbo as of early 
May 2019.

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

Sri Lankan Economy

The Sri Lankan economy grew by 3.2 per cent during 2018, compared to the 3.4 per 
cent the previous year. The modest growth, achieved amid low inflation and a modest 
expansion in real economic activity underscores the vulnerability of the Sri Lankan 
economy to global and domestic forces in play.
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Sector contribution to GDP

The services sector activities overall 
expanded by 4.7 per cent in 2018 
compared to 3.6 in 2017. Agriculture 
activities recovered with a growth rate 
of 4.8 per cent, from the negative 
0.4 percent in the previous period. In 
2018, industrial activity slowed down 
significantly to 0.9 per cent, from 
2017’s 4 per cent, attributed mainly to a 
contraction in construction activity.

57.7%
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7.0%

26.1%
Industry

Taxes less
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Services

Gross Value
 Added

90.8%
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Retail Trade 

Agriculture

The agriculture sector grew by 4.8 per cent in 2018 (0.4 % - 2017) thanks to the 
favourable weather conditions that prevailed throughout, and recovering from the 
negative performance over 2016 and 2017. 

There were substantial increases in harvests of rice, fruits, oleaginous fruits and spices. 
Total paddy production grew significantly in 2018. Animal production, growing of 
vegetables, cereals and beverage crops such as coffee and cocoa, together with plant 
propagation and support activities also contributed positively to agriculture growth. 
There were contractions in fishing activities, forestry and logging, in growing of tea, 
rubber, other perennial crops, sugarcane, tobacco and other non-perennial crops in 
2018, compared to the previous year. 

Industry

The value added of Industry activities grew marginally by 0.9 per cent in 2018, 
compared to the growth of 4.1 per cent recorded in 2017.

Mining and quarrying activities contracted by 5.1 per cent in 2018, compared to the 
growth of 9.1 per cent in 2017. 

The value added of manufacturing activities grew by 3.0 per cent in 2018, compared 
to the growth of 3.3 per cent in 2017. The manufacturing sector registered a marginal 
growth in 2018. According to the Index of Industrial Production (IIP), the overall Sri 
Lankan manufacturing sector expanded by 0.8 per cent in 2018  compared to the 
growth of 2.5 per cent achieved in the previous year.

Several large subsectors of the IIP, including the manufacturing of food products, 
beverages, wearing apparel, rubber and plastic products, coke and refined petroleum 
products and textiles registered a positive growth during 2018. Some subsectors of 
the IIP, including the manufacturing of tobacco products, paper and paper products, 
chemicals and chemical products, non-metallic mineral products, electrical equipment 
and furniture products recorded a decline.

Services sector in 2018

The share of the services sector contribution to the GDP grew further in 2018 to reach 
57.7 percent, compared to 56.8 per cent in 2017. 

The Sri Lankan services sector is made up of five subsectors, led by the ‘Wholesale and 
retail trade, transportation and storage, and accommodation and food service activities’. 
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2017 2018

YoY 

Growth %

As % of 

GDP

YoY 

Growth %

As % of 

GDP

Agriculture and fishing -0.4 6.9 4.8 7.0

Industries 4.1 26.7 0.9 26.1

Services 3.6 56.8 4.7 57.7

Wholesale and retail trade, 

transportation and storage, 

and accommodation and food 

service activities 

3.6 23.1 4 23.3

Information and 

communication 

9.5 0.6 8.9 0.7

Financial, insurance and real 

estate activities including 

ownership of dwellings 

6.7 13.3 8.2 14

Professional services and other 

personal service activities 

3.3 11.5 4.7 11.6

Public administration, defence, 

education, human health and 

social work activities

-1.2 8.3 0.9 8.1

Wholesale and Retail sub sector

The subsector including the wholesale and retail trade grew by 4 percent in 2018 an 
improvement over the 3.6 growth achieved the previous year. This subsector also retains 
its status as the largest services subsector, accounting for approximately 23.3 percent of 
total GDP just a few points over the 23.1 per cent achieved in 2017. 

The external sector

Global and domestic factors contributed to a volatile external sector economy during 
the year. There was a tightening of global financial conditions that led to capital outflows 
from emerging markets like Sri Lanka. This also increased the pressure on exchange 
rates of twin deficit economies-running both a fiscal deficit and a deficit on the current 
account of the balance of payments.

Sri Lanka was no exception and experienced these headwinds, particularly from mid-
April 2018. The political uncertainties exacerbated the conditions further, leading to a  
downgrade of the country’s Sovereign rating in the fourth quarter of 2018. 

Business surveys by the Central Bank, show that the combined effects of delayed 
implementation of structural reform, policy uncertainties that prevailed throughout the 
year and the heightened political tension at year end created an adverse impact on 
business confidence and investor sentiment. 

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

During 2018, Sri Lanka’s trade deficit 
surpassed US dollars 10 billion mark for 
the first time in history. The growth in 
import expenditure outpaced the growth 
in export earnings, even though the 
earnings were at a record level in nominal 
terms. Services exports are estimated 
to have grown substantially during the 
year. However, there was a deficit in the 
merchandise trade balance. Stagnant 
growth in workers’ remittances and rising 
foreign interest payments also contributed 
to the widened current account deficit. 
The deficit for the year was 3.2 per cent 
of GDP during the year. 

Foreign direct investment (FDI) inflows 
recorded the historically highest level 
in 2018. FDI inflows, together with 
borrowing from abroad, including the 
issuance of International Sovereign Bonds 
(ISBs) benefited the financial account.

The overall deficit in the balance of 
payments (BOP) was the combined result 
of these developments. 

Depreciation of the Rupee

The Sri Lankan rupee depreciated 
sharply during 2018.  The depreciation 
was the result of an expanding trade 
deficit, and the heightening of capital 
outflows due to tightening global financial 
market conditions creating tight liquidity 
conditions in the domestic foreign 
exchange markets. The Central Bank 
adopted a market based policy that 
allowed for sharper depreciations while 
also intervening in the domestic foreign 
exchange markets, especially at times 
when undue speculation and large capital 
outflows tended to cause excessive 
market volatility. The government and the 
Central Bank took a series of measures 
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such as increasing tariffs to curb non-essential imports, imposing margin requirements, 
curbing selected types of lending by tightening loan to-value ratios and limiting the 
vehicle imports using concessionary permits by suspending the issue of letters of credit 
(LCs) for the same. In late 2018, and in early 2019, as the global financial markets 
showed positive signs and as a result of the above measures the pressures on the 
exchange rate subsided.
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At the beginning of the first quarter of 2019, the rupee appreciated against major 
currencies, correcting to a certain extent the exchange rate overshooting observed 
during 2018. Also, during the first quarter of 2019, a boost to improve investment 
sentiments came from the resumption of discussions with the International Monetary 
Fund (IMF) and reaching a staff level agreement on the programme under the Extended 
Fund Facility (EFF) arrangement.

Inflation

Headline and core inflation remained within low single digit levels throughout the year in 
spite of the sharp depreciation of the rupee and the introduction of the pricing formula 
for domestic petroleum price adjustments. Proactive monetary policy measures helped 
to improve domestic supply conditions and subdue aggregate demand conditions 
thereby contributing to keep inflation within control. 
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Inflation - Consumer Price Indices
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Headline inflation remained largely in line with food prices, which mostly showed a 
decline during 2018 due to favourable weather conditions. The Central Bank expects 
inflation to remain well within mid-single-digit levels in the medium term, particularly 
under the flexible inflation targeting (FIT) regime being implemented at present. 

Sri Lanka Prosperity Index 

The Sri Lanka Prosperity Index (SLPI) is a composite indicator compiled by the Statistics 
Department of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka to measure the level of prosperity of the 
country. The SLPI comprises of three sub-indices, Economy and Business Climate, 
Wellbeing of the People and Socio-Economic Infrastructure.
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Economy and Business Climate sub-
index takes into account per capita GDP 
employment levels and informal wage 
levels, inflation, and density of industry 
and banking among other factors. 

The Socio-Economic Infrastructure 
sub-index takes into account a number 
of key drivers including improvements 
to the road network,  extensions to the 
expressways, construction of bridges and 
flyover projects, availability of electricity 
facilities and improvements in pipe borne 
water quality.

‘Well-being of the People’ takes into 
account the purity of environment and air 
quality, availability of healthcare facilities, 
availability and quality of education, 
wealth of people on aspects including 
vehicle ownership and access to super 
markets, and the engagement of people 
in entertainment activities.

The positive growth trend in the SLPI 
bodes well for consumer spending. 

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

Management Discussion and Analysis | 



ABANS PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

81

Consumer spending

The demand for consumer goods in an 
economy is affected by a number of 
factors including levels of employment 
and wages, prices levels and inflation, 
interest rates and consumer confidence.

Rising wages and employment means 
consumers have more income to spend 
as they wish--on discretionary items. 
Falling or stagnant wage rates means that 
the demand for optional consumer goods 
is likely to fall. 

The year 2018 saw a marginal increase in 
the unemployment rate while the labour 
force participation rate declined slightly. 

All trends, including growth in GDP per 
capita, Sri Lanka Prosperity index and 
rising wages overall indicate that retailers 
in the Abans’ niche can expect growth in 
sales of the goods they market. 

There is also a trend towards energy 
consumption and cost savings among 
consumers. From Abans' point 
of view, this means offering more 
energy conserving product choices to 
consumers, to enable them enjoy their 
increased income levels. But at a national 
level, this means helping reduce overall 
energy consumption with more energy 
efficient, and water saving appliances. 

Interest rates

Interest rates also impact consumer 
spending substantially. Many higher-
end consumer goods, such as air 
conditioners, washing machines and 
televisions, are often purchased by 
consumers on credit. Higher interest rates 
make these purchases substantially more 
expensive for those consumers. As such, 
high interest rates can act as a deterrent 
to those spending decisions on big ticket 
items. 
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Higher interest rates also generally mean tighter credit as well, and is very much true for 
the Sri Lankan context. Active measures by the government to limit imports by enforcing 
tariffs on certain imports makes these items more expensive. And it becomes more 
difficult for consumers to obtain the financing for big-ticket purchases. It is natural that 
consumers postpone purchasing of luxury items until more favorable credit terms and 
tariffs become available.

Consumer confidence

Consumer confidence is also an important factor that affects the demand for consumer 
goods. Consumers are more likely to purchase more consumer goods when they are 
confident about the overall economic conditions and about their personal financial 
futures. High levels of consumer confidence can affect consumers’ inclination to make 
major purchases and to use credit facilities to make those purchases.

In general, the demand for consumer goods rise as an economy flourishes and grows. 
In Sri Lanka, and elsewhere, when the economy shows good overall growth and 
continuing prospects, this is usually accompanied by matching growth in the demand 
for goods and services within that economy. We are cautiously optimistic that, despite 
headwinds from the global economy, the local economy continues to grow, enhancing 
our business prospects. 

SRI LANKA RETAIL SECTOR

The Sri Lankan Wholesale and Retail sector represents approximately 12 per cent of 
the total services sector gross GDP at market prices. The sector contribution to Service 
sector GDP has remained consistent from 2014 through 2018, at 12 per cent. In rupee 
terms, the retail and wholesale sector is on a growth path.
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Challenging market conditions

The year 2018 was a difficult year for the Sri Lankan wholesale and retail sectors. 

Imports of home appliances, which accounted for USD 258.2 Mn in 2017 dropped to 
USD 232.2 Mn in 2018, a 10.1 per cent decline in value. This was partially attributed to 
the policy measures taken by the Central Bank to discourage non-essential consumer 
goods imports such as refrigerators, washing machines, mobile phones among others. 
A 100 per cent margin deposit requirement was imposed against Letters of Credit for 
some non-essential consumer goods imports, with effect from October 2018. These 
margin requirements against LCs for the importation of non-essential consumer goods 
were withdrawn on 07 March 2019.

Overall tight credit conditions also had an impact on consumer purchases. 

Long-term retail sector outlook

Analysts predict strong long-term prospects

By 2017, AT Kearney estimated that the total national retails sales in Sri Lanka was USD 
30Bn. In 2017 Sri Lanka ranked No. 12 in the AT Kearney's Global Retail Development 
Index, which ranks the top 30 developing countries for retail investment and identify 
markets that are not just attractive at time of ranking, but that offer future potential.  In 
doing so, Sri Lanka is retaining the spot it achieved in the 2016 ranking.

Retail sector analysts also say that "long-term sector forecasts are strong..." They are 
optimistic that "retail sales are expected to grow by 6% a year through to 2019".

The growth for 2019, however, is likely to be dampened by the consequences of April 
2019 bomb blasts, which resulted in a drop in tourism and disruptions to daily shopping 
patterns of locals, lasting for more than a few weeks. 

A host of positive trends

Despite challenging conditions in the moment, there are many positive trends pointing 
towards a bright spot for Sri Lankan retail in the near future.  

New retail space becoming available

The local retail sector is set for rapid development, with the addition of new malls and 
the increasing presence of large numbers of global brands. 

By end of 2018, Sri Lanka had ten malls, including two recent openings. At least two 
more major malls are in the pipeline for completion through 2020. The four new malls, 
together more than double the net retail floor area in Colombo.

This is a plus, as major retail brands 
interested in entering the Sri Lankan 
market can now find the minimum 20,000 
square feet they seek before market 
entry. The new malls fill in the vacuum 
for modern, convenient, well-designed 
malls that were holding back retail market 
growth. Consequently, there will be an 
influx of more major brands into Sri Lanka 
in the years to come.

Tourism arrivals

According to Sri Lanka Tourism, there 
were 2,116,407 tourist arrivals in 2017 
and 2,333,796 arrivals in 2018. This is a 
YoY arrival growth exceeding 10 per cent. 
Tourism arrivals have been on an overall 
growth trend over the past decade. 

However, tourist arrivals up to end of April 
2019 totalled 907,575 arrivals. While the 
months of January, February and March 
2019 showed YoY increases of 2.2, 7.0 
and 4.7 per cent respectively, the arrivals 
for April 2019 were down by 7.5 per cent. 

With better security, more public 
confidence and life returning to 
normal over time, the tourism industry 
is expected to pick up in numbers 
recovering from the April Easter Sunday 
disruptions.   

Sri Lanka – an upper middle-income 
country

Gross national income or GNI represents 
the sum of a country's gross domestic 
product (GDP) plus net income (positive 
or negative) from abroad. GNI per 
capita is the dollar value of a country's 
final income in a year, divided by its 
population. It reflects the average income 
of a country's citizens.

From 1 July 2018, the World Bank 

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT
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classifies lower middle-income economies 
are those with a GNI per capita between 
USD 996 and USD 3,895. Upper middle-
income economies are those between 
USD 3,896 and USD 12,055. As such, 
with a GNI per capita of USD 3991 in 
2018 (USD 3996 in 2017), Sri Lanka is 
now an upper middle-income economy. 

Rising incomes generally lead to a higher 
focus on discretionary consumption.

Growing incomes also come with the 
consciousness for more responsible 
consumption. We have observed 
a growing trend towards cautious 
energy consumption and cost savings 
among consumers. From Abans' 
point of view, this means offering more 
energy conserving product choices 
to consumers, helping reduce overall 
energy consumption and to enable them 
optimise the benefits of their increased 
income levels.

Growing internet and mobile phone penetration levels

Sri Lanka’s internet and mobile phone penetration are high and on a steady growth 
trend. 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Telecommunications 

   Services

Fixed Access 

   Services  (No.)

2,709,848 2,601,196 2,550,432 2,603,178 2,484,616 

Wireline Telephones  

   in Service

1,123,126 1,128,291 1,166,348 1,198,483 1,215,967 

Wireless Local Loop 

   Telephones

1,586,722 1,472,905 1,384,084 1,404,695 1,268,649 

Cellular Phones (No. 

   of Subscribers)

22,123,000 24,384,544 26,227,631 28,199,083 32,528,104 

Telephone 

   penetration

119.56 128.71 135.73 143.64 161.57 

Internet (No of 

   Subscribers)

3,396,295 4,090,920 4,920,554 5,904,260 7,263,161 

 
The number of mobile telephone connections grew by 15.4 per cent to a total of 32.5 
million connections in 2018. Total internet connections grew by 23 per cent in 2018 
while fixed internet connections grew by 25.2 per cent to 1,530,099. Mobile internet 
connections grew by 22.4 per cent to 5,733,062 connections.

As a result, the total telephone penetration connections per 100 persons in Sri Lanka 
rose to 161.6. Fixed telephone penetration and mobile telephone penetration were at 
11.5 and 150.1, respectively. 

Internet penetration connections per 100 persons stood at 33.5 by end 2018, growing 
from 27.5 at end of 2017.

With the rising use of mobile telephony and lower costs of internet access, we can 
expect a rising demand for smart phones in the local market. With a wide range of 
phones, including those targeting cost-conscious youth markets, Abans is poised to 
take this opportunity head on with increased presence in online retailing. 

Looking to the future

A host of positive trends—including Sri Lanka achieving the upper middle-income 
country status, Sri Lanka Prosperity Index and rising wages, increasing levels of 
mobile and internet use, among others—indicate that Sri Lanka remains a bright 
spot for retailers, offering current and future growth prospects. 
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TOWARDS THE SUSTAINABILITY

ABANS AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

As Abans celebrated the Golden Anniversary in 2018, we looked into how we could 
improve our contribution to society. It was agreed that we stood in a strong position, 
financially, reputationally and in our competitive context to move towards a more 
sustainable corporate existence. 

It did not just sound attractive in theory, but made perfect business sense to us as 
well. To begin with, our enlightened stakeholders including shareholders, customers, 
suppliers and business partners, the government and the society expects it. Some of 
our customers and associated brands are strongly embracing sustainable practices. 
Our growing segments of young, socially and environmentally conscious consumers 
all but demand it. In this context, embracing environmental and social protections 
and other sustainability initiatives puts us on a stronger and more sustainable path to 
competitiveness and business success.   

This is why, with this years' Annual Report we decided to embrace the Global Reporting 
Initiative's standards.

We are striving to combine our 6 Capitals reporting with some of the sustainability goals 
that we have been working on over the past decade or more. 

That is not to say sustainability goals are new to Abans. For decades, as a corporate 
citizen we have been dealing with poverty, education, training and community 
facing corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives. We have also been pioneers 
in introducing a range of green, consumer products to Sri Lankan consumers 
and encouraging innovations and marketing innovative and resource saving and 
environmentally friendly products created by our brand partners worldwide. 

The four sustainable goals we focus on:

Decent work and economic growth 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOAL 8

Promote sustained, inclusive and 
sustainable economic growth, full and 
productive employment and decent work 
for all

Abans has showrooms in all districts 
of Sri Lanka. We have created 
employment opportunities in all these 
area by encouraging our showrooms to 
fill vacancies by hiring people from the 
same area. 

Abans considers industry standards and 
offer competitive packages for all grades 
of employees.

Responsible consumption and 
production

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT  
GOAL 12

Ensure sustainable consumption and 
production patterns

Abans is committed to promote 
sustainable consumption and every year 
introduces and promotes a number of 
eco friendly products. 

During the last financial year alone, the 
Company has sold many eco friendly, 
energy saving items with inverter 
technology including over 23,000 R410 & 
R32 air conditioners, over 67,000 R600 
gas and inverter linear refrigerators, and 
nearly 17,000 water saving washing 
machines. Company also sold over 1,300 
eco friendly R600 freezers and bottle 
coolers.
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More information on how Abans encourages sustainable consumption is given under the 
Natural Capital section of this report. 

Quality Education 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOAL 4

Ensure inclusive and equitable quality education and promote lifelong learning 
opportunities for all

Abans worked jointly with Sri Lanka’s Ministry of Education on a number of projects to 
enhance learning opportunities for rural children.

Project Small Description Region Beneficiaries 

86 Smart 
Classes

The 86 smart classrooms are 
equipped with 3,800 laptops, 
smart boards, charging stations, 
wireless access points, document 
scanners and requisite software to 
function as fully fledged math labs.  

 All districts in 
Sri Lanka 

Approximately 
10,000 
students and 
their teachers

417 smart 
boards 

 Smart boards were given  to 150 
schools 

 All Districts in 
Sri Lanka 

 150,000 
students and 
their teachers 

Laptops to 
820 teachers 

Laptops were given to 820 
teachers in various libraries 
thought out the country.   

 All Districts in 
Sri Lanka

Students who 
have access to 
the libraries and 
learn under the 
820 teachers

Life on Land - CSR Initiatives

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT  
GOAL 15

Protect, restore and promote sustainable use of terrestrial ecosystems, sustainably 
manage forests, combat desertification, and halt and reverse land degradation and halt 
biodiversity loss

Beginning with the financial year under review, Abans embarked on a multimillion rupee, 
multi year project for preservation of bio diversity. 

More details about the project are given under the Natural Capital section of this report. 
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FINANCIAL 
CAPITAL

         Group            Company

For the year ended 31st March 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18

Direct Economic Value Generated

Revenue  35,260,655,869  40,215,826,231  33,291,479,651  37,527,175,974 

Finance Income  27,947,369  59,320,957  28,520,194  58,050,637 

Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment  9,839,766  52,433,348  9,839,766  45,638,081 

 35,298,443,004  40,327,580,536  33,329,839,611  37,630,864,692 

Economic Value Distributed

Operating costs  31,896,151,524  37,245,896,998  30,380,263,468  35,265,639,649 

Employee Wages & Benefits  1,637,595,131  1,682,840,908  1,314,430,328  1,190,631,471 

Payments to providers of Equity Capital  350,037,000  6,699,539  350,037,000  -   

Payments to providers of Debt Capital  1,409,390,728  1,494,501,444  1,409,390,728  1,516,526,358 

Payments to government  300,052,775  322,669,683  190,535,415  189,222,462 

Community investments  10,440,323  10,436,413  10,430,323  10,436,413 

 35,603,667,482  40,763,044,985  33,655,087,262  38,172,456,353 

Economic Value Retained  (305,224,478)  (435,464,449)  (325,247,651)  (541,591,661)
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Financial Highlights
The following discussion and analysis should be read in concurrence with the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and the Company for the year ended 
31st March 2019. In this Report, ‘Group’ refers to Abans PLC and its subsidiary 
companies and ‘Company’ refers to Abans PLC.

Revenue

Along with the adverse macro-economic conditions and competitive environment 
prevailed during the period, Abans Group revenue saw a decline of 12.3% in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18. Group Revenue ended at Rs.35.3Bn compared to Rs.40.2Bn 
last year where the YoY decline stemmed from the Trading segment. Representing this 
segment, Abans PLC (Company) reported a revenue of Rs.33.3Bn; a YoY decline of 
11.3%. However, revenue from financial services segment depicted a growth of 3.5% 
compared to last year.

Segmental Revenue Contribution
Abans Group

2018/19 2017/18

94% 95%

6% 5%
Consumer Durables
Financial Services

Channel Growth

Despite the market conditions prevailed 
during the year under review, Elite channel 
showrooms which are located mostly 
in urban areas saw an increase of 7% 
compared to last year. However, retail 
showrooms depicted a decline of 21%. 
In addition, wholesale/ dealer & direct 
channels also recorded an overall decline 
of 3% compared to last year. However, 
as a result of Abans’s strategic focus 
on online retailing, our online channel 
saw a significant YoY growth of 29%.  
Abans’ Strategy on each channel and the 
improvements done during the year will 
be explained in the section “Manufactured 
Capital” (Pg.90) in this report.

Channel

Year on year  

Increase/  

decrease in  

Revenue (%)

Elite Showrooms 7%

Retail Showrooms -21%

Wholesale and 

Direct

-3%

Online Channel 29%

Operating Profit

Along with the drop in revenue, group 
gross profit declined by Rs.292Mn 
compared to last year. However, the 
group gross profit margin for 2018/19 
improved to 30.1% from 27.1% last year 
due to higher GP margins maintained 
on product lines like TVs, Refrigerators, 
ACs, Washing Machines, Mobile phones 
etc. in Abans PLC which represents our 
Trade segment. Group Administration 
expenses for the period increased by 
4.6% compared to last year due to the 
challenging economic and environmental 
conditions prevailed during the period 
whereas group selling & distribution 
expenses declined by 15.6% compared 
to last year due to the decline in sales 
revenue and the cost saving strategies 
adopted during the financial year. 

Group reported an operating profit of 
Rs.2.7Bn, the highest recorded for 
the last five financial years driven by 
the reduction of selling & distribution 
expenses along with the improved GP 
margin during the period. Abans PLC 
(Company) recorded an operating profit 
of Rs. 2.37Bn contributing 89% to the 
group operating profit for 2018/19. 
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Net Finance Cost

Net Finance cost of the Group and The 
Company (Abans PLC) decreased by 
8.5% and 8.2% respectively compared to 
Last year despite the adverse macro-
economic conditions prevailed during 
the period. This saving mainly stemmed 
from the reduction in Group borrowings 
compared to last year attributable to the 
strategic control carried out on managing 
Working Capital throughout the Group.
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Tax

Income tax expense for the group and 
company was Rs.212Mn & Rs.105.6Mn 
respectively. Net tax expense include 
Income tax and Deferred Tax. The 
effective tax rate of the group for 
2018/2019 was 18.7% compared to 
31.6% last year.
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Net Profit after Income Tax & VAT

Improvement in Operating profit and 
further reduction in finance cost helped 
Abans Group to report a Net profit 
before Income Tax & VAT of Rs.1.2Bn 
for 2018/19 compared to Rs.554Mn last 
year. This 119% YoY Growth in Profit 
before tax aided the Group to report a 
Profit after tax of Rs.905Mn for 2018/19 
(Rs.175Mn in 2017/18).

Similarly, Abans PLC (Company) reported 
a Profit before tax of Rs.987Mn and a 
Profit after tax of Rs.874Mn for 2018/19 
(PBT 2017/18- Rs.469Mn & PAT 
2017/18- Rs.422Mn).
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Financial Position

Assets

Assets of the group decreased by 6.5% 
during 2018/2019 to end at Rs.33.3Bn 
from Rs.35.6Bn at the beginning of the 
year. This was mainly supported by the 
decrease in Trade Receivables of Abans 
PLC attributable to the decline in Sales 
during the period and reduced Inventory 
levels as a result of a strategic decision 
to avoid related direct and indirect costs 
incurred during the year. 
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Liabilities

Non-current liabilities of the group 
decreased by 25.4% to end at Rs.4.3Bn 
mainly due to maturity of a Debenture 
during the year under review. Further as 
a result of decrease in trade payables 
attributable to decline in imports during 
the year, Current liabilities of the group 
decreased by 6.4% to end at Rs.20.1Bn 
from Rs.21.5Bn at the beginning of 
the year. Accordingly, overall liabilities 
reduced by 10% as a result of reduced 
borrowings of the group. This was mainly 
due to the strategic controls established 
on working capital management & cost 
saving initiatives carried out during the 
year.
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Ratios

Liquidity: Abans Group liquidity ratio 
stood at 1.23x at the end of the year 
under review compared to 1.31x at the 
beginning of the year. This was mainly 
due to the decrease in inventory levels 
and trade receivables which overweighed 
the decrease of trade and other payables.

Profitability: Despite the dip in revenue, 
with the help of strategic measures 
undertaken such as cost saving 
initiatives, working capital management 
etc., Both the Group and Company 
(Abans PLC) were able to improve their 
profitability against last year by 416% and 
107% respectively. Accordingly, Abans 
group ended 2018/19 with an impressive 
net profit after tax of Rs.905Mn against 
Rs.175Mn last year where Abans PLC 
(Company) recorded a net profit of 
Rs.874Mn against Rs.422Mn last year. 

Leverage: The gearing ratio of the 
group improved to 59% during the year 
under review against 61% as at the 
beginning of the year. This improvement 
occurred mainly due to decrease in group 
borrowings upon maturity of Debentures 
in Abans PLC during the year.  
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MANUFACTURED 
CAPITAL

The Manufactured Capital of Abans 
comprises our physical assets and 
IT infrastructure. 

We are able to offer our valued 
customers island-wide access to 
our products and services because 
of the investments we have 
made in our extensive network of 
showrooms.

Today, our customers from across 
the nation have easy and convenient 
access through our extensive 
network of 408 showrooms. 

Staff

Shared Values

Structure

Strategy Systems

Style
Skils

s e a r c h

- COMPANY

Management Discussion and Analysis | 



ABANS PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

91

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Investment in Showrooms
Rs. (Mn)

2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Value creation activities

• Digital transformation of business 
processes to improve speed and 
quality of customer service

• Growing our non-traditional sales 
channels, in particular the online 
e-commerce site of BuyAbans.com

• Enhanced information security across 
the  Abans network

• Automated field tasks enhancing 
mobility

• Sales Force Automation

• Showroom Field Task Automation 

• Service Field Task Automation

• Continuing investment in real estate 
infrastructure development 

 Colombo City Centre -The first mixed 
development project of its kind in 
Sri Lanka, with a Mall, Hotel and 
Apartments

OUR FOCUS

 As always, our goal is to leverage 
our manufactured capital towards 

enhancing sustainable and long-term 
value creation for our stakeholders. 

Our focus is on:

• Expanding our retail and service 
footprint;

• Expanding our distribution channel 
reach online and offline;

• Effectively penetrating regional 
markets island-wide;

• Expanding new avenues of value 
creation through real estate 
infrastructure investments and;  

• Leveraging digital transformation 
efforts across Abans in order to 
enhance internal productivity and 
to improve speed and quality of 
customer experience at all points of 
interaction.

EXPANDING OUR RETAIL FOOTPRINT
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EXPANDING OUR RETAIL 
FOOTPRINT

The Abans retail network is made up for 408 

retail outlets, including 24 Elite showrooms, 

01 each of Abans Homes In Style and Hugo 

Boss, 06 Sketchers showrooms, 28 Apple I 

Store, 03 Titan showrooms and 03 The face 

shop outlets. 

During the year under review, Abans 

continued expand its retail footprint by 

opening up 2 new Elite branches in Moratuwa 

and Colombo City Centre.

Enhancing retail channel reach 

We are supporting the revenue growth 
from our retail network by expanding 
the sales capabilities and skill sets, as 
explained in the Human Capital section of 
this report. 

The total revenue from the entire retail 
network was Rs. 23.7 Bn in the year 
under review. The drop of 14 per cent 
from the previous period was due 
to difficult economic conditions that 
prevailed for retailing of home appliances 
and white goods.   

STRENGTHENING OUR NON-
TRADITIONAL CHANNELS

While foot falls still count in Sri Lankan 
retail scene, and we are committed to 
expanding our retail footprint across the 
nations, we are also cognizant of the fact 
that online sales will one day overtake 
traditional offline sales revenues. Although 
it is difficult to predict with certainty when 
this could happen in the Sri Lankan retail 
market for the goods that we deal in, the 
global trends show that it is very much 
likely to happen in the near future, taking 
into the exponential growth in the number 
of mobile users and the technologies that 
empower relatively low cost e-commerce. 

Online Sales from BuyAbans.com

Our online sales site, BuyAbans.com, 
remains one of the fastest growing retail 
sites in Sri Lanka.  BuyAbans recorded a 
revenue growth of 29% in the year under 
review, compared to a of 26 per cent 
recorded in the previous period. 

Established in 2007, BuyAbans is one 
of Sri Lanka’s oldest e-retailers and a 
pioneer in e-commerce. The site provides 
customers access to their favourite 
Abans products and operates through a 
secured payment gateway for safe online 
purchasing. All purchases are delivered 
free of charge within three working days 
anywhere in Sri Lanka. 

During the year under review, BuyAbans 
site was revamped to showcase a more 
user-friendly layout that included a range 
of advanced search filters and detailed 
product descriptions. Now buyers can 
obtain all the information they need 
to make an online purchases, saving 
themselves the time, trouble and expense 
of visiting a regular Abans showroom. 

Web marketing and development 
strategies

Our efforts at extending online sales 
outreach goes way beyond the site 
revamp. During the year, the BuyAbans 
team formulated a systematic web 
marketing and development strategy 
accompanied by structured marketing 
and promotional campaigns to channel 
more online traffic to the site. 

Promotional activities included flash 
sales, online clearance sales and daily 
deals. The attraction of these deals are 
underscored by the customers faith 

in the Abans brand, that they would 
receive genuine discounts on high-quality 
products backed by unmatched Abans 
service guarantees. 

Supported by our extensive marketing 
drive, BuyAbans website has continued 
to sustain strong growth in revenues 
while expanding the consumer base 
comprising of local and foreign residents. 

The website has recorded over 12 
million unique page views, a 48 per cent 
increase over the previous financial year. 
The number of new visitors increased by  
55%. in total.

Expanded the product range 
available online

This year also BuyAbans expanding the 
range of product offerings to include 
The Face Shop, Skechers, and Abans 
Furniture.

We plan to continuously improve our 
e-commerce facilities to further enhance 
consumer convenience while increasing 
non-traditional channel revenues. 

A key means of enhancing our online 
presence and revenues lies in expanding 
Abans' digital presence and our social 
media activities. 

Abans’ digital space

Abans is one of the very few companies 
in Sri Lanka to understand the significant 
role that digital marketing plays in 
fostering positive relationships with 
our local consumer base. Currently, 
digital marketing is an integral part of 
Abans’ marketing and communication 
framework, maintaining an active 
presence on leading platforms such as 
Google, YouTube, Facebook, Instagram 
and LinkedIn, among others. 
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Our digital media presence has allowed Abans to effectively reach the specific market 
segments for different product categories identify the target consumer ‘persona’ online, 
and build customized audiences for our different brands.

We are presently accelerating our digital efforts to reach out to increasing numbers of  
potential customers. Another goal of this outreach is to foster positive engagements that 
would reinforce Abans’ brand identity, enhance familiarity, gain a firm hold of potential 
customer mind space and to enhance consumer loyalty. 

Abans on Instagram

We recognize that there is a heightening popularity of Instagram in Sri Lanka. During 
calendar year 2019 and going forward, we will focus more on developing strategies that 
reach out to the consumer segments that use this specific platform.

Abans Facebook page

Abans Facebook page - facebook.com/abans.lk - has become an increasingly popular 
channel for our customers to engage and interact with us. The page is currently used 
to endorse the entire range of Abans brands, inform customers about special events, 
and to discuss our CSR initiatives through the use of interactive games, gift give always, 
healthy cooking tips, and other exciting features. 

We address all inquiries within 24 hours to ensure customer satisfaction and to 
encourage ongoing engagement.  

In July 2018, the Abans Facebook page 
passed the 500,000 follower benchmark, 
Since then, we have continued to maintain 
the No. 1 position in Sri Lanka’s consumer 
electronics industry based on the number 
of fans. 

During the year, our overall page 
impressions grew by 91 per cent to 
exceed 60 million including organic, viral 
and paid impressions. In total, we have 
reached over 36 million unique users, both 
local and foreign. Over the same period, 
our audience engagement rose by 348 per 
cent, totalling up to exceed 3.5 million. 

At Abans, we put out Facebook page 
metrics to good use as they offer great 
insights into who our fans, customers and 
potential customers are. Approximately 
half (49%) of the Abans Facebook page 
followers are in  the 18 – 24 years age 
group, an indication that our Facebook 
page successfully reaches Sri Lanka’s 
target youth demographic.

EXPANDING NEW AVENUES FOR 
VALUE CREATION

Our investments in the large scale real 
estate and infrastructure project of 
Colombo City Centre Partners (CCC) was 
envisaged as a long term sustainable 
value creation project that would continue 
to produce positive growth and revenues 
on a continuing basis. The project makes 
history as the first mixed development 
project of its kind in Sri Lanka and is well 
on its track to completion. 

CCC project comprises a retail mall of 
international standards, a specialized 
hotel targeting business travellers and 192 
apartments units located near the Beira 
Lake, in the heart of the Colombo city. It is 
a joint venture between Abans Group and 
Next Story Group, formerly, Silver Needle 
Hospitality.  

MANUFACTURED CAPITAL

Management Discussion and Analysis | Management Discussion and Analysis | 



ABANS PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

95

The three distinct assets of CCC—mall, 
hotel and apartments are capable of 
producing varying streams of revenue and 
continuing value to our stakeholders:

• Retail Mall – The retail space holds 
third party tenants, selected through a 
very stringent process, representing an 
optimal retail mix on a licensing basis. 
The Mall commenced its’ commercial 
operations on 19 September 2018. 

• The Hotel – The four star hotel 
catering to busy business travellers 
will be managed by Next Story 
Group under their “NEXT” Brand. The 
NEXT hotel will open for business in 
December 2019.

• The Apartments – The CCC Project 
consists of 192 Apartment Units, 
which are being sold to the buyers. 

Some of the key brands represented at the 
CCC Mall include Apple, LG, Sketchers, 
McDonald's, Titan, The Faceshop, Abans 
Homes In Style, Cargills, Scope Cinema, 
Food Studio, Odel, Mothercare, Mango, 
Fossil, Charles & Keith, Armani Exchange, 
Aldo, Swarovski, DSI Premier, Jack and 
Jones, Body Shop and Certificates/
Grades. Please note that new brands may 
join this line-up and therefore, this is not an 
exhaustive list of brands at the CCC Mall. 

CCC has won many prestigious awards 
including “Best Mixed Used Development 
2018” at Asia Property Awards 2018.

CCC provides a strong pedestal that 
further raises the Abans brand image. 
Despite challenging economic conditions 
and severe competition, we are confident 
that CCC will create continuing value for 
our stakeholders. Strong support from our 
joint venture partners, growing numbers of 

high-end brands together with a growing 
populace of satisfied tenants will help 
make this a reality.  

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION 
ENDEAVOURS

Digital transformation initiatives at Abans 
began a few years back as ambitious 
project to bring all of our operations into 
the digital sphere, keeping with growing 

trends and best practices from around 
the globe. We embraced this initiative 
with the expectation of re-engineering our 
manual processes and transitioning to 
digital platforms. 
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Goals of digital transformation

We looked to digital transformation for 
reaching a wide range of goals including: 

• Reducing transaction times and 
speeding up customer service at 
points of sale and all other interaction 
points through streamlining processes 
and adopting effective technology 
solutions;

• Improving process efficiencies across 
our entire operations, including back 
offices;

• Bringing about operational savings 
by enhancing productivity of our 
workforce;

• Enhancing the workplace for 
employees by reducing redundant, 
routine or repetitive tasks, freeing 
up their time for more productive, 
engaging work;  

• Supporting the Abans green initiatives 
by reducing paper usage and 
eliminating duplications; 

It was an imperative that all of the above 
had to be achieved while improving 
customer privacy and information 
security. 

In the previous year, we began 
conducting process studies to minimise 
human interventions between the 
systems and processes and to integrate 
them with work flows where possible 
using platforms such as Share Point. 
We conducted user awareness sessions 
for the platforms once they had been 
transformed. These sessions continued in 
to the current year. 

Continued rolling out the document 
management system (DMS)

In the year under review we continued 
rolling out the DMS across the Company 
and the Group. 

The new document management and 
imaging system provides cost effective 
and secure storage and retrieval of all 
official documentation. It offers efficient 
means of creating, capturing, storing, 
authorising, delivering and managing key 
business documents. 

The system also supports the Company’s 
green agenda, a vital concern for any 
modern business. 

Cloud introduction continued

Abans has embraced cloud services and 
will continue to do so into the future. 

During the year, we worked on enhancing 
the cloud utilization rates within the 
Company by adding more members 
to the Microsoft cloud space, thereby 
empowering them to serve customers 
more efficiently. 

Information Security

The entire Abans network has been 
assessed for possible security ambiguities 
by TechCERT, an industry leader in 
Sri Lanka providing customized, fully 
integrated information security services 
across the enterprise IT infrastructure. 
Similar assessment was performed on 
selected web applications which have 
direct customer engagement. During the 
year we also restructured our security 
platforms (firewalls), replacing old 
hardware with more secure, efficient, 
equipment with a high level of quality 
assurance. 

These measures give our customers the 
confidence they need to use our with 
trust, knowing their data is secured within 
the Abans IT infrastructure.

Enhancing mobility

Enhancing mobility and enabling 
automation of field tasks was another 
essential component in our digital 
transformation plans for the year. We 
deployed mobile apps to improve 
efficiency, enhance visibility and customer 
experience. These are fully integrated 
with our core supply chain and finance 
systems and are designed to minimizes 
manual interventions to enable smooth 
operation.  

Key applications which were implemented 
successfully during the year include 

 • Sales Force Automation

 • Showroom Field Task Automation

 • Service Field Task Automation

OUR COMMITMENT

As always Abans is committed to 
continue developing and investing in 
our manufactured capital. We will do 
so in order to achieve the strategic 
objectives of sharpening our competitive 
edge by extending our retail footprint 
across the nation online and offline, 
streamlining processes and digital 
transformation for internal productivity 
gains and cost savings and to deliver 
speedy, cost effective and better quality 
of services. Our investments in real estate 
development and infrastructure are meant 
to broad base our future revenue streams 
while  strengthening our business as a 
platform for sustainable value creation. 
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HUMAN
CAPITAL

Our employees are a critical asset 
of our business, contributing 
immensely as teams and individuals 
to the success of our business. As 
a team they’ve developed unique 
skill combinations and relationships 
of networks that set us apart as a 
business.

As a diversified business 
conglomerate reaching forever  
greater heights, we are placing 
greater emphasis on strengthening 
our workplace culture and shared 
values going forward. As Abans 
celebrates its Golden Anniversary, 
and looks forward to the future, 
we are committed to employee 
empowerment as a key management 
philosophy.
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OUR VALUES – WHAT WE STAND FOR

We are committed to continuing and strengthening the values that have brought us 
success: an entrepreneurial spirit in all we do, fostering trust with all of our stakeholder, 
including employees, caring for our customers and doing so in a spirit of collaboration 
across the group, and within divisions across the Company.  

Entrepreneurial Spirit
We are always the pioneer.We explore 
and create opportunities that were 
previously non-existent.

Collaboration
We believe in joining hands with
eachother to develop ingenious
solutions.

Trust.
We striev to act in a manner 
that fosters trust with our 
key stakeholders.We ensure
quality and transparency in
everything we do.

Care for Customers
We value our customers.We
aim to provide the ultimate 
customer satisfaction in 
every action we take.

WORKFORCE COMPOSITION AND DIVERSITY

As at the financial year end, our workforce comprised 1,786 employees working in 
contract, permanent and temporary positions. Approximately one third of our employees  
are female. 

  Total         Male     Female

Permanent 1,503  1,247           256 

Temporary 283           193             90 

Total 1,786 1,440 346

Approximately one fifth of our workforce are in non-executive grades while the rest 
belongs to executive grade (65%), middle management (12%) and senior and top 
management grades (2%).

Total Male Female

Executive Grade 1169 947 222

Middle Management Grade 207 177 30

Top and Senior Management Grade 45 37 8

Non-executive Grade 365 279 86

Total 1786 1440 346

A predominantly young workforce

Abans workforce is predominantly young 
with approximately 80 per cent made 
up of those below 35 years of age. 
Also, approximately 85 per cent of new 
recruits in the past year were below 
35 years. This means our workforce 
comprises predominantly of millennials 
whose ambitions and expectations are 
significantly different from those of the 
generations of workers that preceded 
them. In order to offer an attractive 
workplace to millennial, we strive to 
understand their needs better and to 
deliver beyond expectations. Currently 
there is no part time employees serving 
Abans PLC. A similar effort is aimed at 
workers who are experienced/matured.. 
This we believe is the way to channelling 
our workforce towards enhanced 
employee engagement, productivity and 
loyalty.  

Category
Employees 

Resigned

Employees 

Recruited

18 to 20 Years 12 2.4% 20 5.8%

20 to 25 Years 142 28.5% 143 41.3%

26 to 30 Years 145 29.1% 97 28%

31 to 35 Years 95 19% 33 9.5%

36 to 40 Years 49 9.8% 25 7.2%

41 to 45 Years 22 4.4% 8 2.3%

46 to 50 Years 10 2% 10 2.9%

51 to 55 Years 11 2.2% 7 2%

56 to 60 Years 9 1.8% 2 0.6%

Above 60 Years 3 0.6% 1 0.3%

Category Employees 

Resigned

Employees 

Recruited

Male 384 63

Female 114 283
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OUR APPROACH 

Our human resource management 
philosophy centers around the three 
pillars/attributes of Building Talent, Driving 
Performance and Creating an Enjoyable 
and Engaging Workspace. We also aim to 
capitalize on human capital synergy across 
the Group, reinforce our shared values and 
continually strive to augment compliance 
to better fulfil our duties as an employer.

Building talent 

Building talent focuses on building long 
term organizational capabilities and 
must necessarily include both talent 
acquisition where we focus on employer 
branding, sourcing, onboarding and talent 
development initiatives where the efforts 
are diverted to training and development, 
career and succession planning and key 
talent management. 

Talent acquisition

Employer branding 

Great employers pay attention to recruiting 
the right talent. That is how we develop a 
robust future leadership, managerial and 
technical expert pipeline. This process 
is also supported by our commitment 
to develop capabilities within our 
organization. 

We are continuously striving to enhance 
our brand as a preferred employer, look 
for opportunities to engage prospective 
employees could it be during our sourcing 
initiatives or on our social media platforms. 

We are building partnerships with 
professional bodies and other 
organizations to enhance our employer 
brand and to strengthen our network. This 
helps to augment the awareness on Abans 
Employee Value Proposition amongst the 
prospective job seekers.  

Revamped onboarding 

In order to improve our new recruit 
retention rates, we are working on 
revamping our onboarding process for 
new employees. We know that successful 
onboarding is a critical step for long term 
retention.

Talent development initiatives

Talent development efforts are focusing on 
four pillars for success:

• Developing capabilities in-house

• Effective management of key talent

• Career planning 

• Succession planning 

As a diversified conglomerate we are 
committed to building talent internally; 
resorting to external recruitment only 
in the event we cannot find requisite 
capabilities within the Company and the 
Abans Group. As such our talent building 
efforts must essentially begin, not just with 
current employees, but also with the initial 
screening processes of new recruits. 

Effective management of key talent

Key talent development and building 
internal competencies is a key focus in 
our talent building efforts. Our training and 
development efforts are designed to help 
cultivate and develop critical expertise 
in-house. 

We are in the process of identifying 
our key talent and put them on to a 
development plan enabling them to 
meet the future capability demands of 
the business. We are equally focused on 
engagement, retention and rewarding of 
key talent at Abans.  

Succession planning

We recognize that succession planning is 
important at all levels within the Company, 
not just at the top. As such we are in the 
process of identifying critical positions 
within the Company and creating an 
effective succession plan for each of 
these key positions of the company. Our 
Training and career development efforts 
are designed and conducted with the goal 
of fulfilling these needs.  

Training and career development 

Training and career development efforts 
are essentially undertaken within the 
context of the talent development and 
succession planning framework of 
the Company and as an inherent part 
of the newly introduced Performance 
Management System. 

During the year training programmes and 
workshops covering induction, retail and 
selling, technical and behavioural aspects 
were organized adding up to 219,409 
training hours. In total, 4937 employees 
and showroom staff participated in the 
training sessions which ranged from two 
hours to two days, depending on the 
content.  
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HUMAN CAPITAL

Training Programme Number 

Trained

Total Man 

Hours

Total  

Investment

Individual 

Investment

Product Knowledge and Technical Skills 4,493 217,611 6,724,360 1,496.63

Soft Skills Development 444 1,798 1,053,409 2,372.54

Total 4,937 219,409 7,777,769 2,082.51

Retail capability development programme 
has been revamped in the past year. From 
November 2018, we have shifted our retail 
training activities in to the field as much as 
possible enabling us to share knowledge 
and feedback to the shop staff on the 
shop floor itself. Since launch, we have 
also put in place systems that check the 
progress of the on-site training activities. 

Driving performance 

Drive for performance is a key factor. 
Abans must focus on as a company in 
retail sales operating in an environment 
of fierce competition. We are intent on 
finding ways to drive performance, and 
as part of the restructuring process we 
have introduced a new Performance 
Management System, PERF LEAD. It is an 
online performance management tool that 
would help drive performance by aligning 
business goals and expected behaviours 
to employees.  

The new process is expected to foster 
a high-performance culture within the 
Company and Group and drive a shared 
vision and values across the entire 
organization. 

We recognize the importance of aligning 
employees to its corporate goals and 
values to ensure sustainability and growth. 

Creating an engaging, enjoyable 
workspace

Our focus has increased on offering an 
unmatchable employee value proposition 
for both current employees and new 
recruits. Our engagement initiatives focus 
on offering enjoyable work experience 
whilst driving teams towards a high 
performing culture, rewarding career 
prospects and enhancing workplace 
engagement. Abans has sustained 
harmony among employees in all possible 
ways and the Group does not have any 
collective bargaining agreements 

Abans has established a wide band of 
health and safety measures including 
hygiene and accident-safety practices 
to ensure the highest standards of 
occupational safety and health. As a result, 
no workforce injuries with significance 
were reported during the period. We treat 
our employees with great respect and care 
and consider them as the pillar of success 
of the Group

Company-wide, we are putting in place 
measures that improve engagement 
among employees of the different 
segments, up and down the organization 
structure. 
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Accordingly, right throughout the year 
we have line-up unique engagement 
initiatives to cater to diverse work 
segments could it be millennials, 
professionals, familied employees or 
frontliners.

TECHNOLOGY AS A FORCE FOR 
EMPOWERMENT 

In keeping with automation and 
technology trends across the globe, we 
believe that we can empower our human 
talent when they are equipped with the 
best of technology, enabling them deliver 
superior results and performance. We 
look upon technology as an enabler, 
rather than a replacement of human 
talent. 

ENSURING HUMAN RESOURCE 
COMPLIANCE

Abans has always embraced positive 
and responsible corporate citizenship. 
We have recognized that as we grow, 
we need to expand our efforts on this 
front. Great human resource policies 
go nowhere if they are not properly 
implemented. In order to ensure that our 
human resource policies are properly and 
that Abans continues to be in compliance 
with all statutory regulations, we have 
given prominence in the HR structure for 
the Industrial Relations and Compliance.

Also we encourage strict elimination of all 
forms of compulsory labour, abolishment 
of child labour, and elimination of sexual 
harassment in the work place. There were 
no incidents of child labour or forced 
labour in the organization or with its 
suppliers during the year.

 

The Industrial Relations and Compliance 
pillar will be responsible for ensuring 
compliance across the group both 
internal and external alignment. 

All orientation and onboarding training 
segments will be designed and delivered 
to ensure all new recruits are aware of our 
policies, as well as the relevant rules and 
regulations from day one. 

HUMAN RESOURCE STRUCTURE

Efficient and effective human resource 
structures and systems are a critical 
success factor for an organization the 
size of Abans with a diverse workforce 
counting nearly 2,000 spread across 
the country, and a group employment 
exceeding 15,000 people. We recognize 
the human resource function as a 
key partner in our business success.  
Accordingly, we have created a dedicated 
support function and a single point of 
contact for attending to all matters by 
adopting the HR Business Partners 
Model.
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"I joined Abans PLC in 2002 as a 
General Manager with two decades 
of experience in an MNC in the 
Consumer Durable industry. I played 
a pivotal role in the Company 
strategy of expanding its showroom 
network from 30 to over 500 show 
rooms over the last 17 years which 
enhanced the overall revenue and 
profitability.  

I have had the privilege of witnessing 
the transformation of Abans from 
a family company to the diverse 
local large corporate it is today. 
What remains unchanged is the 
congenial relationships it has with all 
its employee’s which is an integral 
part of its culture. Through my tenure 
I have seen the numerous career 
opportunities offered to employee’s 
across business units and the 
opportunity to grow and develop. 
This is a testament to how Abans 
invests and nurtures their talent 
within. The past fifty years has been 
epic, and I am proud to have been a 
part of this journey and look forward 
to the opportunities and challenges 
ahead.”

Mr Channa Pathirana 
Deputy Director  

Retail Channel

CASE IN
 PO

IN
T

"Having joined Abans as an 
Accountant I steadily climbed the 
ladder in my career to the level 
of Financial Controller on 1st 
September 2000 a position which 
I held until October 2012. In my 
career of two decades I worked 
in many subsidiaries of the Abans 
Group which enhanced my exposure 
levels. The Abans Management 
was always very supportive in my 
career development and ensured 
that I gain the necessary professional 
development through seminars and 
access to professional forums. I 
observed that the discipline levels 
were maintained at all times and the 
hard working members of the team 
were recognized and rewarded.”

Mr. Sothivadivel
Former Financial Controller Abans PLC

CASE IN
 PO

IN
T

"At the invitation of Mrs Aban 
Pestonjee I joined the Company way 
back in 1974 as a technician and 
the sole employee. I was responsible 
for reconditioning all electrical 
appliances, which were purchased 
from embassy auction sales and 
foreign nationals leaving the country.

I was appointed to Abans Electrical 
as a Director of the Company 
from the day it was incorporated. 
Thereafter I was appointed as 
a Director of Abans PLC. I have 
received foreign training from Belling 
and Company-England, LG - Korea 
and Mitsubishi -Thailand. I have 
seen Abans grow from strength to 
strength. I have been fortunate to 
have acquired vast knowledge from 
my own experiences as well as been 
trained by our foreign principles. 
I have enjoyed working with my 
colleagues, and providing a good 
after sales service, to our valued 
customers, by interacting with both 
internal and external customers for 
the past 4 decades.”

Mr. Allan Raffel
Former Director Abans Electricals PLC 

CASE IN
 PO

IN
T
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"I joined Abans in 1983 as a Sales 
Executive and was attached to the 
main show room. I was subsequently 
transferred to the Duty-Free Shop 
in Colombo 3 where I gained 
exposure in handling a cross section 
of the clientele comprising locals 
and foreigners.  I steadily rose 
in my career with the necessary 
support of the management. I was 
selected as a pioneering member 
to expand the showroom network 
in Sri Lanka. A turning point in my 
career was when I was promoted as 
the sales Manager in charge of the 
Air-conditioning division. Thereafter 
I was promoted as a Senior DGM 
with a team of nearly 40 reporting 
to me. Throughout my career the 
management of Abans supported 
and encouraged to unleash my true 
potential. With the correct training 
in both local and foreign platforms I 
received the right exposure to grow. 
Abans is an inspiring place to work 
where working is a pleasure. Every 
day we are continuously motivated to 

push towards new challenges."  

Mr Marlon Soysa
Senior Deputy General Manager 

AC Department 

CASE IN
 PO

IN
T

"I joined Abans in 1985 as a Stock 
Clerk. During my career I worked 
with dedication and continued 
my higher studies in supply chain 
management. I got the opportunity to 
work closely with the Directors and 
the senior staff of the Company who 
always made me feel comfortable 
and professionally guided me to 
enhance my knowledge. The Abans 
homely culture makes work enjoyable 
and I consider it to be my second 
home. This has made me into the 
professional I am today.”

Mrs Srimathie Gunasekara
Senior Deputy General Manager 

Inventory Department  

CASE IN
 PO

IN
T
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INTELLECTUAL 
CAPITAL

At Abans, we see our Intellectual 
Capital as what makes us 
unique, setting us apart from our 
competitors and other businesses.

Our Intellectual Capital comprises 
the entirety of our business 
systems, structures, protocols and 
processes including the intangible 
elements of our IT and corporate 
infrastructure; our valued brands, 
brand associations we’ve developed 
over time and other intangible 
assets; the unique skill sets we 
possess, organisational learning and 
knowhow collectively embedded 
within our teams and the leadership 
and management styles we employ; 
all of which are bound together with 
our corporate culture of shared 
values, and driven forward by 
business strategy. 
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ABANS BRAND

BRANDS UNDER THE ABANS 
PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

The value of the Abans brand capital is 
underscored by a range of prestigious 
international and house brands that adds 
value to life in all aspects of living. 

Brand and product diversity

Abans maintains a brand and product 
diversity policy that facilitates a wide 
pricing choice to cater to a broad 
spectrum of customers across a wide 
demographic range. This also helps us 
mitigate supplier risk, market risk and 
product risk. We assure our customers 
value for money by acquiring brands 

of international repute that come with 
a track record of quality, reliability and 
dependability.

The range of product types are carefully 
changed to align with the strategic 
objectives of positioning Abans as the 
leading national retailer for the latest 
technology goods that debut in the 
international markets.

BRANDS

The LG brand of the South Korean 
multinational LG Electronics Inc, part of 
LG Corporation which employs 82,000 
people worldwide. Abans holds exclusive 
distributor and retail rights to the LG 
brand in Sri Lanka. This year too, LG 
remains the  standard bearer in the Abans 
brand and product portfolio, 

LG, originally Lucky Goldstar, is now 
promoted to mean “Life’s Good”. LG 
is a pioneer in innovation committed to 
systematic investments in research and 
development focusing on creating new 
products, services and technologies. 
It expands into new fields of business 
through partnering with some of the 
world’s most successful companies. 

LG currently operates in five key business 
segments as a global top player in 
consumer products TV, audio and video, 
which makes up Home Entertainment; 
mobiles, air conditioning and energy 
solutions; and home appliances and  
which include refrigerators, microwaves, 
water purifiers.

To meet the challenges of rapidly 
changing business environment, LG 
has ventured on to serving enterprise 
customers developing a rich portfolio of 
business-to-business (B2B) solutions--
including energy, air solutions, ID, vehicle 
components, water treatment. LG has 
also developed advanced technologies in 
such areas as software, Internet-of-things 
(IoT)and AI artificial intelligence (AI) leading 
to outstanding achievements.

By connecting these services through 
software and hardware, LG is working 
on producing solutions that deliver value 
to customers by providing total solutions 
that encompass installation, maintenance 
and operation of such solutions. 

Abans has already introduced the 
information display and monitors from the 
enterprise range to the Sri Lankan market 
and plans to introduce other enterprise 
products during the year.

The Company has a strong environmental 
record, constantly improving its products 
and processes with low carbon strategies 
in its operations.

LG and Abans has a strategic partnership 
that continues to deliver synergies year 
after year. LG brand products collectively 
contributes the largest portion to our 
sales revenues.

We take this opportunity to thank 
LG for being our strategic partner in 
development of our business.    
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Apple Inc. is the world’s largest 
information technology company by 
revenue according to Fortune Global 
500 (March 2018) and the world’s 
third-largest mobile phone manufacturer 
after Samsung and Huawei. In August 
2018, Apple became the first public U.S. 
company to be valued at over $1 trillion. 
The company employs 123,000 full-

HP Inc., an American multinational 
information technology company 
headquartered in the United States was 
formed in 2015 to take on the personal 
computer and printer divisions of the 
original Hewlett-Packard Company. It 
develops personal computers (PCs), 
printers and related supplies, including 3D 
printing solutions.

HUGO BOSS from Germany specialises 
in high end apparel manufactured 
with a passion and dedication for the 
highest quality and finest fabrics. It is a 
world renowned brand with a growing 
popularity amongst various age groups 
that successfully satisfies the upper 
parameters of premium to luxury fashion, 
in-turn becoming every man’s desired 
fashion label. The brand encompasses 
a collection of all key fashion areas 
comprising of classic clothing, 

time employees and maintains 504 retail 
stores in 24 countries as of August 2018.

It operates the iTunes Store, the world’s 
largest music retailer. As of January 2018, 
globally, Apple had more than 1.3 billion 
active devices in use. The company 
retains high level of brand loyalty with 
topping the Forbes list of World’s Most 
Valuable Brands in 2018.  

HP is the world’s largest personal 
computer vendor by unit sales employing 
55,000 (2018). HP ranked 58 in the 2018 
Fortune 500 list of the largest United 
States corporations by total revenue.

To sustain long-term relationships with 
customers, HP’s strategy is to sell 
solutions, not just products. To that end, 

leisurewear, eveningwear, functional, 
sportswear and complementing 
accessories.

HUGO BOSS in Sri lanka features two 
prominent brand lines, BOSS and BOSS 
Green. BOSS satisfies the needs for 
business meetings, formal or smart 
casual events. Meticulous workmanship, 
well-tailored silhouettes, superior quality 

We are honoured to be a part of the 
Apple’s supply chain as a distributor and 
retail partner. 

the Company offers “complete solutions” 
for partners and customers through 
integration of HP devices, supplies and 
services.

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

fabrics and precision fit together create 
this sophisticated line of modern classics 
that HUGO BOSS is known for. 

BOSS Green boasts designs for men 
in search of leisurewear combined with 
fashion, lifestyle and a sportive edge. 
This line of fashion comprises lightweight 
active stretch fabrics that features t-shirts, 
shirts, denims and other causal attire 
making a youthful collection primarily on 
golf and sportswear.
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Founded in 1984, is one of the world’s 
leading white goods home appliance 
manufacturers engaging in the research, 
development,

Lenovo is a US$45 billion Fortune Global 
500 company and a global technology 
leader in driving Intelligent Transformation 
through smart devices and infrastructure 
that create the best user experience. 
Lenovo expects to realise its mission 
to become one of the world’s greatest 
personal technology companies through 
smart devices, leading in PCs and 
earning respect for product innovation 
and quality; convergence and its culture, 
as one of the best, most trusted, and 
admired companies to work for and do 
business with.

Lenovo operates in over 160 countries 
and employs a global workforce of 
over 54,000. Lenovo has its corporate 
headquarters in Hong Kong, and has key 
operations centres in Beijing and North 
Carolina, in the US. 

production and sale of a wide variety of 
household appliances (including the white 
goods) and consumer electronic goods 
today. The products of Haier Group are 
now sold in over 100 countries.

Lenovo is dedicated to transforming the 
customers’ experience with technology—
and how it, and they, interact with 
the world. They call this Intelligent 
Transformation and are setting the stage 
for what’s possible with technology 
shaped by Augmented Intelligence, 
capable of enhancing and elevating 
human capability.

Lenovo is trusted by hundreds of millions 
of customers worldwide, selling four 
devices per second according to internal 
data. 

Lenovo operates as three business 
groups: The Intelligent Devices Group 
(IDG) encompasses the PC and Smart 
Devices Business Group (PCSD), 
including PCs, tablets, augmented and 
virtual reality (AR/VR), and smart devices, 
and the Mobile Business Group (MBG) for 
smartphones. The other two are the Data 
Centre Business Group (DCG), which 

includes servers, storage, networking, 
software and services, and the Lenovo 
Capital and Incubator Group (LCIG) which 
drives innovation through investments in 
start-ups.

Lenovo manufactures one of the world’s 
widest portfolio of connected products, 
including smart phones (Motorola), 
tablets, PCs (ThinkPad, Yoga, Lenovo 
Legion) and workstations as well as 
AR/VR devices and smart home/office 
solutions. Lenovo’s data centre solutions 
(ThinkSystem, ThinkAgile) are creating the 
capacity and computing power for the 
connections that are changing business 
and society.

Lenovo attributes its success to a number 
of factors including the broadest range 
of connected devices, from smartphones 
to the data centre; and unmatched 
efficiency, driven by scale and end-to-end 
control of the supply chain.

The Haier and Abans relationship started 
over a decade ago and presently Abans 
is the exclusive agent for Haier products 
including Smart Classroom Solutions.
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Oppo is a Chinese consumer electronics 
and mobile communications company 
known for its smart phones, Blu-ray 
players and other electronic devices.

Over the past decade, Oppo has been 
focusing on manufacturing camera 

The latest brand of smart phones to 
joining the Abans portfolio, we are happy 
to partner with Vivo offering yet another 
range of options in the fast-growing Sri 
Lankan mobile market. 

Vivo is a Chinese technology company 
owned by BBK Electronics that designs 
and manufactures smart phones, smart 
phone accessories, software, and online 
services, which are predominantly sold 
in India.

The Face Shop is a South Korea-based 
skincare and cosmetics manufacturer, 
retailer and franchise business. It is a 
subsidiary of LG Household & Health 
Care of LG Corporation. It has been 
recognised as one of the fastest growing 
skin care and cosmetic brands in the 
Asian region for its range of products 
including body, bath, skin care and make-
up for both women and men.

phones, while innovating mobile 
photography technology breakthroughs. 
OPPO was the first brand to launch 
smart phones with 5MP and 16MP 
front cameras. OPPO was also the first 
brand to introduce the motorized rotating 
camera, the Ultra HD feature and the 

Vivo has six global research and 
development centres driving its 
innovation, including one in San Diego, 
in the United States. Vivo operates 
through four global manufacturing bases, 
two in China, and one each in India and 
Indonesia. 

Currently Vivo has over 200 Mn users 
worldwide and is one of the preferred 
brands of young people around the 
world. The Vivo mission is to make 

The Face Shop brand is inspired 
by nature and believes that there is 
natural beauty to everyone. It strives for 
environmental responsibility and work to 
minimise impact on the natural world. No 
animal ingredients are used in any of the 
product formulae. The brand is managed 
with the core values of naturalism, variety 
and value. Face Shop Offers consumers 

5x Dual Camera Zoom technology. In 
2017, OPPO was ranked as the number 
4 smart phone brand globally, according 
to IDC. Today, Oppo provides excellent 
smart phone photography experiences 
to over 200 million young people across 
the globe.

consumers’ lives extraordinary through 
introducing innovative technology and 
being a trendsetter. Vivo channels its 
passion and energy into sports, music, 
travelling and celebrity endorsements, all 
attractive to youthful consumers. 

a wide variety of products made with 
natural ingredients, to a high quality in 
affordable prices.    

The Face Shop has a global presence 
of 3,000 stores in 35 countries including 
USA, Canada and the Middle East.

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL
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Commercial televisions 

Commercial televisions (TVs) are most often 
placed in public locations to help drive 
brand visibility. While digital signage has 
matured to a large degree in the developed 
world, there is a growing demand for 
it in Sri Lanka. Although demand for 
commercial TVs are on the rise, a great 
impetus for potential growth comes from 
the Government of Sri Lanka’s concerted 
effort to clean up the city of bill boards, 
giving priority to digital signage. 

We have introduced many types 
of commercial televisions to cater 
to the growing demand in digital 

Product Categories  2018 2019

Air Conditioners LG Dual Cool LG Wifi Inverter R32 Air Conditioners

  Honeywell Evaporative Air Coolers  

White Goods LG Wifi Inverter Washing Machines LG WIFI Washing Machines

  LG Styler LG Side by Side Refrigerators

  LG Dual Fridge LG ThinQ

  Door Cooling Inverter Linear Compressor Orient Ceiling fan with SLS

Communication Apple iPhone X Apple iPhone Xs, Xs Max & XR.

  LG G6 Vivo Mobiles

Vivo F9

IT Products Acer Predator Triton 700 MSI Gaming Laptops

  HP Spectre x360 8th Generation HP Oman

TV LG IPS Ultra HD 4K TV Commercial Tvs

  LG Signage TV 86’ UHD 4K TV

LG ThinQ

Cooking Appliance LG Neo Chef Smart Inverter Microwave 

Range

-

Audio Products LG X-Boom Lineup Beats range of products

Other New LG True Water Purifier  -

New products at Abans

The expansive Abans brand and product portfolio continued to grow during the year under review.

signage and interactive solutions 
for a number of industry segments 
including hotels, restaurants, financial 
institutions, apartments, malls, and the 
telecommunications industry. 

Vivo brand mobiles

Vivo brand appointed Abans PLC as 
exclusive distributor in Sri Lanka for retail 
and open market. Vivo is a sister brand of 
Oppo, another one of our exclusive retail 
brands. By the end of 2018, Vivo moved 
into the Top 6 mobile brands, by numbers 
shipped worldwide. The Vivo brand is 
expected to bring in revenue of Rs. 1 Bn in 
the financial year 2020. 

Market development, promoter placement 
and after sales support for Vivo are 
provided by the Vivo Sri Lanka corporate 
office. 

Sri Lanka’s First Green LG Air 
Conditioner with Wi-Fi Technology

LG R32 Air Conditioners featuring Wi-Fi 
technology were launched for the first 
time in Sri Lanka during the year. Uniquely 
designed to respond to the challenges 
posed by climate change, LG R32 Air 
Conditioners offer one-of-a-kind benefits 
while contributing to the preservation of 
earth’s natural environment.
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INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

R32 refrigerant is the world’s latest green 
refrigerant and is composed of naturally-
occurring organic compounds. It serves as 
an eco-friendly substitute for R410a gas 
commonly included in other air conditioners 
because it possesses a significantly lower 
global-warming potential compared to 
R410a gas, whilst emitting absolutely 
no ozone-depleting substances into the 
atmosphere. Also, using R32 enhances the 
cooling efficiency of the LG air conditioner, 
allowing consumers save energy. The dual 
inverter compressor in the LG R32 air 
conditioner can help save electricity up to 
70 per cent.

LG WiFi Washing Machines 

The latest LG washing machines 
introduced into the market have Wi-Fi 
capability, enabling  customers with a busy 
lifestyle operate their washing machine 
from anywhere at any time. The washing 
machine comes with the unique 6 motion 
technology, which mimics clothes washing 
by hand. The True Steam feature remove 
99.99% germs and allergens from clothes. 
The inverter direct drive technology unique 
to LG washing machines helps save 36 
per cent of energy compared to a regular 
washing machine. 

35% Energy saving Gas cookers

These high energy saving gas cookers 
were launched for the first time in Sri Lanka 
during the financial year. A true green 
product, they are uniquely designed to 
save LPG gas, helping reduce cost for 
consumers and lower gas consumption 
overall.  

LG Side by Side Refrigerators with 
Knock-Knock feature

This Instaview technology enabled 
refrigerator allows to look inside without 
even opening the doors. Just knock 
twice on the tinted glass panel and It 
will illuminate —letting you quickly see 
what’s inside without letting the cold air 
escape. The refrigerator also comes with 
SmartThinQ that enables the user to 

remotely control the fridge from their smart 
phone, to adjust fridge settings and to 
diagnose appliance problems.

LG 4K Ultra High Definition TV 

LG 4K Ultra HD TV from LG changes the 
way the consumers view everything, by 
delivering four times the resolution of a 
standard HD TV and offering bigger, bolder 
and a more lifelike TV viewing experience.

LG ThinQ

For new discoveries; for fresh takes on 
old favorites, for every day easy, imagine 
a world where all of your devices work 
together, better. It will no longer matter if 
you’re at home, on the go, or what virtual 
assistant you use LG products give you the 
freedom to live your life on your schedule. 

The world of LG ThinQ is an extensive 
line-up of artificial intelligence (AI) enabled 
smart products with an open platform that’s 
compatible with your devices now and into 
the future.

STRENGTHENING ABANS SYSTEMS 
AND STRUCTURES

Our organizational systems and structures 
are also a critical and inherent part of 
Abans’ intellectual capital. Under the 
Manufactured Capital section of this report, 
we have explained in detail the activities 
we have undertaken on improving our 
intellectual capital as encapsulated within 
systems and structures:

• Continuing the digital transformation of 
business processes to improve speed 
and quality of customer service

• Growing our non-traditional sales 
channels, in particular the online 
e-commerce site of BuyAbans.com

• Enhancing information security across 
the Abans network

• Strengthening the entire aspect of 
our field operations by automating 
field tasks, enhancing mobility and 
productivity through:

• Sales Force Automation

• Showroom Field Task Automation 

•  Service Field Task Automation  

STRENGTHENING HUMAN CAPITAL 

The entire value of our intellectual capital 
depends on how its deployed for long term 
sustainable value creation. This is what 
people at Abans do every day. 

Under the Human Capital section of this 
report we have explained in detail how we, 
at Abans, are working on developing and 
building our people—our human capital—
as a sure way to ensuring a sustainable 
value addition over time. 

From talent development to creating a 
dedicated HR platform, from effective 
screening and onboarding of new 
recruits to career planning, from creating 
an engaging workplace to attractive 
remuneration packages, from retention 
strategies and succession planning for 
critical positions, and by putting in place 
measures to ensure our human resources 
systems and regulatory and reporting 
systems and processes are working as they 
should, we are adding value every day to 
the intellectual capital within Abans.

We do so knowing that our people are our 
greatest strength and they are what drive us 
to create ongoing value to our stakeholders 
year after year. Most of what we do on 
enhancing our human capital is contributing 
to strengthening the capacity of Abans to 
stay ahead of time in all of our endeavours. 

OUR COMMITMENT

Abans is committed to strengthening and 
growing all aspects of our intellectual capital 
which enable us and provide us with a firm 
foundation on which to deliver sustainable 
value to all of our stakeholders. 
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SOCIAL AND 
RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

Abans Social and Relationship Capital is 
an ever-growing strength that helps us 
create and deliver continuing value to our 
stakeholders. 

Our Social and Relationship Capital 
comprises all of our stakeholders 
including customers individuals, 
corporate and government agency 
customers, our dealers and distributors,  
our suppliers and service providers, 
providers of financial capital, the 
government and the regulatory bodies 
we work with, industry and other 
associations to which we belong or that 
we work with closely, and the Sri Lankan 
society at large. 

We cannot be what we are today without 
the support of all of our stakeholders, 
and as such we are committed to 
strengthening our bonds with them and 
strive to create and deliver value to them 
in a sustainable manner. 

How we cultivate and nurture our social 
and relationship capital are explained in 
this section. 

Staff
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SUPPORTING OUR DEALERSHIP NETWORK 

Every year Abans conducts a number of training and development programmes to 
support our employees dealership network and to uplift their skills and capabilities. 

The programmes conducted this year included:

Programme Man 

Hours

Locations 

Upgrade the Admin 

Knowledge of Shop Assistants

2,658 Kadawatha, Kandy, Kottawa, 

Embilipitiya, Galle, Jaffna, Bibile, 

Bandarawela, Habarana, Batticaloa

Upgrade the Product 

Knowledge of Shop Assistants

1,614 Kadawatha, Kandy, Kottawa, 

Embilipitiya, Galle, Jaffna, Bibile, 

Bandarawela, Habarana, Batticaloa and 

Anuradhapuraya

On site training sessions 4,286 140 Locations island wide

Corporate Events 

1. HP – Abans Corporate Customer Event

The event was carried out under the theme shaping the future of work. The primary 
objective of the session was educating customers on the latest commercial products 
and share global trends with key decision makers. 

2. Abans launch of LG R32 Inverter Air Conditioners 

Amidst Abans’ senior management and key partners, Abans celebrated the launch of 
the revolutionary LG Dual Cool R32 Inverter Air Conditioners, Sri Lanka’s first green 
inverter air conditioners with wi-fi technology. The event took place at Hotel Galadari 
on March 27, 2019. Further proceedings encompassed an illuminating product 
presentation conducted by Mr. Kim Jin Seong, Research Engineer – LG Electronics. This 
presentation discussed the mechanics of the LG R32 Inverter Air Conditioner in detail, 
specially underscoring the product’s Wi-Fi technology capabilities. He also focused on 
how the inclusion of R32 refrigerant – the world’s latest green refrigerant – helps the air 
conditioner contribute towards the conservation of Earth.

3. Annual Abans Dealer Convention

As an occasion for appreciation of Dealer 
Channel network, Abans PLC annually 
organize The Dealer Convention where 
our dealer network is awarded based on 
their contribution and vale addition to the 
Group. In addition to appreciation, through 
this event Abans benefit its dealer network 
by presenting the new additions (Brands & 
Products etc.) to its portfolio as well. Last 
convention was held at Galadari Hotel – 
Colombo on 18th September 2018.

4. OPPO raises the bar in low light 
photography, launches OPPO F11 Pro 
in Sri Lanka 

Colombo, Sri Lanka, 21 March, 2019: 
OPPO, the leading global smartphone 
brand, expanded its F series portfolio of 
smartphones in Sri Lanka today with the 
launch of OPPO F11 Pro. The smartphone 
boasts of portrait photography in low light 
with several other innovative technologies. 
It is equipped with a new 48MP ultra-clear 
camera system, a rising camera, and a 
panoramic screen, providing customers 
with an easy to use and flawless user 
experience

Other aspects in customer 
relationships 

•  Product responsibility – 
Responsibility of the Abans Product 
is essential all along the life cycle of 
products, down to their end of life 
and recycling. Abans Customers are 
fully informed about the properties 
of our product and their condition of 
use. Abans Electrical PLC associate 
of Abans PLC handle the after service 
and breakdowns repairs of the 
products. Abans PLC always make 
sure to expedite the service and give 
the best support in breakdowns. 

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL
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•  Fairness and transparency - 
Transparency is encouraged in all 
public disclosures, as well as in the 
way business and communication take 
place with all stakeholders who are 
inside Abans PLC, across the Group 
and out siders.

• Anti competitive behavior  – The 
Company did not encounter any 
litigation for anti-competitive behavior, 
anti-trust, and monopoly practices 
during 2018/19. When conducting 
our marketing/ sales promotional 
activities, we strictly adhere to rules 
and regulations pertaining to display of 
materials, audio/video materials, and 
branding among other factors,

•  Anti corruption  – The Group 
management takes necessary actions 
to prevent and to ensure no corruption 
or illegal activities occur or incidence 
of non compliance concerning product 
and service.

•  Customer privacy – The Group 
did not come upon any proven 
complaints regarding breaches of 
customer privacy and loss of customer 
information.

• Health and Safety of Products 
There were no incidents of non-
compliance with regulations and 
voluntary codes concerning the 
health and safety impacts of our 
products and services during the 
year. Also there were no incidents of 
non-compliance with regulations and 
voluntary codes concerning product 
and service information and labelling 
during the year 
 
There were no incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations 
in the social and economic area during 
the year.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS

Foreign brand partners

LG and Abans

The partnership between LG and Abans 
spans over three decades and has 
grown from strength to strength over the 
years. In the year under review, LG and 
Abans had a clear direction on product 
categories with greater emphasis on 
high end flagship categories in which LG 
are global leaders. The two companies 
partner with each other to drive the 
LG product range, with a promotional 
activity each quarter. This has helped to 
drive LG product sales growth year after 
year. Even during challenging economic 
conditions such as that prevailed in the 
year under review, with strong support 
from LG, Abans was able to grow most of 
its product categories.

Abans was invited to take part in the LG 
Innofest, held in South Korea, together 
with all distributors from the SAGE 
region. At this event, LG showcases 
their latest technologies and innovations 
and presents the product road map 
for the year. LG also looks upon this 
event as a way to express appreciation 
for distributors for their hard work and 
performance over the past year. 

LG Electronics also appreciated the retail 
showroom managers by organizing its 
annual Showroom Managers Convention 
in September 2018.

Abans and LG work hand in hand to 
ensure that the LG brand visibility is 
continuously enhanced within Sri Lanka. 
This includes in-store management and 
branding as well as branding in public 
locations. During the year, LG Abans 
managed to secure LG branding at the 
Banadaranayake International airport, 
which has an annual passenger traffic 
exceeding 8 million. Many outdoor LED 

TV screens in Colombo city carry LG 
Logo Branding, reminding consumers of 
the strong presence of LG in Sri Lanka. 

During the year under review Abans 
started SKD biz with LG for washing 
machines, which is a positive thing for 
relationship management. Despite difficult 
economic conditions we continued 
to promote high end products. On 
request by LG, Abans set up an In-store 
Management (ISM) team to enhance LG 
brand visibility further on those activities. 

LG visits Abans every month to carry out 
a monthly business review and conducts 
a quarterly business review with top 
management. 

ELBA

We signed an exclusive agreement with 
ELBA for 5 years during the year. We 
also improved ELBA displays at Duty free 
shops, at Elite branches and the CCC 
Mall. 

Elba visits us twice each year for 
discussions and to evaluate performance. 
They have also arranged an overseas 
training event for Abans teams, to be held 
in Italy in July 2019. 
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New brand partnerships

Panasonic small appliances were added to 
our brand portfolio during the year. There 
are a number of other brands which are 
in the pipeline, for which negotiations are 
ongoing.

Local suppliers 

For the year under review, Abans had a 
network of 37 local suppliers. There were 
13 suppliers with whom our business 
transactions exceeded Rs. 5 Mn for this 
period. There were 10 new suppliers that 
came onboard during the period. 

2018/19

84%

16%

Foreign Imports  Local Purchases

Managing supplier relationships 

We actively manage our supplier 
performance. Performance excellence 
is rewarded by special terms in price 
negotiations, by revision of credit periods 
and eligibility for bulk purchases. Suppli-
ers are also invited to participate in launch 
events. 

Supplier visits, reviews and assessments 

Each new supplier is visited and interviewed before formal business arrangements begin. 
Ongoing visits are made to the premises of all current suppliers, to cultivate relationships, 
troubleshoot problems and to evaluate performance in terms of product and the general 
environment. 

Abans is planning to restructure our supplier review and assessment procedures in the 
near future, to make them more objective and formal. 
There were no significant changes to the organization or it’s supply chain during the year. 

COMMUNITY RELATIONSHIPS 

We engage with local communities providing employment opportunities and indirect 
employment which are critical for the socio- economic progress of these communities 
which create a level of interdependency requiring active management. 

This year too we conducted a host of events that foster better relationships with the 
communities we operate in across Sri Lanka. 

8th Annual School Book Donation

The Abans Welfare Society conducted the 8th consecutive annual school supply 
donation project this year from 20-22 December 2018. Over 1,000 children of Abans 
Group employees received all their school supplies for the new school year. The events 
took place at Abans’ Kollupitiya Head Office, the Kadolkale facility in Seeduwa, and 
the Abans Service Head Office in Wellawatte. Students ranging from montessori level 
to Grade 12 were presented with shoes, backpacks, lunch boxes, exercise books and 
stationery items. The supplies were donated by several members of the Abans Group. 
Dr. Saroshi Dubash, Director, Abans Group, key senior managers and staff from Abans 
Group companies attended the event. 

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

2017/18

86%

14%

Foreign Imports  Local Purchases
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Recognizing that investing in the next 
generation can contribute to greater 
social mobility and improve our local 
economy, We always placed a strong 
emphasis on child welfare and youth 
development. This is why Abans has 
developed a CSR policy that includes 
enhancing Sri Lanka’s educational sector 
and offering support to low-income 
students. Through these efforts, We 
hopes to help build a highly skilled, 
educated workforce that will deliver 
positive dividends for our country.

‘Suhuru’ Laptop CSR Initiative

The sixth stage of Abans’ “Suhuru” CSR 
initiative, presenting deserving students 
with a laptop of their own to achieve their 
academic goals, took place in September 
2018 at the Abans Head Office. Suhuru 
initiative is part of the Company’s 
contribution towards ensuring that every 
child of every socioeconomic background 
receives a worthy education.

Technology blended education is the key 
to developing skills and talents that the 
country needs in the future. Helping our 
young talent with devices which transform 
them into global students is of the utmost 
importance in today’s context. So it is our 
responsibility to invest more in enhancing 
Sri Lanka’s educational standards. 

In Sri Lanka, there are currently 
thousands of talented students whose 
ideas and minds have the potential 
to contribute significantly towards the 

country’s economy, but who  they lack the financial or social resources to engage in an 
academic career that will enable them to put their natural skills to use. 

The Board of Directors of Abans Group launched the “Suhuru” CSR initiative to help 
underprivileged students excel in their education, which enables them experience a 
future that will benefit Sri Lanka as a whole.

Under the “Suhuru” CSR initiative, we have made significant progress towards 
accomplishing the goal by distribution of laptops to low-income students between the 
ages 14 to 21from across the country. Students are asked to write to Abans on how 
a laptop would assist them in their education. Then the students deemed the most 
deserving, are gifted with a laptop. Each laptop comes with durable hardware and 
advanced software features, to enable students bridge the technological knowledge gap 
and utilize key tools in support of their education. 

From 2014 to present, more than 250 laptops have been donated through the Suhuru 
project. By launching “Suhuru”, Abans has taken a genuine step towards the betterment 
of society to empower bright young minds that hold within them the potential to be 
future leaders of our nation.

“Mistral Loves Children” at Sri Lankadhara Balika Home

To celebrate World Children’s Day, Abans and Mistral joined hands to hold a special 
CSR programme at the Sri Lankadhara Balika Home in Wellawatte, a safe haven for 
disadvantaged girls aged between 5 and 18. This continues the Abans’ tradition of 
commemorating World Children’s Day with events to uplift the spirits of low-income 
children.
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On 1 October 2018, team of Abans 
employees gathered together at the 
Balika Home and to create day filled with 
fun and excitement including lively games 
and activities that focused on building 
important social skills such as team work, 
emotional intelligence, and listening. 
The children were treated to delicious 
McDonald’s Happy Meals, and provided 
with gift packs that included decorative 
mugs bearing the words, “Abans-Mistral 
Loves Children.” We also donated five 
misting stand fans to the home, courtesy 
of Mistral.

Empowering Women Entrepreneurs

To commemorate our 50th anniversary 
Abans, in collaboration with the Women’s 
Chamber of Industry and Commerce 
(WCIC), organized a series of workshops 
on the “Fundamentals of Marketing” 
for women entrepreneurs outside the 
Western Province. Organized throughout 
March, the workshops embodies our 
strong legacy of female entrepreneurship 
and innovation.

Besides celebrating our proud 50-
year entrepreneurial history, the 
workshops were meant to equip 
women entrepreneurs with the skills and 
knowledge needed to succeed in their 
chosen business. “We also desired to 
empower women entrepreneurs to fulfill 
their career goals, be it opening a salon, 
launching a restaurant, or even starting 
their own retail chain like Mrs. Aban 
Pestonjee, our Group Chairperson and 
Founder. 

Over 100 women entrepreneurs from 
diverse fields of business  participated 
in the workshops conducted by Ms. 
Tusitha Kumarakulasingam, a renowned 
marketing consultant. Each session 
focused on how to apply the universal 
5Ps marketing mix construct to promote 
the products and services offered by the 
participants’ specific businesses. The 
participants got together into groups and 
developed presentations to demonstrate 
how the 5Ps can be utilized in real-world 
settings. Several interactive activities that 
emphasized engagement and team-
building were interspersed throughout the 
workshop sessions.

Abans Annual Poson Dansala

The Abans Poson dansala was held for 
the 14th time in the current financial year 
to commemorate the holy day of poson 
by donating free food for passers - by

Blood Donation Campaign

A blood donation camp was organized 
with great success for the 13th 
consecutive time with enthusiastic 
support from the Abans staff who 
stepped up regardless of the 
demographic to contribute lifeblood to 
those who need.

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

Values, principles, norms and 
standards of behaviour

Every business decision of Abans Group 
boils down to a simple goal – the desire 
to improve the lives of Sri Lankan citizens. 
From ground-breaking retail offerings 
and financial services to environmental 
management and the development of 
Colombo’s skyline, Abans consistently 
seeks ways to enhance Sri Lanka’s living 
standards, and meet the globalized 
preferences and unique needs of their 
consumers. Perseverance, embracing 
risks worth taking, and innovating along 
the way make up the value platforms of 
the Group.

What we stand for:

Entrepreneurial Spirit

We are always the pioneer. We explore 
and create opportunities that were 
previously non-existent.

Collaboration

We believe in joining hands with each 
other to develop ingenious solutions.

Trust

We strive to act in a manner that fosters 
trust with our key stakeholders. We 
ensure quality and transparency in 
everything we do.

Care for Customers

We value our customers. We aim to 
provide the ultimate customer satisfaction 
in every action we take.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Please see pages 60 to 63 of this report 
on our list of stakeholder groups how 
we identify and select stakeholders our 
approach to stakeholder engagement 
and how we setting of material 
boundaries on key topics and concerns 
raised by our stakeholders.   

Consulting stakeholders on economic, 
environmental, and social topics

Our majority shareholders are on 
the Board of Directors and have 
representation on the Remuneration, 
Risk, Audit and other key committees 
of the Company. As such, their inputs 
form an inherent part of the Abans 
strategic and operational decision making 
processes. 

The inputs gained from customers, 
including dealers and distributors, local 
and overseas suppliers, employees, 
regulators and the general public are 
utilized and considered to the extent 
that they come to our attention during 
our stakeholder engagement processes 
outlined in pages 60 to 63 of this report. 

Indirect Economic Impact

Abans retail network comprises 383 
directly owned branches and 850 
dealerships and distributors island-wide. 

All branch managers are recruited from 
the respective areas. In turn they recruit 
their employees from the surrounding 
areas, recruited through their personal 
and family networks. 

In the larger cities, branch recruiting 
happens based on labour supply and 
demand for the relevant positions, and 
geography is not a primary concern. But 
in the rest of the Abans network in smaller 
towns and cities, the jobs created by 
Abans network are directly beneficial to 
the regions concerned. 

 
 

Abans Dealers and distributors across the 
country carry out recruiting according to 
their own needs. Often the people working 
in dealerships and working for distributor 
outlets are from the surrounding areas.

Memberships of Industry and Trade 
Associations

•  The Council for Business with Britain

•  Sri Lanka Retailers’ Association

•  International Air Transport Association

•  The Sri Lanka Institute of Directors

•  Sri Lanka - Japan Business Council

•  Sri Lanka - Malaysia Business Council

•  Sri Lanka - Maldives Business Council

•  Sri Lanka - China Business Council

•  Travel Agent Association of Sri Lanka

•  Sri Lanka Investment & Business 

•  Sri Lanka - Korea Business Council

•  Sri Lanka - Canada Business Council

•  Sri Lanka - Australia- Newzealand 
Business Council 

•  Airport Aviation Services (Sri Lanka) 
Limited

•  American Chamber of Commerce

•  Indo Lanka Chamber of Commerce & 
Industry 

•  Chartered Institute of Personal 
Management 

•  Women in Management (Pvt) Ltd

•  Sri Lanka - Korea Business Council

•  New Town and Broughton Community 
Council

•  Sri Lanka - Italy Business Council

•  Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka
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NATURAL 
CAPITAL

At Abans we understand the value 
of sustainability in all aspects of our 
operations. We put sustainability 
considerations to the fore in a number of 
areas. 

We try to cater to our environmentally 
conscious consumers by keeping 
sustainability at the top of mind when 
selecting our brand and product portfolio. 
We are constantly adding greener, 
energy-saving appliances that cause the 
least harm to the environment. 

Secondly, we have selected as our key 
corporate social responsibility (CSR), 
the Green Isle Project, which falls neatly 
into the Life on Land sustainability 
development goal. The goal requires us to 
“Protect, restore and promote sustainable 
use of terrestrial ecosystems, sustainably 
manage forests, combat desertification, 
and halt and reverse land degradation 
and halt biodiversity loss.” Green Isle 
Project details are discussed below.

Thirdly, as a responsible corporate citizen 
we recognize the need for minimizing our 
carbon foot print.  As a direct result of 
our operations we generate waste paper, 
packing materials, e-waste and carbon 
emissions due to use of vehicles in our 
operation. We recognize the need for 
taking all possible measures to reduce, 
reuse and recycle resources in order 
to achieve a truly sustainable business 
operation. With this first integrated report, 
we are making an effort to hold ourselves 
accountable for our activities and to strive 
in the future to ensure we live up to our 
own and our stakeholders’ expectations 
on this front. 

- COMPANY
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2%
Reduction 
in electricity 
consumption (units)

4%
Reduction in 
vehicle fuel (petrol) 
consumption

7%
Reduction in water 
consumption (units)

1,718
Total  
Carbon footprint 
(t-CO2)
 

246,153
Total water 
usage
(m3)

31,465
Total energy  
consumption
(GJ)

Brand portfolio and sustainability 

As a retail company, we work with 
a number of global brands that take 
sustainability seriously. These companies 
not only focus on research and 
development and innovation to create 
energy saving, resource optimizing, 
environmentally friendly products; they 
also run their businesses following 
sustainable business philosophies. Here 
we have described the sustainability goals 
and achievements of our biggest brands.  

LG Electronics

LG Electronics is committed to 
sustainability and issued their 12th 
integrated report in 2017/2018. LG is 
committed to the following goals.

NATURAL CAPITAL HIGHLIGHTS

Promote Intelligent 

Lifestyle

Establish Intelligent Living Environment

Improve the life of customers by providing more easy-

to-use products applied with AI and future technology.

Pursue Healthy Life for Customers

Help customers live a healthy life by launching cutting-

edge products with social and environmental changes 

in mind.

Expand Green Business

Contribute to creating a sustainable society through 

continuous development of environmentally friendly 

businesses such as renewable energy and electric 

vehicles (EVs).
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Realize Zero Carbon and

Circular Economy

Pursue Zero Carbon

Pursue “Zero Carbon” by reducing greenhouse gas 

emissions and developing energy-efficient products. LG 

aims to reduce carbon emissions in the production level 

by 150,000 tons by 2020 compared to the base year 

2008. (1 million tons in cumulative reductions). A mid- 

to long-term carbon management strategy was to be 

introduced in mid 2018. 

Reduce the Environmental Impacts of Products

Reduce the environmental effects of products 

throughout the processes of raw material mining, 

production, use, and disposal.

LG plans to achieve 80% Green 3 Star Products by 

self-assessment of environmentally friendly products by 

2030. (in terms of the number of development projects). 

The percentage of Green 3 Star Products as of 2017 

was 45%. 

Promote Circular Economy

Contribute to creating a circular economy by managing 

the waste and e-Waste after their production and use. 

The company aims to achieve 95% recycle rate of waste 

from production sites by 2030 and to collect 4.5 million 

tons of e-Waste by 2030, counting from 2006. The total 

amount collected as of 2017: 2.05 million tons.

Create a Better Society Create a sustainable business ecosystem through CSR 

management of the supply chain including raw material 

sourcing.

The company aims to use 100% Responsible Mineral 

Assurance Process (RMAP) conformant smelters by 

2021 and to assess the CSR risks of all 1st tier suppliers 

and expand the scope to include 2nd and 3rd tier 

suppliers by 2020.

Establish decent and Safe work Place

Improve the level of employee satisfaction by creating a 

work environment with work and life balance.

Expand Contribution to the Local Community

Contribute to expanding more value for the local 

community as a global corporate citizen with products 

and services.

Source: 2017-2018 LG Electronics Sustainability Report

Apple Inc.

Apple’s latest and 11th annual 
Environmental Responsibility Progress 
Report covers fiscal year 2017. Apple’s 
philosophy is to apply to environmental 
challenges the same innovation that 
goes into making their products. 
Three priorities where Apple and its 
stakeholders believe they can make the 
biggest difference are:

• Climate change: Reduce impact on 
climate change by using renewable 
energy sources and driving energy 
efficiency in Apple products, facilities, 
and supply chain.

• Resources: Conserve precious 
resources so we all can thrive.

• Safer materials: Pioneer the use 
of safer materials in products and 
processes.

Apple Inc started to transition from 
electricity use to renewable sources more 
than a decade ago. Today, Apple powers 
100 percent of their operations around 
the world with 100 percent renewable 
energy. Every Apple data center, retail 
store, corporate office, and colocation 
facility in 43 countries around the world 
now runs on clean power. In the process, 
Apple has paved the way for other 
companies and organizations to purchase 
renewable energy and transition their own 
operations to greener power.

Source: Environmental Responsibility Report 2018 

Progress Report, Covering Fiscal Year 2017

HP and sustainability

Here’s a summary from the HP’s 2017 
Sustainable Impact Report:

NATURAL  CAPITAL
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Sustainable design

HP product materials, manufacturing, 
transport, and use account for 97% of 
their carbon footprint. HP believes that 
applying sustainable design across their 
portfolio is key to reducing impacts, while 
improving product performance and 
benefiting people worldwide.

HP’s Design for Sustainability (DfS) 
program ensures that factors impacting 
environmental performance are 
considered during the product design 
phase. Design for Sustainability supports 
HP's circular economy strategy, and is 
an important driver of business value. 
In 2017, customers with sustainable 
purchasing criteria (including criteria 
related to eco-labels) represented a total 
of approximately $15.8 billion of existing 
and potential business revenue.

Product design and development 
operations for HP LaserJet Enterprise 
Solutions, HP Inkjet Printing Systems, 
and Personal Systems product 
groups are ISO 14001 certified. They 
conduct internal compliance audits 
and benchmark against industry best 
practices on an ongoing basis. Relevant 
HP products undergo a range of external 
certifications.

Life cycle assessment

HP is an industry leader in the use of life 
cycle assessment (LCA) and product 
carbon footprinting (PCF) to quantify 
the environmental characteristics and 
impacts of their products and solutions. 
Increasingly, HP has begun applying LCA 
to service-based models such as Instant 
Ink or product maintenance for enterprise 
customers.

Materials innovation

In manufacturing products, HP tries to do 
more with less, getting maximum value 
from the materials used. They are driving 
progress toward a circular economy 
and developing a materials cycle where 
plastics, metals, and other durable 
materials are used over and over without 
being “downcycled” into lowergrade 
uses, eventually becoming waste.

Recycle
materials

Reduce 
materials
of concern

Increase 
recycled 
renewable 
materials

Reduce 
materials
usage

Planet

We are  contributing to a more efficient, circular, and low-carbon economy 

Ensuring materials are properly repurposed at end-of-service

Supply Chain Operation Production and solutions

Supplier avoided 

Carbon
footprint

2017

CO2 emission since 2010 

associated with HP brand paper
and developed a packaging 
Supplier performance plan to
drive progress in that area  

HP’s carbon footprint 2017
increased by 2% from 2016

37,130,100
tonnes Co2

Supply Chain 
Operations
Products and solutions

Water
footprint

2017

204,916,000
Cubic meters

Maintained

1.05 million
tonnes

2%
zero 
deforestation

of hardware and suppliers recycled
since the beginning of 2016

271,400
tonnesHP’s carbon footprint 2017

increased by 1% from 2016

1%

decrease in Scope 1 and 2 GHG
emissions, compared to 2015

35%

renewable electricity use 
in our global operations

50%

land�ll diversion rate, globally

90.9%

8%

HP provides take-back programmes in
74 countries and territories worldwide  

33%

6%
of recycled plastic used in 
3.8 billion + Original HP ink 
and toner cartridges 
through 2017

99,00
tonnes

of recycled plastic used in 
HP products in 2017 

18,000+
tonnesdescrease in product portfolio

GHG emissions intensity, 
compared to 2010

descrease in materials 
use intensity for personal 
systems products, and 

descrease in materials 
use intensity for printers, 
compared to 2016 
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Energy efficiency

Since 2010, the energy consumption of 
HP's personal systems products dropped 
by 43%, on average, despite the general 
increase in software power demands 
during that period. This included average 
reductions of 49% in desktops, 32% in 
notebooks, and 36% in workstations. 
During that timeframe, HP reduced 
energy consumption of the HP LaserJet 
portfolio by 56%, on average, and the 
energy consumption of the HP inkjet 
portfolio by 20%, on average.

Product GHG emissions intensity

HP's goal is to reduce the GHG 
emissions intensity of their product 
portfolio by 25% by 2020, compared to 
2010. Through the end of 2017, they 
reached a 33% decrease, building on a 
19% reduction through the prior year. 

Key drivers in 2017 included:

• Personal systems: Ongoing design 
improvements contributed to 
continued reductions in typical 
energy consumption of HP desktops, 
notebooks, and workstations. 
These gains were complemented 
by an ongoing shift from desktops 
to notebooks, which consume 
significantly less energy.

• Printing: HP continues to improve 
energy efficiency in LaserJet 
products. Other factors in 2017 
included higher LaserJet duplexing 
rates which decreased paper use, 
improved LaserJet power usage 
data, and shipping more PageWide 
web presses used for paper printing, 
which have high duplexing rates.

Durability and repairability

HP builds durable products that are 
easier than ever to repair and upgrade, 
which extends their useful lives while 
keeping costs down. They also provide 
free service documentation for most 
products, supplemented with service 
options and warranties.

These are the environmental philosophies 
and performance of our top brands. 
Many other brands we market, including 
the newest additions to our product 
portfolio are also companies that value 
and conduct their business operations 
according to sustainability principles. 

Our green products

At any point in time the Abans product 
range contains a vast number of 
environmentally friendly and energy saving 
products. Every year we are committed to 
adding to that range, making our product 
portfolio greener as we go. 

Sri Lanka’s First Green LG Air 
Conditioner with Wi-Fi Technology

LG R32 Air Conditioners featuring Wi-Fi 
technology were launched for the first 
time in Sri Lanka during the year. Uniquely 
designed to respond to the challenges 
posed by climate change, LG R32 Air 
Conditioners offer one of a kind benefits 
while contributing to the preservation of 
earth’s natural environment.

R32 refrigerant used in this air conditioner 
is the world’s latest green refrigerant 
and is composed of naturally-occurring 
organic compounds. It is an eco-friendly 
substitute for R410a gas commonly 
used in other air conditioners as it 
possesses a significantly lower global-
warming potential compared to R410a 
gas. Unlike the R410a, R32 does not 
emit ozone-depleting substances 
into the atmosphere. This refrigerant 
enhances the cooling efficiency helping 
consumers save energy. The dual inverter 
compressor in the LG R32 air conditioner 
also helps save electricity up to 70 
per cent compared to a non-inverter 
appliance.

LG WiFi Washing Machines 

The latest LG Wifi Washing Machines 
introduced into the market comes with 
the inverter direct drive technology unique 
to LG Washing Machines which helps 
save 36 per cent of energy compared to 
a regular washing machine. 

Energy Saving Gas Cookers

A true green product, the high-energy 
saving gas cookers have been uniquely 
designed to save LPG gas consumption. 
This helps consumers save money and 
reduce overall energy consumption in Sri 
Lanka. The Energy Saving Gas Cooker 
was launched in Sri Lanka during 2018.

LG Styler 

Recently introduced LG Styler using LG’s 
True Steam technology with just water 
is also a green product in its own way. 
First, it does not use chemicals to refresh 
clothes. Secondly just the concept of 
refreshing clothes, toys and bedding 
instead of subjecting them to a full cycle 
wash saves both energy and water. It 
is also a hygienic product that uses no 
antibiotics or chemicals and extends the 
useful life of clothes, another sustainable 
trait. 

These are just some of our current 
portfolio which help reduce resource and 
energy consumption in operation. 

Saving energy

Electricity Consumption

The electricity consumption for the 
2018/2019, in units and Rupees dropped 
by 2 per cent from the previous period.  
Although the number of employees 
declined by 14 per cent from the previous 
period levels, Abans opened two new 
Elite branches during the year. Hence the 
cost per employee and the number of 
units per employee show an increase of 
15 per cent over the previous period. 

Electricity 2019 2018

Units  4,745,415  4,825,670 

Cost 

 

141,064,892 
 

143,443,045 

Cost Per  

Employee 
 78,983.70  68,896.76 

We encourages energy saving practices 
among employees such as encouraging 
them to switch off lights during daytime 
when lights are not necessary.

NATURAL  CAPITAL
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Fuel consumption

The fuel consumption costs and volumes for 2018/2019 and the 
previous financial period are as follows:

Fuel 2019 2018

Units consumed (litres)  449,414  467,705 

Cost (LKR)  68,975,335  59,863,701 

Cost Per Employee (LKR)  38,620.01  28,752.98 

Although the number of units of petrol has dropped by 4 per cent 
from the previous period, there is a significant cost increase due 
to fuel price increases during the period under review. Units per 
employee has increased by 12 per cent from the previous period. 

Abans monitors monthly fuel consumptions. Employees are 
issued Fuel Cards. Necessary action is taken to discourage over 
usage. 

Water consumption 

The Company achieve a 7 per cent drop in units of water 
consumed. Cost per employee increased by 8 per cent in the 
same period, although the number of employees dropped by 14 
per cent from the previous period. 

Water 2019 2018

Units  246,153  265,139 

Cost  6,153,829  6,628,467 

Units per employee  3,446  3,184 

The company constantly remind employees of the need to save 
water, and to turn off taps when not in use. We recognize that it is 
important to measure and keep track of water consumption. 

Recycling of paper and packing materials

Abans recycles paper, computer paper and packing materials 
annually. These are then sold and the funds generated are used 
for company employee welfare and other CSR activities. 
During the financial year, the following items were sold:

Material Volume

Photocopy Paper 2,199,000

Computer Paper 80 column & 132 column 420,000

Corrugated Boxes 7’’x7’’x7’ 17,000 boxes

Corrugated Boxes – 9’’x9’’x9’’ 8,665 boxes

Corrugated Boxes – 20’’x16’’x14’’ 3,011 boxes

The company also allows for the sale of cannibalized and 
discarded items from branch network in order to generate funds 
for CSR and welfare activities. 

Digital transformation and paperless initiatives

One goal of digital transformation is to save resources such as 
paper, filing, printing costs and the unnecessary storage costs. 

Mobile technology adoption  

Our mobile apps for the field work have also helped us cut down 
on paper use and still achieve sales goals and productivity goals 
effectively. 

BuyAbans website and our Facebook page also strengthens 
our paperless communication efforts with current and potential 
customers. 

Emission details

 Emission of t- CO2

2018 2017

Scope 

01

Fuel consumption 

for transportation/ 

vehicles for 

business use 

 1,092.08  1,136.52 

Scope 

02

Electricity 

consumption

 610.73 621.06

Scope 

03

Business purpose 

air travel

15.14 45.20

During the period under review neither any grievances were filed 
nor any monetary or non-monetary sanctions were imposed for 
non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations.

Green Isle project by Abans 

Habitat restoration for species conservation in Bellanwila – 
Aththidiya Sanctuary is also known as the Green Isle Project.

In addition to the usual CSR projects that Abans has been 
continuing over the years, this year we ventured onto a multi-year 
project with global and local significance.

Our chosen project, The Green Isle, falls under the Sustainable 
Development Goal 15, Life on Land. The project design is a 
holistic concept undertaking the full range of habitat restoration, 
human-animal conflict, and species conservation activities to 
ensure sustainability.

Sustainability

The project has been designed to ensure that results have a 
long-term cumulative impact. Long-term results for the critically 
endangered species will start to tangibly materialize after three to 
five years, and compound thereafter.

Management Discussion and Analysis | 
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Abans PLC has 
pleasure in presenting the Annual Report 
and the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of Abans PLC are 
importing and marketing of electrical and 
electronic home appliances, crockery 
and cookware, sanitary and light fittings, 
a host of other household items and 
carrying out electromechanical contract 
work and clearing and forwarding 
activities.

The Company has five Subsidiaries, 
one Associate and one Joint Venture. 
Company and their activities are given on 
page 200 of this Annual Report.

Business Review

A review of the financial and operational 
performance and future business 
developments of the group, sectors, and 
its business units are described in the 
Chairperson’s Message and the Sector 
Review and Capital Reports sections 
of this Annual Report. These Reports 
together with the Audited Financial 
Statements reflect the state of affairs of 
the Group. Segment wise contribution 
to Group Revenue, Results, Assets and 
Liabilities are provided in Note 04 to the 
Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

Revenue generated by the Company 
for the year under review amounted 
to Rs. 33.3 Bn whilst Group Revenue 
amounted to Rs. 35.3 Bn. Contribution 
to Group Revenue from the different 
business segments carried out by the five 
subsidiaries is provided in Note 04 to the 
Financial Statements.

Financial Statements and the Report 
of the Auditors

The Financial Statements of the Group 
for the year ended 31st March 2019 
as approved by the Board of Directors 
on 30th May 2019 are given on pages 
138 to 241. The Auditors’ Report on 
the Financial Statements of the Group is 
given on page 134.

Accounting Policies

The Accounting Policies adopted in 
the preparation and presentation of the 
Financial Statements are given on pages 
145 to 177. There were no material 
changes in the Accounting Policies 
adopted by the Group during the year 
other than disclosed in the Note no 2.1.2 
to the Financial Statements.

Investments

Total investments of the Company in its 
Subsidiaries, Associates, Joint Venture 
and Equity investments amounted to 
Rs. 3,249,576,533/-. The details of the 
investments are given in Notes 13 and 15 
to the Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Net Book Value of Property, 
Plant and Equipment as at year end 
amounted to Rs. 1,232,284,592 /- and 
Rs. 1,374,930,571/- for the Company 
and the Group respectively. Total capital 
expenditure during the year for acquisition 
of Property, Plant and Equipment by 
the Company and the Group amounted 
to Rs. 335,115,185 /- and Rs. 
353,970,438/- respectively. Details of 
Property, Plant and Equipment are given 
in Note 8.8 to the Financial Statements.

Stated Capital and Reserves

The Stated Capital of the Company as at 
31st March 2019 was Rs. 218,500,000/- 
consisting of Rs. 216,000,000/- ordinary 
voting shares and Rs. 2,500,000/- 
ordinary non-voting shares. The total 
Group equity was Rs. 8,880,615,197/- as 
at 31st March 2019.

Internal Control and Risk 
Management

The Directors acknowledge their 
responsibility for the Group’s system 
of internal control. The systems are 
designed to provide reasonable 
assurance that the assets of the 
Group are safeguarded and to ensure 
that proper accounting records are 
maintained. The Board of Directors 
having reviewed the system of internal 
control is satisfied with the systems and 
measures in effect at the date of signing 
this Annual Report.

Human Resources

The Company has an equal employment 
opportunity policy and these principles 
are enshrined in specific selection, 
training, development and promotion 
policies, ensuring that all decisions are 
based on merit. The Group practices 
equality of opportunity for all employees 
irrespective of ethnic origin, religion, 
political opinion, gender, marital status or 
physical disability. Further, the Company 
continued to develop the team and 
focus their contribution towards the 
achievement of corporate goals.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company 
as at 31st March 2019 and their brief 
profiles are given on pages 32 to 35. The 
following persons were the Directors of 
the Company as at 31st March 2019.
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(a) Mrs. Aban Pestonjee - Chairperson

(b) Mr. Behman Pestonjee – Managing 
Director

(c) Dr. Saroshi Dubash - Executive 
Director

(d) Mr. Rusi Pestonjee - Executive 
Director

(e) Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya- Independent 
Non-Executive Director

(f) Mr. R.Selvaskandan- Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Mr. R.Selvaskandan was appointed as 
Independent Non-Executive Director of the 
Company with effect from 23rd May 2018.

Mr Sriyan de silva Wijeyeratne  
(Independent Non-Executive Director) 
resigned from the Board of Directors and 
was appointed as Group Chief Executive 
Officer with effect from 16th August 2018. 

Re-Election of Directors

A Resolution will be tabled at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to 
re-elect Mrs. Aban Pestonjee, the Director 
who is above the age of 70 years and who 
is due to retire at the end of the Annual 
General Meeting in terms of Section 210 
of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya will retire by 
rotation in terms of Section A.8 of the 
Code of Best Practice on Corporate 
Governance 2017 at the Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible offers himself 
for re-election with the unanimous support 
of the other Directors.

Board Committees

The Board has appointed two Sub-
Committees i.e. the Audit Committee 
and the Remuneration Committee. The 
composition and responsibilities of the 
said Committees are detailed in the 
respective reports.

Interest Register

The Company maintains an Interest 
Register in compliance with the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. In 
compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, this Annual Report also 
contains particulars of entries made in the 
Interest Register.

Directors’ interest in Contracts

Directors’ interests in contracts are 
disclosed in the related party transactions 
under Note 32.7 to the Financial 
Statements.

Directors’ Shareholding

The shareholding of the Directors of the 
Company as at 31st March 2019 and 
as defined under the Listing Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange is NIL. 
The Directors have transferred their 
shares to Abans Retail Holdings (Private) 
Limited, and by virtue of such transfer the 
Company is now fully owned by  Abans 
Retail Holdings (Private) Limited. 

Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is established 
within a framework approved by the 
Remuneration Committee. Directors’ 
remuneration in respect of the Company 
for the year is given in Note 32.7 to the 
Financial Statements.

Share Information

Information relating to earnings, dividends 
and net assets is given on pages 242 to 
243. The distribution and the composition 
of shareholding are given on pages 242 to 
243 of this Annual Report. 

Listed Debt

Information relating to the listed 
debentures is given on page 243.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has endeavored to 
ensure that the Company has complied 
with the Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange and the Code of Best 
Practices on Corporate Governance 
issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka. Directors are 
committed towards the furtherance of 
Corporate Governance principles of 
the Company. The measures taken in 
this regard are set out in the Corporate 
Governance Report on pages 40 to 52 of 
this Annual Report. Further, the Directors 
declare that the Company has not 
engaged in any activity which contravenes 
laws and regulations. All material interests 
in contracts involving the Company have 
been declared by the Directors and they 
have refrained from voting on matters in 
which they were materially interested. 
The Company has made all endeavors 
to ensure the equitable treatment of 
shareholders, the business is a going 
concern and a review of internal controls 
covering financial, operational and 
compliance controls and risk management 
has been conducted. The Directors have 
obtained a reasonable assurance of their 
effectiveness and successful adherence.

Statutory Payments

The Board of Directors confirm that to the 
best of their knowledge, all taxes, duties 
and levies payable by the Company and 
its Subsidiaries, all contributions, levies 
and taxes payable on behalf of and in 
respect of the employees of the Company 
and its Subsidiaries and all other known 
statutory dues as were due and payable 
by the Company and its Subsidiaries as 
at year end have been paid or, where 
relevant provided for.
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Auditors

Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered 
Accountants are deemed re-appointed in 
terms of Section 158 of the Companies 
Act No. 07 of 2007 as the Auditors of the 
Company. A resolution to authorise the 
Directors to determine the remuneration 
of the Auditors will be proposed at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Total audit fees paid to Messrs. Ernst 
& Young by the Company and its 
Subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 05 to 
the Financial Statements. The Auditors 
of the Company and its Subsidiaries 
have confirmed that they do not have 
any relationship with the Company or 
its subsidiaries (other than the Auditor) 
that would have an impact on their 
independence.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held 
at Head Office, Abans PLC, on 27th 
June 2019 at 10.00  a.m. The Notice of 

Meeting appears in the supplementary 
information section of the comprehensive 
Annual Report. This Annual Report is 
signed for and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors.

By Order of the Board

Varners International (Pvt.) Ltd.
Company Secretaries,

Level 14, West Tower,
World Trade Centre,
Echelon Square,
Colombo 01.

30th May 2019

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The following statement sets out the 
responsibility of Directors in relation to the 
financial statements of the Company and 
Group. The responsibility of independent 
auditors in relation to the financial 
statements prepared in accordance with 
the provision of Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007(“the Act”) and SLFRS is set out in 
the independent auditors’ report.

The financial statements comprise:

Statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income, which present 
a true and fair view of the profit and 
loss of the Company and the Group 
for the financial year; and Statement of 
financial position, which presents a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company and the Group as at the end of 
the financial year and which comply with 
the requirements of the Act and SLFRS.

The Directors are required to ensure that, 
in preparing these financial statements:

• Appropriate accounting policies 
have been selected and applied in 
a consistent manner and material 
departures if any, have been 
disclosed and explained.

• All applicable accounting standards 
(SLFRS/LKAS) issued by The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka, as relevant have been 
followed.

• Judgements and estimates have 
been made which are reasonable and 
prudent.

The Directors are also required to ensure 
that the Company and the Group have 
adequate resources to continue in 
operation to justify applying the going 
concern basis in preparing these financial 
statements.

Further, the Directors have a responsibility 
to ensure that the Company maintains 
sufficient accounting records to disclose, 
with reasonable accuracy the financial 
position of the Company and of the 
Group and to ensure that the financial 
statements presented comply with the 
requirements of the Act.

The Directors are also responsible for 
taking reasonable steps to safeguard 
the assets of the Company and of the 
Group and in this regard, to give proper 
consideration to the establishment of 
appropriate internal control systems with 
a view to preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities.

The internal auditors have conducted 
periodic audits to provide reasonable 
assurance that the established policies 
and procedures of the Company were 
consistently followed. However, there 
are inherent limitations that should be 
recognized in weighing the assurance 
provided by any system of internal 
controls and accounting.

The Audit Committee of the Company 
meets periodically with the internal 
auditors and the independent external 
auditors to review the manner in 
which these auditors are performing 
their responsibilities and to discuss 
auditing, internal control and financial 
reporting issues. To ensure complete 
independence, the independent auditors 
and the internal auditors have full and 
free access to the members of the Audit 
Committee to discuss any matter of 
substance.

The Directors are required to prepare the 
financial statements and to provide the 
independent external auditors with every 
opportunity to take whatever steps and 
undertake whatever inspections that they 
may consider to be appropriate to enable 

them to give the independent auditors’ 
opinion.

The Directors are of the view that they 
have discharged their responsibilities as 
set out in this statement.

Compliance Report

The Directors confirm that to the best 
of their knowledge, all taxes, duties and 
levies payable by the Company and its 
subsidiaries, all contributions, levies and 
taxes payable on behalf of and in respect 
of employees of the Company and its 
subsidiaries and all other known statutory 
dues as were due and payable by the 
Company and its subsidiaries as at the 
reporting date have been paid or where 
relevant provided for.

By order of the Board,

Varners International (Pvt.) Ltd.

Company Secretaries

30th May 2019
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Role of the Committee

Audit Committee is the sub-Committee 
of the Board of Directors and it 
is accountable to the Board. The 
Committee is chaired by Mr. Hiran 
Embuldeniya who is an Independent 
Non-Executive Director and consists of 
one other Independent Non-Executive 
Director Mr. Rajaratnam Selvaskandan 
who was appointed with effect from 23 
May 2018. Mr Sriyan De silva Wijeyeratne 
resigned from the Audit committee on 16 
August 2018.

The Committee is responsible for 
supporting the Board in ensuring that the 
Group financial results, internal controls 
and risk management are effectively 
managed in line with the best practices 
and in compliance with the accounting 
standards of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka, requirements 
of the listing rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange and other relevant laws and 
regulations. In addition, the Committee 
considers the contents of internal and 
external audit reports and recommends 
the appointment of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee obtains 
representations from the Group Chief 
Financial Officer and Chief Internal Auditor 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
internal control systems.

Meetings

During the year, the Audit Committee 
met four times. The attendance of the 
members at these meetings were as 
follows:

Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya 3/4

Mr. Rajaratnam Selvaskandan 2/2

Mr. Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne 1/2

The Executive Director Dr. Saroshi 
Dubash, the Group Chief Financial 
Officer, Chief Internal Auditor and Senior 

Managers of the Company’s External 
Auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young also 
attended most of these meetings by 
invitation. Further members of the 
management of the Company were 
invited to participate in the meeting as 
and when the necessity arose.

Financial Reporting and Audit

The External Auditors are responsible 
for auditing the annual consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards 
and ensuring that the financial statements 
truly and fairly present the results of 
operations and the financial position of 
the Company. The External Auditors are 
also responsible for issuing a report on 
those financial statements. The Audit 
Committee monitors and oversees these 
processes.

The Committee reviewed and discussed 
with Management the un-audited 
quarterly financial statements and the 
full year financial statements prior to 
the recommendation of same to the 
Board. The Group Chief Financial Officer 
provided confirmation to the Audit 
Committee that the said full year financial 
statements were prepared in accordance 
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
and the information required by the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 therein, 
presented a true and fair view of the 
Company’s state of affairs as at that date.

The Committee also reviewed and 
discussed with the External Auditor and 
management, the matters communicated 
to the Committee in the management 
letter. Some of these included a focus 
on the controls and risks related to 
information systems that are used to 
ensure integrity of the data used to 
prepare the financial statements. The 
Committee suggested remedial action as 
required based on the recommendations 
of the External Auditor.

The Committee carried out an evaluation 
of the External Auditors to establish 
their independence and objectivity. The 
evaluation included the review of policies 
and procedures to ensure independence 
as well as a review of the non-audit 
services provided by the Auditors to 
Abans PLC. The Audit Committee has 
recommended to the Board of Directors 
that Ernst and Young be reappointed as 
Auditors for the financial year ending 31st 
March 2020.

Internal Audit, Risks and Controls

The Audit Committee reviewed the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal 
controls and corporate risks which are 
under the purview of the Chief Internal 
Auditor to provide reasonable assurance 
that there is no material misstatement or 
loss, the Group’s assets are safeguarded 
and the financial information used within 
the business and for external reporting is 
reliable.

The Audit Committee receives regular 
reports on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of internal controls in the Group, 
compliance with laws and regulations and 
established policies and procedures of the 
Group. 

The Chief Internal Auditor prepared an 
annual internal audit plan which was 
approved by the Committee and has 
direct access to the chairman of the Audit 
Committee.

On behalf of the Board Audit Committee,

Hiran Embuldeniya 
Chairman

Audit Committee 
29th May 2019
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BOARD REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Role of the Committee

The Committee is entrusted with the 
responsibility to evaluate, assess, 
decide and recommend, to the Board of 
Directors, on any matters that may affect 
the remuneration structure and policies 
of the Company. The Committee reviews 
the remuneration and other benefits of 
personnel, along with the Recruitment 
and Performance Appraisal process. This 
is with the objective of ensuring that the 
Company is geared to attract, grow and 
retain employees with appropriate skills 
and competencies, who could further 
the key objectives of the Company. The 
Committee also reviews the policies and 
parameters of the remuneration structure 
for staff members and provides inputs on 
implementing the same.

Members

The Board Remuneration Committee 
comprises the following personnel:

• Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya - Independent 
Non-Executive Director

• Mr. Rajaratnam Selvaskandan - 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
appointed w.e.f. 23rd May 2018.

• Mr. Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne - 
Chairman (Former Independent 
Non-Executive Director) - up to 16th 
August 2018. 

The committee met on four occasions 
during the year under review and all 
members attended the meetings. The 
Executive Director, General Managers and 
the Head of HR attended by invitation, 
when needed. 

The attendance of the members at these 
meetings were as follows:

Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya 3/4

Mr. Rajaratnam Selvaskandan 2/2

Mr. Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne 2/2

Remuneration and Benefits provided:

The remuneration provided to 
employees consists of a fixed basic 
salary component and allowances and a 
variable portion which is conditional upon 
performance of the Company and the 
individual. Employees also enjoy other 
benefits such as medical, travel and etc 
where applicable and in keeping with the 
market practices. No remuneration is paid 
to the Non-Executive Directors other than 
the Directors fees paid for participation at 
Board meetings.

The committee reviewed information in 
related to remuneration and retention 
ratios of staff members with the objective 
of ensuring that individual performance 
reviews are more closely linked to the 
corporate objectives, as it helps with 
the retention of key personnel. External 
Compensation Surveys were also studied 
to validate these assumptions. The 
committee also assessed and made 
recommendations on Annual increments 
and bonuses, where required and on KPI 
introduction. 

Conclusion

Following the discussions at Committee 
meetings, the Chairman of the Committee 
reports to the Board on the Committee’s 
findings and recommendations, on 

matters related to Remuneration 
and Performance Management. The 
Committee is satisfied that the Company 
follows appropriate recruitment, 
appraisal and remuneration policies and 
procedures, which reasonably ensure 
that the Human Capital of the Company 
is retained and developed. There is 
severe competition for talent in the 
market and the Company will need to 
continually evolve in this area, to keep 
abreast with the growth aspirations of 
the organisation. Technology will also 
increasingly influence the approach taken 
towards talent management. 

Rajaratnam Selvaskandan

Chairman,

Remuneration Committee
29th May 2019
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GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ‘S STATEMENT

Financial Reporting 

The Significant Accounting Policies used 
in the preparation of the consolidated 
Financial Statements are appropriate 
and are consistently applied, except 
unless otherwise stated in the notes 
accompanying the Financial Statements. 
The Significant Accounting Policies and 
estimates that involved a high degree 
of judgment and complexity were 
discussed with the Audit Committee 
and Company’s External Auditors. There 
are no departures from the prescribed 
Accounting Standards in their adoption. 
Comparative information has been 
reclassified wherever necessary to 
comply with the current presentation.

The Board of Directors and the 
management of the Company accept 
responsibility for the integrity and 
objectivity of these Financial Statements. 
The estimates and judgments relating 
to the Financial Statements were made 
on a prudent and reasonable basis, in 
order that the Financial Statements reflect 
a true and fair view and the form and 
substance of transactions reasonably 
present the Company’s state of affairs.

I confirm that to the best of our 
knowledge, the Financial Statements, 
significant Accounting Policies and other 
financial information included in this 
Annual Report, fairly present all material 
aspects regarding the financial position, 

results of the operations and the Cash 
Flows of the Group during the year under 
review.

System of Internal Control

All accounting controls are continually 
updated to ensure prudence and 
completeness, prevention and detection 
of fraud and other irregularities. This 
ensures accounting records are free from 
error and omission. The internal control 
system in place functions appropriately 
and it is regularly evaluated. The 
procedures and guidelines are updated 
whenever necessary.

The Internal Auditors of the Company 
periodically review the processes of the 
company and provide an assurance that 

" THE FInAncIAl 
sTATEMEnTs rEFlEcT In A 
TruE AnD FAIr MAnnEr, 
THE FOrM AnD subsTAncE 
OF TrAnsAcTIOns, AnD 
rEAsOnAbly prEsEnT 
THE cOMpAny’s sTATE OF 
AFFAIrs AnD HAvE ApplIED 
THE gOIng cOncErn 
bAsIs In prEpArIng THEsE 
FInAncIAl sTATEMEnTs."
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the established policies and procedures 
of the Company have been consistently 
followed. However, there are inherent 
limitations that should be recognized 
in weighing the assurances provided 
by any system of internal controls and 
accounting.

Report of Independent Auditors

The financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year end of 31st March 
2019 were audited by Messrs Ernst & 
Young and the financial statements of the 
subsidiary companies were audited by 
the appointed auditors.

The Audit Committee of the Company 
meets on a quarterly basis. Internal 
Auditors and the Independent External 
Auditors join the meeting on invitation 
when necessary to review the manner 
in which these Auditors execute their 
audit procedures and to discuss major 
variations, observations, internal control 
and financial reporting issues. To ensure 
complete independence, the Independent 
External Auditors and the Internal 
Auditors have full and free access to 
the members of the Audit Committee to 
discuss matters of substance.

Conclusion 

I confirm that to the best of my 
knowledge: 

•  The Group has complied with all 
applicable laws, regulations and 
guidelines and there is no material 
litigation against the Group.

• The system of internal control is 
operating effectively.

• The Financial Statements reflect 
in a true and fair manner, the form 

and substance of transactions, and 
reasonably present the Company’s 
state of affairs and have applied the 
Going Concern basis in preparing 
these Financial Statements.

• All taxes, duties, levies and all 
statutory payments by the Group 
and all contributions, levies and taxes 
payable on behalf of and in respect 
of the employees of the Group as at 
31st March 2019 have been paid, or 
where relevant provided for.

 
 
Chandrika Perera

Group Chief Financial Officer

30 May 2019

 Financial Reports | 



ABANS PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

134

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF  
ABANS PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements 
of Abans PLC (“the Company”) and the 
consolidated financial statements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the 
Group”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2019 and 
the statement of profit or loss, statement 
of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial 
statements of the Company and the 
Group give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Company and the 
Group as at 31 March 2019, and of their 
financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards. 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards 
(SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the financial statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.  

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, 
in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements 
as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that 
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities 
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial statements 
section of our report, including in relation 
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures 
designed to respond to our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements. The results of our 
audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, 
provide the basis for our audit opinion on 
the accompanying financial statements.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Inventory

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of inventories 

amounted to Rs.8,483 million representing 25% of the total 

assets, after considering a provision of Rs.341 million for 

slow moving inventory.  Since the inventory is held at multiple 

locations and the significance of the inventory balance relative 

to the total assets of the Group, the existence and valuation 

of inventory required significant audit attention. As such, we 

determined this as a key audit matter.

Our Substantive procedures, included amongst others, the following 

on a sample basis: 

• Attended inventory counts at selected locations and reconciling 

the count results to the inventory listings compiled by 

management to support closing inventory as disclosed in 

 Note 18

• Re-performed actual costing calculations to support valuation of 

inventories; 

• Evaluated the basis applied by management in recording 

provision for slow moving inventory.

• Tested the net realisable value of the inventory by comparing 

with the post year-end sale prices of similar goods.

We also evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures in Note 18 the 

financial statements.

Adoption of new accounting standard SLFRS 15 – Revenue 

from Contracts with Customers.

During the year, the Group adopted SLFRS 15 - Revenue from 

Contracts with Customers (the New Revenue Standard) which 

specifies how and when an entity should recognize revenue 

along with the need to provide users of financial statements 

with more informative, relevant disclosures

Considering the requirements of the new standard along with 

relevant clarifications and guidance specifically relating to 

the point of revenue recognition i.e. at a point in time or over 

the period, identification of performance obligation, agent vs 

principal relationships, etc have been considered as significant 

owing to the Group’s involvement in its retail sector. 

Considering the above matters, we determined the Group’s 

adoption of the New Revenue Standard during the current year 

audit as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures focused on the Group’s adoption of the New 

Revenue Standard and included, amongst others, the following:

• We assessed the process followed by the Group to ensure all 

revenue streams are considered in its assessment and that 

the related contracts reviewed are representative of specified 

revenue streams & contractual terms.

• We perused Management’s correspondence with legal officers 

and other consultants to assess the reasonability of the final 

conclusions reached on matters such as point and amount of 

revenue recognition for adoption of the new revenue standard.

• We involved internal specialists in assessing the management's 

conclusions over revenue recognition relating to retail industry 

specific contractual terms/practices. 

In addition, we assessed the adequacy of the related financial 

statement disclosures in Note No 5.1

 (Contd...)
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for impairment of loans & leases including 

Company’s transition to SLFRS 9:

Our audit considered impairment for loans and Leases as a 

key audit matter. The materiality of the reported amounts for 

loans and leases (and impairment thereof), the subjectivity 

associated with management’s impairment estimation, 

complex manual calculations of impairment and transition 

to Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial 

Instruments (SLFRS 9) underpinned our basis for considering it 

as a Key Audit Matter.

As at 31 March 2019, loans & advances and receivables from 

lease & hire purchase (net of impairment) amounted to Rs. 

2,087 Million (Note 11.2) and Rs. 5,255 Million (Note 11.1)  

and 5,221 (Note 30.1) respectively net of total allowance for 

impairment of LKR 202 Million (Note 11.2) and 589 Million 

(Note 11.1). These collectively contributed 38 % to the 

Company’s total assets. The impact on transition to SLFRS 9 

on the Group’s Financial Statements has been quantified and 

presented in the Note 28.3 to the Financial Statements.  

The allowance for impairment (both specific and collective) 

of these financial assets is estimated by management.  

Assumptions used by management in this calculation are 

inherently judgemental.  Note 2.1.2 to the financial statements 

more fully describes the sensitivity of key assumptions.

To assess the reasonableness of the allowance for impairment, we 

carried out audit procedures (among others) to obtain sufficient and 

appropriate audit evidences, that included the following:

• We evaluated the design, implementation and operating 

effectiveness of key internal controls over estimation of 

impairment for loans and leases, which included assessing the 

level of oversight, review and approval of impairment policies by 

the Board Audit Committee and management.

• We test - checked the underlying calculations and data used in 

such calculations on a sample basis;

• In addition to the above, focused procedures were performed as 

follows: 

• For those individually assessed for impairment:

 For a sample of non – performing loans & leases, management’s 

forecasts of cash flows were test – checked to historical 

patterns of customer repayment. Among other procedures, 

forecast cash flows arising from collateral (or other source(s) of 

expected recovery) were verified to source documents;

• For those collectively assessed for impairment:

 we tested the completeness of the underlying information used 

in the impairment calculations by agreeing details to the source 

documents and information in IT system.

 we also considered reasonableness of macro-economic and 

other factors used by management in their judgemental over-

lays, by comparing them with relevant publicly available data 

and information sources.

• By using a set of audit procedures similar to those enumerated 

above , we validated the quantitative impact of the transition

• We assessed the adequacy of the related financial statement 

disclosures as set out in note 28.3 (transition note)

Other Information included in the 
2019 Annual Report 

Other information consists of the 
information included in the Annual Report, 
other than the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Management 
is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements 
does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the 
financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the management 
and those charged with governance

Management is responsible for the 
preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 
and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
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In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing 
the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.  

Those charged with governance are 
responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
and the Group’s financial reporting 
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SLAuSs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 
SLAuSs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the 
internal controls of the Company and 
the Group.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

  • Conclude on the appropriateness 
of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause 
the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.  

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group 
to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of 
the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged 
with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our 
audit.  

We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we 
have complied with ethical requirements 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with 
those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements  

As required by section 163 (2) of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we 
have obtained all the information and 
explanations that were required for the 
audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records 
have been kept by the Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of 
the engagement partner responsible for 
signing this independent auditor’s report 
is 1864.  

30 May 2019
Colombo
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Group Company

Year Ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Notes LKR LKR LKR LKR

Continuing Operations

Revenue 5.1 35,260,655,869  40,215,826,231  33,291,479,651  37,527,175,974 

Cost of Sales  (24,663,692,004)  (29,327,293,359)  (23,782,151,253)  (28,129,729,269)

Gross Profit  10,596,963,865  10,888,532,872  9,509,328,398  9,397,446,705 

Other Operating Income & Gain 5.2  944,560,358  906,765,853  777,555,102  910,932,697 

Selling & Distribution Expenses (4,909,179,144)  (5,814,994,813)  (4,749,884,515)  (5,507,950,119)

Administrative Expenses  (3,960,875,507)  (3,786,449,734)  (3,162,658,028)  (2,818,591,732)

Results from Operating Activities  2,671,469,572  2,193,854,178  2,374,340,957  1,981,837,551 

Finance Cost 5.3  (1,458,371,720)  (1,593,793,025)  (1,458,371,720)  (1,588,949,872)

Finance Income 5.4  27,947,369  59,320,957  28,520,194  58,050,637 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties 10.1  42,812,300  18,405,400  42,812,300  18,405,400 

Share of  Profit of Equity Accounted Investee (Net of Tax) 15.4.3  (70,385,763)  (123,881,345)  -    -   

Profit before Income Tax and Value Added 
Tax on Financial Services from Continuing 

Operations  1,213,471,758  553,906,165  987,301,731  469,343,716 

Value Added Tax on Financial Services  (77,948,458)  (63,086,673)  (7,501,184)  (2,843,347)

Income Tax Expense 6.1  (212,283,926)  (154,927,224)  (105,621,010)  (44,402,671)

Profit for the year from Continued Operation 923,239,374  335,892,268 874,179,537  422,097,698 

Discontinued Operations

Loss for the Year from Discontinued 
Operations 29  (18,223,987)  (160,532,128)  -    -   

Profit  for the Year 905,015,387  175,360,140  874,179,537  422,097,698 

Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Parent  893,929,641  137,774,100  874,179,537  422,097,698 

Non-Controlling Interest  11,085,746  37,586,040 -  -   

905,015,387  175,360,140  874,179,537  422,097,698 

Earnings Per Share -Basic / Diluted 7 409.12  63.05 400.8  193.18 

Dividend Per Share (160.20) (3.07) (160.20) -

Note - Figures in brackets indicate deductions

The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 145 to 241 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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Group Company

Year Ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Notes LKR LKR LKR LKR

Profit  for the Year 905,015,387  175,360,140 874,179,537  422,097,698 

Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive Income not to be 
Reclassified to Profit or Loss in Subsequent 
Periods :

Revaluation Gain from Land and Buildings   -    109,271,185  -    53,782,533 

Actuarial Gains/(Loss) on Employee Benefits 
Liabilities 25.2  3,336,570  (3,781,495)  26,400  (5,503,959)

Revaluation Gain from Equity Accounted 
Investee- Associate (Net of Tax)  44,168,749  133,106,928  -    -   

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) from Equity 
Accounted Investee- Associate 15.4.3  1,471,386  432,871  -    -   

Tax Effect on above 6.2  (936,047)  (121,406,554)  (7,392)  (105,481,148)

Net Other Comprehensive Income Year from 
Discontinued Operations  -    5,801,658  -    -   

Net Other Comprehensive Income not to be 
Reclassified to Profit or Loss in Subsequent 
Periods  48,040,658  123,424,593  19,008  (57,202,574)

Other Comprehensive Income to be 
Reclassified to Profit or Loss in Subsequent 
Periods:  -    -    -    -   

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the 
Year, Net of Tax  48,040,658  123,424,593  19,008  (57,202,574)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, 
Net of Tax 953,056,045  298,784,733  874,198,545  364,895,124 

Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Parent 940,768,532  261,360,504  874,198,545  364,895,124 

Non-Controlling Interest  12,287,513  37,424,229 -  -   

953,056,045  298,784,733  874,198,545  364,895,124 

Note - Figures in brackets indicate deductions

The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 145 to 241 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Group Company

   As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Notes LKR LKR LKR LKR

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 8  1,374,930,571  1,289,794,534  1,232,284,592  1,028,267,905 

Leasehold Land Payments 9  249,494,948  252,121,211  249,494,948  252,121,211 

Investment Properties 10  411,295,700  368,483,400  411,295,700  368,483,400 

Intangible Assets 12  60,161,321  62,321,966  27,389,805  39,392,067 

Investments in Subsidiaries 13  -    -    3,218,824,336  3,350,205,286 

Investments in Equity Accounted Investee 15 3,224,789,029 2,565,517,038  30,752,197  30,752,197 

Deferred Tax Assets 6.5  205,795,592  339,604,149  186,522,004  166,190,844 

Other Non Current Financial Assets 16  15,080,400  15,180,400  15,000,000  15,100,000 

Lease Rentals Receivable 11.1  2,164,843,153  1,902,247,599  -    -   

Loans and Advances 11.2  738,430,688  699,362,750  -    -   

8,444,821,402  7,494,633,047  5,371,563,582  5,250,512,910 

Current Assets

Inventories 18  8,483,307,868  9,643,842,076  8,430,497,092  8,421,261,747 

Trade and Other Receivables 17  10,047,608,157  11,641,390,353 9,783,319,788  11,511,575,105 

Lease Rentals Receivable 11.1 3,090,169,126  2,590,048,596  -    -   

Loans and Advances 11.2  1,348,206,614  1,694,617,561  -    -   

Income Tax Receivables  401,884,337  378,301,672 336,644,172  279,569,503 

Other Current Financial Assets 16  490,103,100  795,143,892  4,529,744  4,912,668 

Securities Purchased under Repurchase 
Agreement 19  281,537,224  362,248,075  -    -   

Cash and Short Term Deposits 20  685,625,260  998,411,077  417,580,012  581,890,941 

 24,828,441,686  28,104,003,302  18,972,570,808  20,799,209,964 

Total Assets 33,273,263,088  35,598,636,349 24,344,134,390  26,049,722,874 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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Group Company

   As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Notes LKR LKR LKR LKR

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Stated Capital 21  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000 

Other Components of Equity 22 652,785,481  614,474,187 338,394,043  345,809,043 

Retained Earnings  7,165,059,899  6,660,402,634 5,691,400,413  5,171,954,708 

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 8,036,345,380  7,493,376,821 6,248,294,456  5,736,263,751 

Non-Controlling Interests  844,269,817  880,906,220  -    -   

Total Equity 8,880,615,197  8,374,283,041 6,248,294,456  5,736,263,751 

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings 23  2,858,832,738  4,089,711,740  2,465,700,000  3,979,655,003 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 6.5  44,981,468  40,922,077 -  -   
Employee Benefits Liabilities 25  268,076,957  299,810,447  229,563,633  226,271,787 

Trade and Other Payables 26  1,099,094,047  1,297,219,575  -    -   

 4,270,985,210  5,727,663,839  2,695,263,633  4,205,926,790 
Current Liabilities 
Warranty Provision 24  301,323,250  384,590,022  300,527,268  375,330,434 
Trade and Other Payables 26 9,985,769,432  11,859,325,355  5,813,802,406  7,518,991,712 
Income Tax Liabilities 8,822,247 - - -

Interest Bearing Borrowings 23  9,825,747,752  9,252,774,092  9,286,246,627  8,213,210,187 

20,121,662,681  21,496,689,469  15,400,576,301  16,107,532,333 

Total Equity and Liabilities 33,273,263,088  35,598,636,349  24,344,134,390  26,049,722,874 

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No :07 of 2007.

Chandrika Perera 
Group Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors is Responsible for These Financial Statements. Signed for and on Behalf of the Board By.

  
Aban Pestonjee  Behman Pestonjee  
Chairperson Managing Director

 
The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 145 to 241 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
 
30 May 2019 
Colombo, Sri Lanka
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Group  Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent 

 Non- 

 Stated  Revaluation  Other  Retained  Controlling  Total 

 Capital  Reserve  Reserves  Earnings  Total  Interest  Equity 

 LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  218,500,000  395,864,337  96,681,829  6,494,341,561  7,205,387,727  422,416,867  7,627,804,594 

Net Profit for the Year  -    -    -    137,774,100  137,774,100  37,586,040  175,360,140 

Other Comprehensive Income  -    102,955,283  -    646,279  103,601,562  19,823,031  123,424,593 

Total Comprehensive Income  -    102,955,283  -    138,420,379  241,375,662  57,409,071  298,784,733 

Change in Holding Percentage without 
Change in Controlling power  -    -    -    46,613,432  46,613,432  407,779,821  454,393,253 

Transfers to/(from) during the Year  -    -    18,972,738  (18,972,738)  -    -    -   

Dividends  -    -    -    -    -    (6,699,539)  (6,699,539)

Balance as at 31 March 2018  218,500,000  498,819,620  115,654,567  6,660,402,634  7,493,376,821  880,906,220  8,374,283,041 

Effect of adopting new accounting 
standards (28.7)  -    -    -    (43,990,786)  (43,990,786)  (30,032,953)  (74,023,739)

Restated Balance under SLFRS 
Adjustment 1 April 2018  218,500,000  498,819,620  115,654,567 6,616,411,848 7,449,386,035  850,873,267 8,300,259,302

Net Profit for the Year  -    -    -    893,929,641  893,929,641  11,085,746  905,015,387 

Other Comprehensive Income  -    44,168,749  -    2,670,142  46,838,891  1,201,767  48,040,658 

Total Comprehensive Income  -    44,168,749  -    896,599,783  940,768,532  12,287,513  953,056,045 

Changes in Ownership Interest in 
Subsidiary  -    -    -    (585,467)  (585,467)  (18,890,963)  (19,476,430)

Disposal of Subsidiary  -    (3,186,720)  -    -    (3,186,720)  -    (3,186,720)

Transfers to/(from) during the year - -  (2,670,735)  2,670,735  -   -  -   

Dividends  -    -    -    (350,037,000)  (350,037,000)  -    (350,037,000)

Balance as at 31 March 2019  218,500,000  539,801,649 112,983,832 7,165,059,899 8,036,345,380  844,269,817  8,880,615,197 

Company  

 Stated  Revaluation  Other  Retained 

 Capital  Reserve  Reserves  Earnings  Total 

 LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  218,500,000  391,633,767  7,415,000  4,753,819,860  5,371,368,627 
Net Profit for the Year  -    -    -    422,097,698  422,097,698 

Other Comprehensive Income  -    (53,239,724)  -    (3,962,850)  (57,202,574)

Total Comprehensive Income  -    (53,239,724)  -    418,134,848  364,895,124 

Dividends  -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31 March 2018  218,500,000  338,394,043  7,415,000  5,171,954,708  5,736,263,751 

Effect of adopting new accounting standards (28.7)  -    -    -    (12,130,840)  (12,130,840)

Restated Balance under SLFRS Adjustment 1 April 2018  218,500,000  338,394,043  7,415,000 5,159,823,868 5,724,132,911

Net Profit for the Year  -    -    -    874,179,537  874,179,537 

Other Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    19,008  19,008 

Total Comprehensive Income  -    -    -   874,198,545  874,198,545 

Transfers to/(from) during the year - - (7,415,000)  7,415,000 -

Dividends  -    -    -    (350,037,000)  (350,037,000)

Balance as at 31 March 2019  218,500,000  338,394,043 - 5,691,400,413  6,248,294,456 

Note - Figures in brackets indicate deductions

The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 145 to 241 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group Company

   As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Notes LKR LKR LKR LKR

Cash Flows From/(Used in) Operating 

Activities

Profit before Tax  from Continuing Operation  1,213,471,758  553,906,165  987,301,731  469,343,716 

Loss from Discontinued Operation 29.1  (35,792,574)  (265,329,580)  -    -   

 1,177,679,184  288,576,585  987,301,731  469,343,716 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation - Property Plant & Equipment 8  147,135,449  154,958,434  123,577,882  116,808,845 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties 10.1  (42,812,300)  (18,405,400)  (42,812,300)  (18,405,400)

Amortization of Intangible Assets & Prepaid Rent  22,976,939  21,164,680  19,210,602  17,199,862 

Reversal of Land Impairment  -    (4,718,332)  -    -   

Change in Fair Value of Quoted Shares  382,924  7,624,540  382,924  132 

Income from Investments  (650,019,130)  (604,383,126)  (653,794,505)  (629,886,347)

(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Assets  (2,156,598)  (7,549,196)  (2,156,598)  (6,366,331)

Effect of adopting new accounting standards  (74,023,739)  -    (12,130,840)  -   

(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Subsidiaries -  -    149,686,446  -   

(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Other Investment (1,780,000) - (1,780,000) -

(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Subsidiaries 35,792,574 - - -

Finance Costs 5.4  1,458,371,720  1,593,793,025  1,458,371,720  1,588,949,872 

Share of Associate (Profit)/Loss 15  (31,930,870)  (18,664,911)  -    -   

Share of Loss from Joint Venture 15  102,316,633  142,546,256  -    -   

Provision for Warranty 24  211,122,823  331,312,482  219,851,167  380,960,304 

Employee Benefit Obligation Transferred 25  (3,668,449)  444,346  (3,668,449)  29,657,198 

Provision for Employee Benefits Liabilities 25  55,624,310  65,223,263  46,306,988  46,609,210 

Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working 

Capital Changes  2,405,011,470  1,951,922,646  2,288,346,768  1,994,871,061 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  7,880,393  1,532,954,861  (9,235,345)  1,334,984,138 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other 
Receivables  384,485,231  (2,897,551,386)  1,728,255,317  (3,415,003,706)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables  (1,237,785,726)  672,989,067  (1,705,189,306)  1,311,927,639 

Cash Generated from/(used in) Operations  1,559,591,368  1,260,315,188 2,203,177,434  1,226,779,132 

Finance Cost Paid  (1,409,390,728)  (1,494,501,444)  (1,409,390,728)  (1,516,526,358)

Employee Benefits Liabilities Paid 25  (45,847,699)  (24,661,259)  (39,320,293)  (14,841,926)

Repair Charges Paid 24  (294,389,595)  (291,976,335)  (294,654,333)  (284,897,751)

Income Tax Paid  (300,052,775)  (322,669,683)  (190,535,415)  (189,222,462)

Net Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities  (490,089,430)  (873,493,533)  368,276,665  (778,709,365)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Group Company

   As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Notes LKR LKR LKR LKR

Cash Flows from / (Used in) Investing 

Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 8  (353,970,438)  (199,552,509)  (335,115,185)  (145,970,116)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets 12  (19,988,374)  (16,718,884)  (4,582,077)  (15,327,287)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and 
Equipment  9,677,214  52,433,348  9,677,214  45,638,081 
(Acquisition)/Proceeds From  Other Investments 306,537,868  (81,520,468) 1,880,000  10,224,521 
Dividend Received  650,019,130  604,383,126  653,794,505  629,886,347 
Net Proceeds From  Subsidiary Investments  516,669,508  -    343,620,000  -   
Investments in Subsidiaries 13  (18,305,496)    -    (361,925,496)  (2,241,718,575)
Investments In Joint Ventures 15  (688,407,590)  -    -    2,423,593,870 

Securities Purchased under Repurchase 
Agreement  80,710,851  (111,438,185)  -    -   

Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities 482,942,673  247,586,428 307,348,961  706,326,841 

Cash Flows from (Used in) Financing 

Activities
Proceeds from Import Financing Loans  19,283,979,450  25,528,445,971  19,283,979,450  25,528,445,971 
Repayment of Import Financing Loans  (19,172,022,926)  (24,780,605,427)  (19,172,022,925)  (24,780,605,427)
Proceeds from Bank Loans  3,617,397,720  10,799,275,735  3,172,397,720  9,537,352,932 
Net Impact on Ownership Change without 
change in controlling power  -    454,393,253  -    -   
Repayment of Bank Loans  (3,343,776,121)  (9,654,955,178)  (3,072,392,789)  (8,450,216,724)
Proceeds from Commercial Papers  160,692,745  -    160,692,745  -   
Repayment of Commercial Papers  (156,092,312)  (165,855,131)  (156,092,312)  (165,855,131)
Repayment of Debentures - Listed - Unsecured  (828,414,959)  (1,682,319,847)  (828,414,959)  (1,682,319,847)
Proceeds from Securitization  420,593,845  -    -    -   
Repayment of Finance Lease Liabilities  -    (8,106,021)  -    (1,183,372)

Dividends Paid  (350,037,000)  (6,699,539)  (350,037,000)  -   

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities  (367,679,558)  483,573,816  (961,890,070)  (14,381,598)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Short 

Term Deposits  (374,826,315)  (142,333,289)  (286,264,444)  (86,764,122)

Cash and Short Term Deposits at the 

beginning of the Year 20  676,154,545  818,487,834  448,248,612  535,012,734 

Cash and Short Term Deposits at the end of 

the Year 20 301,328,230  676,154,545  161,984,168  448,248,612 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand and at bank 20.1  685,625,260  998,411,077  417,580,012  581,890,941 
Bank Overdraft 20.2  (384,297,030)  (322,256,532)  (255,595,844)  (133,642,329)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end for the 

purpose of statement of cash flow 301,328,230  676,154,545  161,984,168  448,248,612 

The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 145 to 241 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 Reporting Entity

Abans PLC is a Public Limited Liability Company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka and listed in 
Colombo Stock Exchange. The registered office of 
the Company and the principal place of business are 
situated at No. 498, Galle Road, Colombo 03. 

1.2 Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of Abans PLC, as 
at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, encompasses 
the Company, its subsidiaries (together referred to as the 
“Group”) and the Group’s interests in Equity Accounted 
investees (Associates and Joint Ventures).

1.3 Parent Entity and Ultimate Parent Entity 

The Company’s parent entity as at 31 March 2019 is 
Abans Retail Holdings (Pvt) Ltd and the ultimate parent 
of the Company is Abans International (Pvt) Ltd. On 29 
March 2018 Abans Retail Holdings (Pvt) Ltd acquired 
entire shares of Abans PLC and became a wholly owned 
Subsidiary of Abans Retail Holdings (Pvt) Ltd.

1.4 Approvals of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of Abans PLC and Its 
Subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2019 were 
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of 
the board of directors on the 30 May 2019.

1.5 Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors is responsible for financial 
statements.

1.6 Principal Activities & Nature of Operations 

 Parent Company- Abans PLC

During the year, the principal activities of the Company 
were importing and marketing of electrical and electronic 
home appliances, crockery and cookware, sanitary and 
light fittings, a host of other household items, footwear 
and textile and carrying out electro mechanical contract 
work.

 Subsidiary - Abans Finance PLC

During the year, the principal activities of the Company 
were acceptance of Deposits, granting Lease facilities, 
Hire Purchase, Mortgage Loans and other credit 
facilities, Real Estate Development and related services.

 Associate - Abans Electricals PLC

The principal activities of the Company were 
manufacturing and assembling household electrical 
and electronic appliances and providing repairs and 
maintenance and technical services of similar type of 
appliances.

 Joint Venture - Colombo City Centre Partners (Pvt) 
Limited

The principle activity of the Company is to carry out 
mix development project. The project consist mall 
residences and a hotel.

2. GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost basis, except for Land and Buildings, 
Fair value through profit or loss financial assets, As per 
SLFRS 9- Financial Assets FVTOCI and defined benefit 
plans which are measured at present value of retirement 
benefits obligation as explained in the respective notes 
in the financial statement.

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements which comprise the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial 
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows together with the Accounting 
Polices and Notes have been prepared in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS) 
as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the requirement of the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.
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2.1.2 Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted by the Group are 
consistent with those used in the previous financial year 
except for below.

The Company applied SLFRS 15 and SLFRS 9 for the 
first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a 
result of adoption of these new accounting standards 
are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply 
for the first time, but do not have an impact on the 
Financial Statements of the Company. The Company 
has not early adopted any standards, interpretations 
or amendments that have been issued but are not yet 
effective.

 SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The objective of this Standard is to establish the 
principles that an entity shall apply to report useful 
information to users of financial statements about the 
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and 
cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

SLFRS 15 supersedes LKAS 11 Construction Contracts, 
LKAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations and it 
applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising 
from contracts with its customers. SLFRS 15 establishes 
a five-step model to account for revenue arising from 
contracts with customers and requires that revenue be 
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer.

SLFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, 
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and 
circumstances when applying each step of the model 
to contracts with their customers. The standard also 
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of 
obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to 
fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires 
extensive disclosures.

The Company adopted SLFRS 15 using the modified 
retrospective method of adoption. The Company did 
not apply any of the other available optional practical 

expedients. There are no material effects to Financial 
Statements due to the adoption of SLFRS 15. 

 SLFRS 9 -Financial Instruments

The Company has initially adopted SLFRS 9 with the 
date of transition as 1 April 2018. The Company has 
not early adopted this standard in previous periods. 
The adoption of SLFRS 9 has resulted in changes in 
accounting policies for recognition, classification and 
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 
and impairment of financial assets. SLFRS 9 significantly 
amends the other standards dealing with financial 
instruments such as SLFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: 
Disclosure’.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of SLFRS 
9, the Company elected not to restate comparative 
figures. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of 
financial assets and liabilities, at the date of transition 
were recognized in the retained earnings as at 1 April 
2018. Accordingly, the information presented for year 
2018 does not reflect the requirements of SLFRS 9 and 
therefore not comparable to the information presented 
for the year 2019 under SLFRS 9.

SLFRS 9 sets out the requirements for recognising 
and measuring financial assets and financial liabilities. 
This standard replaces LKAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement. The requirements of 
SLFRS 9 represents a significant change from LKAS 39. 
This new standard brings fundamental changes to the 
accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of 
accounting for financial liabilities.

Additionally, the Company has adopted consequential 
amendments to SLFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures that are applied to disclosures of 2018, but 
have not been applied to the comparative information.

The key changes to the Company’s accounting policies 
resulting from its adoption of SLFRS 9 are summarised 
below. The full impact of adopting SLFRS 9 is set out in 
Note 28.3.2 to the Financial Statements.

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 Classification of Financial Assets & Financial 
Liabilities 

SLFRS 9 contains three principal classification 
categories for financial assets: measured at amortised 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI) and Fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL).

SLFRS 9 classification is generally based on the 
business model in which a financial asset is managed 
and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

The LKAS 39 measurement categories of financial 
assets (fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), available 
for sale (AFS), held-to-maturity and amortised cost) have 
been replaced by:

– Debt instruments at amortised cost

– Debt instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI), with gains or 
losses recycled to profit or loss on derecognition

– Equity instruments at FVTOCI, with no recycling of 
gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition

– Financial assets at FVTPL 

 The Group classification of its financial assets 
and liabilities is explained in Note 2.3.16.4 to the 
Financial Statements. The quantitative impact of 
applying SLFRS 9 as at 01 April 2018 is disclosed in        
Note 28.3.1 to the Financial Statements.

 Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of SLFRS 9 has fundamentally changed 
the Company’s accounting for Trade Receivables 
impairment by replacing LKAS 39’s incurred loss 
approach with a forward looking expected credit loss 
(ECL) approach.

The SLFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance 
for ECLs for all Trade Receivables and other debt 
financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan 
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The 
allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the 
probability of default in the next twelve months unless 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
origination. 

Details of the Group impairment method are disclosed 
in Note 2.3.15.4 to the Financial Statements. The 
quantitative impact of applying SLFRS 9 as 01 April 
2018 is disclosed in Note 2.3.15.4 to the Financial 
Statements.

To reflect the differences between SLFRS 9 and LKAS 
39, Financial Instruments: Disclosures was updated 
and the Group has adopted it, together with SLFRS 
7, for the year beginning 01 April 2018.Changes 
include transition disclosures as shown in Note 28.3, 
detailed information about the ECL calculations such as 
assumptions and inputs are set out in Note 2.3.15.11 to 
the Financial Statements.

2.1.3 Comparative Information

The presentation and classification of the financial 
statements of the previous years have been amended, 
where relevant for better presentation and to be 
comparable with those of the current year.

Comparative figures have not been restated due to 
adoption of SLFRS 9.

2.1.4 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
they do not intend either to liquidate or cease trading.

2.1.5 Presentation and Functional Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees (LKR), the Group functional and presentation 
currency, which is the primary economic environment 
in which the Holding Company operates. Each entity in 
the Group uses the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which they operate as their functional 
currency.

2.1.6 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented 
separately in the Financial Statements. Items of a 
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately 
unless they are immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise 
the Financial Statements of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019. Control is achieved 
when the Group is exposed or has right, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over 
the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee 
if, and only if, the Group has:

• Power over the investee (i.e. Existing rights that give 
it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 
the investee)

• Exposure, or rights to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee

• The ability to use its power over the investee to 
affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting 
rights result in control. To support this presumption and 
when the Group has less than majority of the voting 
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it 
has power over an investee, including:

• The contractual agreement(s) with the other vote 
holders of the investee

• Rights arising from other contractual agreements

• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of 
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases 
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired 
or disposed of during the year are included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the 
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to 
control the Subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the 

equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the 
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the 
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial 
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting 
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, 
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, 
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it 
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), 
liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components 
of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at 
fair value.

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.3.1 Investment in an Associate and Joint Venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has 
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions 
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over 
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby 
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint 
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of 
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about 
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the 
parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining significant 
influence or joint control are similar to those necessary 
to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint 
venture are accounted for using the equity method.
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Under the equity method, the investment in an associate 
or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The 
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to 
recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets 
of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition 
date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is 
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is 
not tested for impairment separately.

The Statement of Profit or Loss reflects the Group’s 
share of the results of operations of the associate or 
joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees 
is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, 
when there has been a change recognised directly in 
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group 
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in 
the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and 
losses resulting from transactions between the Group 
and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the 
extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an 
associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the 
statement of profit or loss outside operating profit and 
represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling 
interests in the Subsidiaries of the associate or joint 
venture.

The Financial Statements of the associate or joint 
venture are prepared for the same reporting period as 
the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to 
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the 
Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group 
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint 
venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines 
whether there is objective evidence that the investment 
in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is 
such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of 
impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying 
value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit 
of an associate and a joint venture’ in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or 
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures 
and recognises any retained investment at its fair 
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of 
the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant 
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained 
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in 
profit or loss.

In the separate Financial Statements, Investment in Joint 
Ventures and Investments in Associates are carried at 
cost.

2.3.2 Transactions with Non-Controlling Interests

The profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary 
attributable to equity interests that are not owned by 
the parent, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, is 
disclosed separately under the heading ‘Non- controlling 
Interest’.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with 
non-controlling interests as transactions with parties 
external to the Group.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit 
balance.

2.3.3 Consolidation of Entities with Different Accounting 
Periods

The Financial Statements of all entities in the Group 
other than Colombo City Centre Partners (Pvt) Ltd, are 
prepared for a common financial year, which ends on 31 
March.

Colombo City Centre Partners (Pvt) Ltd with a 31 
December financial year end prepares for consolidation 
purpose, additional financial information as of the same 
date as the financial statements of the parent.

2.3.4 Current Versus Non-Current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the 
Statement of Financial Position based on current/non-
current classification. 
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An asset is current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in the normal operating cycle

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after 
the reporting period

Or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in the normal operating 
cycle

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting period

Or

• It does not have a right at the reporting date to 
defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

2.3.5 Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as 
investment in equity securities and non-financial assets 
such as land and buildings, at fair value at each balance 
sheet date. Fair-value related disclosures for financial 
instruments and non-financial assets that are measured 
at fair value or where fair values are disclosed, are 
summarised in the following notes:

• Disclosures for valuation methods, significant 
estimates and assumptions (Notes 03 and 28)

• Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement 
hierarchy (Note 28)

• Property, plant and equipment under revaluation 
model (Note 08)

• Financial instruments (including those carried at 
amortised cost) (Note 28)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset 
or transfer the liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability

Or

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described in Note 27.4.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, 
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

 Financial Reports | 



ABANS PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

151

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 
the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant 
assets, such as properties and significant liabilities, such 
as employee benefit liability.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group 
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as 
explained above.

2.3.6 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be 
incurred can be reliably measured, regardless of when 
the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
net of trade discounts and sales taxes. The following 
specific recognition criteria are used for the purpose of 
recognition of revenue that are in the scope of SLFRS15:

2.3.6.1 Performance obligations and revenue recognition 
policies

The following table provides information about the 
nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance 
obligations in contracts with customers, including 
significant payment terms, and the related revenue 
recognition policies under SLFRS 15 which the company 
has adopted in the current accounting period.

2.3.6.2 Sale of Goods and Services

Revenue from sale of equipment is recognised at the 
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to 
the customer.

The Group considers whether there are other promises 
in the contract that are separate performance obligations 
to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be 
allocated (e.g., subsequent services, customer loyalty 
points). In determining the transaction price for the 
sale of equipment, the Group considers the effects 
of variable consideration, the existence of significant 
financing components, noncash consideration, and 
consideration payable to the customer.

(a) Variable consideration 

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable 
amount, the Group estimates the amount of 
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange 
for transferring the goods to the customer. The 
variable consideration is estimated at contract 
inception and constrained until it is highly probable 
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount 
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur 
when the associated uncertainty with the variable 
consideration is subsequently resolved. 

Type of service Revenue recognition under 

SLFRS 15 

(applicable from 1 April 2018)

Revenue recognition under 

LKAS 18 

(applicable before 1 April 2018)

Change in Revenue

Air Conditioner sales 
agreements with free 
maintenance

The Revenue shall be recognized 
for each maintenance services 
as and when the maintenance is 
performed based on breakage 
(At the point of performance of 
the maintenance)

The Revenue is recognized at the 
point of time company 
receives the money and risk and 
rewards transferred.

Deferred Revenue - Rs. 30 Mn

Customer Loyalty Points Company estimates the 
likelihood of usage the loyalty 
points based on history and 
recognize revenue upon 
redemption.

The Company recognize the loy-
alty expense at the time of points 
are redeemed by the customers. 

Contract Liability - Rs. 6 Mn
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(b) Warranty Obligation

The Group typically provides warranties for general 
repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as 
required by law. These assurance-type warranties 
are accounted for under LKAS 37 Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. Refer 
to the accounting policy on warranty provisions in 
section (Significant accounting judgments, estimates 
and assumptions)

(c) Loyalty points programme

The Group has a loyalty points programme, which 
allows customers to accumulate points that can be 
redeemed for free products. The loyalty points give 
rise to a separate performance obligation as they 
provide a material right to the customer. A portion of 
the transaction price is allocated to the loyalty points 
awarded to customers based on relative stand-
alone selling price and recognised as a contract 
liability until the points are redeemed. Revenue is 
recognised upon redemption of products by the 
customer.

(‘c)  Free services

The Group recognises revenue from free services 
over time, using an input method to measure 
progress towards satisfaction of the free services 
over time. Group recognize the deferred revenue 
arisen from future free services and charge it to the 
revenue subsequently as above mentioned.

2.3.6.3  Interest income and Interest Expense

Under both SLFRS 9 and LKAS 39, interest income and 
interest expense is recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured 
at amortised cost. Interest income on interest bearing 
financial assets measured at FVTOCI under SLFRS 9, 
similarly to interest bearing financial assets classified 
as available-for-sale or held to maturity under LKAS 39 
is also recorded by using the EIR method. The EIR is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments or receipts through the expected life of the 
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter 
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset 
or financial liability.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset/
liability) is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises 
interest income/expense using a rate of return that 
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return 
over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises 
the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at 
various stages, and other characteristics of the product 
life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and 
charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial 
asset/liability are revised for reasons other than credit 
risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Statement of Financial Position with an increase or 
reduction in interest income/interest expense. The 
adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest 
income/Interest expense in the income statement.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired (as 
set out in Note 11.1 & 11.2) and is, therefore, regarded 
as‘Stage 3’, the Company calculates interest income by 
applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised 
cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures 
and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to 
calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial 
assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is 
recognised using the contractual interest rate under net 
interest income.

2.3.6.4 Fee and Commission Income and Expenses

Fee and commission income and expense that are 
integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset 
or financial liability are included in the effective interest 
rate.

Fee and Commission income – including account Credit 
related fees & commission, Service charge, Transfer 
Fees and other fees income – is recognised as the 
related services are performed. If a loan commitment is 
not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, then 
the related loan commitment fee is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the commitment period.
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Fees earned for the provision of services over a period 
of time are accrued over that period

A contract with a customer that results in a recognised 
financial instrument in the Company’s financial 
statements may be partially in the scope of SLFRS9 
and partially in the scope of SLFRS 15. If this is the 
case, then the Company first applies SLFRS 9 to 
separate and measure the part of the contract that is in 
the scope of SLFRS 9 and then applies SLFRS 15 to the 
residual.

Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to 
transaction and service fees, which are expensed as the 
services are received.

 Income from Government Securities and Securities 
purchased under Re-Sale Agreement

Discounts/ premium on Treasury bills &Treasury bonds 
are amortised over the period to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return. The coupon interest on treasury 
bonds is recognised on an accrualbasis. The interest 
income on securities purchased under resale agreement 
is recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual 
basis over the period of the agreement.

 Dividend

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the 
date the entity’s right to receive payment is established, 
which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend 
date.

 Gains and losses

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, 
plant & equipment are determined by comparing the net 
sales proceeds with the carrying amounts of property, 
plant & equipment and are recognised net within “other 
income” in profit or loss.

 Other income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

2.3.7 Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss on the basis of a direct association between 

the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of 
income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the 
business and in maintaining the property, plant and 
equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.3.8 Finance Costs

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings 
and financial leases that are recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss. The interest expense component of 
finance lease payments is allocated to each period 
during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost 
of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs 
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.3.9 Taxes

 Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly 
in equity is recognised in equity and not in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

 Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on 
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences, except:

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, 
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

• In respect of taxable temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint arrangements, 
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that 
the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward 
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilised, except:

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the 
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss

• In respect of deductible temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint arrangements, 
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
that it is probable that the temporary differences 
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable 
profit will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 

to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised 
to the extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit 
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax 
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset 
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred 
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

 Sales Tax

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount 
of sales tax, except:

• When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets 
or services is not recoverable from the taxation 
authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense item, as applicable

• When receivables and payables are stated with the 
amount of sales tax included 

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or 
payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial 
Position.

 VAT on Financial Services

VAT on Financial Services is calculated in accordance 
with VAT Act No. 14 of 2002 and subsequent  
amendment thereto.
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2.3.10 Foreign Currencies

The Financial Statements are presented in Sri 
Lanka Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and 
presentation currency. 

 Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by 
the Group entities at their respective functional currency 
spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for 
recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences 
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items 
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. 

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary measured at fair 
value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss 
on change in fair value in the item (i.e., the translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is 
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) or 
profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, 
respectively).

2.3.11 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognised if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset 
can be reliably measured.

Plant and equipment, construction in progress except 
for land & building are stated at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Such 
cost includes the cost of replacing component parts of 
the Property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs 
for long-term construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and 

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
Group derecognises the replaced part, and recognises 
the new part with its own associated useful life and 
depreciation. Likewise, when a major inspection is 
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the Property, plant and equipment as a replacement if 
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss as incurred.

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less 
accumulated depreciation on buildings and impairment 
losses recognised at the date of revaluation. Valuations 
are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that 
the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ 
materially from its fair value.

A revaluation surplus is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 
in the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent 
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same 
asset previously recognised in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss, in which case the increase is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss. A revaluation deficit is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to 
the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same 
asset recognised in the asset revaluation reserve. 

A transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to 
retained earnings is made for the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of 
the asset and depreciation based on the asset’s original 
cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the 
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to 
the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any 
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being 
sold is transferred to retained earnings. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated 
useful lives of the assets are disclosed in Note 8.11

An item of property, plant and equipment are 
derecognised upon replacement, disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use. 
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Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is 
included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the 
asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate.

2.3.12 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or 
contains, a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement 
is assessed for whether fulfillment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets 
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or 
assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an 
arrangement.

 Group as Lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance 
lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.

Finance lease assets are capitalised at the 
commencement of the lease at the inception date fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments 
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 
asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that 
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease 
term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance 
lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an 
operating expense in the statement of profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Prepayments that are classified as operating leases 
over land are disclosed as non-current assets in the 
statement of financial position.

 Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same 
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised 
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Agreements which transfer to counterparties 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the 
ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are 
classified as finance leases. When the Company is a 
lessor under finance leases the amounts due under 
the leases, after deduction of unearned charges, are 
included in ‘Lease rentals receivables and stock out on 
hire’. The finance income receivable is recognised in 
‘Net interest income’ over the periods of the leases so 
as to give a constant rate of return on the net investment 
in the leases.

2.3.13 Investment Properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, 
including transaction costs. The carrying value of an 
investment property includes the cost of replacing 
part of an existing investment property, at the time 
that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met, 
and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of the 
investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
the investment properties are stated at fair values, which 
reflect market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are 
included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in 
which they arise. Fair values are evaluated with sufficient 
frequency by an accredited external, independent valuer. 
Investment properties are derecognised either when they 
have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from their disposal. Any gains or losses on 
retirement or disposal are recognised in the statement of 
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profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property 
only when there is a change in use for a transfer from 
investment property to owner-occupied property, the 
deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value 
at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property 
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts 
for such property in accordance with the policy stated 
under property, plant and equipment up to the date of 
change in use. 

Where Group companies occupy a significant portion of 
the investment property of a subsidiary, such investment 
properties are treated as property, plant and equipment 
in the consolidated financial statements, and accounted 
using Group accounting policy for property, plant and 
equipment.

2.3.14 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 
initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding 
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and 
expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss when it is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 
either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over 
their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and 
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with 
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of 
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful 
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted 
for by changing the amortisation period or method, as 
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible 
assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss in the expense category consistent with 

the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not 
amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, 
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. 
The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually 
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to 
be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from 
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and are recognised in the statement of Profit 
or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.3.15 Financial Instruments-Initial Recognition, 
Classification and Subsequent Measurement

2.3.15.1 Date of Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised 
on the trade date.i.e.the date that the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. This includes “regular way trades”. Regular 
way trade means purchases or sales of financial assets 
with in the time frame generally established by regulation 
or convention in the market place.

2.3.15.2 Initial measurement of Financial Instruments    

The classification of financial instruments at initial 
recognition depends on their contractual terms and 
the business model for managing the instruments. 
Financial instruments are initially measured at their 
fair value ,except in the case of financial assets and 
financial liabilities  recorded at fair value through profit 
or loss (FVTPL),transaction costs are added to, or 
subtracted from, this amount. When the fair value of 
financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the 
transaction price, the Company accounts for “Day 1 
profit or loss”, as described below.
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2.3.15.3 ‘Day 1’ profit or loss 

When the transaction price differs from the fair value 
of other observable current market transactions in the 
same instrument, or based on a valuation technique 
whose variables include only data from observable 
markets, the Company recognises the difference 
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ 
profit or loss) in the Income Statement over the tenor 
of the financial instrument using effective interest rate 
method. In cases where fair value is determined using 
data which is not observable, the difference between 
the transaction price and model value is only recognised 
in the Income Statement when the inputs become 
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.  

2.3.15.4 Measurement categories of Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities

2.3.15.4 (a) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as 
measured at,

• Amortised cost, 

• fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI) or 

• Fair value through profit or loss.(FVTPL)

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost or 
at FVTPL when they are held for trading and derivative 
instruments or the fair value designation is applied.

2.3.15.4 (a) (i).Financial Assets at Amortised cost : 

The Group only measures loans, receivables, and other 
financial investments, at amortised cost if both of the 
following conditions are met:

• The financial asset is held within a business model 
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets consist of cash and bank balances, 
securities purchased under repurchase agreements, 
placement with banks, lease rentals receivable & stock 
out on hire, loan receivables, and other financial assets.

The categorization of the financial assets are based on 
the Satisfaction of SPPI Test by the financial assets and 
the business model applicable thereto. 

 Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level 
that best reflect how it manages groups of financial 
assets to achieve its business objective.

The Group’s business model is not assessed on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level 
of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable 
factors such as:

• How the performance of the business model and 
the financial assets held within that business model 
are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key 
management personnel

• The risks that affect the performance of the business 
model(and the financial assets held within that 
business model) and, in particular, the way those 
risks are managed

• How managers of the business are compensated 
(for example,whether the compensation is based 
on the fair values of the assets managed or on the 
contractual cash flows collected)

• The expected frequency, value and timing of sales 
are also important aspects of the Group assessment

The business model assessment is based on reasonably 
expected scenarios without taking “worst case” or 
“stress case” scenarios into account. If cash flows after 
initial recognition are realised in a way that is different 
from the Group original expectations, the Group does 
not change the classification of the remaining financial 
assets held in that business model, but incorporates 
such information when assessing newly originated or 
newly purchased financial assets going forward.
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 The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process, the Group 
assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify 
whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as 
the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition 
and may change over the life of the financial asset 
(for example, if there are repayments of principal or 
amortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a 
lending arrangement are typically the consideration for 
the time value of money and credit risk. To make the 
SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgement and 
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which 
the financial asset is denominated, and the period for 
which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms of that introduce a more 
than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the 
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic 
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial 
asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

2.3.15.5 (a) (ii) Equity instruments at FVTOCI 

 Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects 
to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments 
as equity instruments at FVTOCI when they meet the 
definition of definition of Equity under LKAS 32 Financial 
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. 
Such classification is determined on an instrument-by 
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never 
recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in profit or 
loss as other operating income when the right of the 
payment has been established, except when the Group 
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the 
cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are 
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVTOCI are not 
subject to an impairment assessment.

Currently, the Group has recorded its non- quoted equity 
investments FVTOCI at cost less ECL if any. The details 
of equity instruments at FVTOCI are given in Note 27 to 
the Financial Statements.

2.3.15.6 (a) (iii)Debt issued and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other 
borrowed funds are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on issue 
funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A 
compound financial instrument which contains both a 
liability and an equity component is separated at the 
issue date.

Currently, the Group has recorded Debt issued 
and other borrowed funds as Financial Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost in the form of term loans, short term 
loans and securitizations.

2.3.15.6 (b) Policy applicable up to 31 March 2018 

The Group classified its financial assets into one of 
the following categories, as per Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard LKAS 39 on ‘Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement’.

a) Financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL);

b) Loans & Receivables (L&R)

c) Held to Maturity (HTM) Financial assets

d) Financial assets available for sale

The Group determines the classification of its financial 
assets at initial recognition. The classification depends 
on the purpose for which the investments were acquired 
or originated and based on the Group ability to hold.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends 
on their classification.
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a)   Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or     
   Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial assets held for trading and financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair 
value through profit or loss.

The Group does not have financial assets under this 
category.

b) Financial Assets Available for Sale

Financial Assets available for sale include equity 
securities. Equity investments classified as available 
forsale are those which are neither classified as held 
for trading nor designated at fair value through profit 
or loss.The Group has not classified any loans or 
receivables as available for sale.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial 
investments are subsequently measured at fair 
value.

Unrealised gains or losses are recognised directly 
in equity (Other Comprehensive Income) in the 
‘Available for Sale Reserve’. When the investment is 
disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in equity is recognised in the Income 
Statement in ‘Other Operating Income’. When the 
Group holds more than one investment in the same 
security, they are deemed to be disposed of on a 
first-in-first-out basis.Interest earned whilst holding 
available for sale financial investments is reported as 
interest income using the effective interest rate (EIR).

Dividends earned whilst holding available for sale 
financial investments are recognised in the income 
statement as ‘Other operating income’ when the 
right of the payment has been established. The 
losses arising from impairment of such investments 
are recognised in the Income Statement in 
‘impairment charges for loans and other losses’ and 
removed from the Available for Sale Reserve.

c) Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial assets are non- derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities, which the company has the 
intention and ability to hold to maturity. This includes 
investment in government securities.

After the initial measurement, held to maturity 
financial instruments are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the EIR, less impairment. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation 
is included in ‘Interest Income’ in the Income 
Statement. The losses arising from impairment of 
such investments are recognised in the Income 
Statement in ‘impairment charges for loans and 
other losses’.

If the Group were to sell or reclassify more than an 
insignificant amount of Held to Maturity investments 
before maturity (other than in certain specific 
circumstances) the entire category would be tainted 
and would be reclassified as available for sale. 
Furthermore, the Company would be prohibited from 
classifying any financial assets as held to maturity 
during the following two years. 

d) Loans and Receivables

Loans and advances to customers and Lease Rental 
Receivables from customers include non–derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market, other than:

• Those that the Group intends to sell immediately in 
the near term and those that, upon initial recognition, 
designates as fair value through profit or loss

• Those that the Group, upon initial recognition, 
designates as available for sale

• Those for which the Group may not recover 
substantially all of its initial investments, other than 
because of credit deterioration
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After initial measurement, ‘Loans and Receivables’ are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
EIR, less allowance for impairment. Amortised cost 
is calculated by taking in to account any discount or 
premium on acquisition, fees, and costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is included in 
‘Interest Income’ in the Income Statement. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognised in impairment 
charges for loans and receivables in the Income 
Statement.

Loans and Receivables consist of cash and bank 
balances, securities purchased under repurchase 
agreements, placement with banks, lease rentals 
receivable & stock out on hire, loan receivables, and 
other financial assets.

2.3.15.7 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of 
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and 
financial guarantees, are classified as,

(i) Financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
(FVTPL) 

a) Financial liabilities held for trading

b) Financial liabilities designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

(ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost,when they are 
held for trading and derivative instruments or the fair 
value designation is applied.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 
depends on their classification.

 i. Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit   
 or Loss (FVTPL) 

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL include financial 
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are fair 
value, and changes therein recognized in Income 
Statement.

 ii. Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Financial Instruments issued by the Group that are 
not designated at fair value through profit or loss, 
are classified as financial  liabilities at amortised cost 
under ‘bank overdraft’, ‘due to other customers’, 
‘debt issued and other borrowed funds’ and ‘other 
payables’ as appropriate, where the substance of 
the contractual arrangement results in the Group 
having an obligation either to deliver cash or 
another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy 
the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed 
amount of cash or another financial assets for a 
fixed number of own equity shares at amortised cost 
using EIR method.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are 
substantially measured at amortised cost using the 
EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on the issue 
and costs that are integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included in ‘interest expenses’ 
in the Income Statement. Gains and losses are 
recognized in the Income Statement when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process.

Currently, the Group has recorded Debt issued 
and other borrowed funds as Financial Liabilities at 
Amortised Cost in the form of term loans, short term 
loans and debentures.

2.3.15.8 Reclassifications of Financial assets and   
 Financial Liabilities

From 01 April 2018, the Group does not reclassify its 
financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, 
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which 
the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a 
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. 
The Company did not reclassify any of its financial 
assets or liabilities in 2017/2018.
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2.3.15.9  Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial  
 Liabilities

2.3.15.9  (a) Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial asset have expired. The Group 
also derecognises the financial asset if it has both 
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies 
for derecognition.

The Group has transferred the financial asset, if and only 
if, either:

• The Group has transferred its contractual rights to 
receive cash flows from the financial asset

Or

• It retains the rights to cash flows, but has assumed 
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement. 

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby 
the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the 
cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘original asset’),but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash 
flows to one or more entities (the ‘eventual recipients’), 
when all of the following three conditions are met:

• The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the 
eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent 
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-
term advances with the right to full recovery of the 
amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

• The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset 
other than as security to the eventual recipients

•  The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects 
on behalf of the eventual recipients without material 
delay. In addition, the Group is not entitled to 
reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in 
cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, 
during the period between the collection date and 

the date of required remittance to the eventual 
recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

• The Group has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset

Or

• The Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset

The Group considers control to be transferred if and 
only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the 
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able 
to exercise that ability unilaterally and  without imposing 
additional restrictions on the transfer.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the 
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset 
derecognised) and the sum of the consideration 
received(including any new asset obtained less any new 
liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that 
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is 
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained 
control of the asset, the asset continues to be 
recognised only to the extent of the Group continuing 
involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises 
as associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and 
the maximum amount of consideration the Group could 
be required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or 
purchased option (or both) on the transferred asset, 
the continuing involvement is measured at the value 
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the Group would be required to pay upon repurchase. 
In the case of a written put option on an asset that 
is measured at fair value, the extent of the entity’s 
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair 
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise 
price.

2.3.15.9 (b)Derecognition - Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as a derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference between 
the carrying value of the original financial liability and the 
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

2.3.15.10 Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset 
or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes 
into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between 
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.

The disclosure of fair value of financial instruments is 
disclosed in Note 27.4 to the Financial Statements.

2.3.15.11  Impairment of Financial Assets

2.3.15.11 (i) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

a.  Overview of the expected credit loss (ECL) 
principles

The Group recognises expected credit losses for 
all loans and other debt financial assets not held 
at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and 
financial guarantee contracts. Equity instruments are 
not subject to impairment under SLFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses 
expected to arise over the life of the asset (the 
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lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there 
has been no significant increase in credit risk since 
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on 
the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL). The 
Company’s policies for determining if there has been 
a significant increase in credit risk are set out in Note 
27.5.1

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent 
the ECLs that result from default events on a 
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either 
an individual basis or collective basis, depending 
on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial 
instruments. 

The Group established a policy to perform as 
assessment, at the end of each reporting period, 
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition, 
by considering the change in the risk of default 
occurring over the remaining life of the financial 
instrument. 

Based on the above process, the Company groups 
its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI, 
as described below.

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Group 
recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs.Stage 
1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk 
has improved and the loan has been reclassified 
from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant 
increase in credit risk since origination, the    Group 
records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans 
also include facilities, where the credit risk has 
improved and the loan has been reclassified from 
Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired .The 
Group records an allowance for the LTECLs.

POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired 
(POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit 
impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are 
recorded at fair value at original recognition and 
interest income is subsequently recognised based 
on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognised 
or released to the extent that there is a subsequent 
change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Group has no 
reasonable expectations of recovering either the 
entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, 
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is 
reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition 
of the financial asset.

b. The Calculation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

The Group calculates ECLs based on a four 
probability-weighted scenarios to measure 
the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an 
approximation to the EIR.A cash shortfall is the 
difference between the cash flows that are due to an 
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash 
flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined 
below and the key elements are, as follows.

PD : The probability of Default is an estimate of 
the likelihood of default over a given time   horizon. 
A default may only happen at a certain time over 
the assessed period, if the facility has not been 
previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. 

EAD: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of 
the exposure at a future default date, taking into 
account expected changes in the exposure after 
the reporting date,including repayments of principal 
and interest,whether scheduled by contract or 
otherwise,expecteddraw downs on committed 
facilities,and accrued interest from missed 
payments.
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LGD: The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the 
loss arising in the case where a default occurs at 
a given time. It is based on the difference between 
the contractual cash flows due and those that the 
lender would expect to receive, including from the 
realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as 
a percentage of the EAD. 

The mechanism of the ECL method are summarised 
below.

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of 
LTECLs that represent the ECLs that   represent the 
ECLs that result from default events on a financial 
instrument that are possible with in the 12 months 
after the reporting date. The Group calculates the 
12mECL allowance based on the expectation of 
a default occurring in the 12 months following the 
reporting date. These expected 12-month default 
probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and 
multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by 
an approximation of the original EIR. 

Stage2: When a loanhas shown a significant 
increase in credit risk since origination, the 
Group records an allowance for the LTECLs. The 
mechanics are similar to those explained above, 
including the use of multiple scenarios, but PDs 
and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the 
instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are 
discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the 
Group recognises the lifetime expected credit losses 
for these loans. The method is similar to that for 
Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

 Loan 

Commitments: When estimating LTECLs for 
undrawn loan commitments, the Group estimates 
the expected portion of the loan commitment 
that will be drawn down over its expected life. 
The ECL is then based on the present value of 
the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is 
drawn down, based on a probability weighting of 
the four scenarios. The expected cash shortfalls are 

discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR 
on the loan. ECLs are calculated and presented with 
the loan.

 Financial Guarantee contracts:

The Group liability under each guarantee is 
measured at the higher of the initially recognised 
less cumulative amortisation recognised in the 
income statement, and the ECL provision. For 
this purpose,the Group estimates ECLs based on 
the present value of the expected payments to 
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs.
The shortfalls are discounted by the risk-adjusted 
interest rate relevant to the exposure. The calculation 
is made using a probability –weighting of the four 
scenarios. The ECLs related to financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised within provisions.

c.  Debt instruments measured at fair value 
through OCI

 The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI 
do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial 
assets in the Statement of Financial Position, which 
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to 
the allowance that would arise if the assets were 
measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI 
as an accumulated impairment amount, with a 
corresponding charge to Income Statement. The 
accumulated loss recognised in OCI is recycled to 
the profit or loss upon derecognition of the assets.

d. Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad 
range of forward looking information as economic 
inputs, such as:

• GDP growth

• Unemployment rate

• Central Bank base rates

• Inflation

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs 
may not always capture all characteristics of the 
market at the date of the Financial Statements. To 
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reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are 
occasionally made as temporary adjustments when 
such differences are significantly material.

 (ii) Policy applicable up to 31 March 2018

The Group assesses at each reporting date, whether 
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial 
asset or a group of financial assets are deemed to 
be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence 
of impairment as a result of one or more events that 
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset 
(an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event (or 
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include: indications 
that the borrower or a group of borrowers are 
experiencing significant financial difficulty; the 
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation default or delinquency in 
interest or principal payments; and where observable 
data indicates that there is measurable decrease in 
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in 
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults.

a. Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost

 (i). Individually assessed Loans and Advances   
           and Lease and Stock out on hire

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such 
as loans and advances to customers as well as held 
to maturity investments), the Company first assesses 
individually whether objective evidence of impairment 
exists for financial assets that are individually 
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are 
not individually significant.

The criteria used to determine that there is such 
objective evidence includes:

–  known cash flow difficulties experienced by the 
borrower;

– past due contractual payments of either principal 
or interest;

–  breach of loan covenants or conditions;

–  the probability that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or other financial    
realisation; and

–  Significant downgrading in credit rating by an 
external credit rating agency

For those loans where objective evidence of 
impairment exists, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future expected credit 
losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of 
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is 
recognised in Income Statement. 

For those loans where objective evidence of 
impairment exists, impairment losses are determined 
considering the following factors:

- Group aggregate exposure to the customer;

- The viability of the customer’s business model 
and the capacity to trade successfully out of 
financial difficulties and generate sufficient cash 
flow to service debt obligations;

- The amount and timing of expected receipts and 
recoveries;

- The complexity of determining the aggregate 
amount and ranking of all creditor claims and the 
extent to which legal and insurance uncertainties 
are evident;

- The realisable value of security and likelihood of 
successful repossession; and

- The likely deduction of any costs involved in 
recovery of amounts outstanding; 
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Impairment losses are calculated by discounting 
the expected future cash flows of a loan at its 
original effective interest rate and comparing the 
resultant present value with the loan’s current 
carrying amount. The impairment allowances on 
individually significant accounts are reviewed more 
regularly when circumstances require. This normally 
encompasses re-assessment of the enforceability 
of any collateral held and the timing and amount of 
actual and anticipated receipts. Individually assessed 
impairment allowances are only released when there 
is reasonable and objective evidence of a reduction 
in the established loss estimate.

 (ii). Incurred but not yet identified impairment

Individually assessed loans for which no evidence of 
loss has been specifically identified on an individual 
basis are grouped together according to their credit 
risk characteristics for the purpose of calculating an 
estimated collective loss. This reflects impairment 
losses that the Company has incurred as a result of 
events occurring before the reporting date, which 
the Company is not able to identify on an individual 
loan basis, and that can be reliably estimated. 
These losses will only be individually identified in the 
future. As soon as information becomes available 
which identifies losses on individual loans within the 
group, those loans are removed from the group and 
assessed on an individual basis for impairment.

The collective impairment allowance is determined 
after taking into account:

–  historical loss experience in portfolios of similar 
credit risk; and

–  management’s experienced judgment as to 
whether current economic and credit conditions 
are such that the actual level of inherent losses 
at the balance sheet date is likely to be greater 
or less than that suggested by historical 
experience.

 

 (iii). Collectively assessed Loans and 
Receivables

Impairment is assessed on a collective basis in two 
circumstances:

–  to cover losses which have been incurred but 
have not yet been identified on loans subject to 
individual assessment; and

–  for homogeneous groups of loans that are not 
considered individually significant.

 (iv). Homogeneous groups of Loans and 
Advances

Statistical methods are used to determine 
impairment losses on a collective basis for 
homogeneous groups of loans. Losses in these 
groups of loans are recorded on an individual basis 
when individual loans are written off, at which point 
they are removed from the group. 

Following method is used to calculate historical loss 
experience on a collective basis:

- Net Flow Rate

Under the methodology, loans are grouped into 
ranges according to the number of days in arrears 
and statistical analysis is used to estimate the 
likelihood that loans in each range will progress 
through the various stages of delinquency, and 
ultimately prove irrecoverable.

Current economic conditions and portfolio risk 
factors are also evaluated when calculating the 
appropriate level of allowance required covering 
inherent loss.

These additional macro and portfolio risk factors 
may include:

-  recent loan portfolio growth and product mix, 

-  unemployment rates, Gross Domestic 
Production (GDP) growth, inflation

-  exchange rates, interest rates

-  changes in government laws and regulations
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b.  Available for Sale Financial Investments

For available for sale financial investments, the 
Company assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is objective evidence that an investment is 
impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as 
available for sale, objective evidence would also 
include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the 
fair value of the investment below its cost. The 
Company treats ‘significant ’generally as 20% 
and ‘prolonged’ generally as greater than six 
months. Where there is evidence of impairment, the 
cumulative loss measured as the difference between 
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less 
any impairment loss on that investment previously 
recognised in the income statement – is removed 
from equity and recognised in the income statement. 
Impairment losses on equity investments are not 
reversed through the income statement; increases 
in the fair value after impairment are recognised in 
other comprehensive income.

c.  Held to Maturity Financial Assets

An impairment loss in respect of held to maturity 
financial assets measured at amortised cost is 
calculated as the difference between its carrying 
amount and the present value of future cash 
flows discounted at the asset’s original EIR and is 
recognised in profit or loss. Interest on impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the 
unwinding of discount. When a subsequent event 
caused the amount of impairment loss to decrease, 
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through 
profit or loss.

2.3.15.11 Reversals of impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a 
subsequent period, and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognised, the excess is written back by reducing 
the loan impairment allowance account accordingly. The 
write-back is recognised in the income statement.

2.3.15.12  Renegotiated Loans 

The Group makes concessions or modifications to the 
original terms of loans as a response to the borrower’s 
financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to 
otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Group 
considers a loan renotiated when such concessions or 
modifications are provided as a result of the borrower’s 
present or expected financial difficulties and the Group 
would not have agreed to them if the borrower had 
been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties 
include defaults on covenants, or significant concerns 
raised by the Credit Risk Department. Renegotiated 
loans may involve extending the payment arrangements 
and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once 
the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is 
measured using the original EIR as calculated before 
the modification of the terms. It is the Group policy to 
monitor renegotiated loans to help ensure that future 
payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition 
decisions and classification between Stage 2 and 
Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case basis. If 
these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, 
it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 3 
renegotiated asset until it collected or written off.

From 1 April 2018,when the loan has been renegotiated 
or modified but not derecognised, the Group also 
reassesses whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk, as set out in Note 28.5.1 The 
Group also considers whether the assets should be 
classified as Stage 3.  

If modifications are substantial, the loan is derecognised 
as explained in Note 2.3.15.9

2.3.15.13 Write-off of Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

The Group accounting policy under SLFRS 9 remains 
the same as it was under LKAS 39. Financial Assets 
(and the related impairment allowance accounts) are 
normally written off, either partially or in full, when there 
is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial 
assets are secured, this is generally after receipt of any 
proceeds from the realisation of security. 
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2.3.15.14 Collateral Valuation

The Group seeks to use collateral, where possible, 
to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral 
comes in various forms such as cash, gold, securities, 
letter of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, 
inventories, other non-financial assets and credit 
enhancements such as netting arrangements. The fair 
value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, 
at inception and based on the guidelines issued by the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market 
data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral.

Other financial assets which do not have readily 
determinable market value are valued using models. 
Nonfinancial collateral, such as real estate, is valued 
based on data provided by third parties such as 
independent valuers, Audited Financial Statements and 
other independent sources.

2.3.15.15 Collateral repossessed

The Company’s accounting policy under SLFRS 9 
remains same as it was under LKAS 39.The Company’s 
policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset 
can be best used for its internal operations or should 
be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal 
operations will be transferred to their relevant asset 
category at the lower of their repossessed value or the 
carrying value of the original secured asset.

2.3.15.16 Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the 
net amount reported in the Statement of Financial

Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable 
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not 
generally the case with master netting agreements, 
therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented 
gross in the Statement of Financial Position.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only 
when permitted under LKAS/ SLFRS, or for gains and 
losses arising from a group of similar transactions such 
as in the group’s trading activity.

2.3.15.17 Other Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets includes the Other Receivables 
and Refundable Deposits. Refundable Deposits 
are initially recorded at Fair value and subsequently 
measured and amortized cost.

2.3.15.18 Other Financial Liabilities

Other Financial liabilitiesincluding Due to Customer 
(Deposits), Due to Banks, Debt issued and 
otherborrowed funds are initially measured at fair 
value less transaction cost that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition and subsequently measured at 
amortisedcost using the Effective Interest Rate method.

Amortisedcostis calculated by taking in to account any 
discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an 
integral part of the Effective Interest Rate.

a)  Renegotiated Loans

Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure 
loans rather than to take possession of collateral. 
This may involve extending the payment 
arrangements and the agreement of new loan 
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, 
any impairment is measured using the original EIR as 
calculated before the modification of terms and the 
loan is no longer considered past due. Management 
continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure 
that all criteria are met and that future payments 
are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject    
to a criteria are met and that future payments are 
likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to 
an individual or collective impairment assessment, 
calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

2.3.17 Repurchase Agreement

Securities purchased under agreements to resell at a 
specified future date are not recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Position. The consideration paid, including 
accrued interest, is recorded in the Statement of 
Financial Position, reflecting the transaction’s economic 
substance as a loan by the Company. The difference 
between the purchase and resale prices is recorded in 
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‘Net interest income’ and is accrued over the life of the 
agreement using the EIR.

If securities purchased under agreement to resell are 
subsequently sold to third parties, the obligation to 
return the securities is recorded as a short sale within 
‘Financial liabilities held for trading’ and measured at fair 
value with any gains or losses included in ‘Net trading 
income’.

2.3.18  Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value, after making due allowances for 
obsolete and slow moving items. Net realisable value 
is the price at which inventories can be sold in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of 
completion and the estimated cost necessary to make 
the sale.

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present 
location and conditions are accounted using the              
Following cost formulae:-

Trading Stock - At Actual Cost, based on specific 
identification

Work-in-Progress - At the cost of direct materials, direct 
labor and an appropriate proportion 
of fixed production overheads based 
on normal operating capacity.

Goods in Transits - At Purchase Price

2.3.19 Real Estate Stock

Real estate stock comprises all costs of purchase, cost 
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
real estate to its saleable condition.

Purchase Cost  - Land Cost with legal charges

Cost of Conversion  - Actual Development Cost

2.3.20  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any   such indication exists, or when annual impairment 
testing for an asset is required, the Company makes 
an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An 
asset's recoverable amount is higher of asset's or cash 
generating units (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use. 

It is determined for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or groups of 
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 
costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into 
account, if available. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These 
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or 
other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including 
impairment on inventories, are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss in those expense categories 
consistent with the function of the impaired asset, 
except for a property previously revalued where the 
revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. 

In this case, the impairment is also recognised in 
other comprehensive income up to the amount of any 
previous revaluation. For assets excluding goodwill, 
an assessment is made at each reporting date as 
to whether there is any   indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group 
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only 
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
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determine the asset's recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is 
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not 
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised 
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal 
is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.3.21 Cash and Short-Term Deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of 
Financial Position comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months 
or less.

For the purpose of the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows, cash and short term deposits consist of 
cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts.

2.3.22  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, 
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating 
to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost. 

2.3.23    Employee Benefits

2.3.23.1 Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan other than a defined contribution plan. Group 
measures the cost of defined benefit plan-gratuity, every 
financial year using the Projected Unit Credit Method, as 
recommended by LKAS 19 – Employee Benefits, with 
the advice of an actuary.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows using interest rates that are denominated in 
the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that 
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of 
the related liability. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that 
are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of 
assumptions. Key assumptions used in determining the 
defined retirement benefit obligations are given in Note 
26.3. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of defined benefit obligations. 

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, expected rates of return on 
assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and 
future pension increases. Due to the long term nature 
of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty.

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from 
the beginning of service for all employees, in conformity 
with LKAS 19 - Employee Benefits. However, under the 
Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability to 
an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of 
continued service.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the 
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the 
period in which it arises.

The item is stated under Employee Benefit Liability in the 
Statement of Financial Position.

This is not an externally funded defined benefit plan.
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2.3.23.2 Defined Contribution Plans - Employees’ 
Provident Fund & Employees’ Trust Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into 
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for 
contributions to Provident and Trust Funds covering 
all employees are recognised as an employee benefit 
expense in profit or loss in the periods during which 
services are rendered by employees. 

All employees who are eligible for Employees’ Provident 
Fund contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund 
contributions are covered by relevant contribution funds 
in line with respective statutes and regulations. The 
Group contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments 
of employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and 
Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

2.3.24 Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using 
the “Indirect Method”

 Regulatory provisions

a Statutory Reserve Fund

The statutory reserve fund is maintained as required 
by Finance Companies (Capital Funds) Direction 
No.1 of 2003 issued by Central Bank of Sri Lanka. 
As per the said Direction, every Registered Finance 
Company shall maintain a reserve fund, out of the 
net profit for each year after provisions for taxation 
and bad and doubtful debts. Accordingly 20% of the 
net profit for the year transferred to Reserve Fund as 
required by Section 3(b) ii of the said Direction.

b Deposit Insurance and Liquidity Support 
Scheme

In terms of the Finance Company’s Act Direction 
No 2 of 2010 “Insurance of Deposit Liabilities” 
issued on 27 September 2010 and subsequent 
amendments there to all Registered Finance 
Companies are required to insure their deposit 
liabilities in the Deposit Insurance Scheme operated 
by the Monetary Board in terms of Sri Lanka Deposit 

Insurance Scheme Regulations No 1 of 2010 issued 
under Sections 32E of the Monetary Law Act with 
effect from 1 October 2010. The said scheme was 
renamed as the “Sri Lanka Deposit Insurance and 
Liquidity Support Scheme” as per the Sri Lanka 
Deposit Insurance and Liquidity Support Scheme 
Regulation No 1 of 2013. 

Deposits to be insured include demand, time and 
savings deposit liabilities and exclude the following;

a) Deposit liabilities to member institutions

b) Deposit liabilities to Government of Sri Lanka

c) Deposit liabilities to Directors, key management 
personnel and other related parties as defined 
in Banking Act Direction No 11 of 2007 on 
Corporate Governance of Licensed Commercial 
Banks

d) Deposit liabilitiesheld as collateral againstany 
accommodation granted

e) Deposit liabilitiesfallingwithin the meaning of 
abandoned property in terms of the Banking Act 
and dormant deposits in terms of the Finance 
Companies Actfunds of which have been 
transferred to Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Registered Finance Companies are required to pay 
a premium of 0.15% on total amount of eligible 
deposits as at end of the month with in a period of 
15 days from the end of the respective month

c Crop Insurance Levy (CIL) 

In terms Section 15 of the Finance Act No 12 of 
2013 all institutions under the purview of Banking 
Act No 30 of 1988, Finance Companies Act No 78 
of 1988 and Regulation of Insurance Industry Act No 
43 of 2000 are required to pay 1% of the profit after 
tax as Crop Insurance Levy to the National Insurance 
Trust Fund Board effective from 01 April 2013.

Interest paid is classified as operating cash flow. 
Dividend received and investments in joint venture 
are classified as cash flows from investing activities. 
Dividend paid are classified as financing cash flows.
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2.3.25  Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal 
groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. Non-current assets and 
disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured 
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental 
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset 
(disposal group), excluding finance costs and income 
tax expense.  

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded 
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the 
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale 
in its present condition. Actions required to complete 
the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant 
changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to 
sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed 
to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to 
be completed within one year from the date of the 
classification. 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are 
not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for 
sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are 
presented separately as current items in the statement 
of financial position. 

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation 
if it is a component of an entity that either has been 
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

• Represents a separate major line of business or 
geographical area of operations 

• Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a 
separate major line of business or geographical area 
of operations

Or

• Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to 
resale 

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results 
of continuing operations and are presented as a single 
amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued 
operations in the statement of profit or loss.  

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 29 All other 
notes to the financial statements include amounts for 
continuing operations, unless indicated otherwise. 

2.4       EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED 
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE:

 The following SLFRS have been issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka that have an 
effective date in the future and have not been applied 
in preparing these financial statements. Those SLFRS 
will have an effect on the accounting policies currently 
adopted by the Group and may have an impact on the 
future financial statements.

2.4.1 SLFRS 16 -Leases

SLFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, 
requiring leases to recognise assets and liabilities for 
all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less 
or the underlying asset has a low value even though 
lessor accounting remains similar to current practice. 
This supersedes: LKAS 17 leases, IFRIC 4 determining 
whether an arrangement contains a lease, SIC 15 
operating leases - incentives; and SIC 27 evaluating 
the substance of transactions involving the legal form 
of a lease. Earlier application is permitted for entities 
that apply SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
customers.

SLFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group is in the process of assessing and quantifying 
the probable impact that could arise from application of 
SLFRS 16 to the Financial Statements. 

The following amendment and improvement is 
not expected to have a significant impact on the 
Company's/Group’s financial statements.

• Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment (IFRIC 
Interpretation 23).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, 
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity 
with SLFRS requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, 
management has made following judgements, estimates 
and assumptions which have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in these financial 
statements.

a) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
and Investment properties

The Group uses the revaluation model for 
measurement of land and buildings which are 
recognised as property plant and equipment and 
fair valuation model for measurement of land and 
buildings which are recognised as investment 
property. The Group engaged independent expert 
valuers, to determine the fair value of its land and 
buildings. Fair value is determined by reference to 
market-based evidence of transaction prices for 
similar properties. 

Valuations are based on open market prices, adjusted 
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of 
the specific property. The valuation techniques used are 
appropriate in the circumstances, for which sufficient 
data is available to measure fair value, maximising the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
of unobservable inputs.

The changes in fair value of Investment properties 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
the changes in Property Plant and Equipment are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and in the 
statement of equity

Further details about revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment are given in Note 8.12 and investment 
properties in Note 10.2.

b) Impairment losses on Loans and Advances 
(Finance Leases, Hire Purchases, Mortgage 
Loans, Revolving Loans and Business/Personal 
Loans)

The measurement of impairment losses under 
SLFRS 9 and LKAS 39 across all categories of 
financial assets requires judgment, in particular, 
the estimation of the amount and timing of future 
cash flows and collateral values when determining 
impairment losses and the assessment of a 
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates 
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can  
result in different levels of allowances.

 Applicable from 1 April 2018

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations 
are outputs of complex models with a number of 
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable 
inputs and their independencies. The elements of the 
ECL models that are considered accounting judgements 
and estimates include.

• The Company’s internal credit grading system,which 
assigns PDs to the individual grades

• The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk and so 
allowances for financial assets should be measured 
on a lifetime expected credit loss (LTECL) basis and 
the qualitative assessment

• The segmentation of financial assets when their fair 
values when their ECL is assessed on a collective 
basis.

• Development of ECLs, models, including the various 
formulas and the choice of inputs

 Determination of associations between 
macroeconomic scenarios and, economic 
inputs,such as unemployment levels and collateral 
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values,and the effect on probability of default (PDs), 
Exposure at default (EADs) and loss given default 
(LGDs).

• Selection of forward –looking macroeconomic 
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive 
the economic inputs into the ECL models.

Applicable before 1 April 2018

The Company reviews its individually significant loans 
and advances at each financial reporting date to assess 
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the 
income statement. In particular, management’s judgment 
was required in the estimation of the amount and timing 
of future cash flows when determining the impairment 
loss. These estimates were based on assumptions 
about a number of factors and actual results may differ, 
resulting in future changes to the allowance.

Loans and advances that have been assessed 
individually and found not to be impaired and all 
individually insignificant loans and advances are then 
assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk 
characteristics, to determine whether provision should 
be made due to incurred loss events for which there is 
objective evidence, but the effects of which are not yet 
evident. The collective assessment takes account of 
data from the loan portfolio (such also an type, asset 
type and past due status etc., and judgments on the 
effect of concentrations of risks and economic data 
including levels of unemployment, consumer prices 
indices, interest rates, exchange rates). Impairment of 
loans and receivables is discussed in detail under Notes 
11.1.2 and 11.2.2 to the Financial Statements.

It is the Company’s policy to regularly review its models 
in the context of actual loss experience and adjust 
whenever necessary.

c) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of 
an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair 
value less costs to sell and its Value In Use (VIU). 

The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based 
on available data from an active market, in an arm’s 
length transaction, of similar assets or observable 
market prices less incremental costs for disposing 
of the asset. The value in use calculation is based 
on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows 
are derived from the budget for the next five years 
and do not include restructuring activities that 
the Group is not yet committed to or significant 
future investments that will enhance the asset’s 
performance of the cash generating unit being 
tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to 
the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow 
model as well as the expected future cash inflows 
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

d) Defined Benefit Plans

The cost as well as the present value of defined 
benefit plans - gratuity is determined using Actuarial 
Valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making 
various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the 
determination of the discount rate, future salary 
increases, mortality rates and future pension 
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the 
discount rate. In determining the appropriate 
discount rate, management considers the interest 
rates of government bonds in currency consistent 
with the currency of the post-employment benefit 
obligation, and extrapolated as needed along the 
yield curve to correspond with the expected term of 
the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds 
are further reviewed for quality.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available 
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to 
change only at intervals in response to demographic 
changes. Future salary increases and pension 
increases are based on expected future inflation 
rates.
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Further details about defined benefit obligations are 
given in Note 25.

e) Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax 
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can 
be utilised. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits together 
with future tax planning strategies.

f) Transfer Pricing

The Group is subject to income taxes and other taxes 
including transfer pricing regulations. Management 
has used its judgement on the application of such 
laws and regulations aspects including but not limited 
to identifying associated undertaking, estimation of 
the respective arm’s length prices and selection of 
appropriate pricing mechanism.

g) Warranty Provision

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised 
when the product is sold or service provided to 
the customer. The provision is based on historical 
warranty data and a weighting of all possible 
outcomes against their associated possibilities. This 
represents a general provision for future warranty 
expenses on sales up to the end of the financial 
period based on past trend for warranty claims. Due 
to the significance of the estimation made by the 
Company the actual payment could vary from the 
provision made. 

h) Consolidation of a subsidiary with less than 
50% ownership

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held 49.67% in its 
subsidiary, Abans Finance PLC, which is a Public 
company listed in the Colombo Stock Exchange 
since June 2011. Prior to the right issue of shares 

of Abans Finance PLC in April 2017 and share 
disposal in July 2017, the Company held 71.6% in 
Abans Finance PLC and accounted it as a subsidiary. 
Subsequent to the right issue of shares and disposal 
of shares, the Company’s equity ownership in Abans 
Finance PLC decreased to 49.67% as at 31 March 
2019, which was less than 50% ownership.

The Group continued to consolidate Abans 
Finance PLC for the year ended 31 March 2019. 
Management exercised judgement and determined 
that Abans Finance PLC remains as a subsidiary 
on the basis of De Facto Control. De Facto Control 
is established after due consideration of the written 
consent with another share holder.  

4.         SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is a component of the Group that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of Group’s 
other components. All operating segments’ operating 
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results are reviewed regularly by the Chairman to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess 
its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Chairman include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and 
intangible assets.

 Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services and has three 
reportable segments, as follows:

 Trading

This segment includes importing and marketing of electrical and electronic home appliances, crockery and cookware, sanitary 
and light fittings, a host of other household items, footwares and textile and carrying out electro mechanical contract work.

 Financial Services

The Financial Services segment provide services such as, acceptance of Deposits, granting Lease facilities, Hire 
Purchase,Mortgage Loans and other credit facilities, Real Estate Development and related services.

Trading Financial Services Group

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Revenue  33,295,617,580  38,316,845,869  1,965,038,289  1,898,980,362  35,260,655,869  40,215,826,231 

Segment Results (Operating Profit)  2,490,308,168  2,002,250,241  181,161,404  191,603,937  2,671,469,572  2,193,854,178 

Finance Costs  (1,458,371,720)  (1,593,793,025)  -    -    (1,458,371,720)  (1,593,793,025)

Finance Income  27,947,369  59,320,957  -    -    27,947,369  59,320,957 

Change in Fair Value of 
Investment Properties  42,812,300  18,405,400  -    -    42,812,300  18,405,400 

Share of  Profit of Equity Accounted 
Investee (Net of Tax)  (70,385,763)  (123,881,345)  -    -    (70,385,763)  (123,881,345)

Profit before Income Tax  1,032,310,354  362,302,228  181,161,404  191,603,937  1,213,471,758  553,906,165 

VAT on Financial Services  (7,666,608)  (4,432,162)  (70,281,850)  (58,654,511)  (77,948,458)  (63,086,673)

Income Tax Expense  (125,125,695)  (116,841,486)  (87,158,231)  (38,085,738)  (212,283,926)  (154,927,224)

Profit for the year  899,518,051  241,028,580  23,721,323  94,863,688  923,239,374  335,892,268 
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4.         SEGMENT REPORTING (Contd...)

Trading Engineering Services Financial Services Group

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Assets and Liabilities 

Non Current Assets  5,387,653,384  4,319,786,529  -    290,602,112  3,057,168,018  4,621,769,170  8,444,821,402  9,232,157,812 

Current Assets  19,025,298,971  19,972,748,806  -    2,058,074,847  5,803,142,715  4,335,654,883  24,828,441,686  26,366,478,537 

Total Assets  24,412,952,355  24,292,535,336  -    2,348,676,959  8,860,310,733  8,957,424,054  33,273,263,088  35,598,636,349 

Non-Current Liabilities  2,761,287,244  4,244,407,422  -    60,735,290  1,509,697,966  1,422,521,127  4,270,985,210  5,727,663,839 

Current Liabilities  14,305,110,175  14,066,170,460  -    1,463,244,010  5,816,552,506  5,967,274,998  20,121,662,681  21,496,689,469 

Total Liabilities  17,066,397,419  18,310,577,882  -    1,523,979,300  7,326,250,472  7,389,796,126  24,392,647,891  27,224,353,308 

Other Disclosures

Amortization of 
Intangible Assets  16,604,863  14,600,280  -    963,847  3,745,813  2,974,290  20,350,676  18,538,417 

Depreciation for the 
Year  126,552,294  109,664,514  -    27,249,987  23,209,418  20,670,196  149,761,712  157,584,697 

Purchase of Property, 
Plant and Equipment  335,115,184  145,430,569  -    26,950,376  18,855,254  27,690,516  353,970,438  200,071,461 

Purchase of Intangible 
Assets  4,582,077  15,327,287  -    -    15,406,297  1,391,597  19,988,374  16,718,884 

Expenses on Employee 
Benefit Liability  50,381,515  51,418,021  -    8,137,374  5,242,795  5,667,867  55,624,310  65,223,263 

Deferred Tax Assets  170,028,346  158,761,128  -    121,815,954  35,767,246  52,586,166  205,795,592  333,163,247 

Deferred Tax Liabilities  44,981,468  40,922,077  -    -    -    -    44,981,468  40,922,077 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. REVENUE/OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

5.1 Revenue

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Gross Revenue  35,575,003,099  40,584,609,990  33,605,896,518  37,890,080,444 

Less:  Nation Building Tax  (314,347,230)  (368,783,759)  (314,416,867)  (362,904,470)

Revenue  35,260,655,869  40,215,826,231  33,291,479,651  37,527,175,974 

5.1.1 Segmental Revenue

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Revenue from Contract with customers  33,295,617,580  38,316,845,869  33,291,479,651  37,527,175,974 

Revenue from Financing Activities  1,965,038,289  1,898,980,362  -    -   

 35,260,655,869  40,215,826,231  33,291,479,651  37,527,175,974 

5.2 Other Operating Income and gains

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Income from Other Investments  650,019,130  604,383,126  653,794,505  629,886,347 

Commission Income  104,667,762  125,836,410  104,667,762  125,836,410 

Rent Income  8,317,307  10,469,739  8,137,613  7,592,322 

Sundry Income  146,205,287  133,307,820  125,224,725  115,126,080 

Fixed Assets Hiring Income  -    -    -    1,879,346 

Gain/ (Loss) on Investment Diposal  1,780,000  -    (147,906,446)  -   

Profit from Disposal of  Assets  2,156,598  7,549,196  2,156,598  6,366,331 

Fines and Surcharges  31,414,274  25,219,562  31,480,345  24,245,861 

 944,560,358  906,765,853  777,555,102  910,932,697 

* Gain/(Loss) from Investment disposal comprise the disposal of Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd,which is disclosed in the note         
  no 29
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5.3 Finance Cost

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Interest Expense on Overdrafts  15,546,327  8,910,108  15,546,327  8,907,905 

Interest  Expense on Borrowings  1,295,561,627  1,282,631,097  1,295,561,627  1,277,790,147 

Finance Charges on Lease Liabilities   -    45,173  -    45,173 

Debenture Interest  147,263,766  302,206,647  147,263,766  302,206,647 

 1,458,371,720  1,593,793,025  1,458,371,720  1,588,949,872 

5.4 Finance Income

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Interest Income on Debtors  12,724,040  36,228,125  13,304,632  35,846,409 

Interest Income on Staff Loans  3,319,474  4,657,866  3,319,474  4,657,866 

Interest Income on Bank Deposits  11,903,855  18,434,966  11,896,088  17,546,362 

 27,947,369  59,320,957  28,520,194  58,050,637 
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5.5 Profit Before Tax

Stated after Charging /(Crediting) all expenses and Income Including the Followings

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Employees Benefits including the following 

       - Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity  55,624,310  65,198,810  46,306,988  46,609,210 
       - Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF  
          & ETF  405,669,173  457,491,222  438,870,809  372,222,176 

Amortization of Intangible Assets  20,350,676  18,538,417  16,584,339  14,573,599 

Director's Emoluments  41,559,532  35,936,271  25,188,130  22,688,130 

Legal Fees  9,002,991  6,521,929  5,604,875  2,904,512 

Donation  10,440,323  10,603,405  10,430,323  10,436,413 

Staff Cost  1,176,301,647  1,166,382,859 829,952,531  1,166,710,391 

Amortization of Prepaid Rent 2,626,263 2,626,263 2,626,263 2,626,263

Depreciation  147,135,449  154,958,434  123,577,882  116,808,845 

Exchange (Gains)  (15,096,999)  (16,835,712)  (15,096,999)  (10,688,660)

Auditors' Fees 3,624,899  3,558,593  1,611,701  1,481,084 

Transport Costs  15,618,395  18,280,355  15,618,395  18,275,605 

Advertising Costs  442,020,767  670,622,977  435,052,276  650,450,548 
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6 INCOME TAX

6.1 Statement of Profit or Loss

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Current Income Tax:

Current Tax Expense for the Year (Note 6.3) 159,924,762  79,212,817  111,862,326  46,527,479 
Under Provision of Current Taxes in respect  
of Prior Year  9,317,961  13,188,518  9,379,686  3,141,316 

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Taxation Charge/(Reversal) 43,041,203  62,525,889  (15,621,002)  (5,266,124)
Income Tax Expense Reported in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss 212,283,926  154,927,224 105,621,010  44,402,671 

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

6.2 Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax Related to Items Charged or 
Credited to Other Comprehensive Income:

Revaluation Gain  -    122,465,372  -    107,022,257 
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Retirement Benefit 
Plans  936,047  (1,058,819)  7,392  (1,541,109)

Income Tax Charged Directly to Other 
Comprehensive Income  936,047  121,406,553  7,392  105,481,148 

6.2.1 Corporate Income Tax Rates of the Group of Companies

Company  Income Tax Rate

LKR LKR

Abans PLC 28% 12% - 28%

Abans Finance PLC 28% 28%

Abans Retail (Pvt)Ltd 28% 28%

AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd. 28% 28%

Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd. 28% 28%

Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd 28% 28%

A.B. Sun City (Pvt) Ltd. 28% 28%

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.3 Reconciliation of Accounting Profit to Current Tax Expense/(Income)

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Accounting Profit (Profit before Tax) from 
Continuing Operations  1,213,471,758  553,906,165  987,301,731  469,343,716 

Share of results of equity accounted investees 
(net of tax)  70,385,763  123,881,345  -    -   

Other consolidation adjustments  (89,808,090)  62,474,052  -    -   

Income not Subject to Tax  (708,751,110)  (721,572,273)  (708,758,877)  (662,917,762)

Adjusted accounting profit chargeable to 
income taxes  485,298,321  18,689,289  278,542,854  (193,574,047)

Accounting Profit (Profit before Tax) from 
Discontinued Operations  (35,792,574)  (265,329,580)  -    -   

Other consolidation adjustments  35,792,574  244,985,839  -    -   

Adjusted accounting profit chargeable 
to income taxes from Discontinued 
Operations  -    (20,343,741)  -    -   

Adjusted accounting profit chargeable to 
income taxes  485,298,321  (1,654,452)  278,542,854  (193,574,047)

Aggregate Disallowed Items  26,206,004,375  2,682,773,851  24,370,295,159  779,659,848 

Aggregate Allowable Expenses  (25,926,687,210)  (2,622,303,088)  (24,261,225,794)  (440,961,245)

Taxable income  764,615,486  58,816,311  387,612,219  145,124,556 

Other Sources of Income Liable for Tax  11,896,088  20,752,412  11,896,088  22,135,115 

Business Profit/(Loss)  776,511,574  79,568,723  399,508,307  167,259,671 

Taxable Income  776,511,574  79,568,723  399,508,307  167,259,671 

Tax Loss Utilized  (205,351,711)  205,040,700  -    -   

Total Assessable Income  571,159,863  284,609,423  399,508,307  167,259,671 

Construction & Export - 12%  -    228,922  -    228,922 

Other - 28%  159,924,762  79,156,487  111,862,326  46,298,557 

 159,924,762  79,385,409  111,862,326  46,527,479 

Current Tax Expense for the Year from 
Continuing Operations  159,924,762  79,212,817  111,862,326  46,527,479 

Current Tax Expense for the Year from 
Discontinued Operations  -    172,592  -    -   

 159,924,762  79,385,409  111,862,326  46,527,479 
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6 INCOME TAX (Contd…)

6.4 Reconciliation between Current Tax Expense/(Income) and the Product of Accounting Profit

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Adjusted accounting profit chargeable to 
income taxes from Continuing Operations  485,298,321  18,689,289  278,542,854  (193,574,047)

Adjusted accounting profit chargeable to 
income taxes from Discontinued Operations  -    (20,343,741)  -    -   

 485,298,321  (1,654,452)  278,542,854  (193,574,047)

Tax effect on chargeable profits  135,883,530  (768,476)  77,991,999  (53,847,483)

Tax effect on non deductible expenses  7,337,681,225  751,176,678  6,823,682,645  216,881,971 

Tax effect on deductions claimed  (7,259,472,419)  (734,244,865)  (6,793,143,222)  (122,664,447)

Tax effect on Other sources of income  3,330,905  5,810,675  3,330,905  6,157,438 

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax 
losses  (57,498,479)  57,411,396 - -

Under/(over) provision for previous years  9,317,961  13,188,518  9,379,686  3,141,316 

Net tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax 
assets for the year  60,609,790  167,150,749  (15,621,002)  (5,266,124)

Tax expense  229,852,513 259,724,675  105,621,010  44,402,671 

Income Tax Expense Reported in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss  212,283,926  154,927,224  105,621,010  44,402,671 

Income tax attributable to Discontinued 
Operations  17,568,587  104,797,452 - -

229,852,513  259,724,676  105,621,010  44,402,671 

6.5       Summarised Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax relate to the following:

6.5.1 Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Asset

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  (339,604,149)  (379,017,557)  (166,190,844)  (266,405,868)

Impact of Adoption of SLFRS 09  (27,925,255)  -    (4,717,549)  -   

Deferred Tax Asset Discounted Operation   17,568,587  (121,815,952) - -

Consolidation Adjustments 100,187,975 (22,703,082) - -

Charge/(Release) Made during the Year  43,977,250  183,932,442  (15,613,611)  100,215,024 

Balance as at 31 March  (205,795,592)  (339,604,149)  (186,522,004)  (166,190,844)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.5.2 Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liability

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  40,922,077  -    -    -   

Charge/(Reversal) Made during the Year  4,059,391  40,922,077  -    -   

Balance as at 31 March  44,981,468  40,922,077  -    -   

Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets)  (160,814,124) (298,682,072) (186,522,004) (166,190,844)

6.5.2.1 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax relate to the following:

Statements of 
 Financial Position

Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income

Statement of Profit or Loss Recognized in Statement of 
Changes in Equity

Group 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Deferred Tax Liability

Capital Allowances for Tax 
Purposes 

- Property, Plant and 
Equipment & Investment 
Property  146,501,604  208,847,626  -    1,715,985  (62,346,022)  87,352,170  -    -   

- Intangible Assets  7,669,145  11,039,077  -    -    (3,369,931)  611,839  -    -   

Revaluation of Land  -    -   

-Property Plant & Equipment  120,749,388  120,749,387  -    120,749,387  -    -    -    -   

-Investment Property  62,068,573  54,130,629  -    -    7,937,944  54,130,629  -    -   

Undistributed share of profit of 
Associate  44,981,468  40,922,077 -  -    4,059,391  40,922,077 - -

Deferred Tax Liabilities from 
Discounted Operations  -    11,066,384 - - - - - -

 381,970,178  446,755,180  -    122,465,372  (53,718,618)  183,016,715  -    -   

Deferred Tax Assets 

Employee Benefits Liabilities  (69,169,748)  (74,285,502)  936,047  (1,058,819)  4,179,707  (11,570,821)  -    -   

Warranty Provision  (84,147,635)  (107,685,207)  -    -    23,537,572  (13,965,039)  -    -   

Inventory Provision  (95,153,830)  (93,288,694)  -    -    (1,865,136)  14,407,215  -    -   

Impact of Adoption of SLFRS 
09  (27,925,255)  -    -    -    -    -    (27,925,255) -

Provision for Impairment on 
Trade Receivables  (267,082,213)  (280,491,411)  -    -    13,409,199  (41,318,885)  -    -   

Deferred Tax Assets from 
Discounted Operation  -    (33,063,545) - -  -    - - -

 (543,478,681)  (588,814,359)  936,047  (1,058,819)  39,261,342  (52,447,530)  (27,925,255)  -   

Carried forward Tax Loss  694,379  (56,804,101) -  -    57,498,479  (68,043,296)  -    -   

Carried forward Tax Loss for 
Discounted Operation  -    (99,818,791) - - - - - -

 694,379  (156,622,892)  -    -    57,498,479  (68,043,296)  -    -   

Deferred  Tax Charge/
(Reversal) - -  936,047 

 
121,406,553  43,041,203  62,525,889 

 
(27,925,255)  -   

Net Deferred Tax Liability/
(Asset)

 
(160,814,124) 

 
(298,682,072) 
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6.5.2.2 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax relate to the following: 

Statements of 
 Financial Position

Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income

Statement of Profit or Loss Recognized in Statement of 
Changes in Equity

Company 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Deferred Tax Liability

Capital Allowances for Tax 
Purposes 

- Property, Plant and Equipment 
& Investment Property  108,084,589  89,886,892  -    2,072,150  18,197,697  (6,629,418)  -    -   

- Intangible Assets  7,669,145  11,029,779  -    -    (3,360,633)  619,310  -    -   

Revaluation of Land  -    -   

-Property Plant & Equipment  104,950,107  104,950,107  -    104,950,107  -    -    -    -   

-Investment Property  62,068,573  54,130,629  -    -    7,937,944  54,130,629  -    -   

 282,772,414  259,997,407  -    107,022,257  22,775,008  48,120,521  -    -   

Deferred Tax Assets 

Employee Benefits Liabilities  (64,277,817)  (63,356,100)  7,392  (1,541,109)  (929,109)  (18,882,575)  -    -   

Warranty Provision  (84,147,635)  (105,092,522)  -    -    20,944,887  (29,848,433)  -    -   

Inventory Provision  (95,153,830)  (92,222,078)  -    -    (2,931,752)  9,295,302  -    -   

Impact of Adoption of SLFRS 09  (4,717,549)  -    -    -    -    -    (4,717,549)  -   

Provision for Impairment on 
Trade Receivables  (220,997,587)  (165,517,551)  -    -    (55,480,036)  (13,950,939)  -    -   

 (469,294,418)  (426,188,251)  7,392  (1,541,109)  (38,396,010)  (53,386,645)  (4,717,549)  -   

Deferred Income Tax Charge/
(Reversal)  7,392  105,481,148  (15,621,002)  (5,266,124)  (4,717,549)  -   

Net Deferred Tax Liability/
(Asset)  (186,522,004)  (166,190,844)
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7 EARNINGS PER SHARE & DIVIDEND PAID 

7.1 Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year and the previous year are adjusted for events that have changed the number of ordinary shares 
outstanding, without a corresponding change in the resources such as a bonus issue or a share split. 

 The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic Earnings Per Share computations.

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Net Profit Attributable to Ordinary Equity 
Holders of the Parent  893,929,641  137,774,100 874,179,537  422,097,698 

Group Company

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Number Number Number Number

Ordinary Shares  2,160,000  2,160,000  2,160,000  2,160,000 

Non Voting Ordinary Shares  25,000  25,000  25,000  25,000 

 2,185,000  2,185,000  2,185,000  2,185,000 

Earnings Per Share -Basic / Diluted 409.12  63.05 400.08  193.18 

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and 
the date of authorization of these financial statements.

7.2 Dividend Paid

 Cash Dividend on ordinary shares declared and paid

Year ended 31 March 2019 2018

LKR LKR

Interim Dividend for 2019, per share 160.20 (2018- Nill)  350,037,000 -

 350,037,000 -

The board of directors of the company neither paid any final dividend no recommended a final dividend for the previous year.

 Financial Reports | 



ABANS PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

188

8. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 

 Group

8.1 Gross Carrying Amounts

Balance
As at

01 April 2018

Additions Disposals Additions of 
Discountinuied 

operation

Discontinued 
Subsidiaries

Transfers* Balance
As at

31 March 2019

Cost / Valuation LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Land   619,002,000   -    -  -    (30,750,000)   -   588,252,000 

Buildings   101,084,446   -    -  -    (10,950,000)   -   90,134,446 
Buildings 
Improvements   -  99,518,032    -  -    -     -   99,518,032 
Furniture and 
Fittings   489,744,389  75,309,560  (678,982)  6,000  (20,331,782)  299,273   544,348,458 

Office Equipment   153,784,562  63,265,698    -  (23,353)  (10,670,742)    31,716   206,387,881 

Motor Vehicles   223,560,973  72,420,000  (24,005,749)  -    (36,535,163)   -   235,440,061 
Computer 
Equipment   283,954,239  40,242,132  (387,835)  733,994  (14,463,814)  107,057   310,185,773 

Telephone  2,941,412  673,123    (85,222)  -    -     (438,046)  3,091,267 

Service Equipment   41,674,235  2,338,468    -  -    (22,894,547)   -   21,118,156 

Fixtures & Fittings 341,557   -    -  -    -     - 341,557

Generators  6,454,902  203,425    -  -    -     -  6,658,327 

Plant and 
Machinery  2,046,115   -    -  -    -     -  2,046,115 

1,924,588,830   353,970,438  (25,157,788)  716,641  (146,596,048)   - 2,107,522,073 

Assets on Finance 
Leases

Motor Vehicles   28,595,038   -    -  -    (22,914,566)   -  5,680,472 

  28,595,038   -    -  -    (22,914,566)   -  5,680,472 

Total Gross 

Carrying Amount
  

1,953,183,868   353,970,438  (25,157,788)  716,641  (169,510,614)   - 
  

2,113,202,545 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Financial Reports | 



ABANS PLC
Annual Report 2018/19

189

8. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Contd.)

 Group

8.2 Depreciation & Impairment

Balance
As at

01 April 2018

Charge 
for the year

Disposals Charge for
Discountinuied 

operation

Discontinued 
Subsidiaries

Transfers* Balance
As at

31 March 2019

Cost / Valuation LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Land  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Buildings  398,825  4,480,615  -    322,500  (322,500)  -    4,879,440 
Buildings 
Improvements  -    904,718  -    -    -    -    904,718 
Furniture and 
Fittings  237,739,438  55,749,106  (605,826)  1,494,937  (5,189,088)  167,443  289,356,010 

Office Equipment  71,311,680  17,269,414  -    786,905  (4,634,042)  137,348  84,871,305 

Motor Vehicles  120,634,226  23,979,440  (16,688,271)  5,380,178  (23,954,929)  -    109,350,644 
Computer 
Equipment  185,981,271  43,027,346  (264,956)  1,985,101  (10,448,919)  73,667  220,353,510 

Telephone  1,578,533  653,346  (78,119)  -    -    (378,458)  1,775,302 
Service 
Equipment  24,496,350  903,191  -    1,686,218  (9,596,714)  -    17,489,045 

Fixtures & Fittings  60,772  38,133  -    -    -    -    98,905 

Generators  6,306,781  130,140  -    -    -    -    6,436,921 
Plant and 
Machinery  2,046,115  -    -    -    -    -    2,046,115 

 650,553,991  147,135,449  (17,637,172)  11,655,839  (54,146,192)  -  737,561,915 
Assets on 
Finance Leases

Motor Vehicles  12,835,343  -    -    3,374,405  (15,499,689)  -    710,059 

 12,835,343  -    -    3,374,405  (15,499,689)  -    710,059 

Total 
Depreciation  663,389,334  147,135,449  (17,637,172)  15,030,244  (69,645,881) -  738,271,974 
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8.3 Net Book Values

As at 31 March 2019 2018

LKR LKR

At Cost or Valuation 

Land  588,252,000  619,002,000 

Buildings  85,255,006  100,685,621 

Buildings Improvements  98,613,314  -   

Furniture and  Fittings  254,992,448  252,004,951 

Office Equipment  121,516,576  82,472,882 

Motor Vehicles  126,089,417  102,926,747 

Computer Equipment  89,832,263  97,972,968 

Telephone  1,315,965  1,362,879 

Service Equipment  3,629,111  17,177,885 

Fixtures & Fittings 242,652 280,785

Generators  221,406  148,121 

 1,369,960,158  1,274,034,839 

Assets on Finance Leases

Motor Vehicles  4,970,413  15,759,695 

 4,970,413  15,759,695 

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment  1,374,930,571  1,289,794,534 

 Company
8.4 Gross Carrying Amounts

Balance
As at

01 April 2018

Addition Disposals Transfers* Balance
As at

31 March 2019

At Cost or Valuation LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Land  501,252,001  -    -    -    501,252,001 

Buildings  89,730,201  -    -    -    89,730,201 

Buildings Improvements  -    99,518,032  -    -    99,518,032 

Furniture and Fittings  396,075,044  65,081,982  (678,982)  299,273  460,777,317 

Office Equipment  111,428,173  62,047,382  -    31,716  173,507,271 

Motor Vehicles  181,396,072  72,420,000  (24,005,749)  -    229,810,323 

Computer Equipment  185,256,461  32,832,773  (387,835)  107,057  217,808,456 

Telephone  2,938,554  673,123  (85,222)  (438,046)  3,088,409 

Service Equipment  2,583,191  2,338,468  -    -    4,921,659 

Fixtures & Fittings 341,557  -    -    -   341,557

Generators  6,454,902  203,425  -    -    6,658,327 

Total Gross Carrying Amount  1,477,456,156  335,115,185  (25,157,788)  -    1,787,413,553 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8.5 Depreciation & Impairment

Balance
As at

01 April 2018

Charge for the
Year

Disposals Transfers* Balance
As at

31 March 2019

At Cost or Valuation LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Buildings  -    4,480,615  -    -    4,480,615 

Buildings Improvements  -    904,718  -    -    904,718 

Furniture and Fittings  188,047,683  46,438,959  (605,826)  167,443  234,048,259 

Office Equipment  49,849,044  14,536,961  -    137,348  64,523,353 

Motor Vehicles  86,025,968  23,979,440  (16,688,271)  -    93,317,137 

Computer Equipment  116,874,673  31,512,927  (264,956)  73,667  148,196,311 

Telephone  1,577,105  652,798  (78,119)  (378,458)  1,773,326 

Service Equipment  446,225  903,191  -    -    1,349,416 

Fixtures & Fittings  60,772  38,133  -    -    98,905 

Generators  6,306,781  130,140  -    -    6,436,921 

Total Depreciation  449,188,251  123,577,882  (17,637,172) -  555,128,961 

8.6 Net Book Values

As at 31 March 2019 2018

LKR LKR

At Cost or Valuation 

Land  501,252,001  501,252,001 

Buildings  85,249,586  89,730,201 

Buildings Improvements  98,613,314  -   

Furniture and  Fittings  226,729,058  208,027,361 

Office Equipments  108,983,918  61,579,129 

Motor Vehicles  136,493,186  95,370,104 

Computer Equipments  69,612,145  68,381,788 

Telephone  1,315,083  1,361,449 

Service Equipments  3,572,243  2,136,966 

Fixtures & Fittings 242,652 280,785

Generators  221,406  148,121 

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and  Equipment  1,232,284,592  1,028,267,905 
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Contd…)

8.7 The Lands & Buildings  of the Group  were  revalued  during  the   financial   year ended 31 March 2018 and such assets were 
valued on an open market value for existing use basis. The result of the revaluation have been incorporated in to the prior year 
financial statements. The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred to a revaluation reserve. Land and Buildings have 
been revalued by Mr. K.D.Sirisena (Incorporated Valuer) and H.N. Jayawardene (Incorporated Valuer). 

 The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the financial statements had the assets been carried 
at cost less depreciation is as follows:

Class of Asset Cost Accumulated 
Depreciation 

If assets were 
carried at cost

Net Carrying
Amount

2019

Net Carrying
Amount

2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Land   185,801,451                        -         185,801,451     185,801,451 

Building     62,808,397        (46,001,531)         16,806,866       21,436,733 

8.8 During the Year Fixed Assets Addition and Cash Payment 

Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

Number Number Number Number

Addition  353,970,438  199,552,509 335,115,185  145,970,116 

Cash Payment  353,970,438  199,552,509 335,115,185  145,970,116 

8.9 The amount of borrowing costs capitalised with property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2019 was Nil. 
(2018 - Nil) 

8.10 The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment of the group and the company which are still in use respectively 
amount of LKR 133,213,009/- and LKR 91,612,687/-  respectively (2018 -LKR 96,132,048/- and LKR 54,531,726/- ).
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8.11 The useful lives of  the  assets is estimated as follows;      

As at 31 March 2019 2018

LKR LKR

Buildings 20 Years 20 Years

Buildings Improvements 5-10 Years 5-10 Years

Service Equipments 4 Years 4 Years

Office Equipments 8 Years 8 Years

Furniture and Fittings 8 Years 8 Years

Motor Vehicles 4-10 Years 4-10 Years

Computer Equipments 4 Years 4 Years

Telephone 4 Years 4 Years

Generators 4 Years 4 Years

Plant, Machinery and Equipment 5-10 Years 5-10 Years

Fixtures & Fittings 8 Years 8 Years

Factory/Stores Equipment 8 Years 8 Years

8.12 Impairment (Group & Company)

Based on the assesment of potentional Impairment Carried out Internally by the bord of Directors as at 31 March 2019, No 
Provision was Required to be made in Financial Statement (2018/19)

8.13  Property plant & equipment pledged as security against borrowings (Group & Company)

 There were no Property, plant and equipment have been pledged as a Security for term Loans Obtained.   
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8.12 Details of Land & Buildings Revaluation

Name of the 
Company

Location Extent Number Method of Valuation and 
Significant Unobservable 
Inputs

Range of Estimate 
for Unobservable 
Inputs 

Valued  in 
31/03/2018 

Valuation
Abans PLC Freehold Property at 

Rathmalana
Market Comparable 
method

Land 14.9 P 01 Price per perch of Land LKR           1,000,000 14,900,000 
Building 5,162 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                  1,500 7,743,000 

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Liberty Plaza

Market Comparable 
method

Shopping Block 
at Liberty Plaza 
Colombo 435 sq.ft 01 Gross monthly rental LKR                  2,400 

       
15,700,000 

Estimated Outgoing 
Expenses 33.33%
Risk 4%

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Kandy

Market Comparable 
method

Land 11.094 P 01 Price per perch of Land LKR         12,000,000 133,128,000 
Building 4,415 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                  2,000 8,830,000 

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Kalutara

Market Comparable 
method

Land 24.46 P 01 Price per perch of Land LKR              932,298 22,804,000 
Building 9,403 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                  3,400 31,970,200 

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Gampaha

Market Comparable 
method

Land 17.52 P 01 Price per perch of Land LKR           3,139,269 55,000,000 
Building 724 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                  1,381 1,000,000 

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Kurunegala

Market Comparable 
method

Land 50 P 01 Price per perch of Land LKR           1,966,400 98,320,000 
Building   4,300 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                     581 2,500,000 

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Rajagiriya

Market Comparable 
method

Land 22 P 01 Price per perch of Land LKR           2,500,000 55,000,000 
Building 3,687 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                  1,000 3,687,000 

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Wellawatta

Market Comparable 
method

Land 25.65 P 01 Price per perch of Land LKR           3,508,772 90,000,000 
Abans PLC Freehold Property at 

Rathmalana
Market Comparable 
method

Land   15.00 P 01 Price per purch of Land LKR           1,000,000 15,000,000 
Building   3,157 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                  2,692 8,500,000 

Abans PLC Freehold Property at 
Rathmalana

Market Comparable 
method

Land     17.1 P 01 Price per purch of Land LKR           1,000,000 17,100,000 
Building   3,690 sq.ft 01 Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                  2,656 9,800,000 

Abans 
Finance

Freehold Property at 
Galwana-Mulleriyawa

Market Comparable 
method

Land   72.45 P 01 Price per purch of Land LKR           1,200,828 87,000,000 
677,982,200 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9 LEASEHOLD LAND PAYMENTS

As at 31 March 2019 2018

Group/Company LKR LKR

Balance at the Beginning of the Year  252,121,211  254,747,474 

Amortization for the Year  (2,626,263)  (2,626,263)

Balance at the End of the Year  249,494,948  252,121,211 

9.1 Leasehold land payments are up-front payments to acquire long-term leasehold interests of land situated in Bentota obtained 
from The Sri Lanka Tourism Development Authority. These payments are stated at cost and are amortised on a straight-line 
basis over the lease period of 99 years.

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - Group / Company 

10.1 Carrying Amont

As at 31 March Balance
As at

01 April 2018

Additions
 \Transfers 

Change in Fair 
Value during the

year

Balance
As at

31 March 2019

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Land  284,175,200  -    28,349,800  312,525,000 

Building  84,308,200  -    14,462,500  98,770,700 

 368,483,400  -    42,812,300  411,295,700 

10.2 Details of Investment Properties Fair Valuation

2019

 Range of Estimate for 

Location Valuer Detail Land Buliding Unobservable Inputs Value of Value of Total

(P) (sq.ft) Land Buliding Building Land LKR

Investment 
Property at 
Kirula Road, 
Nawala

KD Sirisena - 31 18,164
      

7,137,097         
         

3,946 .44     71,683,200 
      

221,250,000 
       

292,933,200 
Consultant 
Valuer

Investment 
Property at  
Nawala Road, 
Nugegoda

KD Sirisena - 17.45 4,925
             

5,230,659   5,500             27,087,500 
        

91,275,000 
       

118,362,500 
Consultant 
Valuer

98,770,700 312,525,000 411,295,700 
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10.2 Details of Investment Properties Fair Valuation

2018

Range of Estimate for 

Location Valuer Detail Land Buliding Unobservable Inputs Value of Value of Total

 (P) (sq.ft) Land Buliding Building Land LKR

Investment 
Property at 
Kirula Road, 
Nawala

KD Sirisena - 31 15,164
                
6,709,684  3,935.85  59,683,200  208,000,200  267,683,400 

Consultant 
Valuer

Investment 
Property at  
Nawala Road, 
Nugegoda

KD Sirisena - 15.1 4,925
 

5,044,702  5,000.00  24,625,000  76,175,000  100,800,000 
Consultant 
Valuer

84,308,200  284,175,200  368,483,400 

 Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of the Group’s/Company’s investment property are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

10.3 No rental income earned or direct operating expenses incurred for the investment property at Kirula Road, Nawala.
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11 LEASE RENTALS RECEIVABLE, LOANS AND ADVANCES - GROUP

11.1 Lease rentals Receivable

Within One Year 1-5 Years Over 5 years Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Gross Receivable

- Lease Rentals   3,999,518,639 3,349,447,344 3,444,096,025 2,871,712,521 3,193,310 155,692 7,446,807,974 6,221,315,557 

- Amounts 
receivable from 
Hirers        26,754,963 36,105,909 1,176,626 3,806,419 -   -   27,931,589 39,912,328 

  4,026,273,602 3,385,553,253 3,445,272,651 2,875,518,940 3,193,310 155,692  7,474,739,563 6,261,227,885 

Less: Unearned 
Income (725,814,465) (627,475,860)

 
(1,033,708,906) (854,133,936) (1,299,495) (65,816) (1,760,822,866) (1,481,675,613)

Net Investment   3,300,459,137 2,758,077,393 2,411,563,745 2,021,385,004 1,893,815 89,876 5,713,916,697 4,779,552,272 

Less: 

- Allowances For 
Impairment Losses 
(Note 11.1.2) (339,985,962) (162,678,659)

                       
(248,419,322)   (119,221,979) (195,085)   (5,301) (588,600,369) (281,905,939)

- Rentals received in 
advance      134,171,505 (16,512)                        -   -   -   -   134,171,505 (16,512)

- Suspended VAT (4,475,554) (5,333,626)                        -   -   -   -   (4,475,554) (5,333,626)

3,090,169,126 2,590,048,596 2,163,144,423 1,902,163,025 1,698,730 84,574 5,255,012,279 4,492,296,195 

*Lease & hirers receivables include receivables amounting to Rs. 1,092,627,095 that have been Pledged for facilities obtained from 
Banks.

11.1.1  Analysis of Lease Rental Receivable on Maximum Exposure to credit Risk as at 31 March 2019

Stage 01 Stage 02 Stage 03 Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Individually Impaired Lease Receivables  -    -    338,995,572  338,995,572 

Lease Rental Receivable  3,201,767,582  1,190,743,952  1,112,105,542  5,504,617,076 

Allowances for Expected Credit Losses  (155,219,416)  (104,880,012)  (328,500,940)  (588,600,369)

 3,046,548,166  1,085,863,940  1,122,600,174  5,255,012,280 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 LEASE RENTALS RECEIVABLE, LOANS AND ADVANCES - GROUP (Contd...)

11.1.2 Allowance for Impairment

As at 31 March 2019 2018

Group LKR LKR

As at 01 April  281,905,939  248,692,186 

Impact on Adoption of SLFRS 09 as at 01 April 2018  58,996,112 -

Charge for the year  247,716,791  33,213,753 

Amount Written off  (18,473)  -   

As at 31 March  588,600,369  281,905,939 

11.1.3 Movement in Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Stage 01 Stage 02 Stage 03 Total

Group LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April 2018  146,942,899  61,453,885  170,730,017  379,126,800 

Charge/(Reversal) to Income Statement  10,792,945  51,241,004  147,458,092  209,492,042 

Amounts written off  -    -    (18,473)  (18,473)

Balance as at 31 March 2019  157,735,844  112,694,889  318,169,636  588,600,369 

11.2 Loans and Advances

Within One Year Over 1 years Total

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Group LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Loans and Advances  1,491,400,537  1,804,135,165  797,381,699  744,758,556  2,288,782,236  2,548,893,721 
Less : Allowance for Impairment 
Losses (Note 11.2.2)  (143,193,923)  (109,517,604)  (58,951,011)  (45,395,806)  (202,144,934)  (154,913,410)

 1,348,206,614  1,694,617,561  738,430,688  699,362,750  2,086,637,302  2,393,980,311 

11.2.1  Analysis of Loans and Advances on Maximum Exposure to credit Risk as at 31 March 2019

Stage 01 Stage 02 Stage 03 Total

Group LKR LKR LKR LKR

Individually Impaired Loans and Advances  -    -    711,170,264  711,170,264 

Loans and Advances subject to  Collective Impairment  862,211,576  215,835,254  361,290,984  1,439,337,814 

Allowances for Expected Credit Losses  (15,089,896)  (10,140,855)  (176,914,183)  (202,144,935)

 847,121,680  205,694,399  895,547,064  1,948,363,143 
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11.2.2 Allowance for Impairment

As at 31 March 2019 2018

LKR LKR

As at 01 April  154,913,410  102,390,149 

Impact on Adoption of SLFRS 09 as at 01 April 2018  23,564,277 -

Charge for the year  23,871,664  52,523,260 

Amount Written off  (204,417)  -   

As at 31 March  202,144,934  154,913,410 

Individual Impairment  96,152,646  39,812,532 

Collective Impairment  105,992,288  115,100,878 

 202,144,934  154,913,410 

11.2.3 Movement in Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Stage 01 Stage 02 Stage 03 Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April 2018  55,623,458   19,848,698    119,552,589  195,024,745 

Charge/(Reversal) to Income Statement  (35,108,448)  (8,232,826)  50,665,881  7,324,607 

Amounts written off  - -  (204,417)  (204,417)

Balance as at 31 March 2019  20,515,011  11,615,872  170,014,052  202,144,935

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

12.1 This includes only locally purchased software where it is estimated that these software will bring economic benefits to the 
Company over period of 4 years, and is being amortized over a period of 4 years.

Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

As at 01 April  62,321,966  64,141,499  39,392,067  38,638,379 

Acquired during the year  19,988,374  16,718,884  4,582,077  15,327,287 

Charge for the year  (20,350,676)  (18,538,417)  (16,584,339)  (14,573,599)

Discontinued of Subsidiaries  (1,798,343)  -    -    -   

As at 31 March  60,161,321  62,321,966  27,389,805  39,392,067 
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Effect Holding- % Number of Shares Cost Cost

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR

13.1 Quoted

Cost

Abans Finance PLC 49.67 49.67  33,063,877 33,063,877 361,144,336 361,144,336 

33,063,877 33,063,877 361,144,336 361,144,336 

13.2 Non-Quoted

AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd.* 100 100 500,000 500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 

Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd. 56.87 56.87 600,000 600,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 

Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd 100 100 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd - 95 -   47,500,095 -   475,000,950 

A.B. Sun City (Pvt) Ltd. 100 100 275,168,000 240,806,000 2,751,680,000 2,408,060,000 

Less: Impairment* -                          -   (5,000,000) (5,000,000)

286,268,000 302,406,095 2,857,680,000 2,989,060,950 

Total Carrying Value of Investments in Subsidiaries 319,331,877 335,469,972 3,218,824,336 3,350,205,286

 * The company (AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd) is a less operating as of the reporting date. Hence the net assets of the company  
    as at 31 March 2019 is amounting to 10,610,010/-

13.3 Market Value

As at 31 March
Market 

Valuation
Market 

Valuation

2019 2018

LKR LKR

Abans Finance PLC  515,796,481  704,260,580 

 515,796,481  704,260,580 

14 MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

14.1 Proportion of Equity Interest Held by Non-Controlling Interests:

Name Principal Place of Business 2019 2018

% %

Abans Finance PLC
No. 456, R.A. De Mel Mawatha, 
Colombo 03 50.33 50.33

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14.2 The summarised financial information

 Abans Finance PLC 

As at 31 March 2019 2018

 LKR  LKR 

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss

Revenue  1,965,038,289  1,898,980,362 

Expenses  (1,783,876,886)  (1,707,376,426)

Finance Cost  -    -   

Profit before tax  181,161,403  191,603,936 

Tax expense  (157,440,081)    (96,740,249)

Profit for the year  23,721,322  94,863,687 

Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests  11,937,964  45,668,868 

Dividend paid to NCI  -    6,699,539 

 Abans Finance PLC 

As at 31 March 2019 2018

 LKR  LKR 

Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Non Current Assets  3,057,168,018  4,621,769,170 

Current Assets  5,803,142,715  4,335,654,883 

Non Current Liabilities  (1,509,697,966)  (1,422,521,127)

Current Liabilities  (5,816,552,506)  (5,967,274,998)

Total Equity  1,534,060,261  1,567,627,928 

Attributable to Equity Holders of Parent  761,967,732  778,705,410 

Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest  772,092,529  788,922,518 

Summarised Cash Flow Information

Operating  (1,207,142,372)  54,802,877 

Investing  255,695,121  (317,271,558)

Financing  594,210,512  271,729,752 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (357,236,739)  9,261,070 
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15. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE

15.1 Investments Details

Holding - % Cost Market Valuation

Investor
Investee/
Relationship 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Abans PLC
Abans Electricals 
PLC - Associate 42.95 42.95 30,752,197 30,752,197 114,149,308 185,053,590 

A.B. Sun City 
(Private) Limited

Colombo City 
Centre Partners 
(Private) Limited - 
Joint Venture 50   50 2,645,097,172   2.059,006,215   

                       
-   -   

2,675,849,369 2,089,758,412 114,149,308 185,053,590 

15.2 Investment in an Associate - Abans Electrical PLC

The Company has a 42.95% (2017 - 42.95%) interest in Abans Electricals PLC, which is involved in the manufacturing and 
assembling household electrical and electronic appliances and providing repairs, maintenance and technical services of similar 
type of appliances. The principal places of business are situated at No. 126, Airport Road, Ratmalana, and No. 506/B, Galle 
Road, Colombo 06.

Abans Electricals PLC is a public quoted entity listed in Colombo Stock Exchange. 

15.3 Investments In A Joint Venture -Colombo City Centre Parthers (Private) Limited

15.3.1 The Group has a 50% interest in Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited, a joint venture carries out mix development 
project. The principal place of business of the Company is located at No:498, Galle Road, Colombo 03.

15.3.2 The Group’s interest in Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the 
consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture and reconciliation with the carrying 
amount of the investment in the financial statements are set out below: 

15.3.3 There are considerations received from other investors as well as Group, which are classified under equity as Consideration 
Received for Shares. 

15.3.4     Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited showing below summarized financial information's

2019 2018

LKR LKR

Cash and cash equivalents  345,247,673  4,348,652 

Current liabilities (excluding trade & other payable)  250,893,205  10,109,009 

Non-current liabilities (excluding trade & other payable)  8,115,578,990  5,413,949,247 

Finance Cost  153,762,024  787,864 

15.4 The Group’s interest in Abans Electricals PLC & Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited is accounted for using the 
equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of 
the Group’s investment in  Abans Electricals PLC & Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited;
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15.4.1 Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss

 Joint Venture Associate

Group 2019 2018 2019 2018

 LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR 

Revenue  431,327,669  -    2,870,557,754  3,492,566,499 

Operating Expenses  (482,198,912)  (284,304,647)  (2,726,743,472)  (3,338,232,990)

Finance Income  -    -   

Finance Cost  (153,762,024)  (787,864)  (67,470,182)  (62,417,421)

Profit for the Year  (204,633,267)  (285,092,511)  76,344,100  91,916,088 

Group's Share of Profit/(Loss) for the Year  (102,316,634)  (142,546,256)  32,789,791  39,477,960 

15.4.2 Summarised Statement of Financial 
Position

Non Current Assets  10,637,205,495  11,114,878,545  1,510,753,350  1,168,315,670 

Current Assets  10,216,032,350  3,062,667,682  1,304,457,306  1,424,572,801 

Non Current Liabilities  (8,115,578,990)  (5,413,949,247) (402,988,047)  (252,466,882)

Current Liabilities  (7,447,464,511)  (4,713,353,947) (1,062,532,604)  (1,161,118,161)

Equity  5,290,194,344  4,050,243,032  1,349,690,005  1,179,303,428 

Group's Carrying  Amount of the Investment  2,645,097,172  2,059,006,215  579,691,857  506,510,822 

15.4.3 Equity Reconciliation

 Joint Venture Associate Total Investment

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Carrying Value as at 01 April 2,059,006,215 2,201,552,471  506,510,823  360,891,070 2,565,517,038 2,562,443,541 

Investment Made during the Year  688,407,590  -    -    -    688,407,590  -   

Share of Profits/(Loss) Net of Tax  (102,316,633)  (142,546,256)  31,930,870  18,664,911  (70,385,763)  (123,881,345)

Revaluation Gain Net of Tax  -    -    44,168,749  133,106,928  44,168,749  133,106,928 

Actuarial Gain /(Loss)  -    -    1,471,386  432,871  1,471,386  432,871 

Dividend Received  -    -    (4,389,971)  (6,584,957)  (4,389,971)  (6,584,957)

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2,645,097,172 2,059,006,215  579,691,857  506,510,823 3,224,789,029 2,565,517,038 
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16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Non Current

Measured at Fair Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income (16.2 & 16.4)  15,080,400  15,180,400  15,000,000  15,100,000 

 15,080,400  15,180,400  15,000,000  15,100,000 

Current

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
(Note 16.1)  529,744  912,668  529,744  912,668 

Measured at Amortized Cost  (Note16.3)  489,573,356  794,231,224  4,000,000  4,000,000 

 490,103,100  795,143,892  4,529,744  4,912,668 

16.1 Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

As at 31 March Value Value

2019 2018

Group & Company LKR LKR

Diversified Holdings  11,424  13,648 

Hayleys PLC  11,424  13,648 

Power & Energy  435,000  752,500 

Lanka IOC PLC  435,000  752,500 

Manufacturing  70,800  126,480 

Royal Ceramic Lanka PLC  12,520  20,040 

Regnis (Lanka) PLC  83,320  146,520 

 529,744  912,668 
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16.2 Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Carrying Carrying

 No of Shares Value Value

Group 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Investment in Ordinary Shares

Abans Restaurant Systems (Pvt) Ltd.  500,000  500,000  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Crown City Developers (Pvt) Ltd  -    10,000  -    100,000 

 5,000,000  5,100,000 

Investment in Preference Shares

Abans Investment (Pvt) Ltd.  1,000,000  1,000,000  10,000,000  10,000,000 

AB Leisure (Pvt) Ltd.  500,000  500,000  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka  1,000  1,000  80,400  80,400 

Less : Impairment - AB Leisure (Pvt) Limited  (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)

 10,080,400  10,080,400 

 15,080,400  15,180,400 

16.3 Measured at Amortized Cost

Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Current

Treasury Bills*  215,455,125  216,714,891  -    -   

Treasury Bonds*  20,459,214  22,915,244  -    -   

Fixed Deposits  253,659,017 554,601,089  4,000,000  -   

Total Measured at Amortized Cost  489,573,356 794,231,224  4,000,000  -   

* Government of Sri Lanka
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16.4 Measured at Fair value through other Comprehensive Income

Carrying Carrying

 No of Shares Value Value

Company 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Investment in Ordinary Shares

Abans Restaurant Systems (Pvt) Ltd.  500,000  500,000  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Crown City Developers (Pvt) Ltd -  10,000  -    100,000 

 5,000,000  5,100,000 

Investment in Preference Shares

Abans Investment (Pvt) Ltd.  1,000,000  1,000,000  10,000,000  10,000,000 

AB Leisure (Pvt) Ltd.  500,000  500,000  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Less : Impairment - AB Leisure (Pvt) Limited  (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)

 10,000,000  10,000,000 

 15,000,000  15,100,000 
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17.1 Trade and Other Receivables

Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Trade Receivables - Related Parties  99,687,330  431,430,672  148,819,135  1,195,218,765 

- Other  7,736,786,459  9,464,085,882  7,726,469,498  8,619,954,656 

Less: Provision for Impairment  (442,809,332)  (525,366,878)  (433,009,477)  (424,759,772)

 7,393,664,457  9,370,149,676  7,442,279,156  9,390,413,649 

Other Debtors - Related Parties  1,796,630,587  1,332,575,201  1,770,815,603  1,598,549,325 

- Other  1,447,781,946  1,344,323,408  1,219,458,169  999,089,513 

Less: Provision for Impairment  (999,615,496)  (861,543,349)  (941,887,726)  (780,462,431)

 9,638,461,494  11,185,504,936  9,490,665,202  11,207,590,056 

Staff Loans  107,137,515  77,590,028  31,108,437  34,145,534 

 9,745,599,009  11,263,094,964  9,521,773,639  11,241,735,590 

Advances and Prepayments  302,009,148  378,295,389  261,546,149  269,839,515 

 10,047,608,157  11,641,390,353  9,783,319,788  11,511,575,105 

17.2 Provision for Impairment

Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

At the Beginning of the Year  1,386,910,227  1,293,517,616  1,205,222,203  1,137,890,957 

Provision Made During the Year  55,514,601  93,392,611  169,675,000  67,331,246 

At the End of the Year  1,442,424,828  1,386,910,227  1,374,897,203  1,205,222,203 

The Aging Details of Trade & Other Receivables are given on Note Number 27.5.1.1
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18. INVENTORIES  

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Work in Progress            56,326,048  1,199,489,253  56,326,048  40,627,513 

Trading Stock  8,716,747,206  8,725,684,983  8,714,006,152  8,709,998,800 

Real Estate Stock  50,793,213  58,049,675  -    -   

Less: Provision for Slow Moving Inventory 
(Note 18.1)  (340,558,599)  (339,381,835)  (339,835,108)  (329,364,566)

Total Inventories at the Lower of Cost and Net 
Realisable Value  8,483,307,868  9,643,842,076  8,430,497,092  8,421,261,747 

18.1 Provision for Slow Moving Inventory  

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

At the Beginning of the Year  339,381,835  413,070,906  329,364,566  376,781,006 

Charge / (Reversal) for the year  1,176,764  (73,689,071)  10,470,542  (47,416,440)

At the End of the Year  340,558,599  339,381,835  339,835,108  329,364,566 

19. SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT

Group

2019 2018

LKR LKR

Repurchase Agreements  281,537,224  362,248,075 

 281,537,224  362,248,075 
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20. CASH AND SHORT TERM DEPOSITS

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

20.1 Favourable Cash and Short Term Deposits

Cash and Bank Balances  685,625,260  998,411,077  417,580,012  581,890,941 

 685,625,260  998,411,077  417,580,012  581,890,941 

20.2 Unfavourable Cash and Short Term 
Deposits

             Bank Overdraft (Note 23.2)  (384,297,030)  (322,256,532)  (255,595,844)  (133,642,329)

Total Cash and Short Term Deposits For 
the purpose of Cash flow Statement    301,328,230  676,154,545  161,984,168  448,248,612 

21. STATED CAPITAL - Group / Company

2019 2018

 No of Share LKR  No of Share LKR

Ordinary Shares *  2,160,000  216,000,000  2,160,000  216,000,000 

Non Voting Ordinary Shares **  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 

 2,185,000  218,500,000  2,185,000  218,500,000 

21.1 Rights Preference and restrictions of Classes of Capital

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per 
share at a meeting of the shareholders.

The holders of non voting ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time on the discretion of the 
directors. The holders of these shares  are not entitled to vote at a meeting of the shareholders.

21.2 There were no new Shares Issued During the Financial Year.
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22. OTHER COMPONENTS OF EQUITY

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Revaluation Reserve (Note 22.1)  539,801,649  498,819,620  338,394,043  338,394,043 

Other Reserves  (Note 22.2)  112,983,832  115,654,567 -  7,415,000 

 652,785,481  614,474,187  338,394,043  345,809,043 

22.1 Revaluation Reserve

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

On: Land and Buildings

Balance as at the Beginning of the Year  498,819,620  395,864,337  338,394,043  391,633,767 
Increase/(Decrease) in Revaluation Reserve 
Net of Tax  40,982,029  102,955,283  -    (53,239,724)

Balance as at the End of the Year  539,801,649  498,819,620  338,394,043  338,394,043 

22.2 Other Reserves

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Statutory Reserve & Investment Fund Reserve 
(Note 22.2.1)  112,983,832  108,239,567  -    -   

Other Reserves -  7,415,000 -  7,415,000 

Balance as at the End of the Year  112,983,832  115,654,567 -  7,415,000 

22.2.1 Statutory Reserve & Investment Fund 
Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year  108,239,567  89,266,829  -    -   

Transfers during the year  4,744,265  18,972,738  -    -   

Balance as at the End of the Year  112,983,832  108,239,567  -    -   

22.2.2 Reserve Fund is a capital reserve which contains profits transferred as required by Section 3(b)(ii) of  Central Bank Direction  
No. 1 of 2003.
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23 INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS

23.1 Group

Amount 
Repayable

Within 1  Year

Amount 
Repayable

After 1 Year
2019
Total

Amount 
Repayable

Within 1  Year

Amount 
Repayable

After 1 Year
2018
Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Finance Leases  -    -    -    5,086,430  3,667,905  8,754,335 

Import Financing Loans 6,348,664,594  -   6,348,664,594 6,214,263,885  -   6,214,263,885 

Bank Loans 2,030,145,023 2,668,516,610 4,698,661,633 1,835,858,317 3,325,693,835 5,161,552,152 

Bank Overdrafts (Note 20.2)  384,297,030  -    384,297,030  322,256,532  -    322,256,532 

Commercial Papers  55,495,598  -    55,495,598  46,893,969  -    46,893,969 

Debentures - Listed - Unsecured  776,867,790  -    776,867,790  828,414,959  760,350,000 1,588,764,959 

Securitization  230,277,717  190,316,128  420,593,845  -   -   -  

9,825,747,752 2,858,832,738 12,684,580,490 9,252,774,092 4,089,711,740 13,342,485,832 

23.1.1 Changes in Interest Bearing Borrowings 

 As at 01  
 April

2018

Obtained 
during the 

year

Repayments 
during the 

year
 Discontinued  
 subsidiaries

Accrued 
Interest

As at 31 
March 2019

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Finance Leases  8,754,335  -    -    (8,754,335)  -    -   

Import Financing Loans  6,214,263,885  19,283,979,450 (19,172,022,926)  -    22,444,185  6,348,664,594 

Bank Loans  5,161,552,152  3,617,397,720  (3,343,776,121)  (742,529,938)  6,017,821  4,698,661,633 

Commercial Papers  46,893,969  160,692,745  (156,092,312)  -    4,001,196  55,495,598 

Debentures - Listed - Unsecured  1,588,764,959  -    (828,414,959)  -    16,517,790  776,867,790 

Securitization  -    420,593,845  -    -    -    420,593,845 

 13,020,229,300  23,482,663,760 (23,500,306,318)  (751,284,273)  48,980,992  12,300,283,460 
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23 INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS (Contd...)

23.2 Company

Amount 
Repayable

Within 1  Year

Amount 
Repayable

After 1 Year
2019
Total

Amount 
Repayable

Within 1  Year

Amount 
Repayable

After 1 Year
2018
Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Import Financing Loans 6,348,664,594  -   
 

6,348,664,594 
 

6,214,263,885  -   
 

6,214,263,885 

Bank Loans 1,849,622,801 2,465,700,000 4,315,322,801  989,995,045 3,219,305,003 4,209,300,048 

Bank Overdrafts (Note 20.2)  255,595,844  -    255,595,844  133,642,329  -    133,642,329 

Commercial Papers  55,495,598  -    55,495,598  46,893,969  -    46,893,969 

Debentures - Listed - Unsecured  776,867,790  -    776,867,790  828,414,959  760,350,000 1,588,764,959 

9,286,246,627 2,465,700,000  11,751,946,627 8,213,210,187 3,979,655,003  12,192,865,190 

23.2.1 Changes in Interest Bearing Borrowings

As at 

01 April 2018

Obtained 

during the year

Repayments 

during the year

Accrued 

Interest

As at 

31 March 2019

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Import Financing Loans  6,214,263,885  19,283,979,450  (19,172,022,925)  22,444,184  6,348,664,594 

Bank Loans  4,209,300,048  3,172,397,720  (3,072,392,789)  6,017,822  4,315,322,801 

Commercial Papers  46,893,969  160,692,745  (156,092,312)  4,001,196  55,495,598 

Debentures - Listed - Unsecured  1,588,764,959  -    (828,414,959)  16,517,790  776,867,790 

 12,059,222,861  22,617,069,915  (23,228,922,985)  48,980,992  11,496,350,783 

23.3 Security and repayment terms  -Import Finance Loans & Bank Loans

Company Tenor Interest Rate Collateral

Import Financing Loans

 Abans PLC 

3-6 Months AWPLR+0.5%-1% Stocks and Book Debtors
Term Loan HNB PLC  4 Years AWPLR+1.75% Credit Card Receivables
Term Loan Sampath Bank PLC 4 Years AWPLR+1.5%-2% Hire Purchase Receivable
Term Loan Peoples’ Bank 4 Years AWPLR + 1.25% Hire Purchase Receivable
Short Term Loans  Sampth Bank PLC 6 Months AWPLR+0.75% Stock and Book debtors (250 Mn)
Short Term Loans  Seylan Bank PLC 3 Months AWPLR+1.00% No Collateral
Commercial Papers 3 - 12 Months AWPLR+2% No Collateral

Term Loan 02 Union Bank of Colombo PLC

Abans 
Finance PLC

3 Years AWPLR+3% Lease Portfolio
Term Loan 01 Seylan Bank PLC 5 Years AWPLR + 3% Lease Portfolio
Term Loan 02 Seylan Bank PLC 5 Years AWPLR+2.75% Lease Portfolio
Term Loan 01 Nations Trust Bank PLC 2 Years AWPLR + 2.8% Lease Portfolio
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23.4 Debentures

 Senior Listed  Rated Unsecured Redeemable

Carring Value

Year of Issue Face Value Term Issue Date Maturity Date Interest Rate 2019 2018

 LKR LKR

2014  760,350,000 5 Years 26/12/14 26/12/19 9.00%  778,160,938  778,160,938 

24 WARRANTY PROVISION

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at the beginning of the Year  384,590,022  345,253,875  375,330,434  279,267,881 

Provision for the Year  211,122,823  331,312,482  219,851,167  380,960,304 

Utilised during the Year  (294,389,595)  (291,976,335)  (294,654,333)  (284,897,751)

Balance as at the end of the Year  301,323,250  384,590,022  300,527,268  375,330,434 

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITIES

25.1 Employee Benefits Liability

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  299,810,447  258,678,913  226,271,787  159,343,346 

Expense on Benefits Plan (25.2)  55,624,310  65,198,810  46,306,988  46,609,210 

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (25.2)  (3,336,570)  149,637  (26,400)  5,503,959 

Benefit Paid  (45,847,699)  (24,661,259)  (39,320,293)  (14,841,926)

Transferred from/(to) Intercompany (Note 25.6)  (3,668,449)  444,346  (3,668,449)  29,657,198 

Transferred/(Discontinued Subsidiaries)  (34,505,082)  -    -   -

Balance as at 31 March  268,076,957  299,810,447  229,563,633  226,271,787 
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITIES  (Contd...) 

25.2 Expense on Benefits Plan

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Current Service Cost  28,168,068  34,273,615  22,741,680  24,149,979 

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation  27,456,242  30,925,195  23,565,308  22,459,231 

The Total Amount Charged to Statement 
of Profit or Loss  55,624,310  65,198,810  46,306,988  46,609,210 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  (3,336,570)  3,781,495  (26,400)  5,503,959 

Discontinued Subsidiaries  -    (3,631,858)  -    -   

Other Comprehensive Income charge  (3,336,570)  149,637  (26,400)  5,503,959 

25.3 Acturial & Management Consultants (Private) Limited Carried out an Acturial Valuation of the Employee Benefit Plan - Gratuity 
on 31 March 2019. Appropiable and Compatible Assumptions were used in determining the cost of Retirement Benefit. The 
Principle Assumptions used as at 31 March 2019 are as Follows,

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

    

Method of Actuarial Valuation
 Projected Unit 

Credit (PUC)
 Projected Unit   
Credit (PUC)

 Projected Unit 
Credit (PUC)

 Projected Unit 
Credit (PUC)

Financial Assumption

Discount Rate  11%  9.88% - 10.5%  11%  10.5% 

Salary Increment Rate  5% - 10%  5% - 10%  10%  10% 

Staff Turnover Rate  17% - 28%   20% - 25%   28%  20% 

Retirement Age -  Female  60 Years  60 Years  60 Years  60 Years 

  Male  60 Years  60 Years  60 Years  60 Years 
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25.4 Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed in Actuarial Valuation 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a possible change in key assumptions employed with all other variables held 
constant in the Employee Benefit Liability Measurement.

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1%

Group

Discount rate  261,566,008  275,039,344  290,119,735  306,466,967 

Salary Increment Rate  277,410,219  259,186,422  309,017,425  287,568,024 

Company

Discount rate  223,260,196  236,277,105  215,934,390  233,661,407 

Salary Increment Rate  237,331,147  222,147,007  234,650,715  214,862,529 

25.5 Future Working Life Time

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Within the next 12 month  69,705,752  60,609,164  61,460,543  46,901,830 

Between 1-2 Years  93,934,404  86,602,694  78,913,033  62,702,096 

Between 2-5 Years  64,790,050  75,432,014  57,472,040  58,903,528 

Between 5-10 Years  31,074,197  53,209,802  25,587,911  40,984,933 

Beyond 10 Years  8,572,555  23,956,773  6,130,105  16,779,400 

 268,076,957  299,810,447  229,563,633  226,271,787 
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITIES  (Contd...)  

25.6 Employee Benefits Liability Transferred from/(to) Related Parties

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Abans Retail (Private) Limited  -    -    -    29,416,626 

Abans Auto (Private) Limited  (1,828,165)  444,346  (1,828,165)  240,572 

Abstract Lanka (Private) Limited  (1,840,284)  -    (1,840,284)  -   

 (3,668,449)  444,346  (3,668,449)  29,657,198 

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26.1 Group

2019 2018

Current Non-Current Total Current Non-Current Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Trade Payable - Related Parties  409,066,047  -  409,066,047  650,445,703  -  650,445,703 

 - Other  5,692,287,700  1,099,094,047  6,791,381,747  7,452,289,050  1,297,219,575  8,749,508,625 

Other Payable  - Related Parties  553,407,740  -  553,407,740  599,494,586  -  599,494,586 

 - Other  342,946,968  -  342,946,968  514,093,235  -  514,093,235 

 6,997,708,455  1,099,094,047  8,096,802,502  9,216,322,574  1,297,219,575  10,513,542,149 

Advances and Deposits  970,563,580  -  970,563,580  967,859,351  -  967,859,351 

 7,968,272,035  1,099,094,047  9,067,366,082  10,184,181,925  1,297,219,575  11,481,401,500 

Sundry Creditors Including Accrued 
Expenses  2,017,497,397  -  2,017,497,397  1,675,143,430  -  1,675,143,430 

 9,985,769,432  1,099,094,047  11,084,863,479  11,859,325,355  1,297,219,575  13,156,544,930 

26.2 Company

2019
Current

2018
Current

LKR LKR

Trade Payable - Related Parties  409,439,080  515,913,191 

 - Other  819,889,444  1,919,073,350 

Other Payable  - Related Parties  1,561,659,064  2,479,787,432 

 - Other  331,726,649  389,630,776 

 3,122,714,237  5,304,404,749 

Advances and Deposits  966,602,685  964,624,489 

 4,089,316,922  6,269,029,238 

Sundry Creditors Including Accrued Expenses  1,724,485,484  1,249,962,474 

 5,813,802,406  7,518,991,712 
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 
27 Financial Instruments

27.1 Financial Assets and Liabilities by Categories

 Group

Financial assets and liabilities in the tables below are split into categories in accordance with SLFRS 09.

Financial Assets by Categories 

At Amortized Cost
Measured at Fair Value Through 

Profit or Loss
Measured at Fair Value Through 
Other Comprehensive Income

Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

    LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Financial instruments in 
non-current assets

Other Financial Assets 16. -   -   -   -   15,080,400 15,180,400 

Lease Rentals Receivable 11.1 2,164,843,153 1,902,247,599 - -   -   -   

Loans and Advances 11.2 738,430,688 699,362,750 - -                          -                          -   

Financial instruments in current 
assets

Lease Rentals Receivable 11.1 3,090,169,126 2,590,048,596 - -   -   -   

Loans and Advances 11.2 1,348,206,614 1,694,617,561 - -   -   -   

Trade and Other Receivables 
Excluding Pre-payments 17.1 9,745,599,009 11,263,094,964 - -   -   -   

Other Financial Assets 16. 489,573,356 794,231,224 529,744 912,668 -   -   

Cash and Short Term Deposits 20.1 685,625,260 998,411,077 - -   -   -   

Securities Purchased under Repur-
chase Agreement 19. 281,537,224 362,248,075 - -   -   -   

Total   18,543,984,430 20,304,261,846 529,744 912,668 15,080,400 15,180,400 

Financial Liabilities by Categories Financial Liabilities Measured  
at Fair Value

Financial Liabilities Measured  
at Amortized Cost

Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018

    LKR LKR LKR LKR

Financial instruments in non-current liabilities

Interest Bearing Borrowings 23.1 - - 2,858,832,738 4,089,711,740 

Trade and Other Payables 26.1 - - 1,099,094,047 1,297,219,575 

Financial instruments in current liabilities

Interest Bearing Borrowings 23.1 -   -   9,825,747,752 9,252,774,092 

Trade and Other Payables 26.1 -   -   9,985,769,432 11,859,325,355 

Total   - - 23,769,443,969 26,499,030,762 
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  (Contd...) 

27.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities by Categories (Contd...)

 Company

Financial assets and liabilities in the tables below are split into categories in accordance with SLFRS 09.  

Financial Assets by Categories 

At Amortized Cost
Measured at Fair Value Through 

Profit or Loss
Measured at Fair Value Through 
Other Comprehensive Income

Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

    LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Financial instruments in 

non-current assets

Other Financial Assets 16.  -    -    -    -    15,000,000  15,100,000 
Financial instruments in current 

assets
Trade and Other Receivables 
Excluding Pre-payments 17.1 9,521,773,639 11,241,735,590  -    -    -    -   

Other Financial Assets 16.  4,000,000     4,000,000      529,744  912,668  -    -   

Cash and Short Term Deposits 20.1  417,580,012  581,890,941  -    -    -    -   

Total 9,943,353,651 11,827,626,531  529,744  912,668  15,000,000  15,100,000 

Financial Liabilities by Categories Financial Liabilities Measured  
at Fair Value

Financial Liabilities Measured  
at Amortized Cost

Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018

    LKR LKR LKR LKR

Financial instruments in non-current 

liabilities

Interest Bearing Borrowings 23.2  -    -    2,465,700,000  3,979,655,003 

Financial instruments in current liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 26.2  -    -    5,813,802,406  7,518,991,712 

Interest Bearing Borrowings 23.2  -    -    9,286,246,627  8,213,210,187 

Total  -    -   17,565,749,033 19,711,856,902 
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27.3 Fair Value Hierarchy 

The Group/Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 
valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly

Level 3: Techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable 
market data 

The following tables sets out the group's and Company's asset and liabilities that are measured and recognised at fair value as 
at 31 March 2019.

Financial Assets - Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Recurring Fair Value Mesurements

Financial Assets:

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss  -    -    15,080,400  15,080,400 

Measured at Fair Value Through Other 
Comprehensive Income  529,744  -    -    529,744 

Total Recurring Financial Assets  529,744  -    15,080,400  15,610,144 

Non Financial Assets:

Land and Buildings  -    -    673,507,006  673,507,006 

Investment Properties - -  411,295,700  411,295,700 

Total Recurring Non-Financial Assets  -    -    673,507,006  673,507,006 
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd...)

27.3 Fair Value Hierarchy (Contd...)

Financial Assets - Company Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Recurring Fair Value Mesurements

Financial Assets:

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss  -    -    15,000,000  15,000,000 

Measured at Fair Value Through Other 
Comprehensive Income  529,744  -    -    529,744 

Total Recurring Financial Assets  529,744  -    15,000,000  15,529,744 

Non Financial Assets:

Land and Buildings  -    -    586,501,587  586,501,587 

Investment Properties  411,295,700  411,295,700 

Total Recurring Non-Financial Assets  -    -    586,501,587  586,501,587 

The Group/Company does not have any financial liability which is carried at fair value in the statement of financial position.

During the reporting period ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value 
measurements.

The group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or 
change in circumstances that caused the transfer occurred.     

Item and Valuation Approach Key Comparable Data
Relationship Between Comparable Inputs to Fair 
Value

Unlisted Equity Securities

Fair value is determined by 
Net Assets basis

Market value of assets, recoverable 
value of trade & other receivable, 
book value of liability

The Company’s Adjusted Net Assets Value (ANAV) 
less than cost of investment immediately recognise 
as an impairment to the investment

Land and Buildings

Fair value is determined by 
Comparison approach

The fair values of land are derived 
using the sale comparison approach. 
Sale prices of comparable land in 
similar location are adjusted for differ-
ences in key attributes such as land 
size. The valuation model is based on 
price per square meter.

The higher the value per perch/square feet, higher 
fair value
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27.4 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

2019 2018

Group Note Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Financial Assets

Lease Rentals Receivable    2,137,689,456    1,761,035,935    4,492,296,195   3,445,927,736 

Other Financial Assets     505,183,500     466,766,485     810,324,292    811,250,509 

Loans and Advances    2,137,689,456    1,761,035,935    2,393,980,312   1,977,552,902 
Trade and Other Receivables 
Excluding Pre-payments A    9,745,599,009    9,745,599,009    11,263,094,964   11,263,094,964 
Securities Purchased under Re-
purchase Agreement A     281,537,224     281,537,224     362,248,075    362,248,075 

Cash and Short Term Deposits A     685,625,260     685,625,260     998,411,077    998,411,077 

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings  
(Non Current) B    2,858,832,738    2,858,832,738    4,089,711,740   4,089,711,740 

Interest Bearing Borrowings (Current) A   9,825,747,752   9,825,747,752   9,252,774,092     9,252,774,092 
Trade and Other Payables  
(Non Current) B 1,099,094,047   1,099,094,047   1,297,219,575     1,297,219,575 
Trade and Other Payables  
(Current) A   7,968,272,035   7,968,272,035 10,184,181,925   10,184,181,925 

2019 2018

Company Note Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets  19,529,744  19,529,744  20,012,668  20,012,668 
Trade and Other Receivables 
Excluding Pre-payments A 9,521,773,639 9,521,773,639  11,241,735,590  11,241,735,590 

Cash and Short Term Deposits A  417,580,012  417,580,012  581,890,941  581,890,941 

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings 
(Non Current) B  2,465,700,000  2,465,700,000  3,979,655,003  3,979,655,003 
Interest Bearing Borrowings 
(Current) A  9,286,246,627  9,286,246,627  8,213,210,187  8,213,210,187 

Trade and Other Payables A  4,089,316,922  4,089,316,922  6,269,029,238  6,269,029,238 

The following describes the method and assumptions used to determine the fair values for those financial assets and liabilities 
which are not already recorded at fair value in the financial statements; 
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd...)

27.4 Fair Value of Financial Instruments  (Contd...)

Fair Value Hierarchy  Level of Valuation 

Lease Rentals Receivable  Level 2 

 Other Financial Assets     

Other Financial Assets include investments in Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bonds and Treasury Bills with the carrying 
value of LKR 235,914,338 and fair value of LKR  235,429,807/- that are valued under Level 2.

A.  Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their carrying 
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

B.  Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group/Company based on parameters 
such as interest rates, specific counting risk factors, and risk characteristics of the financed project etc. As at 31 March 
2019, the carrying amounts of such receivables/borrowings are not materially different from their calculated fair values.

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Contd...) 
27.5 Financial Risk Management - Objective And Policies

The Group’s risk management is overseen by the Company, in close co-operation with the board of directors and focuses on 
actively securing the group’s short to medium term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets. Long term 
financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns. The group does not actively engage in the trading of financial 
assets for speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the group is exposed are 
described below.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

27.5.1 Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counter-party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 
to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its 
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial 
instruments. 

The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all clients who wish to trade on 
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. 

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, such as cash and cash equivalents,  FVTOCI 
financial investments and other financial investments, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter-
party. The Group manages its operations to avoid any excessive concentration of counter-party risk and the Group takes all 
reasonable steps to ensure the counter-parties fulfil their obligations.
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27.5.1.1 Trade & Other Receivables

Customers credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policies and procedures relating 
to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major 
customers are generally covered by letter of credit or other forms of credit insurance.

The requirement for an impairment is analyzed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. Additionally, 
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The 
calculation is based on actual incurred historical data.

Credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due or impaired is explained below.     
       

Group

Past Due Not Impaired

Total

Neither Past 
Due nor 

Impaired < 30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days > 120 days

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

2019 7,393,664,457 6,379,143,077  203,190,829 249,798,307   125,022,235   74,789,230    361,720,779 

2018 9,370,149,676 6,314,874,170  903,943,336 510,123,453   297,977,820 470,578,339    872,652,557 

Company

Past Due Not Impaired

Total

Neither Past 
Due nor 

Impaired < 30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days > 120 days

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

2019  7,442,279,156  6,432,708,502  203,190,829  249,798,307  125,022,235  74,789,230  356,770,053 

2018  9,390,413,649  6,891,005,098  844,740,381  459,854,737  249,845,294  245,591,104  699,377,035 

28.1.2 Lease Rental Receivable - Group

Total
Neither Past Due nor 
Individually Impaired

Past Due  Not 
Individually Impaired

Individually Impaired

LKR LKR LKR LKR

2019  5,843,612,648  2,179,078,383  3,327,738,075  336,796,190 

2018  4,774,202,134  2,685,207,295  1,996,914,710  92,080,129 
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Contd...)

27.5.1.2  Lease Rental Receivable - Group (Contd...)

Past Due but Not Individually Impaired - Group

Total 1 to 30 Days 31 to 60 Days 61 to 90  Days More than 91 Days

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

2019  3,327,738,075  1,073,796,467  792,823,877  371,826,892  1,089,290,839 
2018  1,996,914,710  942,899,277  377,258,110  190,651,235  486,106,088 

27.5.1.3  Cash in hand and at bank

In order to mitigate concentration, settlement and operational risks related to cash and cash equivalents, the group limits 
the maximum cash amount that can be deposited with a single counterparty. The Group and Company held cash and cash 
equivalents of LKR 686 Mn and LKR 418 Mn at 31 March 2019 (2018  - LKR 998 Mn and 582 Mn ). 

27.5.2 Liquidity Risk

The Group’s policy is to hold cash and undrawn committed facilities at a level sufficient to ensure that the Group has available 
funds to meet its medium term capital and funding obligations, including organic growth and acquisition activities, and to meet 
any unforeseen obligations and opportunities. The Group holds cash and undrawn committed facilities to enable the Group to 
manage its liquidity risk.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a daily cash management process. This process considers the 
maturity of both the Group’s financial investments and financial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, other financial assets) and 
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of multiple sources 
of funding including bank loans and overdrafts.

27.5.2.1  Credit Exposure

 Maximum Exposure to Credit risk       

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset and the value of financial assets 
covered by the collateral.

Group

Type of Collateral Maximum Fair Value of Collateral Held  Total Net

Exposure to Cash / Near Property Moveable Other **  Collateral Exposure to

As at 31st March 2019 Credit Risk Cash Mortgages Assets *    Value Credit Risk

Cash and Bank Balances 
(Excluding cash in hand)  538,878,334   -     -    -     -    -      538,878,334 
Securities Purchased under 
Repurchase Agreement  281,537,224   -     -    -     -    -      281,537,224 
Measured at Fair Value through 
Other Comprehencive Income    15,080,400   -     -    -     -    -    15,080,400 
Measured at Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss 529,744   -     -    -     -    -     529,744 

Measured at Amortized Cost  489,573,356   -     -    -     -    -      489,573,356 
Trade and Other Receivables 
excluding Prepayments

  
9,745,599,009   -     -    -     -    -   9,745,599,009

Loans and Advances  2,137,689,456  138,273,009  375,200,576  8,806,097  2,647,669  524,927,350  1,612,762,106 
Lease rentals receivable  5,255,012,280  -    -    528,711,876  -    528,711,876  4,726,300,404 

 18,463,899,803 138,273,009  375,200,576  537,517,973  2,647,669  1,053,639,226 17,410,260,577 
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Group

Type of Collateral Maximum Fair Value of Collateral Held  Total Net

Exposure to Cash / Near Property Moveable Other **  Collateral Exposure to

As at 31st March 2018 Credit Risk Cash Mortgages Assets *    Value Credit Risk

Cash and Bank Balances 
(Excluding cash in hand)  914,211,812  -    -    -    -    -   914,211,812
Securities Purchased under 
Repurchase Agreement  362,248,075  -    -    -    -    -   362,248,075

Measured at Fair Value through 
Other Comprehencive Income  15,180,400  -    -    -    -    -   15,180,400
Measured at Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss  912,668  -    -    -    -    -   912,668

Measured at Amortized Cost  794,231,224  -    -    -    -    -   794,231,224
Trade and Other Receivables 
excluding Prepayments 11,263,094,964  -    -    -    -    -   11,263,094,964
Loans and Advances 2,393,980,312  345,764,194  712,204,652  738,862,291  2,994,278 1,799,825,415 594,154,897
Lease rentals receivable  4,774,202,134  -    -    4,378,020,432  -    4,378,020,432 396,181,702

20,518,061,589  345,764,194  712,204,652 5,116,882,723  2,994,278 6,177,845,847 14,340,215,742 

* Movable assets includes absolute ownership/ mortgage over motor vehicles and Machineries & Equipments.

** Other collateral includes secured by consumer durables & title deed transfers (Real Estate Loans).

Company

Type of Collateral Maximum Fair Value of Collateral Held  Total Net

Exposure to Cash / Near Property Moveable Other **  Collateral Exposure to

As at 31st March 2019 Credit Risk Cash Mortgages Assets *    Value Credit Risk

Cash and Bank Balances 
(Excluding cash in hand)  411,243,044  -    -    -    -    -   

 
411,243,044 

Measured at Fair 
Value through Other 
Comprehencive Income  15,000,000  -    -    -    -    -    15,000,000 

Measured at Fair Value 
Through Profit or Loss  529,744  -    -    -    -    -    529,744 

Measured at Amortized Cost  4,000,000  -    -    -    -    -    4,000,000 

Trade and Other Receivables 
excluding Prepayments

 
9,521,773,639  -    -    -    -    -   

 
9,521,773,639

9,952,546,427  -    -    -    -    -   9,952,546,427
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Contd...)

27.5.2.1  Credit Exposure (Contd...)

Company

Type of Collateral Maximum Fair Value of Collateral Held  Total Net

Exposure to Cash / Near Property Moveable Other **  Collateral Exposure to

As at 31st March 2018 Credit Risk Cash Mortgages Assets *    Value Credit Risk

Cash and Bank Balances 
(Excluding cash in hand)  558,656,408  -    -    -    -    -   558,656,408

Measured at Fair 
Value through Other 
Comprehencive Income  15,100,000  -    -    -    -    -   15,100,000

Measured at Fair Value 
Through Profit or Loss  912,668  -    -    -    -    -   912,668

Measured at Amortized Cost  4,000,000  -    -    -    -    -   4,000,000

Trade and Other Receivables 
excluding Prepayments

 
11,241,735,590  -    -    -    -    -   11,241,735,590

11,820,404,666  -    -    -    -    -    11,820,404,666 

27.5.2.2  Liquidity risk management

The business units attempt to match contracted cash outflows in each time bucket using a combination of operational cash 
inflows and other inflows that can be generated through the liquidation of short term investments, repurchase agreements or 
other secured borrowings.

 Contractual maturity analysis        

The below table summarizes the maturity periods of liabilities in due.

Group (As at 31 March 2019) Less than 1 Year 1 to 2 year 2 to 5 year Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings  9,825,747,753  2,609,432,737  249,400,000  12,684,580,490 

Trade and Other Payables  8,886,675,387  1,099,094,047  1,099,094,047  11,084,863,481 

 18,712,423,140  3,708,526,784  1,348,494,047  23,769,443,971 

Group (As at 31 March 2018) Less than 1 Year 1 to 2 year 2 to 5 year Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings  9,252,774,092  3,429,125,073  660,586,667  13,342,485,832 

Trade and Other Payables  11,859,325,355  1,090,862,152  206,357,423  13,156,544,930 

 21,112,099,447  4,519,987,225  866,944,090  26,499,030,762 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Company (As at 31 March 2019) Less than 1 Year 1 to 2 year 2 to 5 year Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings  9,286,246,627  2,216,300,000  249,400,000  11,751,946,627 

Trade and Other Payables  5,813,802,406  -    -    5,813,802,406 

 15,100,049,033  2,216,300,000  249,400,000  17,565,749,033 

Company (As at 31 March 2018) Less than 1 Year 1 to 2 year 2 to 5 year Total

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings  8,213,210,187  3,350,735,003  628,920,000  12,192,865,190 

Trade and Other Payables  7,518,991,712  -    -    7,518,991,712 

 15,732,201,899  3,350,735,003  628,920,000  19,711,856,902 

27.5.2.3  Capital Management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management 
is to ensure shareholder value is maximized.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 
new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2019.

27.5.3 Market Risk

The group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk and interest rate 
risk.

 Foreign Currency Risk        

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates. The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk where it has cash flows in overseas operations and 
foreign currency transactions which are affected by foreign exchange movements.

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Foreign Currency Denominator Payable  296,772,516  974,548,429  296,772,516  974,548,429 

Foreign Currency Denominator Receivable  -    -    -    -   
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Contd...)

27.5.4 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the group’s long-
term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Long Term Loans @ Variable Interest Rates  2,465,700,000  2,707,039,565  2,465,700,000  2,497,317,400 

Long Term Loans @ Fixed Interest Rates  -    -    -    -   

Short Term Loans @ Variable Interest Rate  8,965,923,257  9,760,137,339  8,453,883,239  8,820,238,862 

Short Term Loans @ Fiexd Interest Rate  1,252,957,233  875,308,928  832,363,388  875,308,928 

 Other Price Risk        

The Group is exposed to equity price risk in respect of its listed equity securities and price risk for listed debentures. The Group 
manages those risks by monitoring the markets closely. According to Group policies, amounts invested in volatile assets such 
as shares and debentures are restricted by limits set by Group management.

28 TRANSITION DISCLOSURES  
28.1  Transition Disclosures - Group

The following set out the impact of adopting SLFRS 9 on the Statement of Financial Position, and retained earnings including 
the effect of replacing LKAS 39's incurred loss calculations with SLFRS 9's expected credit losses.

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under LKAS 39 to the balances reported under SLFRS 9 as of 01 April 2018 is, 
as follows.           

Group LKAS 39 Measurement Remeasurement SLFRS 9

Category Amount ECL Other Amount Category

Financial instruments 
in non-current assets

Other Financial Assets AFS   15,180,400 - - 15,180,400 FVTOCI

Lease Rentals Receivable L&R 1,902,247,599 - - 1,902,247,599 Amortized Cost

Loans and Advances L&R 699,362,750 -   699,362,750 Amortized Cost

2,616,790,749  -   - 2,616,790,749 
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Group LKAS 39 Measurement Remeasurement SLFRS 9

Category Amount ECL Other Amount Category

Financial instruments 
in current assets
Lease Rentals Receivable L&R 2,590,048,596 (58,996,112) - 2,531,052,484 Amortized Cost

Loans and Advances L&R 1,694,617,561 (23,564,277) - 1,671,053,284 Amortized Cost
Trade and Other 
Receivables Excluding 
Pre-payments L&R

   
11,263,094,964 (19,064,331) - 11,244,030,633 Amortized Cost

Other Financial Assets L&R / HTM 794,231,224   (103,621) - 794,127,603 Amortized Cost

Other Financial Assets FVTPL    912,668 - -  912,668 FVTPL
Cash and Short Term 
Deposits L&R 998,411,077 (220,652) - 998,190,425 Amortized Cost
Securities Purchased 
under Repurchase 
Agreement L&R 362,248,075 - 362,248,075 Amortized Cost

17,703,564,165  (101,948,994)  -   17,601,615,172 

Financial instruments 
in non-current 
liabilities
Interest Bearing 
Borrowings L&R  4,089,711,740 - -

   
4,089,711,740 Amortized Cost

Trade and Other 
Payables L&R  1,297,219,575 - -

   
1,297,219,575 Amortized Cost

5,386,931,315  -    -   5,386,931,315 

Financial instruments 
in current liabilities
Interest Bearing 
Borrowings L&R  9,252,774,092 - -

   
9,252,774,092 Amortized Cost

Trade and Other 
Payables L&R

   
11,859,325,355 - -

 
11,859,325,355 Amortized Cost

 21,112,099,447  -    -    21,112,099,447 

L&R :Loans & receivables

AFS :Available-for-sale

HTM :Held-to-maturity

FVTOCI:Fair value through other comprehensive income

FVTPL:Fair value through Profit & Loss
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28 TRANSITION DISCLOSURES (CONTD...)  
28.2 Transition Disclosures - Company

Company LKAS 39 Measurement Remeasurement SLFRS 9

Category Amount ECL Other Amount Category

Financial instruments 
in non-current assets

Other Financial Assets AFS   15,100,000 - - 15,100,000 FVTOCI

  15,100,000  -    -   15,100,000 

Financial instruments 
in current assets
Trade and Other 
Receivables Excluding 
Pre-payments L&R

   
11,241,735,590 (16,848,389) - 11,224,887,201 Amortized Cost

Other Financial Assets FVTPL    912,668 - -  912,668 FVTPL
Cash and Short Term 
Deposits L&R 581,890,941 - -   581,890,941 Amortized Cost

11,824,539,199 (16,848,389)  -   11,807,690,810 

 
Financial instruments 
in non-current 
liabilities
Interest Bearing 
Borrowings L&R  3,979,655,003  -    -    3,979,655,003 Amortized Cost

 3,979,655,003 - -  3,979,655,003 

Financial instruments 
in current liabilities
Trade and Other 
Payables L&R  7,518,991,712 - -  7,518,991,712 Amortized Cost
Interest Bearing 
Borrowings L&R  8,213,210,187  -    -    8,213,210,187 Amortized Cost

 15,732,201,899 - -  15,732,201,899 

L&R :Loans & receivables

AFS :Available-for-sale

HTM :Held-to-maturity

FVTOCI:Fair value through other comprehensive income

FVTPL:Fair value through Profit & Loss
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28.3 The impact of transition to SLFRS 9 on retained earnings, is as follows.

28.3.1 Group

  Retained  
 Earnings 

LKR 

Closing balance under LKAS 39 as at 31 March 2018  6,660,402,634 

Remeasurement adjustments on adoption of SLFRS 9

Impact of expected credit losses under SLFRS 9  (101,948,994)

Deferred tax impact on above  27,925,255 

Total change in equity due to adoption of SLFRS 9 (74,023,739)

Non-Controlling Interest 30,032,953

 (43,990,786)

Opening balance under SLFRS 9 as at 01 April 2018  6,616,411,848 

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening loan loss provision allowances under LKAS 39 to the ECL allowances 
under SLFRS 9.

28.3.2 Changes in Accounting Policies & Discloures 

 Set out below is the reconciliation of the ending impairment allowances in accordance with LKAS 39 to the opening loss 
allowances determined in accourdance with SLFRS 9

 Group

 Under LKAS 39/ Financial assets at amortised cost under  SLFRS 09 and contracts assets

  Allowances for  
 Impairment under  
 LKAS 39 as at 

31 March 2018  Remeasurement 

  ECL under 
SLFRS 9 as at  
01 April 2018 

LKR LKR LKR 

Trade & other Receivables  525,366,878  (19,064,331)  506,302,547 

Loans and Advances  154,913,410  (23,564,277)  131,349,133 

Lease Rentals Receivable and Stock Out on Hire  281,905,939  (58,996,112)  222,909,827 

Other Financial Assets -  (103,621) -

Cash and Short Term Deposits -  (220,652) -

 962,186,227  (101,948,994)  860,561,506 
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28 TRANSITION DISCLOSURES (CONTD...)  
28.3 The impact of transition to SLFRS 9 on retained earnings, is as follows. (Contd...)

28.3.3 Company

  Retained  
 Earnings 

LKR 

Closing balance under LKAS 39 as at 31 March 2018  5,171,954,708 

Remeasurement adjustments on adoption of SLFRS 9

Impact of expected credit losses under SLFRS 9  (16,848,389)

Deferred tax impact on above  4,717,549 

Total change in equity due to adoption of SLFRS 9  (12,130,840)

Opening balance under SLFRS 9 as at 01 April 2018  5,159,823,868 

28.3.4 Company

under LKAS 39 /Financial assets at amortised cost under SLFRS 09 and contract assets

  Allowances for  
 Impairment under  
 LKAS 39 as at 

31 March 2018  Remeasurement 

  ECL under  
 SLFRS 9 as at 

01 April 2018 

LKR LKR LKR 

Trade & other Receivables  424,759,772  (16,848,389)  407,911,383 

 424,759,772  (16,848,389)  407,911,383 
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29 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

 "During the  Financial year 2018/2019 (31st October 2018) , Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd fully owned subsidiary of Abans PLC 
was classified as a disposal Group held for sale and as a discontinued Operation. On 1st November 2018 the company (Abans 
PLC) disposed the Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd to Abans Retail Holdings (Pvt) Ltd for a sale consideration of 343 Million. The 
business of Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd represented the entirely of the Group's engineering service operating segment until 
31 October 2018. With Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd being classified as discontinued operations, results of engineering service 
segment is no longer presented in the segment note. The results of Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd for the seven months period 
are presented below;

29.1 Revenue and Expenses from Discontinued Operations

After After

 Related Party   Related Party   Related Party   Related Party  

 Transaciton  Transaciton  Transaciton  Transaciton 

Period Ended  Elimination  Elimination  Elimination  Elimination 

Oct-18 Oct-18 Oct-18 Mar-18 Mar-18 Mar-18

 LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR

Revenue    613,444,298  (317,089)  613,127,209  1,396,816,043  (15,035,534)  1,381,780,509 

Cost of Sales   (522,592,473)    317,089    (522,275,384)
   

(1,324,400,469)   15,035,534 (1,309,364,935)

Gross Profit  90,851,825 -      90,851,825   72,415,574  -     72,415,574 

Other Operating Income  69,125,978 -      69,125,978   52,432,497  -     52,432,497 

Selling and Distribution 
Expenses   (114,408,518) 4,265,992    (110,142,526)   (156,545,057) 4,265,992   (152,279,065)

Administrative Expenses   (110,270,362) -      (110,270,362)   (134,801,606)  -     (134,801,606)

Operating  Profit / (loss) (64,701,077) 4,265,992  (60,435,085)   (166,498,592) 4,265,992   (162,232,600)

Finance Cost (89,401,560) -    (89,401,560)   (104,428,506)  -     (104,428,506)

Finance Income -   -    -   1,331,526 - 1,331,526 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax   (154,102,637) 4,265,992    (149,836,645)   (269,595,572) 4,265,992   (265,329,580)

Group Disposal Profit /Loss    114,044,071 -    114,044,071  -    -    -   

(40,058,566) 4,265,992 (35,792,574)   (269,595,572) 4,265,992   (265,329,580)

Income Tax Expense  17,568,587 -      17,568,587 104,797,452 -  104,797,452 

Total Profit / (Loss) 
for the year from 
discontinued operations (22,489,979) 4,265,992  (18,223,987)   (164,798,120) 4,265,992   (160,532,128)
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29 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Contd...)

29.2 The major class of assets and liabilities of Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd classified as held for sale as at  
31 October 2018 are, as follows

As at 31 Oct 18

LKR

Assets  

Property, Plant and Equipment   99,865,002 

Intangible Assets  1,228,822 

Deferred Tax Assets  139,384,541 

Inventories  1,217,707,637 

Trade and Other Receivables  606,888,502 

Income Tax Receivable  18,678,410 

Cash and Cash Equivalent  33,273,326 

Total Assets held for Sale  2,117,026,240 

Liabilities

Employee Benefit Liabilities  32,717,853 

Lease Creditor  5,848,877 

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings  916,309,949 

Trade and Other Payables  932,573,631 

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale  1,887,450,310 

Net assets directly associated with disposal group  229,575,930 

29.3 The net cash flows analysis of Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd are, as follows

Period Ended  
31 Oct 18 

LKR

Operating Activates  36,118,993 

Investing Activates  (670,711)

Financing Activates  (1,008,279)

Net cash generated/ (used)  34,440,003 

29.4 Net gain/Loss from disposal of Abans Engineering (pvt)Ltd

 Group  Company 

LKR LKR

Sales Proceeds  343,620,000  343,620,000 

Abans PLC Investment  -    (493,306,446)

Abans Engineering net assets as at 31 October 2018  (229,575,930)  -   

Net gain/ (loss)  114,044,070  (149,686,446)
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30 ASSETS PLEDGED

The following assets have been pledged as security for Liabilities.

30.1 Assets Pledged by Abans PLC

Nature of Assets Nature of Liability Purpose Carrying Amount Pledged

2019 2018

LKR LKR

Finished Goods

Primary Mortgage Bond 
over Stock  For LKR 
5,845.5 Mn Term Loan         8,430,497,092     8,421,261,747 

Trade Debtors - Other

Primary Mortgage Bond 
over Debtors For LKR 
5,845.5 Mn Term Loan         7,442,279,156     9,390,413,649 

Trade Debtors - H.P Debtors

Hire Purchased 
Receivable Securitization 
Loan-LKR 3,755 Mn

 Working Capital 
Finance         5,221,702,176     4,800,000,000 

Finished Goods and Trade 
Debtors

Primary Mortgage 
Bond over Stock and 
Receivables of 520 Mn

 Working Capital 
Finance       15,872,776,248   17,811,675,396 

30.2 Assets Pledged by Abans 
Finance PLC
Included Under Lease Rental 
Receivables
Lease & Hire Purchase 
Receivables Bank Overdraft  356,000,000        313,366,667 
Lease & Hire Purchase  
Receivables Term Loan  687,901,778        419,444,445 

Placement with Bank Bank Overdraft  48,725,317          34,000,000 
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31. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There were no material Commitments and Contingencies as at the reporting date except following.

 Group/Company

 Commitments

2019
Current

2018
Current

LKR LKR

Letters of Credit opened with Banks Favoring Suppliers  1,092,246,977  2,483,011,706 

 Contingent Liabilities

2019
Current

2018
Current

LKR LKR

Guarantees Issued by Banks  1,298,864,421  1,316,033,729 

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as Related Parties as 
per Sri Lanka Accounting Standards LKAS-24 on "Related Party Disclosures". The details of which are reported below,

32.1 Transaction with /between Immediate Parent - Abans Retail Holdings (Private) Limited

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  5,339,000 -  5,339,000 -

Investment Disposal in Abans Environmental 
Services (Pvt) Ltd -  5,339,000 -  5,339,000 

Dividend Declared (350,037,000) - (350,037,000) -

Fund Transfer 350,037,000 - 350,037,000 -

Rendering of Services  107,872 -  107,872 -

Balance as at 31 March  5,446,872  5,339,000  5,446,872  5,339,000 
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32.2 Transaction with /between Subsidiaries

Company

2019 2018

LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  (756,770,065)  681,967,491 

Nature of Transaction

Sale of goods  2,692,813  18,925,192 

Purchase of Goods  (5,846,486)  (58,228,568)

Dividend  -  800,000 

Share Transfer  -  15,925,218 

Rendering of Services  17,034,955  - 

Receipts of Services  (2,839,138)  (20,687,667)

Gratuity Transfer  -  29,416,626 

Balance Transferred to Others  (365,017,523) -

Rental Income  844,899 -

Rental Expenses  -  (4,261,456)

Fund Transfers  183,514,721  555,187,054 

Fund Receipts  (207,406,818)  (1,934,256,224)

Others  (13,863,233)  (41,557,732)

Balance as at 31 March  (1,147,655,876)  (756,770,065)

* Subsidiaries including         
AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Finance PLC, Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd, , AB Sun City (Pvt) Ltd. 
During the financial period, the parent company (Abans PLC) disposed Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd to Abans Retail Holding (Pvt)Ltd.  

       
32.3 Transaction with /between Associate -Abans Electricals PLC

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  (394,685,336)  (751,509,143)  (504,790,299)  (811,063,609)

Nature of Transaction

Sale of goods  46,637,268  33,956,741  46,637,268  9,250,217 

Purchase of Goods  (1,634,774,659)  (2,329,749,302)  (1,619,446,014)  (2,316,475,575)

Receipt of  Services  (824,429,974)  (721,300,686)  (824,429,974)  (697,076,508)

Rendering of Services  -  (599,716)  -  (599,716)

Funds Receipts  (3,342,018)  (11,325,927)  (3,342,018)  (4,832,788)

Fund Transfers  2,834,223,368  3,828,803,591  2,834,223,368  3,757,742,445 

VAT Portion of Purchase of Goods  (359,635,780)  (442,960,895)  (359,635,780)  (441,734,767)

Balance as at 31 March  (336,007,131)  (394,685,336)  (430,783,449)  (504,790,299)
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd...)

32.4 Transaction with Joint Venture - Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  4,080,203  3,411,549  4,080,203  3,396,024 

Sale of goods  156,212  6,019,214  156,212  6,019,214 

Receipt of  Services  (3,116,354)  -  (3,116,354)  - 

Rendering of Services  586,640  -  586,640  - 

Receipts  (846,064)  (7,726,674)  (846,064)  (7,711,149)

Fund Transfer  (100,000,000)  -  (100,000,000)  - 

Funds Receipts  102,754,584  -  102,754,584  - 

Other  (890,322)  2,376,115  (890,322)  2,376,115 

Balance as at 31 March  2,724,898  4,080,203  2,724,898  4,080,203 

32.5 Transaction with Others

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Balance as at 01 April  899,331,715  42,654,424  1,050,208,627  122,932,135 

Nature of Transaction

Sale of goods  21,829,525  27,531,413  21,829,525  11,909,483 

Purchase of Goods  (1,514,733,148)  (2,189,673,081)  (37,214,097)  -   

Returns of Purchased Goods  -    -    -  3,874,255 

Rendering of Services  33,971,053  11,306,102  51,046,340  11,306,102 

Receipts of Services  (1,204,535,870)  (1,814,599,015)  (1,204,535,870)  (1,777,080,564)

Dividend  650,000,000  600,000,000  650,000,000  600,000,000 

Rent Expenses  (165,706,468)  (175,826,224)  (165,706,468)  (160,813,559)

Fund Transfer & Payments  2,700,332,790  4,032,203,323  1,136,243,472  1,740,822,036 

Balance Transferred from Subsidiaries  365,017,523  -  365,017,523  - 

Funds Receipts  (316,748,686)  (171,514,682)  (36,614,686)  (66,120,539)

Temporary Loan  From Abans Auto (Pvt) Ltd  -  700,000,000  -  700,000,000 

Interest Paid on Inter-company Loan  -  46,633,808  -  46,633,808 

Other  (207,078,943)  (209,384,353)  (311,470,217)  (183,254,529)

Balance as at 31 March  1,261,679,491  899,331,715  1,518,804,149  1,050,208,627 
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32.5 Transaction with Others (Contd...) 

* Other related parties including

Add Outdoor (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Warehousing (Pvt) Ltd, ABS Gardner Dixen Hall International 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Tours (Pvt) Ltd,  Abans Investments (Pvt)  Ltd , Crown City  Developers  (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Environmental  Services 
(Pvt)  Ltd, AB  Leisure  (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Constructions &  Engineering (Pvt) Ltd, Cleantech  (Pvt) Ltd, Abans  Graphics (Pvt) Ltd, 
Abans Tourist  Hotels (Pvt)  Ltd, Abans  Development (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Consolidated (Pvt) Ltd, A-Z Electronics (Pvt) Ltd, Sirius 
Technologies Services (Pvt) Ltd, A-Z Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Restaurant Systems (Pvt) Ltd, AB  securities(Pvt) Ltd, S.A. Electricals 
(Pvt) Ltd, Aban Pestonjee  Trust, Abans Courier (Pvt)  Ltd, AB Logistics Ltd, Abans Auto  (Pvt) Ltd, AB Transport (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Marketing (Pvt) Ltd, Absgro (Pvt) Ltd, Logirite (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Resorts (Pvt) Limited,  Abstract Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Abans International 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Logistic (Pvt) Ltd, AB Creations (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Partnership, Ironwood Investment Holding (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Engineering (Pvt) Ltd.  

32.6  Disclosures in relation to related party transactions in accordance with the continuing listing requirements of the   
             Colombo Stock Exchange

w Recurrent related party transactions

Nature of the transaction

 Aggregate value of 
related party

 transactions entered 
into during the year 

 Aggregate value of 
related party 

transactions as % of 
Net revenue 

Terms and conditions 
of the related party 

transaction 

LKR

Rendering of Services  68,775,807 0.20% Settlement on demand

Receipts of Services  (2,034,921,336) -5.77% Settlement on demand

Sale of goods  71,315,818 0.20% Settlement on demand

Purchase of Goods  (1,662,506,597) -4.71% Settlement on demand

Rental Income  844,899 0.00% Settlement on demand

Rent Expenses  (165,706,468) -0.47% Settlement on demand

Fund Transfers  4,404,018,561 12.49% Settlement on demand

Fund Receipts  (145,455,002) -0.41% Settlement on demand

Others  (326,223,772) -0.93% Settlement on demand

VAT Portion of Purchase of Goods  (359,635,780) -1.02% Settlement on demand

w Non-recurrent related party transactions

Nature of the transaction

 Aggregate value of 
related party 
transactions 

entered into during 
the year

 Aggregate value of 
related party 

transactions as % 
of Equity

 Aggregate 
value of 

related party 
transactions as 

% of Assets  

 Terms and conditions of 
the related party 

transaction  

LKR

Dividend Received  650,000,000 7% 2% Director Resolution

Dividend Declared  (350,037,000) -4% -1% Director Resolution
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd...)

32.7 Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Company

The key management personnel of the Company are the members of its Board of Directos 

Transaction, arrangements and agreements involving Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and their Close Family Members 
(CFMs), and Entities which are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the KMP's and their CFMs or 
shareholders who have either control, jointly control or significant influence over the entity.

 Key Management Personnel Compensation

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

LKR LKR LKR LKR

Short-term employee benefits 46,009,313  43,080,411  24,468,130  21,968,130 

Post-employement benefits 2,734,725  2,405,700  720,000  720,000 

48,744,038    45,486,111  25,188,130  22,688,130 

Other Transactions with Key Management  
Personnel

Fixed Deposits/Promissory Notes Accepted 
during the Year  2,115,000    40,300,000  -    -   

Consultancy fee paid during the year 2,742,720 2,594,592

Fixed Deposits/Promissory Notes held at the 
Beginning of the Year 13,843,126 493,126 - -

 18,700,846   43,387,718  -    -   

33. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING  DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date, no circumstances have arisen which would require adjustment to or disclose in the Financial 
Statements.
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34 RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVES

The following amounts have been reclassified in order to comply with the current year presentation

34.1 Impact on the Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2018

 Group

 Previously 
Reported 

 Discontinued 
Adjustment 

 Impact of 
Adjustment 

 Reclassified 
Amount 

 LKR  LKR  LKR  LKR

 ‘000  ‘000  ‘000  ‘000 

Revenue     41,597,606,740     (1,381,780,509)                          -     40,215,826,231 

Cost of Sales   (30,636,658,293)       1,309,364,935                          -    (29,327,293,358)

Gross Profit / (Loss)     10,960,948,447          (72,415,574)                          -     10,888,532,873 

Other Operating Income          959,198,349          (52,432,497)                          -          906,765,852 

Selling & Distribution Expenses                (5,032,330,982)          152,279,065       (934,942,896)    (5,814,994,813)

Administration Expenses                             (4,856,194,234)          134,801,606         934,942,896    (3,786,449,733)

Finance Cost     (1,698,221,532)          104,428,506                          -      (1,593,793,026)

Finance Income            60,652,483            (1,331,526)                          -            59,320,957 

Income Tax Expense          (50,129,773)        (104,797,452)                          -         (154,927,225)

Profit / (Loss) for the year from 
discontinued operations                          -          (160,532,128)                          -         (160,532,128)

34.2 Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive Income not 
to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 
in Subsequent Periods :
Revaluation Gain from Land and 
Buildings  113,697,185  (4,426,000)  -    109,271,185 
Actuarial Gains/(Loss) on Employ-
ee Benefits Liabilities  (149,637)  (3,631,859)  -    (3,781,496)

Tax Effect on above  (123,662,754)  2,256,201  -    (121,406,553)
Net Other Comprehensive Income 
Year from Discontinued Operations  -    5,801,658  -    5,801,658 

34.3 Company

Selling & Distribution Expenses             (4,600,289,669)  -    (907,660,450)  (5,507,950,119)

Administration Expenses                          (3,726,252,182)  -    907,660,450  (2,818,591,733)

*Administration Expenses and Selling & Distribution Expenses has been reclassified for better presentation.

34.4 Group
Lease rental receivable 
(Non-Current)                3,639,772,364  -    (1,737,524,765)  1,902,247,599
Lease rental receivable 
(Current)                852,523,831  -    1,737,524,765  2,590,048,596
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1. STATED CAPITAL

 31st March 2019  31st March 2018 

Class of Share  No. of Shares LKR  No. of Shares LKR

Ordinary Voting Shares  2,160,000  216,000,000  2,160,000  216,000,000 

Class B Ordinary Management Non-Voting  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 

Total Ordinary Shares (Voting & Non-Voting)  2,185,000  218,500,000  2,185,000  218,500,000 

2. Stock Exchange Listing Issued Shares of the Company are not listed with the colombo stock Exchange of Sri Lanka. Only  
the Debentures (LKR 4 Billion) of the Company are listed with Colombo stock exchange with effect from 27th December  2013.

3. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING

 31st March 2019  31st March 2018 

Total Ordinary Shares 
(Voting & Non-Voting)

No of Share 
Holders

 No. of 
Shares 

per 
Centum 

No of Share 
Holders

 No. of 
Shares 

 per 
Centum 

1-1,000  -    -    -    -    -    -   

1,001-10,000  -    -    -    -    -    -   

over 1,000,000  5  2,185,000  100  5  2,185,000  100 

Total  5  2,185,000  100  5  2,185,000  100 

4. TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDER

Ordinary Voting Shares  As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018

Name  No. of Shares %  No. of Shares %

Abans Retail Holding (Private) Limited  2,160,000  100  2,160,000  100 

 2,160,000  100  2,160,000  100 

Class B Ordinary Management Non-Voting As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018

Name  No. of Shares %  No. of Shares %

Abans Retail Holding (Private) Limited  25,000  100  25,000  100 

 25,000  100  25,000  100 

5. PUBILC HOLDING

31st March  2019 2018

Total number of shares Issued  2,185,000  2,185,000 

No of Shares held by the Public  Nil  Nil 

Percentage of Shares held by the Public  Nil  Nil 

INVESTOR INFORMATION
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6. MARKET VALUE PER SHARE

 Market value is not available since the shares of the company is not Publicly traded.

7. NET ASSETS PER SHARE

 2019 2018

Group  3,678  3,429 

Company  2,860  2,625 

8. DEBT SECURITIES RELATED DETAILS

Group Company

 2019 2019

Gearing Ratio  1.30  1.88 

Quick Assets Ratio  0.81  0.68 

Interest Coverage Ratio  1.83  1.63 

Debt to Equity Ratio  2.51  2.90 

9. INTEREST RATE OF COMPARABLE GOVERNMENT SECURITY

Debenture Issue 2014 Category

5 Years

Abans PLC 9.00%

Government 8.93%

10. MARKET VALUE PER DEBENTURE

Category

Debenture Issue 2014 5 Years

LKR

Highest Price 92.48

Lowest Price 92.48

Last Traded Price 92.48

Last Traded Date-

5 Years - 27th April 2018 

              N/T   - Not Traded
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Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

ASSETS Restated Restated Restated Restated

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment  1,374,930,571  1,289,794,534  1,272,803,764  1,216,234,279  1,021,708,483  1,232,284,592  1,028,267,905  1,085,395,851  1,041,696,453  919,043,603 

Leasehold Land Payments  249,494,948  252,121,211  254,747,474  257,373,737  260,000,000  249,494,948  252,121,211  254,747,474  257,373,737  260,000,000 

Investment Properties  411,295,700  368,483,400  249,278,000  208,000,000  25,252,210  411,295,700  368,483,400  249,278,000  208,000,000  25,252,210 

Intangible Assets  60,161,321  62,321,966  64,141,499  56,671,257  134,128,101  27,389,805  39,392,067  38,638,379  37,498,683  123,809,786 

Investments in Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -    -    3,218,824,336  3,350,205,286  1,108,486,711  466,173,511  466,173,511 

Investment In Equity Accounted Investee  3,224,789,029  2,565,517,038  2,562,443,541  2,397,908,687  2,043,251,782  30,752,197  30,752,197  2,454,346,067  2,228,969,067  1,834,552,147 

Deferred Tax Assets  205,795,592  339,604,149  379,017,557  360,091,766  287,889,493  186,522,004  166,190,844  266,405,868  261,208,715  204,587,498 

Other Non Current Financial Assets  15,080,400  15,180,400  91,492,900  25,133,140  150,676,484  15,000,000  15,100,000  15,600,000  15,600,000  16,789,700 

Lease Rentals Receivable  2,164,843,153  1,902,247,599  1,682,242,799  1,738,670,278  1,643,410,169  -    -    -    -    -   

Loans and Advances  738,430,688  699,362,751  814,450,214  677,210,253  339,895,595  -    -    -    -    -   

 8,444,821,402  7,494,633,047  7,370,617,748  6,937,293,397  5,906,212,317  5,371,563,582  5,250,512,910  5,472,898,350  4,516,520,166  3,850,208,455 

Current Assets

Inventories  8,483,307,868  9,643,842,076  11,176,796,937  10,365,724,961  8,688,659,973  8,430,497,092  8,421,261,747  9,756,245,885  8,716,690,227  7,033,963,561 

Trade and Other Receivables  10,047,608,157  11,641,390,353  9,813,823,786  10,785,111,730  10,338,998,438  9,783,319,788  11,511,575,105  8,096,571,399  9,527,126,444  9,974,478,184 

Lease Rentals Receivable  3,090,169,126  2,590,048,596  1,997,722,847  1,857,581,501  1,259,875,081  -    -    -    -    -   

Loans and Advances  1,348,206,614  1,694,617,561  1,321,875,827  508,467,507  349,030,135  -    -   - - -

Income Tax Receivables  401,884,337  378,301,672  205,911,260  4,584,793  4,641,546  336,644,172  279,569,503  142,859,183  -    -   

Other Current Financial Assets  490,103,100  795,143,892  644,935,463  264,902,601  362,179,092  4,529,744  4,912,668  14,637,321  12,219,382  8,105,005 

Securities Purchased under Repurchase Agreement  281,537,224  362,248,075  250,809,890  630,158,530  426,888,521  -    -    -    -    -   

Cash and Short Term Deposits  685,625,260  998,411,077  1,086,871,510  806,268,158  758,088,398  417,580,012  581,890,941  620,115,220  663,688,713  614,002,427 

 24,828,441,686  28,104,003,302  26,498,747,520  25,222,799,781  22,188,361,184  18,972,570,808  20,799,209,964  18,630,429,008  18,919,724,766  17,630,549,177 

Total Assets  33,273,263,088  35,598,636,349  33,869,365,268  32,160,093,178  28,094,573,501  24,344,134,390  26,049,722,874  24,103,327,358  23,436,244,932  21,480,757,632 

EQUITY AND LIABLITIES

Capital and Reserves

Stated Capital  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000 

Other Components of Equity  652,785,481  614,474,187  492,546,166  457,158,336  352,706,442  338,394,043  345,809,043  399,048,767  399,048,767  314,800,292 

Retained Earnings  7,165,059,899  6,660,402,634  6,494,341,561  6,533,490,652  5,417,740,673  5,691,400,413  5,171,954,708  4,753,819,860  4,741,746,351  3,971,992,342 

 8,036,345,380  7,493,376,821  7,205,387,727  7,209,148,988  5,988,947,115  6,248,294,456  5,736,263,751  5,371,368,627  5,359,295,118  4,505,292,634 

Non-Controlling Interests  844,269,817  880,906,220  422,416,867  133,916,025  119,056,474  -    -    -    -    -   

Total Equity  8,880,615,197  8,374,283,041  7,627,804,594  7,343,065,013  6,108,003,589  6,248,294,456  5,736,263,751  5,371,368,627  5,359,295,118  4,505,292,634 

Non Current Liabilities

Interest Bearing Borrowings  2,858,832,738  4,089,711,740  2,974,720,444  3,167,783,211  4,148,613,753  2,465,700,000  3,979,655,003  2,847,908,218  3,154,402,157  4,125,083,728 

Deferred Tax Liabilities  44,981,468  40,922,077  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Employee Benefits Liabilities  268,076,957  299,810,447  258,678,913  236,796,414  217,662,634  229,563,633  226,271,787  159,343,346  149,772,204  141,801,533 

Trade and Other Payables  1,099,094,047  1,297,219,575  1,184,978,711  1,697,858,803  1,106,703,668  -    -    -    -    -   

 4,270,985,210  5,727,663,839  4,418,378,068  5,102,438,428  5,472,980,055  -    2,695,263,633  4,205,926,790  3,007,251,564  3,304,174,361  4,266,885,261 

Current Liabilities
Warranty Provision  301,323,250  384,590,022  345,253,875  313,863,057  277,776,277  300,527,268  375,330,434  279,267,881  269,748,307  237,248,368 

Trade and Other Payables  9,985,769,432  11,859,325,355  11,298,577,152  9,141,013,741  8,811,276,713  5,813,802,406  7,518,991,712  6,207,064,073  4,887,704,411  5,409,861,280 

Income Tax Liabilities  8,822,247    -    630,730  403,429,392  93,248,304  -    -    -    265,419,966  44,718,023 

Interest Bearing Borrowings  9,825,747,752  9,252,774,092  10,178,720,849  9,856,283,547  7,331,288,563  9,286,246,627  8,213,210,187  9,238,375,213  9,349,902,769  7,016,752,066 

 20,121,662,681  21,496,689,469  21,823,182,606  19,714,589,737  16,513,589,857  15,400,576,301  16,107,532,333  15,724,707,167  14,772,775,453  12,708,579,737 

Total Equity and Liabilities  33,273,263,088  35,598,636,349  33,869,365,268  32,160,093,178  28,094,573,501  -    24,344,134,390  26,049,722,874  24,103,327,358  23,436,244,932  21,480,757,632 

FIVE YEARS SUMMARY - STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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Group Company

As at 31 March 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

ASSETS Restated Restated Restated Restated

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment  1,374,930,571  1,289,794,534  1,272,803,764  1,216,234,279  1,021,708,483  1,232,284,592  1,028,267,905  1,085,395,851  1,041,696,453  919,043,603 

Leasehold Land Payments  249,494,948  252,121,211  254,747,474  257,373,737  260,000,000  249,494,948  252,121,211  254,747,474  257,373,737  260,000,000 

Investment Properties  411,295,700  368,483,400  249,278,000  208,000,000  25,252,210  411,295,700  368,483,400  249,278,000  208,000,000  25,252,210 

Intangible Assets  60,161,321  62,321,966  64,141,499  56,671,257  134,128,101  27,389,805  39,392,067  38,638,379  37,498,683  123,809,786 

Investments in Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -    -    3,218,824,336  3,350,205,286  1,108,486,711  466,173,511  466,173,511 

Investment In Equity Accounted Investee  3,224,789,029  2,565,517,038  2,562,443,541  2,397,908,687  2,043,251,782  30,752,197  30,752,197  2,454,346,067  2,228,969,067  1,834,552,147 

Deferred Tax Assets  205,795,592  339,604,149  379,017,557  360,091,766  287,889,493  186,522,004  166,190,844  266,405,868  261,208,715  204,587,498 

Other Non Current Financial Assets  15,080,400  15,180,400  91,492,900  25,133,140  150,676,484  15,000,000  15,100,000  15,600,000  15,600,000  16,789,700 

Lease Rentals Receivable  2,164,843,153  1,902,247,599  1,682,242,799  1,738,670,278  1,643,410,169  -    -    -    -    -   

Loans and Advances  738,430,688  699,362,751  814,450,214  677,210,253  339,895,595  -    -    -    -    -   

 8,444,821,402  7,494,633,047  7,370,617,748  6,937,293,397  5,906,212,317  5,371,563,582  5,250,512,910  5,472,898,350  4,516,520,166  3,850,208,455 

Current Assets

Inventories  8,483,307,868  9,643,842,076  11,176,796,937  10,365,724,961  8,688,659,973  8,430,497,092  8,421,261,747  9,756,245,885  8,716,690,227  7,033,963,561 

Trade and Other Receivables  10,047,608,157  11,641,390,353  9,813,823,786  10,785,111,730  10,338,998,438  9,783,319,788  11,511,575,105  8,096,571,399  9,527,126,444  9,974,478,184 

Lease Rentals Receivable  3,090,169,126  2,590,048,596  1,997,722,847  1,857,581,501  1,259,875,081  -    -    -    -    -   

Loans and Advances  1,348,206,614  1,694,617,561  1,321,875,827  508,467,507  349,030,135  -    -   - - -

Income Tax Receivables  401,884,337  378,301,672  205,911,260  4,584,793  4,641,546  336,644,172  279,569,503  142,859,183  -    -   

Other Current Financial Assets  490,103,100  795,143,892  644,935,463  264,902,601  362,179,092  4,529,744  4,912,668  14,637,321  12,219,382  8,105,005 

Securities Purchased under Repurchase Agreement  281,537,224  362,248,075  250,809,890  630,158,530  426,888,521  -    -    -    -    -   

Cash and Short Term Deposits  685,625,260  998,411,077  1,086,871,510  806,268,158  758,088,398  417,580,012  581,890,941  620,115,220  663,688,713  614,002,427 

 24,828,441,686  28,104,003,302  26,498,747,520  25,222,799,781  22,188,361,184  18,972,570,808  20,799,209,964  18,630,429,008  18,919,724,766  17,630,549,177 

Total Assets  33,273,263,088  35,598,636,349  33,869,365,268  32,160,093,178  28,094,573,501  24,344,134,390  26,049,722,874  24,103,327,358  23,436,244,932  21,480,757,632 

EQUITY AND LIABLITIES

Capital and Reserves

Stated Capital  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000 

Other Components of Equity  652,785,481  614,474,187  492,546,166  457,158,336  352,706,442  338,394,043  345,809,043  399,048,767  399,048,767  314,800,292 

Retained Earnings  7,165,059,899  6,660,402,634  6,494,341,561  6,533,490,652  5,417,740,673  5,691,400,413  5,171,954,708  4,753,819,860  4,741,746,351  3,971,992,342 

 8,036,345,380  7,493,376,821  7,205,387,727  7,209,148,988  5,988,947,115  6,248,294,456  5,736,263,751  5,371,368,627  5,359,295,118  4,505,292,634 

Non-Controlling Interests  844,269,817  880,906,220  422,416,867  133,916,025  119,056,474  -    -    -    -    -   

Total Equity  8,880,615,197  8,374,283,041  7,627,804,594  7,343,065,013  6,108,003,589  6,248,294,456  5,736,263,751  5,371,368,627  5,359,295,118  4,505,292,634 

Non Current Liabilities

Interest Bearing Borrowings  2,858,832,738  4,089,711,740  2,974,720,444  3,167,783,211  4,148,613,753  2,465,700,000  3,979,655,003  2,847,908,218  3,154,402,157  4,125,083,728 

Deferred Tax Liabilities  44,981,468  40,922,077  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Employee Benefits Liabilities  268,076,957  299,810,447  258,678,913  236,796,414  217,662,634  229,563,633  226,271,787  159,343,346  149,772,204  141,801,533 

Trade and Other Payables  1,099,094,047  1,297,219,575  1,184,978,711  1,697,858,803  1,106,703,668  -    -    -    -    -   

 4,270,985,210  5,727,663,839  4,418,378,068  5,102,438,428  5,472,980,055  -    2,695,263,633  4,205,926,790  3,007,251,564  3,304,174,361  4,266,885,261 

Current Liabilities
Warranty Provision  301,323,250  384,590,022  345,253,875  313,863,057  277,776,277  300,527,268  375,330,434  279,267,881  269,748,307  237,248,368 

Trade and Other Payables  9,985,769,432  11,859,325,355  11,298,577,152  9,141,013,741  8,811,276,713  5,813,802,406  7,518,991,712  6,207,064,073  4,887,704,411  5,409,861,280 

Income Tax Liabilities  8,822,247    -    630,730  403,429,392  93,248,304  -    -    -    265,419,966  44,718,023 

Interest Bearing Borrowings  9,825,747,752  9,252,774,092  10,178,720,849  9,856,283,547  7,331,288,563  9,286,246,627  8,213,210,187  9,238,375,213  9,349,902,769  7,016,752,066 

 20,121,662,681  21,496,689,469  21,823,182,606  19,714,589,737  16,513,589,857  15,400,576,301  16,107,532,333  15,724,707,167  14,772,775,453  12,708,579,737 

Total Equity and Liabilities  33,273,263,088  35,598,636,349  33,869,365,268  32,160,093,178  28,094,573,501  -    24,344,134,390  26,049,722,874  24,103,327,358  23,436,244,932  21,480,757,632 
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY - STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Group Company

Year Ended 31 March 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Restated Restated Restated Restated

Revenue  35,260,655,869  40,215,826,231  35,731,859,725  34,933,245,274  30,082,217,757  33,291,479,651  37,527,175,974  27,864,044,571  27,501,593,009  25,030,345,580 

Cost of Sales  (24,663,692,004)  (29,327,293,359)  (25,270,116,817)  (24,173,581,123)  (21,565,435,105)  (23,782,151,253)  (28,129,729,269)  (20,062,868,597)  (19,340,460,685)  (18,463,726,814)

Gross Profit  10,596,963,865  10,888,532,872  10,461,742,908  10,759,664,151  8,516,782,652  9,509,328,398  9,397,446,705  7,801,175,974  8,161,132,324  6,566,618,766 

Other Operating Income & Gain  944,560,358  906,765,853  543,297,182  247,614,896  292,360,320  777,555,102  910,932,697  529,451,757  235,537,658  311,321,674 

Selling & Distribution Expenses  (4,909,179,144)  (5,814,994,813)  (4,681,170,157)  (4,233,641,878)  (3,225,612,993)  (4,749,884,515)  (5,507,950,119)  (3,643,271,938)  (3,522,305,279)  (2,603,833,657)

Administrative Expenses  (3,960,875,507)  (3,786,449,734)  (4,540,668,717)  (4,129,045,695)  (3,935,006,028)  (3,162,658,028)  (2,818,591,732)  (3,107,791,851)  (2,857,515,893)  (2,787,213,669)

Operating Profit  2,671,469,572  2,193,854,178  1,783,201,216  2,644,591,474  1,648,523,951  2,374,340,957  1,981,837,551  1,579,563,942  2,016,848,810  1,486,893,114 

Impairment of Related Party Non Trade Receivables  -    -    (240,688,084)  -    -    (240,688,084)

Finance Cost  (1,458,371,720)  (1,593,793,025)  (1,421,099,550)  (1,050,908,089)  (1,045,891,861)  (1,458,371,720)  (1,588,949,872)  (1,348,956,829)  (1,028,823,131)  (1,022,995,330)

Finance income  27,947,369  59,320,957  72,099,819  65,768,752  191,418,624  28,520,194  58,050,637  63,920,516  62,703,720  189,360,610 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties  42,812,300  18,405,400  41,278,000  184,145,403  -    42,812,300  18,405,400  41,278,000  184,145,403  -   

Share of  Profit of Equity Accounted Investee (Net of Tax)  (70,385,763)  (123,881,345)  (58,910,073)  (34,051,914)  (2,323,870)  -    -    -    -   

Profit/(Loss) Before Income Tax and Value Added Tax 
on Financial Services

 1,213,471,758  553,906,165  175,881,328  1,809,545,626  791,726,844  987,301,731  469,343,716  95,117,545  1,234,874,802  653,258,394 

Value Added Tax on Financial Services  (77,948,458)  (63,086,673)  (58,317,560)  (33,742,312)  (25,468,054)  (7,501,184)  (2,843,347)  (2,262,622)  (2,884,772)  (2,722,882)

Income Tax Expense  (212,283,926)  (154,927,224)  (160,164,992)  (506,182,524)  (205,056,915)  (105,621,010)  (44,402,671)  (85,946,806)  (336,476,854)  (215,163,027)

Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing operations  923,239,374  335,892,268  (42,601,224)  1,269,620,790  561,201,875  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

Discontinued Operations :

Profit for the year from discontinued operations  (18,223,987)  (160,532,128)  -    -    15,750,000  -    -    -    -   

Profit for the year/ Comprehensive Income for the 
year, net tax

 905,015,387  175,360,140  (42,601,224)  1,269,620,790  576,951,875  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to;

Equity holders of the parent  893,929,641  137,774,100  (60,856,295)  1,257,430,097  564,835,785  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

Non-Controlling Interest  11,085,746  37,586,040  18,255,071  12,190,693  12,116,090  -    -    -    -   
 905,015,387  175,360,140  (42,601,224)  1,269,620,790  576,951,875  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

 Earnings Per Share 409.12  63.05  (27.85)  575.48  258.51  400.08  193.18  3.16  409.85  199.26 
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Group Company

Year Ended 31 March 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Restated Restated Restated Restated

Revenue  35,260,655,869  40,215,826,231  35,731,859,725  34,933,245,274  30,082,217,757  33,291,479,651  37,527,175,974  27,864,044,571  27,501,593,009  25,030,345,580 

Cost of Sales  (24,663,692,004)  (29,327,293,359)  (25,270,116,817)  (24,173,581,123)  (21,565,435,105)  (23,782,151,253)  (28,129,729,269)  (20,062,868,597)  (19,340,460,685)  (18,463,726,814)

Gross Profit  10,596,963,865  10,888,532,872  10,461,742,908  10,759,664,151  8,516,782,652  9,509,328,398  9,397,446,705  7,801,175,974  8,161,132,324  6,566,618,766 

Other Operating Income & Gain  944,560,358  906,765,853  543,297,182  247,614,896  292,360,320  777,555,102  910,932,697  529,451,757  235,537,658  311,321,674 

Selling & Distribution Expenses  (4,909,179,144)  (5,814,994,813)  (4,681,170,157)  (4,233,641,878)  (3,225,612,993)  (4,749,884,515)  (5,507,950,119)  (3,643,271,938)  (3,522,305,279)  (2,603,833,657)

Administrative Expenses  (3,960,875,507)  (3,786,449,734)  (4,540,668,717)  (4,129,045,695)  (3,935,006,028)  (3,162,658,028)  (2,818,591,732)  (3,107,791,851)  (2,857,515,893)  (2,787,213,669)

Operating Profit  2,671,469,572  2,193,854,178  1,783,201,216  2,644,591,474  1,648,523,951  2,374,340,957  1,981,837,551  1,579,563,942  2,016,848,810  1,486,893,114 

Impairment of Related Party Non Trade Receivables  -    -    (240,688,084)  -    -    (240,688,084)

Finance Cost  (1,458,371,720)  (1,593,793,025)  (1,421,099,550)  (1,050,908,089)  (1,045,891,861)  (1,458,371,720)  (1,588,949,872)  (1,348,956,829)  (1,028,823,131)  (1,022,995,330)

Finance income  27,947,369  59,320,957  72,099,819  65,768,752  191,418,624  28,520,194  58,050,637  63,920,516  62,703,720  189,360,610 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties  42,812,300  18,405,400  41,278,000  184,145,403  -    42,812,300  18,405,400  41,278,000  184,145,403  -   

Share of  Profit of Equity Accounted Investee (Net of Tax)  (70,385,763)  (123,881,345)  (58,910,073)  (34,051,914)  (2,323,870)  -    -    -    -   

Profit/(Loss) Before Income Tax and Value Added Tax 
on Financial Services

 1,213,471,758  553,906,165  175,881,328  1,809,545,626  791,726,844  987,301,731  469,343,716  95,117,545  1,234,874,802  653,258,394 

Value Added Tax on Financial Services  (77,948,458)  (63,086,673)  (58,317,560)  (33,742,312)  (25,468,054)  (7,501,184)  (2,843,347)  (2,262,622)  (2,884,772)  (2,722,882)

Income Tax Expense  (212,283,926)  (154,927,224)  (160,164,992)  (506,182,524)  (205,056,915)  (105,621,010)  (44,402,671)  (85,946,806)  (336,476,854)  (215,163,027)

Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing operations  923,239,374  335,892,268  (42,601,224)  1,269,620,790  561,201,875  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

Discontinued Operations :

Profit for the year from discontinued operations  (18,223,987)  (160,532,128)  -    -    15,750,000  -    -    -    -   

Profit for the year/ Comprehensive Income for the 
year, net tax

 905,015,387  175,360,140  (42,601,224)  1,269,620,790  576,951,875  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

Profit/(Loss) attributable to;

Equity holders of the parent  893,929,641  137,774,100  (60,856,295)  1,257,430,097  564,835,785  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

Non-Controlling Interest  11,085,746  37,586,040  18,255,071  12,190,693  12,116,090  -    -    -    -   
 905,015,387  175,360,140  (42,601,224)  1,269,620,790  576,951,875  874,179,537  422,097,698  6,908,117  895,513,176  435,372,485 

 Earnings Per Share 409.12  63.05  (27.85)  575.48  258.51  400.08  193.18  3.16  409.85  199.26 
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FREEHOLD LAND AND BUILDING

Location Extent Number
Range of Estimate for 
Unobservable Inputs

Valued  in 
31/03/2018 

Valuation

Freehold Property at Rathmalana
Land 14.9 P 01 LKR  1,000,000  14,900,000 
Building  5,162 sq.ft 01 LKR  1,500  7,743,000 

Freehold Property at Liberty Plaza 01
Shopping Block at Liberty Plaza Colombo 435 sq.ft 01 LKR  2,400  15,700,000 

33.33%
4%

Freehold Property at Kandy
Land 11.094 P 01 LKR  12,000,000  133,128,000 
Building 4,415 sq.ft 01 LKR  2,000  8,830,000 

Freehold Property at Kalutara
Land 24.46 P 01 LKR  932,298  22,804,000 
Building 9,403 sq.ft 01 LKR  3,400  31,970,200 

Freehold Property at Gampaha
Land 17.52 P 01 LKR  3,139,269  55,000,000 
Building 724 sq.ft 01 LKR  1,381  1,000,000 

Freehold Property at Kurunegala
Land 50 P 01 LKR  1,966,400  98,320,000 
Building  4,300 sq.ft 01 LKR  581  2,500,000 

Freehold Property at Rajagiriya
Land 22 P 01 LKR  2,500,000  55,000,000 
Building 3,687 sq.ft 01 LKR  1,000  3,687,000 

Freehold Property at Wellawatta
Land 25.65 P 01 LKR  3,508,772  90,000,000 

Freehold Property at Rathmalana
Land  15.00 P 01 LKR  1,000,000  15,000,000 
Building  3,157 sq.ft 01 LKR  2,692  8,500,000 

Freehold Property at Rathmalana
Land  17.1 P 01 LKR  1,000,000  17,100,000 
Building  3,690 sq.ft 01 LKR  2,656  9,800,000 

Freehold Property at Galwana-Mulleriyawa
Land  72.45 P 01 LKR  1,200,828  87,000,000 

REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
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GRI INDEX 

GRI CONTENT INDEX FOR ‘IN ACCORDANCE’ – CORE

Disclosure Page Numbers External  
Assurance

GRI 102: General Disclosures

Organisational Profile

102-1 Name of the organization 06 Yes

102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services 104-108 Yes

102-3 Location of headquarters 06 Yes

102-4 Location of operations 92 Yes

102-5 Ownership and legal form 145 Yes

102-6 Markets served 92 Yes

102-7 Scale of the organization 16 Yes

102-8 Information on employees and other workers 98 Yes

102-9 Supply chain 113-114 Yes

102-10 Significant changes to the organization and its supply chain 114 Yes

102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach 55-59 Yes

102-12 External initiatives 06 Yes

102-13 Membership of associations 117 Yes

Strategy

102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker 28-31 Yes

102-15 Key impacts, risks, and opportunities 55-59 Yes

Ethics and Integrity

102-16 Values, principles, standards, and norms of behavior 116 Yes

Governance

102-18 Governance structure 40-52 Yes

Stakeholder Engagement

102-40 List of stakeholder groups 60 Yes

102-41 Collective bargaining agreements 100 Yes

102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders 60 Yes

102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement 61-63 Yes

102-44 Key topics and concerns raised 61-63 Yes

Reporting Practice

102-45 Entities included in the consolidated financial statements 06 Yes

102-46 Defining report content and topic Boundaries 06, 64-72 Yes

102-47 List of material topics 64-72 Yes

102-48 Restatements of information 06 Yes

102-49 Changes in reporting 06 Yes

102-50 Reporting period 06 Yes

102-51 Date of most recent report 48 Yes

102-52 Reporting cycle 06 Yes
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Disclosure Page Numbers External  
Assurance

102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the report 06 Yes

102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI Standards 06 Yes

102-55 GRI content index 249-251 Yes

102-56 External assurance 252 Yes

GRI 103: Management Approach

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 65-72 Yes

103-2 The management approach and its components 65-72 Yes

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach 65-72 Yes

TOPIC SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES

GRI 201: Economic Performance

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed 86 Yes

201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other retirement plans 213 Yes

GRI 203: Indirect Economic Impacts

203-1 Infrastructure investments and services supported 114-116 Yes

GRI 204: Procurement Practices

204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers 114 Yes

GRI 205: Anti-corruption

205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken 113 Yes

GRI 301: Materials

301-1 Materials used by weight or volume 123 Yes

GRI 302: Energy

302-1 Energy consumption within the organization 122-123 Yes

302-4 Reduction of energy consumption 122-123 Yes

GRI 303: Water

303-1 Water withdrawal by source 123 Yes

GRI 304: Biodiversity

304-1 Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protect-
ed areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas

194 Yes

304-2 Significant impacts of activities, products, and services on biodiversity 123 Yes

GRI 305: Emissions

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions 123 Yes

305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions 123 Yes

305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions 123 Yes

GRI 307: Environmental Compliance

307-1 Non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations 123 Yes

GRI 401: Employment

401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover 98 Yes

GRI INDEX 
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Disclosure Page Numbers External  
Assurance

GRI 403: Occupational Health and Safety

403-2 Types of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, 
and absenteeism, and number of work-related fatalities

100 Yes

GRI 404: Training and Education

404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition assistance 
programs

100 Yes

GRI 408: Child Labour

408-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of child labor 101 Yes

GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory Labor

409-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents of forced or 
compulsory labor

114-116 Yes

GRI 413: Local Communities

413-1 Operations with local community engagement, impact assessments, 
and development programs

113 Yes

GRI 416: Customer Health and Safety

416-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning the health  and safety im-
pacts of products and services

113 Yes

GRI 417: Marketing and Labeling

417 - 2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and service informa-
tion and labelling.

113 Yes

GRI 418: Customer Privacy

418 - 1 Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of customer privacy 
and losses of customer data

113 Yes

GRI 419: Socioeconomic Compliance

419-1 Non-compliance with laws and regulations in the social and economic 
area

113 Yes
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING 

Independent Assurance Report to 
Abans PLC on the Sustainability 
Reporting Criteria Presented in the 
Integrated Annual Report- 2018/19 

Introduction and scope of the 
engagement

The management of Abans PLC (“the 
Company”) engaged us to provide an 
independent assurance on the following 
elements of the sustainability reporting 
criteria presented in the annual report- 
2018/19 (“the Report”).

• Reasonable assurance on the 
information on financial performance 
as specified on page 86 of the 
Report.

• Limited assurance on other 
information presented in the 
Report, prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Global 
Reporting Initiative GRI Standards: ‘In 
accordance’ – Core guidelines.

Basis of our work and level of 
assurance

We performed our procedures to provide 
limited assurance in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Standard on Assurance 
Engagements (SLSAE 3000): ‘Assurance 
Engagements Other than Audits 
or Reviews of Historical Financial 
Information’, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka 
(“ICASL”).

The evaluation criteria used for this limited 
assurance engagement are based on the 
Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (“GRI 
Guidelines”) and related information in 
particular, the requirements to achieve 
GRI Standards ‘In accordance’ - Core 
guideline publication, publicly available 
at GRI’s global website at “www.
globalreporting.org”.

Our engagement provides limited 
assurance as well as reasonable 
assurance. A limited assurance 
engagement is substantially less in scope 
than a reasonable assurance engagement 
conducted in accordance with 
SLSAE-3000 and consequently does not 
enable to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters 
that might be identified in a reasonable 
assurance engagement. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion providing 
reasonable assurance.

Management of the Company’s 
responsibility for the Report

The management of the Company is 
responsible for the preparation of the 
self-declaration, the information and 
statements contained within the Report, 
and for maintaining adequate records 
and internal controls that are designed to 
support the sustainability reporting

process in line with the GRI Sustainability 
Reporting Guidelines.

Ernst & Young’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a 
conclusion as to whether we have 
become aware of any matter that 
causes us to believe that the Report is 
not prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Global Reporting 
Initiative, GRI Standards: ‘In accordance’ 
- Core guidelines. This report is made 
solely to the Company in accordance 
with our engagement letter dated 22 
May 2019. We disclaim any assumption 
of responsibility for any reliance on this 
report to any person other than the 
Company or for any purpose other 
than that for which it was prepared. 
In conducting our engagement, we 
have complied with the independence 
requirements of the Code for Ethics for 
Professional Accountants issued by the 
ICASL.

Key assurance procedures

We planned and performed our 
procedures to obtain the information and 
explanations considered necessary to 
provide sufficient evidence to support 
our limited assurance conclusions. Key 
assurance procedures included:

• Interviewing relevant the company’s 
personnel to understand the process 
for collection, analysis, aggregation 
and presentation of data.
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• Reviewing and validation of the 
information contained in the Report.

• Checking the calculations performed 
by the Company on a sample basis 
through recalculation.

• Reconciling and agreeing the data 
on financial performance are properly 
derived from the Company’s audited 
financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2019.

• Comparison of the content of the 
Report against the criteria for a Global 
Reporting Initiative, GRI Standards: 
‘In accordance’ – Core guidelines.

Our procedures did not include testing 
electronic systems used to collect and 
aggregate the information.

Limitations and considerations

Environmental and social performance 
data are subject to inherent limitations 
given their nature and the methods 
used for determining, calculating and 
estimating such data.

Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed, as 
described above, we conclude that;

• The information on financial 
performance as specified on page 
86 of the Report are properly derived 
from the audited financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended 
31 March 2019.

• Nothing has come to our attention 
that causes us to believe that other 
information presented in the Report 
are not fairly presented, in all material 
respects, in accordance with the 
Company’s sustainability practices 

and policies some of which are 
derived from Sustainability Reporting 
Guideline, GRI Standards- ‘In 
accordance’ Core.

Ernst & Young

 

 

Chartered Accountants

30th May 2019

Colombo
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GLOSSARY

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Specific principles, bases and procedures adopted by an 
organization in preparation and presentation of financial 
statements.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

A record of all short-term (less than 12 months) invoices, bills and 
other liabilities yet to be paid.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

A record of all short-term (less than 12 months) expected 
payments, from customers that have already received the goods/
services but are yet to pay. These types of customers are called 
debtors and are generally invoiced by a business.

ACCRUAL ACCOUNTING

An accounting system that records transactions at the time they 
occur, whether the payment is made now or in the future.

ACCIDENT

An unexpected and unplanned occurrence, including acts of 
violence, arising out of or in connection with work which results 
in one or more workers incurring a personal injury, disease or 
death. As occupational accidents are to be considered travel, 
transport or road traffic accidents in which workers are injured 
and which arise out of or in the course of work, i.e. while 
engaged in an economic activity, or at work, or carrying on the 
business of the employer.

AMORTISATION

The process of expensing for intangible assets such as goodwill 
and intellectual property over a period of time.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

All assets not in any of the 3 categories namely held to maturity, 
fair value through profit/loss and receivables. It is a residual 
category and does not mean that the entity stands ready sell 
these all the time.

AWPLR

Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate

BENCHMARK

A set of conditions against which a product or business is 
measured.

BOTTOM LINE

See Net profit.

BORROWINGS

All interest bearing liabilities such as Overdraft, Bank Loans, etc.

BRAINSTORMING

Group creativity technique by which efforts are made to find a 
conclusion for a specific problem by gathering a list of ideas 
spontaneously contributed by its members.

CAPITAL

Wealth in the form of money or property owned by a business.

CASH EQUIVALENT

Liquid investment which is having a maturity of three months or 
less.

CASH FLOW

The measure of actual cash flowing in and out of a business.

COLLATERAL

See Security

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

This is the attribute that allows an entity to outperform its 
competitors or superiority gained by an entity when its ability 
to provide same value as the competitors under lower costs or 
can charge higher price by creating greater value through the 
differentiation.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A liability that only needs to be paid if a particular event or 
circumstance occurs.

CURRENT RATIO

Current assets divided by Current Liabilities. This measures the 
ability of a business to repay Current Liabilities with its Current 
Assets.

DEFERRED TAX

A liability that results from income that has already been earned 
for accounting purposes but not for tax purposes.

DISPOSABLE INCOME

Also known as disposable personal income (DPI) is the amount 
of money that households have available for spending and saving 
after income taxes have been accounted for.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profits distributable to Ordinary shareholders divided by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.

ECOFRIENDLY

Not harmful to the environment.

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

Average rate at which an individual or corporation is taxed.

EQUITY

The value of ownership interest in the business, calculated 
by deducting liabilities from assets. Or owner’s interest in the 
company’s Assets. See Net Assets also.

ERP SYSTEM

Enterprise Resource Planning is business process management 
software that allows an organisation to use a system of 
integrated applications to manage the business and automate 
many back office functions related to technology, services and 
human resources.

FACTORING

(Also known as debtors finance and accounts receivable finance) 
— is when a factor company buys a business' outstanding 
invoices at a discount. The factor company then chases up the 
debtors. Factoring is a way to get quick access to cash, but can 
be quite expensive compared to traditional financing options.

FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged 
between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length 
transaction.

FISCAL POLICY

This is the Government spending and Taxation that influence on 
economy.

GEARING RATIO

Proportion of a Company’s borrowed funds to its Equity.

GROSS PROFIT

The difference between sales and the direct cost of making the 
sales.

GUARANTOR

A person who promises to pay a loan in the event the borrower 
cannot meet the repayments. The guarantor is legally responsible 
for the debt.

HELD-TO-MATURITY

Assets acquired by the entity with the intention of holding till 
maturity.

HIRE-PURCHASE

A type of finance contract where a good is purchased through 
an initial deposit and then rented while the good is paid off in 
installments plus interest charges. Once the good is fully paid the 
ownership of the good transfers to the purchaser.

IMPAIRMENT

This occurs when the recoverable amount of an asset is less 
than its carrying value.

INCIDENT

The occurrence of an event that interrupts the completion of an 
activity. It may be a minor event or result in a crisis such as an 
accident.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Non-physical assets with no fixed value, such as goodwill and 
intellectual property rights.

NASDAQ

An American stock exchange

NET ASSETS

(Also known as net worth, owner's equity or shareholder's equity) 
is the total assets minus total liabilities.

NET PROFIT

(Also known as bottom line) is the total gross profit minus all 
business expenses.

NICHE OPPORTUNITIES

Opportunities arise which are focusing on need for a product or 
service that has not been addressed by mainstream producers 
or try to satisfy specific market need.

NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to 
parent.
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OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE

Any disease or disorder that occurs as a result of work or 
working conditions.

P/E RATIO

Price of a share divided by earnings of a share.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A group of fixed assets used in the operation of a business such 
as furniture, machinery, fit-out, vehicles, computers and tools.

QUICK ASSETS RATIO

Measures ability to meet its short term obligations with its most 
liquid assets. [(Current Assets-Inventory)/Current Liabilities]

RELATED PARTIES

Parties who can control or significantly influence the financial and 
operating politics of the entity.

SECURITY

(Also known as Collateral) is property or assets that a lender can 
take possession of, in the event that a loan cannot be repaid.

TURNOVER

The amount of money taken by a business in a particular period.

WORKING CAPITAL

The cash available to a business for day to day expense. 

GLOSSARY
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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at Head Office of Abans PLC on 27th June 
2019 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes.

1. To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors, the Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March 2019 and Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect Mrs. Aban Pestonjee, Director of the Company who being over seventy years of age retires in accordance with Section 
210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007. The Directors recommend the re-election of Mrs. Aban Pestonjee as a Director of the 
Company.

3. To re-elect Mr. Hiran Chaminda Embuldeniya, a Director of the Company who retires by rotation in terms of Section A.8 of the Code 
of Best Practice on Corporate Governance 2013. The Directors recommend the re-election of Mr. H C Embuldeniya as a Director of 
the Company.

4. To re-appoint M/s. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, as the Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorize 
the Directors to determine their remuneration.

By order of the Board

 
 
Varners International (Private) Limited

Secretaries

Level 14, West Tower,
World Trade Centre,
Echelon Square,
Colombo 01.

30th May 2019
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FORM OF PROXY

I/We * ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………...................................

……………………………………………………………………… being a member/members of Abans PLC, hereby appoint;

Ms. Aban Pestonjee ……………………………….…............of Colombo or failing her

Ms. Saroshi Dubash ……………………………………........ of Colombo or failing her

Mr. Behman Pestonjee…………………………….…...........  of Colombo or failing him

Mr. Rusi Pestonjee ………………………………….............  of Colombo or failing him

Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya……………………………................ of Colombo or failing him

Mr. R Selvaskandan..…….…………………………….......... of Colombo or failing him

……………………………………………………………………………….……..…………of……….……………………………………………

…………………………………………………………..………………. (National Identity Card Number…………..…………………) as my/

our* proxy to represent me/us* and to vote as indicated hereunder for me/us* and on my/our* behalf at the Annual General Meeting 

of the Company to be held on ……………………..… 2019 and at every poll which may be taken in consequence of the aforesaid 

meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

For Against

1. To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and the Audited Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31st March 2019 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect Mrs. Aban Psetonjee, as a Director of the Company in terms of Article 4.1 of Part II of 
the Articles of Association and Section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

3. To re-elect Mr. Hiran Chaminda Embuldeniya, a Director of the Company who retires by rotation 
in terms of Section A.8 of the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance 2013.

4. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, as the Auditors for the ensuing 
year and to authorize the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Signature: ……………………………………..

Signed this …………………………… day of ……………………. 2019

Witness ……………………………………….

(*Please delete the inappropriate words)
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INSTRUCTIONS ON COMPLETING THE FORM OF PROXY

1. Please perfect the Form of Proxy after filling in legibly your name and address and by signing in the 
space provided and inserting the date of signatures.

2. Please return the completed Form of Proxy to the office of the Secretaries, Varners International 
(Private) Limited at Level 14, West Tower, World Trade Center, Echelon Square, Colombo 01 after 
crossing out one or the other of the alternate words indicated by the asterisks on the body of the Form.  
The Form of Proxy shall be lodged with the Company Secretaries not less than forty-eight hours before 
the time appointed for holding the meeting. 

3. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should accompany the 
completed Form of Proxy for registration, if a Power of Attorney has not been already registered with 
the Company.

4. If the shareholder is a Company or a body corporate, the Form of Proxy should be under its Common 
Seal in accordance with its Articles of Association or Constitution.

5. If there is any doubt as to the manner in which the proxy should vote by reason of the manner in which 
instructions in 2 above have been carried out, the proxy holder will vote as she/he thinks fit.
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1981 as a Private Limited Liability Company under the provisions of 
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the Companies Act No. 07 0f 2007 to Abans Limited on 17th 
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WEB SITE
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AUDITORS
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INTERNAL AUDITORS

Chief Internal Auditor, Abans Group of Companies, Abans PLC,
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LAWYERS
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Mrs. Aban Pestonjee - Chairperson / Executive Director
Mr. Behman Pestonjee - Managing Director / Executive Director 
Dr. Saroshi Dubash - Executive Director
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Mr. Hiran C Embuldeniya - Independent Non-Executive Director 
Mr. R Selvaskandan - Independent Non-Executive Director
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